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STATE OF OHIO 35 North Fourth Street

Columbus, Ohio 43216
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR olumbus, Ohio
Telephone 614-466-3402

Jim PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-443-9275
Facsimile 614-728-7199

Independent Accountants ' Report

The Honorable Bob Taft, Governor
State of Ohio
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our respensibility is fo express an opinion on
these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements
of the foliowing organizations which are a part of the primary government:

Capitol Square Review and Advisory Board Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation
Office of Financial Incentives and Industrial Commission of Ohio
Office of the Auditor of State State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio

Also, we did not audit the following component units:
Biended
Chio Building Authority State Highway Patrol Retirement System
Chioc Public Faciliies Commission

Discretely Presentad

Bowling Green State University Miami University University of Toledo
Columbus State Community College Ohio State University Wright State University
Cleveland State University Ohio University Youngstown State University
Kent State University University of Akron

Medical College of Ohio at Toledo University of Cincinnati

In addition, we did not audit the financial statements of the Public Employees Retirement System, Police and
Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund System, State Teachers Retirement System, and School Employees
Retirement System, whose assets are held by the Treasurer of Siate and are included as part of the State's
trust and agency fund type. These financial statements reflect the following percentages of totaf assets or
liabilities and revenues or additions of the indicated fund types, account groups, and discretely presented
component units:

Percent of Total Percent of Total

Assets/Liabilities) Revenugs/Additions
Special Revenue Fund Type 7% 0%
Debt Service Fund Type 45% 10%
Capital Projects Fund Type 1% 47%
Enterprise Fund Type 88% 57%
Internal Service Fund Type 30% 1%
Trust and Agency Fund Type 7% 47%
Generat Fixed Assets Account Group 9% —
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (66%) —
Discretely Presented Component Units 83% 84%

The financial statements of these independently audited organizations and the assets of these retirement
systems were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
asitrelates to the financial statements of these independently audited organizations and the amounts of the
retirement systems audited by other auditors included in the fund types and account groups comprising the
general-purpose financial statements is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.,
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We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and the standards

applicable to financial audits contained in  Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
Genera!l of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general-purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the general-purpose financial statements
referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of
Ohio at June 30, 1999, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and
discretely presented component unit for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the general-purpose financial statements, the State of Ohio has implemented
Statement 32 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Pians for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.
The State of Chio has no fiduciary responsibilities for the funds deposited with the Program by its
employees, and the Siate has not included any balances for these funds in its general-purpose financial
statements as of the year ended June 30, 1898.

The year 2000 supplementary information on pages 68 - 70 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted primarily of inquiries of managementregarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.

We did not apply these procedures to the organizations which are a part of the primary government or
component units identified in paragraph one, above, as having been audited by other auditors. The other
auditors for the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and Industrial Commission of Ohio, the Auditor of
State, the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ghio, the Ohio Building Authority, the Chio State University, and
the University of Cincinnati reported they were unable to apply o the suppiementary year 2000 information
the procedures prescribed by professional standards. The other auditors did not audit the year 2000
supplementary information and express no opinion on it.

The year 2000 supplementary information on pages 68 - 70 indicates the Ohio Department of Administrative
Services' State Payrolt System and the Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections' Prison Security
System are in the remediation stage. It is reasonably possible that neither of these systems will be
completely remediated as of January 1, 2000. Failure of either system could have significant effects on the
State’s ability to conduct its normal operations. Neither we nor the other auditors provide assurance that
the primary government or any of its component units are or will become year 2000 compliant, that the
primary government's, or any of its component units’, year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in
whole or in part, or that parties with which the primary government or any of its component units do business
are or will become year 2000 compliant.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 19,
1999 on our consideration of the State of Ohic's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contractg.a#

November 19, 1999
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 1999

{dollars in thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL AEVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Cash Equity with TreaSURSr. .. ... ... e ia i erariaeeeaees 3 2871508 § 3145502 § 60,646 § 727,159
Gash and Cash Equivalents 13,656 17.028 1,688 —
investments. .. ... - 102,278 95,369 13,851
Collateral on Lent Securities 2,118,346 2,301,729 45037 533,299
Dsposit with Faderal GOVBINMENT. . .. .. ..uvviivisviririinrininion. — —_ -— —
Raceivablas:
T 748,854 200,278 - —
INErQoOveINNBItal . ... .. 616,388 413,458 - —_—
Premiums and ASSESSIMEBIIS . v v vur et —_— — —_— —
Invastment Tratds. . .. ... —_ b — —_
Loans, NGt . .. e 25,2483 455,215 4,135 148,443
L - 24263 52 285 826 2,840
DuafromOMer FUNDS ..o i i cie e ia i 22,076 23,455 1,243 2427
IVBIONIOS. i ey 1,000 33,269 - -
faov o By 1o o — 121,572 -_— e
Advances to OMer FUnds . .o v e e s - _ —_— —_
Restricted Assels:
Cash EQuity with TFERSUIST . .. ... ve e nnaanias — — — —
CashandCash Cquivalents. .. ... ..o iiii i —_ — —_— —
IVBBHTIBIIS . . .t it iaaae e aan s e -_ — — —_
Dadicated Investimtents. . ... ... oo e — -_ — —_
Coffateralon Lent Securifies .. ... o i i - _ — —_—
Other ROCEIVADIBE . . v v e et et it —_ — — —
Fixed Assets (net of accumidated deprecialion}. .. ............ ... — _— — —
OB ABBBIS . . o ittt s 6,453 5347 — —_—
Amount Available forDebt Service .. ... .. oo i - -_ — —_—
Amount lo be Provided for General Long-Term Obligations........... .. — —_ - —
TOTAL ASSETSANDOTHERDEBITS .................... $ 6,496,178 $ 6,871,414 § 208944 § 1,427,719
LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilifies:
ACOOUTIS PAYABIE . < v ot v e e et e e $ 116923 & 258,703 § — & 82,213
Medicaid Claims Payable .. ... i i, 508,652 5,782 — —_—
Avoruad LIBBINIES . . ..o e e 136,796 54,954 954 47
Chifgations Under Securitfesbending. ............. o 2,116,346 2.301,729 48,037 833,239
intargovernmantal Payable. ............ o i 278,699 517,873 — —_—
investment Trade Payable ... e — —_ — —
DU 1o Other FUMES. .. vt o e e et i i 41,461 8,645 18 1,198
Doferred Revente 73 218,942 6.000 -_—
Bengfits Pavable. ... —_ —_— —_ —
Refund and Other LIabilfies . ... ... oo £04,158 72743 1125 —_—
Liability for Escheat Properly ... ..o v oo iiiiii s - —_— — —
Liabilities Payable from Resticted ASSEIS ... v.v v ivverennanannns —_— — — —
Advances from Ofhar FUnds . .. ... ... i i —_ 145,659 — —
General Obfigation Bonds. . ... ... i — —_ — —
Favenue Bonds and Notes . ... ..o —_ _ — —
Special Obligalion BondS ... .. ...t iiii i, — —_ —_— —
Certificates of Participaltion . ... ... o i e e —_— -_ —_— —_
Oifier General Long-Tarm Qbligations .. .. .......ciiii i, — — — —
Totaf Liabilities . . ..o v crr e e 3,806,106 3,585,730 53,134 616,757
Fund Equity and Other Credits:
investment in General Fixed Agsels . . ........ ... . i — —_ e —
Gontributed Capital . .. v oo e -_ — —_— —
Resorved Retained EAIRGS . oot et iiiaen v — -_— — —_
Unreserved Ratainad Eamings. .. ... ooiv v it — —_ —_ —_
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Dabt BaIiCE. . . o e 1,480 — 151,117 —_—
B o e i TS 514,032 3,161,002 — 780,075
Budget Stabiizalion. .. ..o e 808,891 _— — —
Noncurrant Portion of Loans Receivable. .. ....... .ol 24,672 302,405 4,135 146,926
Employess’ Pension and Other Postemployment Banefifs .. ......... — — —_— —
Unempioyment Benelits. . ..o ovve i e e -_— —_ - —
External Investment Pool Participants .. ... .......... ..o - -_— — —
Restricled Fund Balances . . ..o e oo e e eii s —_— —_— —_— —_
[ 7= L O 114,965 42,783 - 64,693
Unreserved/Dasignaled .. . ......... . e 755,259 — - _
Unraserved/Undesignated (Deflclis) . ... 322,773 {230,516) 558 {180,739)
Total Fund Equily and Other Craits ... .. oo v vieie e 2,640,072 3,275,664 155,810 810,962
TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS § 6,446,178 § 8,871,414 § 208,944 § 1,427,719

The notas to the financial stalemenis are an integral part of this statement.
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PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS
TOTAL TOTAL
GENERAL GENERAL PRIMARY REPORTING
INTERNAL TRUST AND FIXED LONG-TERM GOVERNMENT  COMPONENT ENTITY

ENTERPRISE SERVICE AGENCY ASSETS OBLIGATIONS fmemorandum only) UNITS {memorandum only)
$ 153222 § 54203 § 180,807 $ - 3 — § 7,203,138 § 305 3 7,203,443
1,904,537 170 173,808 — — 2,117,087 250,353 2,567,440
17,938,712 1,563 126,453,486 — — 144,605,959 4,170,185 148,776,154
2,342,895 39,504 1,205,440 — b 8,584,250 — 8,584,250
—_ — 2,110,852 - -— 2,110,852 — 2,110,852
- —_ 149,548 — — 1,098,818 — 1,098,818
_— 2,557 71 — — 1,682,254 23182 1,065,436
1,260,390 —_ - — - 1,280,390 — 1,280,390
132,567 —-— — - — 132,367 - 132,367
- -_— — — — 633,086 2,055,624 2,608,710
263,345 84,235 39,525 — — 437,319 484,829 632,148
4,292 40,567 3,237 - - 97,297 454,700 551,897
25,458 19,066 - — - 78,791 43,256 122,047
- - — - — 121,572 — 121,572
—_— — 145,689 — — 145,669 — 145,689
39,276 — — — - 39,276 - 88,276
1 58 _— - -_— &0 4,450 4,520
— 44,298 — -_ — 44,298 19,170 63,468
1,742,230 - — — — 1,742,230 — 1,742,230
1,004,042 — _ - — 1,004,042 —_ 1,004,042
11,518 — - - - 11,918 - 11,918
230,773 27,655 2,865 5,868,365 — 4,150,658 8,789,056 12,939,714
39,923 841 403,331 — — 455,395 789,245 1,244,640
— — — — 152,597 152,597 — 152,507
— — — — 8125810 8,125,810 — 8,125,810
$ 27,134,378 § 264,086 $§ 130,884,659 $ 3,869,365 $ 8278407 $ 185405153 § 17,104,375 § 202,500,528
$ 156,784 $ 26905 $ 798 $ - § — § 644,326 § 211,233 § 855,559
— — - - — 515,404 —_ 515,404
36,675 11,430 469 — s 251,825 708,755 980,080
2,342,895 39,504 1.205,440 -_— - 8,584,250 _ 8,584,250
— 1,277 87,577 — — 885,126 441 885,567
1,425,071 — 133,670 — — 1,658,750 — 1,566,750
2,287 1,525 41,208 - - 97,340 454,700 552,040
445,391 453 - - — 670,865 184,102 854,957
12,581,330 - 20,210 —_ — 12,601,540 — 12,601,540
1,692,448 —_ 120,745,869 — — 123,116,355 144,002 123,260,447
— — 73,579 — - 78,579 - 73,579
2,678,362 - - — — 2,676,362 — 2,878,362
— — — — — 145,688 — 145,689
—_ — —_ —_ 1,962,402 1,962,402 -_— 1,962,402
191,864 31,815 - — 224,760 448,439 2,494,976 2543415
— — — - 5,062,344 5062344 — 5,062,344
— - — 16,765 16,765 13,220 29,985
—_— — — - 1,012,136 1,012,136 —_ 1,012,136
27,559,107 112,905 122,508,847 — 8575407 160,524,997 3,211,519 164,536,516
—_ — - 3,888,365 —_ 3,689,365 7,755,187 11,644,552
411 51,358 —_ - — 51,770 _— 51,770
151,201 204 - — — 151,405 — 151,405
5,420,660 99,616 —_ - - 5,520,276 1,813,635 6,842,511
— — —_ — — 152,597 — 152,597
— — —_ - - 4,455,110 — 4,455,110
— — - — — 906,881 - 906,801
— — — - - 478,138 — 478,138
— — 600,099 — - 600,099 — 600,099
—_ -_ 2,397,075 — — 2,397,075 —_— 2,397,075
—_ — 5335446 — — 5,336,448 — 5,335,446
—_ — e — — —_— 2,824,208 2,924,206
— — 145,608 - - 368,146 — 368,146
— — — —_ — 755,250 361,629 1,116,888
—_ —_ 97,503 —_ — 9,579 538199 547,778
5,561,272 151,179 8,575,812 3,688,365 — " 25,050, 156 12,892,856 37,073,012
$ 27134378 § 264,088 § 130,884,659 § 3,869,365 § 8278407 $ 185405153 § 17,104,375 § 202,509,528
e — —
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999
{dollars in thousands}

REVENUES:
COME TaXBS . . o i i ittt ettt s tantaar st tarnreannnen
o - - 1
Corporate and Public Uty Taxes . .............ovinnnns.
Motor Vehicle FUuel TaXOS, . ..o i ettt te e e aaannrens
Unemployment TAXES. . . ... oo ettt it iienieanaans
Ol T XS . v vttt it e eme et et r i eanrtanastnnnens
Liconses, Pormits and Foes . . ..o it e ennnas
Sales, Services and Charges . ..o v v i e cinnnaans
Fodoral Governmem. ... vt ii ittt ttansrenarenns
Investment lncome......... e e e ae s

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ....................
Higher Education SUPPOR. . . .o i it ii e vnneaas
Public Assistance andMedicaid. ... .........cccviiiinnn..
Health and HUman SemviCes. ... ..o i it ia s aaeennnan
Justice and Public Protection . .. ..o i i s
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . .............
Transporiation. . . ..o v vune e e tit it ranns
General GoVeITIMEN . .ottt e it a i rernraraansanes

...........................................

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER)EXPENDITURES .............ccivviiiinnn.

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Procesds. . ... iii i i e e s
Refunding Bond Proceeds . . ....ovvviniiiiiiiiiiiinnnans
Payment to Refunded Bond EscrowAgents. . .................
Capital Leases ................. P
Operating Transfers-in . ... ..o et it
Operating Transfors-ott . ... ..o it iiiis e
Operating Transfers to ComponentUnits. . ...................

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). .. ..............
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES
ANDOTHERFINANCINGUSES .......... ... ciiivivinnnnsn

FUND BALANCES, JULY T(asrestated} . .. .............00iivnnenn,
Increase (Decreass) for Changes in invenlories ...............
Residual Equity Transfers-out ..o,

FUND BALANCES, JUNE30............................

The notes to the financial siatements are an integral part of this statement.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
SPECIAL DEBT
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE
§ 6389826 § 753418 § —
5,539,780 294,519 -
1,718,482 99,159 -
- 1,413,301 32,378
869,556 47,949 _—
94,789 792,638 14,226
43,586 37,495 —
31 658: 824 5, 038, 886 —
399,520 115,132 11,067
183,221 528,107 1,356
18,897,684 9,121,604 59,026
4,832,607 1,571,371 —
365,981 11,887 —
6,550,881 2,010,771 —
1,035,566 1,512,794 -—
1,555,068 480,670
113,947 216,122 —_
35,961 1,461,592 _
546,537 114,474 -
109,945 288,063 -
1,033,066 1,865,028 —_
15,607 267,047 -
1,794 — 1,017,962
16,196,961 9,799,818 1,017,962
2,700,723 {678,215) (958,936}
- 111,993 -
— — 173,500
— -—_ (173,376)
1,575 682 -
201,151 2,017,646 969,961
{1,308,827) {1,067,918) {37,882)
{1,564,910) — —
(2,671,011) 1,062,403 $32,203
29,712 384,188 (26,733)
2,611,185 2,893,453 182,543
(835) (1,957) e
$ 2640072 § 3275684 § 155,810

State of Ohio
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FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPE

TOTAL
CAPITAL EXPEMDABLE {mamorandum
PROJECTS TRUST only)

$ — $ —- $ 7,143,344
- - 5,834,299
— - 1,817,641
— - 1,445,679
- 669,896 669,896
- - 917,505
— - 801,653
650 - 81,731

90 10,111 8,707,911
29,196 148,190 703,105
3,989 60,751 778,423

33,925 888,948 29,001,187

- — 6,403,978
- — 377,868
— — 8,561,652
— 718,048 3,266,408
— 2,035,739

— — 330,069

- — 1,497,553

— 27,617 688,628
897 — 398,905

— = 2,898,094
973,617 — 1,256,271
4,369 — 1,024,125
978,883 745,665 28,739,290

(944,958) 143,283 261,897

1,158,492 — 1,270,485
— - 173,500

- —_ (173,376)

— - 2,257
281,287 b 3,470,045
{283,596) - (2,698,223)
— — {1,564,910)
1,156,183 — 479,778

211,225 143,283 741,675

605,393 2,496,984 8,789,568
— — (2,792}
{5,656) - {5,656}

$ 810962 § 2,640,267 955225795
——————
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE, DEBT SERVICE AND CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1959
(tlollars in thousands)

GENERAL FUND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL fUNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
fncome Taxes $ 6,150,598 $6416827 3 266,229 § 756968 § 7569689 3 —
Sales Taxes . 5,490,060 5,545,349 55,349 294,624 254,624 —
Corporate and Public Utility TAXES ........ococvvnecvennens 1,787,302 1,721,628 {65,674) 99,317 89,317 —_
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes " — — — 1,402,408 1,402,408 -
Other Taxes ......ccoeereenn 824,174 869,513 45,339 47,660 47,660 —_
Licanses, Pormits and FBES .......occvprevverecerenns 105,965 102,082 {3,683} 965,906 965,906 -
Sales, Services and CHAIGes ... 34,982 36,213 1,231 34,690 34,690 -
Faderal GOVEITIMENL ... 3,531,583 3,485,209 {46,374) 5,027,823 5,027,823 -
Investment income 123,108 156,466 33,358 135,654 135,854 —
OIBE oo ccss i sat rerspersssarr e s b 375,905 372,151 {3,754} 717,967 717,967 —
TOTAL REVENUES ... cecneeenneeens. 18,425,617 18,705,438 281,821 9,483,238 9,483,238 —
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ............. 4,846,373 4,814,740 31,633 1,783,376 1,750,975 32,401
Higher Education Support 1,953,416 1,947,044 6,372 18,113 5,294 9,819
Fublic Assistance and Madicaid ............ccceonvisenn.. 7,006,269 6,630,408 375,861 2,728,739 2,233,488 493,253
Heafth and Humarn Sevvices ... 1,097,235 1,080,343 16,842 2,102,324 1,583,128 519,186
Justice and Pubiic Profection .. 1,628,383 1,561,847 66,536 591,736 519,653 72,083
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources .., 138,643 131,284 7,358 300,193 236,233 61,960
TransporBHOM .......coocrecreescorracorinnannnse 41,637 39,649 1,988 2,354,371 1,766,008 588,275
Ganaral GOVeIMMBAL .......cccconiimeneneessieest e 456,328 412,191 44,137 137,328 123,659 13,669
Communily and Econormic Developmant ................ 133,681 128,817 4,864 440,336 345,043 95,283
INTERGOVERNMENTAL ......cocevvcrrnan 1,059,401 1,038,479 20922 2,093,221 2,016,107 77,114
CAPITAL OUTLAY ... 52,707 19,502 33,205 1,241,524 754,801 486,723
DEBTSERVICE ........cooeoeeviicirirrst e srtrenennenn 885,687 §39,999 45,658 49,503 36,140 13,363
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ............... 19,299,760 18,644,353 655,407 13,838,764 11,375,625 2,463,139
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..., (876,143) 51,085 937,228 {4,355,526) {1,892,387) 2,463,139
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BoNd Procagds ... .o e e e — — —_ 115,571 115,571 —_
Operating Transfers-in 125,114 898,239 773,125 2,019,916 2019916 —
Operating Transfars-Glt ... eeviveevververeeeeeeens {339,313) {1,160,367) {821,054) (1,023,497} {1,023,497) —
Encumbrance Reversions —_ 138,771 138,771 532,913 532,913 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .. {214,199) (123,357) 80,842 1,644,903 1,644,903 —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
{UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES ......c.cccccoivrimane. {1,080,342) (62,272) 1,028,070  ${2,710,623) (247,484) $ 2,463,139
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JULY 1 oo, 397,221 3§7.221 — {94,202)
Decrease (Incraass) in Budgetary Designations ...... 152,122 152,122 — —
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 .............. {540,898} 487,071 1,028,070 {341,686)
Budgslary Designations, June 30 .........cciionen.. 1,762,150 1,762,150 — -—
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ..., $ 1,229,151 $2249221 § 1,028,070 § {341,688)

_—

The notes lo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (LUNFAVORABLE}
$ - 5 - 3 - 8 - 8 = 8 —
32,554 32,554 — — — -
14,083 14,083 — - - -
— — — 650 650 —
— — — 90 90 —
6,275 6,275 - 36,844 36,844 -
124,610 124,610 — 10,063 10,063 —
177,522 177,522 — 47,647 47,647 —
- — - 938 896 42
— — - 2,863,927 921,870 1,942,057
287,701 248,038 39,663 4,311 4,311 —
287,701 248,038 39,663 2,869,176 927,677 1,042,009
(110,179) {70,516) 39,663 (2,821,529) (879,430) 1,042,099
728 728 - 1,158,492 1,158,492 —
51,349 51,349 - 34,271 34,271 —
— — — {34,139) (34,139) —
—_ — — 21,908 21,908 —
52,077 52,077 — 1,180,532 1,160,532 —
§ (58,102} (18439) § 39,663  § (1,640,997) 301,102 § 1,942,099
80,634 (416,278)
62,195 (115,176)
$ 62,195 $ (115,176)

State of Chio



STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

{doliars in thousands)
PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
TOTAL
PRIMARY
GOVERNMENT
INTERNAL {memorandum
ENTERPRISE SERVICE only)
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services. . .. ... oo veiierinraernnns $ 2632478 § 269671 § 2902149
Premium and Assessmentincome. . ... ... .o i 2,032,027 — 2,032,027
Investment INCoOmMe . .. .. . i it iaranans 1,739,752 — 1,739,752
(0] (1T 22,702 2,120 24,822
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES . ... oottt aannranans 6,426,959 271,791 6,698,750
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs 0f Sales and ServiCES. . ... iir i, 297,905 121,687 419,602
ADMINISIAHON. « v v\ vt ittt e e i i i 166,078 148,250 334,328
Premium Dividend Credits and Rebates. . .................... 757,669 — 757,669
Bonusesand Commissions ........... .o iinnnan., 134,614 —_— 134,614
F =7 2 1,258,766 — 1,258,766
Benefits and Claims . ..o oo i e i 1,495,357 — 1,495,357
DEPrOCIANION . . o v o ettt e it e, 32,657 10,933 43,5480
T T 385, 154 5,840 391,094
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ... ..o vuvviiiriinnrinnnens 4,549,200 286,810 4,836,010
OPERATINGINCOME (LOSS) . ... .voviiirtrarrninreranns 1,877,759 {15,019) 1,862,740
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INVestmentINCOMB . . . ..ot e et e et v cea s anrnns 75 2507 2582
IMEreSt EXPENSE. . . o i v vttt i (697) (2.029) {2,726)
FOOaral Granls . ..o v vt e st rnrrca et iatr e, —_ —_— —_
(0 1 A {7,696) (1,122) {8,818}
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)} ... .......... (8,318) (644) (8,962)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS. . .............. 1,869,441 (15,663) 1,853,778
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-in . . .....oo.vu. s S 32,344 36,920 62,264
Operating Transfers-ouf . ... .. e, (811,695} (29,391} {841,0886)
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS . .. . .oiiiesiivrinennns (779,351) 7,529 (771,822)
NETINGOME (LOSS) ... o i e ettt et e e eaan e nnanaas 1,090,090 {8,134) 1,081,956
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1. . .. i i e iaaaaaans 4,490,771 108,373 4,599,144
Rasidual Equity Transfers-otlt ........ooiiiiiiiiiiianneas, —_— {419) {419)
RETAINED EARNINGS,JUNE30........................ $ 5580861 § 99,820 § _ 5680681

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of ifs statement.
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COMPONENT

UNIT

TOTAL

OHIO REPORTING
WATER ENTITY
DEVELOPMENT {remaorandum
AUTHORITY only)

] 105,369 3,007,518
— 2,032,027
53,235 1,792,987
1,140 25,962
159,744 6,858,494
82,618 502210
2,385 338,713
— 757,669
— 134,614
— 1,259,766
— 1,495,357
46 43,635
2687 593,781
87,736 4,923,746
72,008 1,934,748
— 2582
— (2,726)
76,005 76,005
332 ~ (8,4886)
76,337 67,375
148,345 2,002,123
— 69,284
— (841,086)
— (771,822}
148,345 1,230,301
1,165,290 5,764,434

$  1,31363%

{419

$ 6994316

State of Ohio
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

{dotlars in thousands)

TOTAL
PRIMARY
INTERNAL GOVERNMENT
ENTERPRISE SERVICE {memarandum only)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Recaived from CUSIOMEIS.........c.ccowreeereeseeeesreseecs e caras s sesseessserse e 3 2621130 § 36,229 $ 2,657,359
Cash Received from Premiums and ASSeSSIMEMS. ......ccvvcvee v vevvvicnnn e 1,469,374 — 1,469,374
Cash Received from Quasi-External Transactions with Other Funds......... 6,572 235,312 241,884
Other Operating £ash ROCOIMS. ..o vriisincrres s s st cesaens 48,987 16,985 85,972
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and ServiCes......areriasines (405,658) (186,416} {592,068)
Cash Payments to EmpIoyeas for SEIVICES.............o e ceevsresisnieninas {311,062) {(60,764) {371,826}
Cash Payments for Benefits and GlaiimS......coveeerevee e {1,780,738) — {1,780,738)
Cash Paymenis for LoHery PHZES. ... enmeisnssnsserersssasssasesensnes (1,358,367} — {1,358,367)
Cash Payments for Bonuses and Commissions........viviceceiene {134,664} — {134,664)
Cash Payments for Premium Dividend Credits and Rebates.................. {338,004) — {338,004}
Cash Payments for Quasi-External Transactions with Other Funds........... (5,609 {29,211) {34,820)
Other Operafing Cash PaymemtS.. ... s esessessess {307) {18,252) {18,559)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES {188,346) (6,111) {194,457)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operaling TranSfars-i o o eeeeccsesssrrimini s s sssssssr s s s s sssnss s s 30,149 36,520 67,069
Cperating TranSers-OUL ... o et s s s s serea e s {811,695} {29,391) {841,086)
BN PrOGOOMS ...ceevveceeeceeecee ettt e ee v riara s areassss pesassassons s sarn s nans s —_ — —
FBOOIAN GIBIS ovoeeeeee e secereece e e cssistis oot srsns srisss st sesae s sbnas srsss seb s st sren s — — —
Grants {0 Local SUBOIVISIONS. ......o.comioirimmsic s s s st secsanes — - —
Retirament of Revenue Bond PANGIPE! ... — — —
HHBIOSE P «..viverereee e cerecesestae e e ora st s s e s st ses eass s ses s —_— — —
Bond and Note 135uance COSES ... s secirss s s s — — —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCGING ACTIVITIES ..ot e {781,546) 7,529 (774,017)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments on Bonds and Capital Leases...........eei. {20,201) {2,893) {23,094}
ITEBIOSE PAI 1ovvivvveriessrsesiessaneseesiesisentsarassronamsssasiast sraseas semsrss sorstcarssmsssasses {10,177) {2,023) {12,266}
Principal Receipts on Capital Leases ................ - — 2,893 2,893
Acquisition and Construiction of Capital Assets .. (9,870) {7.403) {17,273}
Proceeds from Sales of Fixed ASSBIS ... s s s 23,230 3 23,233
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED} BY
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..........cconniniinnn {17,018} (9,429) {26,447)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
PUICHASE Of IMVBSIMIBIILS.........eeevevemsrrensreeessemesre e sebe rebba s b i ek bt ee s (42.069,633) {94,478) (42,164,111)
Proceads from the Sales and Maturities of Investments ...l 40,923,972 97,731 41,021,703
Investment INCOMe RBCEIVEH ....vee ettt e e 1,083,854 3,205 1,087,058
Borrower Rebates and Agent Fees....... {205,892) — {205,832)
Loan Disbursemems.......oovinnininnns —_— — —
Loan Principal Repayments Recelved “ —_ — -
LOBH HHOFESE RECOME . ...oceeeeeiererarisrire e eeesesssmseass et et bbbt st e b e e nsaen — — —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES ... {267,699} 6,458 {261,241}
NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,254,609} {1,553) {1,256,162)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 it 3,351,645 56,075 3,407,720
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 .........cocovviivriiiiiens § 2,097,036 3 54,522 $ 2,151,558

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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COMPONENT

UNIT
OHIO TOTAL
WATER REPORTING
DEVELOPMENT ENTITY
AUTHORITY {memorandum only)
$ 1,160 $ 2,658,519
— 1.469,374
— 241,884
— 65,972
{1,310) (893,378)
{802} {372,628)
— {1,780,738)
— {1.358,367)
— (134,664}
— {338,004)
— (34,820
— {18,559)
{952) (195,409)
- 67,069
- (841,086)
153,046 153,046
76,025 76,025
{382) {382)
{115,545) {115,545)
{81,102) {81,102)
{1,955) {1,955)
30,087 {743,930)
— {23,094)
— {12,206)
— 2,893
{278) (17,551}
— 23,233
{278) {26,725}
{10,657,985) (52,822,096}
10,608,155 51,629,858
52,045 1,139,104
— {205,892}
{237,304) (237,304)
108,197 108,197
103,664 103,664
(23,228) (284,469}
5,629 {1,250,533}
10,331 3,418,051
$ 15,960 3 2,167,518
{continued)
State of Ohio 12



STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

{doilars in thousands)
{continued)

TOTAL
PRIMARY
INTERNAL GOVERNMENT
ENTERPRISE SERVICE {memorandum only)

RECONCGILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cperatittg INCOME (LOSE) ... eecvvievirensss st nis e sraas s e gsseseess ressssrsrenss 3 1,877,759 3 {15,019) by 1,862,740
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) fo
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Aclivitfes:

INVESIMENE INCOME ... et e ris s e rie s st bt s aae (1,739,752} — {1,739,752)
Borrowsr Rebates and Agent Fees.... 205,892 — 205,892
DIOPIECIBHON ... oceeeevee e eeeesesreae e remstessse e sseseassaretsrerasbt st asresersn semassren 32,657 10,933 43,590
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts ......... 29,387 — 29,387
Amortization of Premiums and DISCOURES ........ccuureernisninrncnerecneseans e 99,597 — 99,597
Amortizaiion of Bond I1SSUaNCe COSIS.......cceee v veeeeevrveere s sererresvsssers — — —_
intarast on Bonds, Notes and Capital Leases .. 9,480 —_ 9,480
interast Receivet 08 LOBNS.......o..cew e e cecrisinirissississsrisasss s st cnnnerns _— — —
Miscelfanieous Nonoperating (Revenuas) EXpenses ... v, {32} 182 150
Decrease (Increase) in Assels:
Irtergovemnmental RECeIVaDIE......vi oo srsresresnsrasnies 60 {561} {501)
Premiums and ASSessments ROCOIENO ... .oo.coowoormeceeevereeriesiins (6,076} — (6,076)
Other ReceivabiBs .........ccvinins (62,672} {23) (62.835)
Dusg from Other Funds ... {11} 1,945 1,934
Inventories .................... (1,271} 1,606 235
OIIBE ASSBIS —oooee oo eeae e ree e eeesee e sorsssesrasstsasssntasstrisat e 7,313 (37} 7,276
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilifies:
ACCOUTHE PAYBDIE ...ttt s srie s i s st e e e ane 13,397 {2,135) 11,262
Accrued Liabilities .............. e e p o 1,596 1,115 2,711
infergovarmnmental Payable ..o o eereeces it issbsssses s eens — (1,307) {1,307}
D@ 10 OUAEE FUNTS <.ocvvevere oot eereeevesssrasse e ses s saraasser s sesen s . 9 {2,369) {2,360}
DT OITE T RBVBIIUE. . 11evevieseseeseeeeeesesseesseseemenssensameesessen eemsses et e eemen e ansvan {4,091} {341} {4,432)
Benefits PAYABIS .....cvoirvimms ittt e s {319,656} — (319,656)
Refurnd and Other LIBUIHES ....ocvrivirmmimcnincimn s sesrara {288,785) — {288,785)
Liabilities Pavable from Restricted ASSeIS ....ivecrsnciniiriiciirenenn {42,547) — (42,947)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES .. 3 (188,346) $ (6,111) $ (194,4577
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in Fair Value of Investments..........ovvvie e 3 630,743 3 22 $ 630,765
Fixed Assets Acquired under Capital Leases.........coovvevereeenenceeeas 1,261 — 1,261
increase in Contributed Capital -
Fixed Assets Donated from Other FUnds..............covecvieeceeececccennnn 411 5,245 5,656

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Component Units Column on the Combined Balance Sheet include:

Proprietary-Ohio Water Development Authomfy ... $ 15,960
Colleges and Universities 239,158
TOTAL i ioriiiriiiiei et et ittt e et see st raemaees e sne s e 3 255,118

The notes to the financial statemenis are an integral part of this statement.
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COMFONENT

UNIT
OHIO TOTAL
WATER REPORTING
DEVELOPMENT ENTITY
AUTHORITY {memorandum only)
k) 72,008 $ 1,934,748
{53,235) {1,792 987}
— 205,892
46 43,636
— 29,387
— 99,597
1,091 1,091
81,527 91,007
{105,369) {105,369)
3,069 3,219
— (501)
—_ {6,076)
{29) (62,024)
(1,061} 873
—_ 235
— 7,276
{60) 11,202
— 271t
— {1,307}
1,061 {1,288}
— {4,432)
— {319,656)
- {288,785)
_ {42,547)
[ {952) [ {195,408}

$ 630,765
1,261

5,656

State of Ohio
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

(dofiars in thousands)

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
EMployer ..o e
ErpPIOYEES ..o s
Other ContribUtiONS .......cieeiirreersreeerc i

Total CoOMADUIONS «iovvvvvvvrieeeee e,

Investment Income;
Net Depreciation in Fair Value of Investments ...........vvreere..
B RN
DIVIGends ... errsrs e e
Other INVESHNBINT INCOMIE .....coveeeviviiirer et st eeaaee e s

Less: Investment EXDENSE ..o iiiiirrrresie e

Net InvesStment INCOMIE ... s
TOTAL ADDITIONS .....coooeoeeeeeeeeeeiiivtrt v rressemema s rr e rr e n e
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits and CIaIMS ..o vrrresirisrae e er st
Refunds of Emplovee Comtiibufions ...,
Administrative EXPBNSES ..cecveeeeeeceecservsinsisisia e
YOTAL DEDUCTIONS ............ceevneeee

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) .........covvssraeeeeemaresesssesssssrassn s sees

FUND BALANCE RESERVED FOR EMPLOYEES" PENSION
AND POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS

JANUARY T oovivorviiisconisssiss s sassses it st st e
DECEMBER 31 .....oooeeeeecetinnsarssr e s

The notes to the financial statemenis are an integral pari of this statement.

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
{for the year ended December 31, 1938}

POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT TOTAL

$ 13,101 $ 2,687 $ 15,788
6,574 — 6,574

217 5 222
19,892 2,692 22,584
(2,555) (1,354) {3,909)
12,070 2,130 14,200
4,162 735 4,897

703 124 827
74,380 7,635 16,015
1,351 238 1,589
13,029 1,397 14,426
32,921 4,089 37,010
21,540 3,129 24,669
164 —_ 164

648 114 762
22,352 3,243 25,595
10,569 846 11,415
499,913 88,771 588,684

§ 510,482 $ 89,617 $§ 600,099

State of Ohio

15



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

(doliars in thousands)

STAROHIO
OPERATIONS:

Investment INCOMe......vvveeeeeeeeen $ 281,532

Expenses:
ACTURSHBHON FEOS.......evesciiiiniiesrre et sirs s sass sassamessssts s ar s s nneerres s shas 1,408
Custodian and Transfer Agent Fees and Related EXpenses.........coeeriiinnne. 1,018
Security Lenting FEeS.....o.c i s 867
Management Fees...........covvvvvevnruee. 440
OtReS ...ocevevvveirrvnernans 278
TOEA] EXPONSOS. v oivereeeeeee e canin i e s s a et e 4,008
Net INVESIMEBITE INCOME w.ovvevi e ieeeeeeeeeeeesiisssssessss e s et snasaresanresseesseans 277,523

Dividends fo Shareholders fram Net Investment INCOMB..... . veveevreeeeeens

INCREASE (DECREASE) FROM OPERATIONS ...........coiiiiiiiniiiiinninn,

CAPITAL SHARE TRANSACTIONS

{dollar amounts and number of shares are the same}:

SRATESE SOOI ...ttt e r s e et s e s ssa e s e n e rae s

(277,523)

.......... 19,228,537

Less: Shares Retdoemet. ... eoevceeicoiiirivesvssevnsscnnnnes

INCREASE FROM CAPITAL SHARE TRANSACTIONS ...............ccoieiiiiinen

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR POOL PARTICIPANTS

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

15,392,137

836,400

..................... 4,499,046
..................... $ 5335446

State of Ohio
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

{dollars in thousands}

REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS:

Unrastricted Current Fund REVEIMIBS ..........ccuceevvecioninnsienresenns

Local Appropriations-Restricted ..., 17,040
Federal Grants and Contracts-Restricted .........c.coorvrinrpcvceccniinn 489,158
State Grants and Contracts-Restricted ....ccovvveeveeeeeieeee e 89,643
Local Grants and Contracts-Restricted ..o 7,795
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts-Reslricted ........c.cocvvevvnn.ne. 362,822
Endowment Income-Restricted ............coiccmiinonssnenssnnn 40,935
Investment incomea-Restricted ... ivrceec e 219,827
Interest on Loans Receivable ... 5,608
Investment in Planf-Additions ..........cccoooorevvciiireeeeenscerereses 647,644
Other ... T . 68,443
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS . 4,955,671
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS:
Educational and General Expendn‘ures 3,887,972
Auxiliary Enterprises Expenditures ... 555,494
Hospital EXpenaitires .......c..ccoeomeceeneciiiiicceeecceere e 621,639
Indirect Costs Recoverad ... cvevvviviciinsrree s vvssns 80,423
Grant Refunds and AdfusSImMents ... e eeeeeeeeeecece e 1,499
Loan Cancellations and Write-offs ... nirvervvcrnvvrrevsnniann 2,622
Administrative and Colfection COSES ..vvvevvireereeeereeeeeeree e 2,016
Expended for Plant FECilites ... oo s 248,708
Retirement of Indebladiioss .......cciiiiiirssssieeee e saeessarssses 74,635
Interast on INdebtedness ........cevverreereee et 42,291
Investment in Plant-Deducliong ...........ccoveiiinircsmssssecnsin, 175,067
Other ... 34,311
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS | 5,826,577
TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers from Primary Government ..............cocevivvenn, 1,564,910
NET INCREASE (DECREASE} FORTHE YEAR .........coovvvvvvcee e 698,004
FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JULY 1 (as restated) ........... 10,881,217

FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JUNE 30 .........

The notes fo the financial statements are an intagral part of this statement.

COMPONENT
UNITS

$ 3010856

$ 11,579,221

State of Chio
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER CHANGES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1959

{doltars in thousands)

REVENUES:

Tuition, Fees and Other Student Charges

Local Appropriations ... eereanes
Federal Grants and Contracts

State Grants and COMMACES ... et vessssreet e rine s
Local Granis and Comtracts .......cvevvevecviiiinesmmessssmmiinnnnos
Private Gifts, Grants and Comtracts ..o
Endowment INCOME ...ttt semmn s s s nennmaees
Sales and SAIVICES ... eeeeeevee e e i
IVESIMENT INCOME ccoer it re st
OUBE SOUITES ..o ceveeeeeeeeie sttt bb et b s s e et sm e e sanbensaan

EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL:

Instruction and Departrental ReSearch .......covinnnnn

Separately Budgeted Research ..........ooiiiiieeeeeeeeeeenes
PUBHEC SBIVICE ...t eeesinitiisti ittt sttt

Academic Suppod

Student Services ..

Institutional S upporf s
Operation and M‘amfenance of Pa‘ant
Scholarships and Fellowships ...

TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL .............ccvvvrriirrernsiinn o
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES ....cceeoevieeeettvss 1

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .......o.ioiiviiimiiiiinitimssss st it oo

MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:
Principal and IMterast ..........cccvveeevecnievvresiii e
Renewals and Rep;‘acements
Other ...

TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET .
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS ............

OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS):

OPERATING TRANSFERS FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ... ..

NONMANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:
Capital IMPIOVEMENTS ...cocvecvvivsreerremrsrrr e ses v s
Other ...

ADD!T!ONS/{DEDUC TIONS)
Excess of Restricted Receipts over Transfers to Revenue .........

IndireGt Costs RECOVEIE ... a e ansaees

Other ...

TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUC nons;
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCES .........

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

COMPONENT
UNITS

$§ 1,473,087
16,056
482,683
81,031

7,683

276,108
64,646
1,246,050
53,008
114,184

3,824,536

1,667,699
386,638
221,636
391,807
230,144
415,034
283,903

395013

3,986,774
555,490
621,639

5,163,903

94,782
3,014
1.837

99,633
5,263,536

1,654,735

(89,117}
(3,565)

104,122
(79,442)

{2,673)

1,484,060
$ 45,060
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7] STATE OF OHIO

./ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State
of Ohio present the financial position of the various
fund types and account groups, the results of opera-
tions of the various fund types, and the cash flows of
the proprictary funds. The financial statements, as
of June 30, 1999, and for thc year then ended, con-
form with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to governments. The Govern-
mental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
standard-sctting body for establishing governmental
accounting and [inancial reporting principles. The
GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards documents these
principles. The State’s significant accounting poli-
cies are as follows.

A. Finaneial Reporting Entity

The State of Ghio’s primary government includes all
funds, account groups, elected officials, depariments
and agencies, bureaus, boards, commissions, and
authorities that make up the Stale’s legal entity.
Component units, legally separale organizations [or
which the State’s clected officials are financially
accountable, also comprise, in part, the State’s re-
porting entity. Additionally, other organizations for
which the nature and significance ol their relation-
ship with the primary government are such that ex-
clusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statermnents to be misleading or incomplete should be
included in a government’s financial reporting en-
tity.

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, defines financial accountability. The criteria
for determining financial accountability include the
following circumstances:

e appointment of a voting majerity ot an organiza-
lion’s governing authority and the abilily of the
primary government to either imposc its will on
that organization or the potential for the organi-
zation to provide specific financial benefits to,
or impose specilic financial burdens on, the pri-
mary government, or

e an organization is fiscally dependent on the pri-
mary government.

Information for obtaining complete financial state-
ments for the State’s compenent units, which arc

discusscd below, is available [rom the Ohio Office
of Budget and Management.

1. Blended Component Usits

The Ohio Building Authority, Ohio Public Facilities
Commission, and the State Ilighway Patrol Retire-
ment System are legally separate organizations that
provide services entirely, or almost entirely, lo the
State or othcrwise cxclusively, or almost exclu-
sively, benefit the State. Therefore, the State reports
these organizations” balances and transactions as
though they were part of the primary government
using the blending method.

2. Discretely Presented Component Units

The component units’ columns in the combined fi-
nancial statements incinde the financial data of the
following organizations. The separate discrete col-
umn labeled, “Component Units,” emphasizes these
organizations’ separateness from the Staie’s primary
government.

Officials of the primary government appoint a voling
majority of each organization’s govcrning board.
These organizations impose or potentially impose
financial burdens on the primary government.

Proprictary:
Ohio Water Development Authorily

Colleges and Universities:
State Universities:
Bowling Green State University
Central State University
Cleveland State Universily
Kent State University
Miami University
Ohio State University
Ohio University
Shawnce State University
University of Akron
University of Cincinnati
University of Toledo
Wright State University
Youngstown State University

State Community Colleges:
Cincinnati State Community College
Clark State Community College
Columbus State Community College

State of Ohio
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

State Community Colieges (Continued):
Edison State Community College
Northwest State Community College
Owens State Community College
Souvthern State Community College
Terra State Community College
Washington State Community College

Medical College:
Medical College of Ohio at Toledo

3. Joint Ventures and Related Organizations

As discussed in more detail in NOTE 21, the State
participatcs in several joint ventures and has related
organizations. The State docs not include the finan-
cial activities of these organizations in its financial
statements, in conformity with GASB Statcment No.
14,

B. Basis of Presentation — Fund Aecounting

The State uses funds and account groups to report ils
financial position and results of operations. A fund
is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a
self-balancing sct of accounts. Fund accounting seg-
regates funds according 1o their intended purpose
and aids management in demonstrating compliance
with finance-related legal and contractual provisions.
An account group is an accounting device that ac-
counts for ccrtain assets and liabilities of the gov-
ernmental funds not recorded directly in thosce funds.

Primary government and component unit funds fall
into four catcgorics: governmental, proprietary, fi-
duciary, and college and university.

1. Primary Government

In the primary government’s financial statements,
each fund category is divided into scparate “fund
types,” which are described along with the two ac-
count groups, as follows.

a. Governmental Fund Types

(reneral — The General Fund, the State’s primary
operating fund, accounts for resources traditionally
associated with government, which are not required
legally or by sound financial management to be ac-
counted for in another [und.

Special Revenue — The special revenue funds ac-
count for revenue sources that arc legally restricted
to expenditure for specific purposes.

Debt Service - The debt service funds account for
the accumulation of resources for the payvment of
general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects — The capital projects funds ac-
count for the acquisition of fixed assets and con-
struction of major capital facilities and lor major
repairs and replacements other than those financed
by proprietary or trust funds.

b. Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise — "The enterprise funds account for op-
erations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to privale business enterprises — where the
State’s intent is that the costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis
be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or where the State has decided that periodic
determination of nel income is appropriatc for ac-
countabilily and other purposes.

Internal Service — The internal service funds ac-
count for the financing of goods or scrvices that a
State department or agency provides to other State
departments and agencics or to other government
units on a cost-reimbursement basis.

¢. Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust funds account for assets that the State holds in
a trustee capacity. The State’s general-purpose [i-
nancial statements present expendable, pension, and
investment trust funds. The Pension Trust Fund re-
ports the State ITighway Patrol Retirement System
for its fiscal vear ended December 31, 1998.

Agency funds account for asscts the State holds as
an agent for individuals, privale organizations, other
governments, or other funds. The Agency Fund in-
cludes the asscts of the Public Employees Retire-
ment System and the Police and Firemen’s Disabil-
ity and Pension Fund, for their fiscal years ended
December 31, 1998.

d. Account Groups

General Fixed Assets — The General Fixed Asscts
Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or
construcled for the State’s general governmental
purposes. This group accounts [or fixed assets not
accounted for in the proprictary and trust funds.

State of Chio
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

General Long-Term Obligations — The General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group accounts for
the State’s unmatured general obligation bonds and
other long-term obligations not required to be ac-
counted for in the proprietary and trust funds.

2. Component Units

The financial presentation of the underlying fund
types of the individual component units reported in
the discrete column is available from each respective
componcnt unit’s separately issued financial state-
ments. The component unit funds include the Ohto
Water Development Authority for its fiscal year
ended December 31, 1998.

The State presents a Statement of Current Funds
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes in the
General-Purposc  Financial Statements, in accor-
dancc with Section 2600.111 of the GASB’s Codifi-
cation of Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting. The Current Funds, a college and uni-
versity fund type, accounts for economic resources
that are expendable for any purpose m performing
the primary objectives of the higher education insti-
tutions.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
A fund’s measurement focus determines the ac-
counting and financial reporting treatment applied to
the fund.

Governmental and expendable trust funds arc ac-
counted for using a flow of current financial re-
sources measurement focus. Under this measure-
ment focus, operating statements present increases
(i.e., revenue and other financing sources) and de-
creases (i.c., expenditures and other financing uses)
in net current assets, and unreserved fund balance is
a measure of available expendable resources.

Proprietary, pension trust, and investiment trust funds
arc accounted for using a flow of economic re-
sources measurement focus, which cmphasizes the
determination of net income. Under this measure-
ment focus, operating statements present increascs
(e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net
assets. Fund cquity {i.e., net assets) is segregated on
the balance sheet into two components, contribuied
capital and retained earnings/[und balance.

Agency tfunds are custodial in nature, and therefore,
do not present results of operations or have a meas-
urement! [ocus.

All governmental, expendable trust, and agency
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modificd accrual basis of accounting, the
State recognizes revenues when susceptible o ac-
crual {i.e., when they are “measurable and avail-
able”). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction is determinable, and “available™ means
the amount is collectible within the current petiod or
soon cnough therealler to pay liabilitics of the cur-
rent period. The State considers revenues as avail-
able when collected within 60 days after year-end.

Under the moditied accrual basis, the State records
expendilures when it incurs related fund liabilities,
except for principal and interest on general long-
term debt, which the State recognizes as expendi-
tures when due.

Signiticant revenue sources susceptible to accrual
under the modified accrual basis of accounting in-
clude:

Personal income taxes

Sales and use taxes

Motor vehicle fuel taxes
Unemployment taxes

Charges for goods and services
Investment income

Licenscs, permils, lees, and certain other miscella-
neous revenues are not susceptible to accrual be-
cause gencrally they are not mcasurable vntil re-
ceived in cash. The “Other” revenue account is
comprised of refunds, reimbursements, recoveries,
and other miscellancous income.

Deferred revenue, as reported on the State’s com-
bincd balance sheet, represents resources received
belore the State has a legal claim to them, such as
the receipt of federal grant moneys prior to the in-
currence of qualifying expenditures. The State ree-
ognizes revenue when it has a legal claim to the re-
Soufees.

The proprictary, pension trust, and investment trust
funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Under
this method, the State records revenues when earned
and expenses when incurred.
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As permitted by GAAP, the State’s proprietary
[unds have elected not to apply Financial Account-
ing Standards Board Statemenis and Interpretations
issued after November 30, 1989.

College and university funds apply the principles of
accounting and reporting pursuant to the National
Association of College and University Business Of-
ficers accounting and reporting model. The college
and university funds use the accrual basis of ac-
counting, with the following exceptions: 1) depre-
ciation expense is nol calculated or reported, and 2)
revenues and expenditures of an academic term cn-
compassing more than one fiscal year are recognized
in the period when the program is predominantly
conducied.

D. Budgetary Process

As the Ohio Revised Code requires, the Governor
submits bicnnial operating and capital budgets to the
General Agsembly. All proposed expenditures tor
the State and cstimated revenues and borrowings for
a biennium comprise the budget, which includes
those funds of the Statc subject to appropriation pur-
suant to Statc law.

The General Assembly enacts the budget through
passage of  specific  departmental  line-item
appropriations, the legal Ievel of budgetlary control.
Line-item appropriations are established within
funds by program or major object of expenditure.
The Governor may veto any item in an appropriation
bill. Such vetocs arc subject to legislative override.

Biennially, the General Assembly approves operat-
ing and capital appropriations. The legislature speci-
fies operating appropriations in annual amounts and
capital appropriations in two-year amounts.

The State’s Controlling Board, comprised of six
members of the General Assembly and the Director
of the Office of Budget and Management (OBM) or
a designee, can transfer or increase a line-itcm ap-
propriation within the limitations set under Chapter
127, Ohio Revised Code. The Board has delegated
the authority to the Director of OBM (o transler ap-
propriations between existing operating expendi-
lure/expense line-item appropriations within a state
agency not to exceed a cumulative total of $50,000
(or $75,000 for institutional-type state agencies)
from cach ling-item appropriation within a fiscal
year.

All governmental funds are budgeted except the fol-
lowing activitics within the [und types:

Special Revenue Fund
Certain activitics within the Community and Eco-
nomic Development and Employment Scrvices
Special Revenue Funds, as discussed in NOTL 3

Debt Service Fund
Economic Development Bond Scrvice
Transportation Certificate Retircment
Vietnam Conflict Compensation Bond Retirement
Ohio Public Facilities Commission
Ohio Building Authority
Enterprise Bond Retirement
School Building Program Bond Service
I[nfrastructure Bank Bond Service

Capital Projects Fund
Ohio Building Authority

For budgeted funds, the State’s Central Accounting
System controls expenditures by appropriation line-
item, so at no lime can expenditurcs exceed appro-
priations and {inancial-related legal compliance is
assured. The State uses the modilied cash basis of
accounting for budgetary purposes.

As an exlension of formal budgetary integration in
the accounting system, the Stale employs encum-
brance accounting, under which purchase orders,
contracts, and other commitments for expenditures
are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appropria-
tions. At fiscal ycar end, the State reports out-
standing encumbrances in the General, special reve-
nue, and capital projects [unds as rescrvations of
[und balance for expenditure in subsequent years.
Operating encumbrances are generally canceled five
months after the fiscal year-end while capital en-
cumbrances are generally canceled iwo years aller
the biennial period for which they were appropri-
ated. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end
of the bichnium budget period.

The Detaifed Appropriation Summary by Fund Re-
port, which is available for public inspection at the
Ohio Office of Budget and Management, provides a
more comprehensive accounting of activity on the
budgetary basis at the legal level of budgetary con-
trol.
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[n the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expendi-
turcs and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis), budgeted
revenucs for the General Fund represent periodically
updated revenue budgets.

For other budgeted funds, the original budgeted
revenues, as submitted by the Governor, do not rep-
resent actual forccasts of revenues and are not
amended to coincide with any legislative changes to
the original cxpenditure budget. Accordingly, for
budgeted funds other than the General Fund, the
State reports budgeted revenues and other tinancing
sources and uses at actual amounts, since the State
does not have updated, budgeted revenue and other
financing sources and uses amounts for usc in the
accompanying budgetary basis financial slalements.

Additionally, on the Combined Statement of Reve-
nuves, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
— Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgctary Ba-
sig), “actual” budgetary expenditures include cash
disbursements against the current fiscal year’s ap-
propriations and outstanding encumbrances, as of
June 30, 1999, that were committed during the cur-
rent fiscal year. Encumbrance reversions represcnt
lapses of prior ycars’ appropriations. For the Capital
Projects Fund, total unexpended appropriations for
both the first and second years of the current 1999-
2000 bicnnial budget comprise amounts reported
under the “budget” column.

The Employment Services Expendable Trust Fand,
State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension
Trust Fund, and STAROhio lnvestment Trust Fund
are not legally required to adopt budgets. For budg-
eted proprietary and trust funds, the State is not le-
gally required to report budgetary data and compati-
sons for these funds. Additionally, the State does
not present budgetary data for its discretely pre-
sented component units.

Because the State budgets on a modified cash basis
of accounting, which differs [rom GAAP, NOTE 3
presents a reconciliation of the differences between
the GAAP basis and non-GAAP budgetary basis of
reporting,

E. Cash Equity with Treasurer

and Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equity with Treasurcr consists ol pooled de-
mand deposits and investinents carricd at fair value.

The State’s cash pool under the Treasurer of State’s
administration has the general characteristics of a
demand deposit account whereby additional cash can
be deposited at any time and can also be effectively
withdrawn at any time, within certain budgetary
limitations, without prior notice or penalty.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts on de-
posit with financial institutions and cash on hand.
The cash and cash equivalents account alse includes
investments with original maturities of threc months
or less from the date of acquisition for the Bureau of
Workers® Compensation and Chio Lottery Commis-
sion enterprise funds and the University of Cincin-
nati component unit fund.

Cash equity with Treasurer and cash and cash
cquivalents, including the portions reported under
“Restricted Assets,” are considered to be cash
equivalents, as defined in GASB Statement No. 9,
for purposcs of the Statement of Cash Flows.

F. Investments

[nvestments include long-term investments that may
be restricted by law or other legal instruments. With
the exception of certain moncy market investments,
which have a remaining maturity al the time of pur-
chase of one year or less and are carried at amortized
cost, and holdings in the Stale Treasury Asset Re-
serve of Ohio (STAROhio) investment pool, the
State reports investments at fair value based on
quoted market prices. STAROhio operates in a
manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940; investments in the 2a7-like
pool are reported at amortized cost (which approxi-
mates fair value). The colleges and universitics re-
port investments received as gifts at their fair value
on the donation date.

The primary government does not manage or pro-
vide investment services for investments reported in
the Agency Fund that arc owned by other, legally
separate entities that arc nol part of the State of
(Ohio’s reporting entity.

G. Intergovernmental Revenues/Receivable
Intergovernmental revenucs primarily represent re-
sources from reimbursement-lype granls received
from the federal government. The State reports in-
tergovernmental recoivable balances and recognizes
revenue when il incurs the related grant expendi-
lures/expenses.
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H. Inventorics

For governmental funds, the State recognizes the
costs of material inventorics as expenditures when
purchased. At year-end, physical counts are taken of
significant inventories for the governmental fund
types and are generally reported on the balance sheet
at moving-average cosl. Inventories reported in the
governmental funds do not rellect current appropri-
able resources, and therefore, the State reserves an
equivalent portion of fund balance.

Proprietary and college and university funds value
inventories at cost, which approximates market;
principal inventory cost mcthods applied include
first-in, first- out, average cosl, moving-average, and
retail.

I. Food Stamps

fn the Special Revenue Fund, the State reports food
stamp coupons at face value, ofTset by a like amount
of deferred revenue,

J. Restricted Assets
The primary government reports assets restricted for
payment of deferred prize awards (Ohio Lotto) and
tuition benefits in the enterprisc funds for the Ohio
Lottery Commission and the Ohio Tuition Trust Au-
thority, respectively.

Covenants for the Ohio Building Authority’s bonds
require pledged receipts be held and invested in a
reserve account placed with a trustee financial insti-
tution. The State reports these restricted assets in the
internal service funds.

Generally, the colleges and universities hold assets
in trust. Bond covenants or other financing ar-
rangements legally restrict the use of thesc assets.

K. Fixed Assets

General Fived Assets — The State reports fixed
assets purchased with governmental fund resources
in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at his-
torical cost, or at estimated historical cost when no
historical records exist. Donated ixed assets are
valued at their estimated fair market value on the
donation date.

The State does not capitalize the costs of normal
maintenance and rcpairs that do not add to the as-
set’s value or malerially extend an asset’s useful life.
Caosts of major improvements are capitalized, while

intcrest costs associated with the acquisition of gen-
eral fixed assets are not capitalized.

The State docs not capitalize public domain (infra-
structure) general fixed assets such as roads, bridges,
curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, historical
monuments, drainage systems, and lighting systems,
since these assets arc immovable and of value only
fo the government.

The State does not depreciate assets reported in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Proprictary and Fiduciary Fund Fived Assels —
Fixed asscts are stated at cost or, for donated assets,
at estimated fair market value al the donation date.
The State depreciates proprictary and fiduciary fund
fixed assets, excluding land, using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20-45 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-20 years
State Vchicles 3 years

The State capitalizes matcrial intereston proprietary
fund fixed asscts acquired through the issnance of
debt.

College and University Fund Fixed Assets — The
colleges and universities value all purchased [lixed
asscis al cost and donated fixed assels al estimated
fair market value on the donation date. The colleges
and universitics do not capitalize public domain (in-
frastructure) assets or depreciate their fixed assets.

L. Long-Term Obligations

Governmental funds recognize long-term obligations
as liabilities when duc. The State reports only the
portion cxpected to be financed from expendable
available financial resources as a liability of a gov-
ernmental fund. ‘T'he remaining portion ol such ob-
ligations is reported in the General Long-Term Obli-
gations Account Giroup. Included among these hi-
abilities are the noncurrent portions of liabilities re-
sulting from dcbt issuances, certificale of participa-
tion financing arrangements, compensated absences,

judgments, settlements, claims, litigation, contin-

gencies, leases, and workers” compensation benefits.
The proprietary funds and college and university
funds account for long-term liabilitics expected to be
financed from operations.
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As discussed in NOTLS 11 and 12, bonds that the
Ohio Building Authority (OBA) issucs fo finance the
construction of facilities leased to local governments
are reported as revenue bonds in the internal service
funds, while OBA bonds issued to finance the con-
struction of State-related projects are reported as
special obligation bonds in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group,

M. Compensated Absences

Employees of the State’s primary government earn
vacation leave, sick leave, and personal leave at
various rates within limits specified under collective
bargaining agrcemcents or under law. Generally,
employces accrue vacation lcave at a rate of 3.1
hours every two weeks for the first five vears of cm-
ployment, up to a maximum rate of 9.2 hours every
two weeks after 25 years of employment. Employ-
¢es may accrue a maximum of three years vacation
leave credit. At termination or retirement, the Stale
pays employees, at their full rate, 100 percent of un-
used vacation Icave, personal leave, and, in certain
cascs, compensatory time and 50 percent of unused
sick leave.

Such leave is liquidated in cash, under certain re-
strictions, either annually in December, or at the
time of termination from employment.

For governmental funds, the State reports the non-
current portion of the liability for compensated ab-
sences in the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group. For proprietary [unds, the State re-
ports the liability for compensated absences as a
noncurrent accrued liability.

For the colleges and universities, vacation and sick
leave earnings and liquidation policies vary by insti-
tution.

Vacation, compensatory time, and personal lcaves
are accrued as liabilities when an employee’s right to
receive compensation is attributable to services al-
ready rendered and it is probable that the employce
will be compensated through paid time oft or some
other means, such as at termination or retirement.
[.eave time that has been earned, but is unavailable
for use as paid time off or as some other [orm of
compensation because an employee has not met a
minimum service time requirement, is accrued to the
extent that it is considered to be probable that the

conditions for compensation will be met in the fu-
ture,

The State accrues sick [ecave using the vesting
method. Under this method, the liability is recorded
on the basis of leave accumulated by employees who
arc cligible to receive termination payments, as of
the balance sheet date, and on leave balances accu-
mulated by other cmployces who are expected to
become eligible in the future to receive such pay-
ments.

Included in the compensated abscnces liability is an
amount accrued for salary-rclated payments directly
and incrementally assoctated with the payment of
compensated absences upon termination.  Such
payments include the State’s share of Medicare
taxes,

N. Fund Equity

Reservations
Reservations of cquily represent amounts that are
not appropriable or are legally restricted for a spe-
cific purpose.

Designations
Designations of equity represent lentative manage-
ment plans that are subject to change.

Confributed Capital
Contributed  capital represenis cquity acquired
through capital contributions from other funds.

O. Self-Insurancc

The State’s primary government is self-Insured for
claims covered under its traditional healthearc plan,
vehicle liability, public fidelity blanket bonds, prop-
erty losses, and tort liability. While not the pre-
dominant participant, the State’s primary sovern-
ment participates in a public entity risk pool, which
is accounted for in the Bureau of Workers™ Compen-
sation Enterprise Fund, for the financing of its work-
ers’ compensation liability (See NOTE 23A}.

Estimates for significant incurred but not reported
claims or contingent liabilities arc included in ac-
crued liabilities and in the General Long-Term Obli-
gations Account Group.
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P. Interfund/Intra-Entity Transactions

The State of Ohio records the following types of in-
terfund/intra-entity transactions within its rcporting
entity:

Operating Transfers — Legally required transfers
are reported when incurred as “Operating Transfers-
in” by the receiving fund and as “Operating Trans-
fers-out” by the disbursing fund. Legally required
transfers between the primary government and its
component units are rcported as “Opcerating Trans-
fers from/to Primary Government” and “Operating
Transfers from/to Component Units.”

Transfers of Expenditures/Expenses (Reimburse-
ment) — The State reports reimbursements made by
one fund for another as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expendi-
tures/expenses in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers — The State reports non-
routine or nonrecurring transfers between funds as
additions to or deductions from fund equily.

Quasi-external Transactions — The State reports
charges or collections for services rendered by one

fund to another as revenues of the receiving fund
and cxpenditures/expenses of the disbursing tund.

Transactions between funds that represent non-
current lending or borrowing arrangements out-
standing, as of the end of the fiscal year, arc reported
as advances to/from other funds. The State reports
all other outstanding balances between funds as due
toffrom other funds, NOTE 7 presents a summary of
interfund balances and interfund and intra-entity
transfers.

Q. Memorandum Only — Total Columns

Total columns on the gencral-purpose [inancial
statements are captioned “Memorandum Only”™ be-
cause they do not represent consolidated financial
information and are presented only to facilitate fi-
nancial analysis. Data in these columns do not pre-
sent financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows in conformity with gencrally accepted ac-
counting principles. Neither are such data compara-
ble to a consolidation. Interfund climinations have
not been made in the aggregation of this data.

NOTE 2 RESTATEMENTS AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND STANDARDS

A. Restatements

Certain restatements of fund balances/retained earning balances, as of June 30, 1998, are summarized as follows.

Primary Government
Restatements of Beginning Balance
July 1, 1998
{doflars in thousands)

Fund Balance/

Retained Eamings

Fund Balance/

as Previously Increase/ Retained Earnings

Reported, {Decrease) as Restated,

Fund June 30, 1998 for Restatement July 1, 1998

General Fund..............c..c..ooovvminiieiinciinne $2.661,847 $ (50,652) $2,611,195
Special Revenue Fund:

Community and Economic Development....... $ 636,326 $ (5,500) % 630,826

Highway Operating ...........ccoovveni e 848,602 46,318 894,920

All Other Special Revenue Funds................. 1,367,707 — 1,367,707

Total Special Revenue Fund ................... $2,852 635 $ 40,818 $2,893,453

(Continued)
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(Continued)
Component Units
Restatements of Beginning Balance
July 1, 1998
{doffars in thousands)
Fund Balance/
Retained Earnings Fund Balance/
as Previously Increase/ Retained Earnings
Reporied, {Decrease) as Restated,
Fund June 30, 1998 for Restatement July 1, 1998
College and University Funds:
Shawnee State University..............oe. $ 93,233 $ 847 $ 94,080
Clark State Community College...........cc...... 45,027 (73) 44,954
Southern State Community College.............. 18,397 (22) 18,375
Cincinnati State Community College.............. 65,793 1,441 67,234
All Other College and University Funds ......... 10,856,574 — 10,656,574
Total College and University Funds.......... $10,879,024 $2,193 $10.,881,217

For the General Fund, the $50.7 million decrease in
opening fund balance is due to an error in the calcu-
lation of the intergovernmental reccivable from the
federal government for the Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families Program.

The $40.8 million net incrcase [or the Special Reve-
nue Fund is attributed to a $5.5 million decrease in
the outstanding loans and accounts receivable bal-
ances for the Department of Development’s Office
of Financial Incentives and a $46.3 million increase
in the intergovernmental reccivable from the federal
government for reimburscment of eligible highway
construction costs not previously identified as being
subjecl to acerual.

For the discretely presented College and Universily
Funds, the prior ycar’s fund balance has been in-
creascd approximately $2.2 million to reflect:

#» an increase in the fixed assct balance re-
ported for Shawnee Stale University in
the amount of $847 thousand.

e a $73 thousand decrease due to a $34
thousand decrease in the fixed assels
balance, a $24 thousand decrease in the
accounts receivable balance, and a $15
thousand increase in the accounts pay-
able balance for Clark State Community
College.

» a $22 thousand decrease in the other as-
sets balance for Southern State Commu-
nity College.

» an adjustment to the opening fixed asset
balance for Cincinnati State Community
College, which increased fund balance
by $1.4 million.

B. Changes in Accounting Principles

In Qctober 1997, the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board issucd Statement No. 32, dccount-
ing and Financial Reporting for Infernal Revenue
Code Section 437 Deferred Compensation Pluns.
The provisions of this statement are effective [or
periods beginning after December 31, 1998, or when
a government complies with the requircments of
subsection (g) of IRC Section 457, whichever is ear-
lier. The statement requires state and local govern-
ments, which have fiduciary responsibilitics for IRC
Section 4357 plans, to report such plans as cxpend-
able trust funds,

On September 1, 1998, the Ohio Public Employees
Delerred  Compensation  (OPEDC)  Program
amended ils plan, pursuant to the Small Business Job
Protection Act of 1996, to comply with subsection
(g) of IRC Section 457,

The State has no fiduciary responsibilities for the
funds deposited with the OPEDC Program by its
employees, and conscquently, the State has not
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reported any activity or included any balances for
these funds in its financial statcments, for the vear
ended and as of June 30, 1999. In prior years, the
primary government and its discretely presented
component units displayed IRC Section 457-related
balances held for their employees in the Agency
Fund and in the component unit funds, respectively.

C. Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 1998, the Governmental Accounting
Standards Beard (GASB) issued Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonex-
change Transactions. The provisions of this slate-
ment arc cffective for periods beginning after June
15, 2000. GASB Statement No. 33 principally ad-
dresscs the timing of recognition of nonexchange
transactions involving financial or capital resources

NOTE 3 GAAP vs. NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS

“Actual™ revenues, operating transfcrs-in, expendi-
tures, encumbrances, and operating transfers-out on
the non-GAAP budgetary basis do not equal those
reported on the GAAP basis in the Combined State-
ment of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances ~— All Governmental lund Types
and FExpendable Trust Funds. This inequality resolts
primarily from basis differences in the recognition of
accruals, deferred revenue, interfund transactions,
and loan transactions, and from timing diffcrences in
the budgetary basis ot accounting for encumbrances.
On the non-GAAP budgetary basis, the State recog-
nizes encumbrances as expenditurcs in the year cn-
cumbered, while on the modified accrual basis, the
State recognizes expenditures when goods or ser-

vices are received regardless of the year encum-
bered.

(c.g., most taxes, grants, and private donations) in a
government’s financial statements.

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement No. 34,
Buasic Financial Statements-—end  Management’s
Discussion and Analysis— for State and Local Gov-
ernments. ‘The State is required to apply this state-
ment for periods beginning after Junc 15, 2001.
GASB Statement No. 34 cstablishes new financial
reporting requirements that fondamentally affect the
presentation of a general purpose government’s ba-
sic financial statements and related required supple-
mentary information.

Management has not vet determined the impact that
(GASB Statements No. 33 and 34 will have on the
State’s [inancial statements.

Budgeted expenditures in the accompanying Com-
bincd Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) represent original
appropriations modificd by supplemental and
amended appropriations made throughout the year,
including $108.3 million, $2.01 billion, $88 thou-
sand, and $2.39 billion increases in the budgets of
the General, Special Revenue, Dcbt Serviee, and
Capital Projects funds, respectively.

A reconciliation of the fund balances recorded under
the two bascs for the General, Special Revenue,
Debt Service, and Capital Projects funds is presented
on the following page.
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Primary Government
Reconciliation of GAAP Basis Fund Balances to
Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis Fund Balances
As of June 30, 1999

{dolfars in thousands)
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
Total Fund Balances - GAAP Basis ..o, $2,640.072 $3,275 684 $155,810 $ 810,962
Less: Unbudgeted Fund Balances ..o — 98,048 * 94,736 13,352
Total Budgeted Fund Balances - GAAP Basis................... 2,640,072 3177638 61,074 797,610
Less: Reserved Fund Balances ......cceeeeeeiiivvcnev e 1,562,040 3,483,122 60,518 991,701
Less: Designated Fund Balances ..., 755,259 — — —
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances - GAAP Basis..... 322773 (315,486} 555 {194,091)
BASIS DIFFERENCES
Revenue Accruals/Adjustments:
Cash Equity with Treasurer.........cooveeeveeeiinieeeevee, 40,447 32,674 1,548 9,301
Taxes Receivable....... o {748,994) {200,276) — —
Intergovernmental Receivable.............cco . (616,388) {413 458) — —
Loans Receivable...........ccccoe e, (25,293) {300,710} —_ {148,443)
Other Receivables.........cocov e (24,263) (44,198} {334) (2,778)
Due from Other Funds ..o (21,070) (23,431} {128) {2,427)
INVENIOM S e (1,000} (32 644} — —
OHNEr ASBELS e (6,453} (3,402) — —
Deferred RavVenUe.........cco e 79 85 425 — —
Total Revenue Accruais/Adjustments ..o, (1,402,935) (890,020} 1,088 {144,347)
Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments:
Accounts Payable ... 118,923 229,431 — 81,952
Medicaid Claims Payable.........ccccccooveeen e 509,652 5752 — —
Accrued LIabilities ...........cccooeveeeeee e 136,796 64,574 436 47
Intergovernmental Payable ... 278,699 517,573 — —
Due to Gther FUnds......ccoo e, 41,461 7,333 18 1,198
Refund and Other Liabilities ..., 804,150 72,731 983 —
Total Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments ..o 1,689,681 897,384 1,437 83,197
Cther Adjustments:
Fund Balance Reclassifications:
From Unreserved (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
to Reserved for
Debt Service ... 1,480 — 60,5619 —
Budget Stabilization... . 908,891 — — —
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Recewable 24 672 300,235 — 146,926
Other .. 114,965 42,168 — 64,699
From Undesngnated (Non GAAF’ Budgetary Basm)
to Designated .. e 755,259 — — —
Cash and Investments Held Out5|de of State Treasury - {13,858) (16,867) {1,403) —
ORNET o — 1 1 —
Total Other Adjustments ..o 1,789,411 325,537 59,117 211,825
Total Basis Differences ... 2,076,157 332911 61,640 150,475
TIMING DIFFERENCES
Encumbrances ..., {149,709 {358,111) — {71,560)

Unreserved/Undesignated and Designated
Fund Balances (Deficits) — Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis..  $2,240,221 $ (341 ,686) $ 62,195 $(115.176)

*This amount in the Special Revenue Fund includes certain unbudgeted activities within the Community and Economic Devel-
opment and Employment Services Special Revenue Funds
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A, Legal Requirements

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasurer
of State and the State Board of Deposit are governed
by the Uniform Depository Act, Chapter 135, Ohio
Revised Code, which requires State moneys 1o be
maintained in one of the following three classifica-
tions:

Active Deposits — Moneys required to be kept in a
cash or near-cash status to meet currcnt demands,
Such moncys must be maintained either as cash in
the State’s treasury or in one of the lollowing: a
commercial account that is payable or withdrawable,
in whole or in part, on demand, a negotiable order of
withdrawal account, a money market deposit ac-
count, or a designated warrant clcarance account,

Inactive Deposits — Those moneys not required tor
use within the current two-year period of designation
of depositories. [nactive moncys may be deposited
or invested only in certificales of deposit maturing
not later than the end of the current period of desig-
nation of decpositories.

Interim Deposits — Those moneys not required for
immediate use, but needed before the end of the cur-
rent period of designation of depositories. Interim
deposits may be deposited or invested in the follow-
ing instruments:

e DBonds, notes, or other obligations of or
guaranteed by the Uniled States, or those
for which the faith of the United States is
pledged for the payment of principal and
interest;

*  Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obliga-
tions or sccuritics issued by any federal
government agency, or the Ixport-Import
Bank of Washington;

¢ Repurchase agreements in the securitics
enumerated above;

e Interim deposits in the eligible institutions
applying for interim moncys;

e  Bonds and other obligations of the State of
Ohio;

s The Treasurer of State’s investment pool;

Linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at
financial institutions that provide reduced-
rale loans o small businesses, as authorized
under Section 135.63, Ohio Revised Code;

Agricultural linked deposits, reduced-rate
deposits at financial institutions that pro-
vide reduced-rate loans to agricullural
busincsses, as authorized under Section
135.74, Ohio Revised Code;

Reverse repurchase agreements with any
cligible financial institution that is a mem-
ber of the federal reserve system or federal
home loan bank, or any recognized U.S.
government securities dealer;

Securities lending agreements with any
cligible financial institution that is a mem-
ber of the federal reserve system or federal
home loan bank, or any recognized U.S.
government securilies dealer;

Commercial paper, rated in onc of the two
highest rating categories by two nationally
recognized rating agencies and notl exceed-
ing five percent of the investment portfolio;

Bankers’ acceptances maturing in 270 days
or less and not exceeding 10 percent of the
investment portiolio;

Debt of domestic corporations and foreign
nations diplomatically recognized by the
United States, rated investment grade by
nationally recognized rating agencies and,
in the aggregate, not exceeding five percent
of the investment portfolio; and

No-load moncy market funds consisting of
U.S. government and agency obligations
and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations.

The primary government’s deposils must be held in
insured depositories approved by the State Board of
Deposit and must be fully collateralized.

In some cases, deposit and investment policics of
cerlain individual funds and component vnits  are
cstablished by Ohio Revised Code provisions other
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than the Uniform Depository Act and by bond trust
agreements. In accordance with applicable statutory
authority, the State Highway Patrol Retirement Sys-
tem Pension Trust Fund, the Workers” Compensa-
tion Enterprisc Fund, the Retirement Systems
Agency I'und, and the higher education institutions
may also invest in common and preferred stocks,
domestic and foreign corporate/government bonds
and notes, mortgage loans, limiled partnerships, ven-
ture capital, real estate, and/or other investments.

During the reporting period, the Public Employees
Retirement Systcm, Police and Firemen’s Disability
and Pension FFund, School Employees Retirement
System, and the State Teachers Retirement System,
the investments of which are held in the Treasurer of
State’s custody and are reported in the Retirement
Systems Agency Fund, had investments in deriva-
tives and similar debt and investment (ransactions.
Specific information on the nature of the transac-
tions and the rcasons {or entering into them can be
found in each respective system’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report.

B. State-Sponsored lnvestment Pool

The Freasurer of State is the investment advisor and
administrator of the State Treasury Assct Rescrve of
Ohio (STAROhio), a statewide external investment
pool authorized under Scction 135.45, Ohio Revised
Code. STAROhio issues a stand-alone financial re-
port, copies of which may be obtained by making a
written request to: Dircctor of [nvestments, Treas-
urer of State, 30 East Broad Street, 9® Floor, Co-
lumbus, Ohio 43266-0421, or by calling (614) 466-
2160.

C. Deposits

1. Primary Government

As of June 30, 1999, the carrying amount of deposits
was (dollars in thousands) $867,675, and the bank
balance was $834,433.  Of the bank balance,
$53,037 was fTully insured or collateralized with sc-
curities held by the primary government or its agent
in the primary government’s name {Cafegory 1),
$727.,838 was collatcralized with securities held by
the pledging finaocial institution’s trust department
or its agent in the primary government’s name
(Category 2), and $53,558, although meeting legal

collateralization requirements, was categorized as
uninsured and uncollateralized {Category 3).

2. Component Units

As of June 30, 1999, the carrying amount of deposits
was (dollars in thousands) $252,681, and the bank
balance was $319,309. Of the bank balance,
$43,586 was tully insured or collateralized with se-
curities held by the respective component unils or
their agents in the compoenent unit’s name (Category
1), $204,152 was collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution’s trust depart-
ment or its agent in the respective component unit’s
name {Catcgory 2), and $71,571, although meeting
lcgal collateralization requirements, was categorized
as uninsured and uncollateralized (Category 3).

D. Investments

‘The State categorizes investments Lo give an indica-
tion of the level of credit risk associated with the
State’s custodial arrangements at year-end. Cate-
gory [ includes investments that are insured, regis-
tered, or held by the State or ils agent in the State’s
name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregis-
tered investments held by the counterparty’s trust
department or its agent in the Statc’s name. Cate-
gory 3 includes uninsured and unregistered invest-
ments held by the counterparty, its trust department,
or its agent, but not in the State’s name.

Certain investments have not beea categorized be-
cause the securities are not used as evidence of the
investment. These uncategorized investments in-
clude owacership in real estate, mutual funds, limited
partnerships and venture capilal, direct mortgage
loans, and the deposit with the federal government.
In conformity with Governmental Accounting Stan-
dards Board Statement No. 28, dccounting and Ii-
nancial Reporting for Securities Lending Transac-
tions, securities lent at ycar-cnd for cash collateral
have not been calegorized by custodial credit risk,
while sceurities lent for securities collateral have
been categorized.

The level of credit risk assumed by the primary gov-
ernment and ils component units and the carrying
amount and fair value of investments, as of Junc 30,
1999, are as follows.
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Primary Government
{doftars in thousands)

Total
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Fair Value
U.S. Government & Agency Cbligations:
Not on Securities Loan .....ccoooceveniveiccceeene $ 32,852,732 $35,000 $ 6,808,324 $ 38,797,056
On Securities Loan... — — 207,979 207,979
Common and Preferred Stock
Not on Securities Loan..............ceeeveevveeene 48,851,800 — 7011534 53,863,343
On Securities Loan ... — — 35,563 35,563
Corporate Bonds and Notes........................ 12,216,010 — 1,886,588 14,202,598
Foreign Stacks and Bonds ... 15,651,545 — — 15,651,545
Commercial Paper.........c...ocoivvvneeeennens 3,575,306 — 1,894,521 5,469,877
Repurchase Agreements..............cvevenenen 303,019 70 259 303,348
Municipal Obligations ................ccoooerrieeens 574 — — 574
Securities Lending Collateral:
U.S. Government & Agency Obligations .... 95,000 — 1,467,642 1,562,642
Repurchase Agreements...........c.....cceeeeee. 5,353,611 — — 5353611
Common and Preferred Stock ..o — — 770,714 770,714
Corporate Bonds and Notes.............ccueeee. 1,096,638 — — 1,096,638
Commercial Paper..........ccocovevveeiiiieeeann 142,307 — — 142 307
$118,138,601 $35,070 $20,284,124 138,457,795
Investments Held by Broker-dealers under Securities Loans with Cash Collateral:
U.S. Government and Agency ObligationS........cceoi o, 8,759,008
Common and Prefermed SU00K 752,973
T (eI T T TP UO PP SOOPPPR 5111550
RBAI ESIale ..o e 10,912,695
VEREUIE Capital. oo ettt ea e ete et et eraera e sba e st e e b e e st e et e e e e oot s e e ate e eaes 418,120
Limited Parnerships .. ... e e 27,2683
DireCt MOMGAgE LOBNS .. eeieee e et st e e e sk s ba et e oottt e s 38,237
INVEStMENt COMITACES. ... o e e e e 5,024
Securities Lending Collateral — Mutual Funds ... 39,142
Securities Lending Collateral — Investment Contracts ..o e, 712,075
Deposit with Fedaral GOVEMMMENT ... ..o e et a oo 2,110,852
Component Units’ Equity in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STARChIO) ... (346,249)
Total Investments — Primary GOVEIMMENT ... oot $166,908,483
Component Units
{doflars in thousands)
Total
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Fair Value
U.S. Government & Agency Obligations ... $259,168 $ 704,381 $257 651 $1,221,190
Common and Preferred Stock ... 376,435 964 022 6,730 1,347,187
Corporate Bonds and Notes........,,,,,,,........... 112,950 89,818 34 418 237,287
Foreign Stocks and Bonds ............ccovevveenen. 9,402 — — 9,402
Commercial Paper..........o..oooevivivivnecean, — — 6,464 6464
Repurchase Agreements........cooooeeeeeeeen. — 3.045 202,555 205,600
Bankers' Acceptances......ccccceeeeveiivesveneeenns — — 5,240 5240
Municipal Obligations ... . 77 — 39 116
Negotiable Certificates of Depoelt ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, — — 2,000 2,000
Other Investments........cccooee e, 197 — 9,761 9,958
$758,219 $1,761,368 $524,859 3,044,444
Mutual Funds... 387,114
fnvestment in the State Treasury Asset Reeer\re of Ohlo (STAROhre) ____________________________________________ 346,249
REAIESIAEE 1o et e ee e aaan 36,394
W T =T o= OSSO 9,005
Limited PARNEISRIDS. ... .o ettt e n s 6,765
INVESIMENE CONITACES. ...ttt ettt et st st n st 361,436
Total Investments — Component URtS.........cooooiiiiii e $4,191,4097
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The total carrying amount of deposits and invest-
ments, as of June 30, 1999, reported for the primary
government and its component units is {dollars in
thousands) $171,895,675. The total carrying amount
of deposils and investments categorized and dis-
closed in this note is $172,310,336. A reconciliation

of the difference follows.

Reconciliation of Deposits and Investments
Disclosure with Combined Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 1999

{dolfars in thousands}

Cash Equity
with Treasurer
{unrestricted

and restricted) ...

Cash and Cash
Equivalents
{unrestricted

and restricted) ...

Investments........

Collateral on
Lent Securities
{unrestricted

and restricted} ...

Deposit with
Federal
Government.......

Restricted

Assets:
Investments.....
Dedicated
Investments.....

Carrying Amount
per Combined
Balance Sheet....

Cutstanding
Warrants and
Other Reconcil-
ing ltems ...........

Total Reporting
Entity ..o

Deposits

Investments Total

$350,150

462,792
5542

38,115

$ 6802560 § 7242719

1,509,168
148,770,612

2,371,960
148,776,154

9,560,177 9,588,292

2,110,852 2,110,852

63,468 63,468

1,742,230 1,742,230

856,589

283,757

171,039,076 171,895,675

150,804 414 661

$1,120,356 $171,189,980 $172,310,338

E. Secnrities Lending Transactions

The Treasurer of Stale and the Burcan of Workers’
Compensation (BWC) participate in securities lend-
ing programs for securities included in the “Cash
Equity with Treasurer,” “Tnvestments,” and “Dedi-
cated Investments” accounts and the STAROhio
program, Fach lending program is administered by
a custodial agent bank, wherchy ccrtain sccuritics
are transferred to an independent broker-dealer (bor-
rower) in cxchange for collateral. The State has

minimized its exposure to credit risk due to borrower
default by requiring the custodial agent to ensure
that the Statc’s lent securities are collateralized at no
less than 102 percent of market value.

For loan contracts the Treasurer executes, not more
than 15 pereent of the State’s cash and investment
portfolio, which is reported as *Cash Equity with
Treasurer,” can be lent to a single broker-dealer. For
the STAROio program, not more than 25 percent of
the STAROhio investment pool may be lent at any
one time, and not more than 10 percent of the in-
vesiment pool may be subject to term loans in excess
of seven days.

The State cannot sell sccuritics received as collateral
vnless the borrower defaults. Conscquently, these
amounts are not reflected in the financial statements.
The State invests cash collateral in short-term obli-
sations, which have a weighted average maturity of
45 days or less and gencrally match the maturities of
sceurities loans. Loan contracts do not provide any
loss indemnification by securities lending agents in
cases of borrower default; however, during fiscal
year 1999, the State had not experienced any losses
due o eredit or market risk on securities lending ac-
tivities.

During the fiscal year, the Treasurer and the
STAROhio program lent U.S. government and
agency obligations in exchange for collateral con-
sisting of cash and/or other 11.S. government obliga-
tions. The BWC lent fixed maturities and equity
securitics in exchange for cash, broker-provided, and
letters of credit collateral.
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NOTE 5 TAXES

The following table provides a summary of taxes
receivable for the primary government, as of June
30, 1999, As of Junc 30, 1999, refund liabilities lor
income and corporation franchise taxes, totaling

$667.3 million, are reported as “Refunds and Other
Liabilities,” of which $603.5 million is reported in
the General Fund and $63.8 million is reported in
the Special Revenue Fund.

Primary Government
Taxes Receivable
As of June 30, 1999

{doftars in thousands)

INCOME TAXES woeeeeeeieceeeee e e e e v ee e
S BIEE TAKS . e ettt s et
Motar Vehicle Fual Taxes ..o,
Unemployment Taxes
Other Taxes

Total Taxes Receivable

Special Trust and

General Revenue Agency Total
$243,340 $ 28,763 L — § 272103
505,654 26650 —_ 532,304
— 129,951 —_ 129,851
— — 149,548 149 548
— 14,912 — 14,912
$748,994 $200,276 $149,548  $1,098,818

NOTE 6 LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A. Loans Reccivable

T.oans rcecivable (net of uncollectible amounts) for the primary government and its component units, as of Junc

30, 1999, consist of the following.

Primary Government
Loans Receivable
As of June 30, 1999

{doftars in thousands)

Special Debt Capital
Loan Type General Revenue Service Projects Total
Columbiana County Economic Stabilization ...... $ 2,945 $ — § = $ — $ 2945
Community and Economic Development:
Office of Minority Financial Incentives............. 4,169 — — — 4,169
Office of Financial Incentives ... — 244 924 - — 249,924
Ohio Housing Finance Agency.........ccee. — 152,335 — — 152,335
Rail Development ... —_ 3,667 — — 3,667
Total Community and Economic Development 4,169 405,926 — — 410,095
Higher Education Research
Investment Loans.....cocoooceveveeee e — —_ 4135 — 4135
Natural Resources .............occooeeevveniceennccnn s — 167 — — 167
Primary, Secondary and Other Education:
School District Solvency Assistance ... 12,083 — — — 12,063
Vocational Education ... 626 177 — — 803
Wayne Trace Local Schoof District ................. 5,490 — — — 5490
Public School Bullding ..o — 3,839 — — 3,839
Vocational School Assistance..............ccccoeevn. — 9,642 — — 9842
School Building ... — 11,376 — — 11,376
Teacher Education......cccocecn e — 1,285 —_ — 1,295
Nurses Education Assistance ...........cceevveenn, — 300 — — 300
Total Primary, Secondary and Other Education 18,170 26,629 — — 44,808
Highway and Transit Infrastructure Bark........... — 22,493 — — 22,493
Local Infrastructure Improvements .................... — — — 143,443 148,443
Total Loans Receivable ..o $25,293 $455,215 $4,135 $148,443 $633,086
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NOTE 6 LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Component Units
L.oans Receivable

As of June 30, 1989
{dollars in thousands}

Chig
Water
Develop- Other Total
ment Ohio University Kent Com- Cam-
Authority State of State panent ponent
Loan Type {12/31/88) University Cincinnati  University Units Units
Water and Wastewater Treatment, ..o ioorivnvnnne « . 51878823 $§ — $ — $ — % —  $1,878,923
. - 56,813 28,060 18,455 74,222 177,550
PP . — - 6835 — 8,516 9,151
eceivahle $1,878,023 856,813 $28,695 $18,455 $82,738 52,065,624

B. Other Receivables

Other receivables for the primary government and its component units, as of June 30, 1999, consist of the follow-

ing.

Primary Government
Other Receivables
As of June 30, 1999

{dolfars in thousands)

Special Debt Capitai Internal Trust and
Unrestricted: General Revenue Service Projects  Enterprise  Service Agency Total
Accounts Receivable........ ....coc.c..... $ 3,073 $ 622¢ § — S ,—  $158758 $ 3148 5 —  $189,308
Interest and Dividends Receivable .. 18,727 14,971 825 2,840 93,230 255 17,971 153,820
Women, Infants and Children
Program Rebate Receivable ... _ 14,799 — — — —_ —_ 14,799
Nursing Facility Bed Assessments
Receivable ..o — 12,765 — — —_ — — 12,765
Leases Receivable.................. .. . — — — —_ — 29,3220 — 29,320
Receivables from
Lottery Sales Agents................... —_ — — — 28,351 —_ —_ 28,351
Claims & Settlements Receivable.... —_ — — — — —_ 20,911 20,911
Employer Interest and Penalties
on Unemployment Taxes............ - 2,439 —_— — — — —_ 2439
Refunds from Academic Grants
and Scholarships Programs ......... 2463 — — — — — — 2,463
Miscellaneous Receivables............. — 982 — — 3 1,512 643 3,143
Total Unrestricted 24,263 52,285 826 2,840 283,245 34,235 39,525 437,319
Rastricted:
Interest Receivable ..o — — — — 11,914 — — 11,914
Miscellaneous Receivables ... .. — — — — 4 — — 4
Total Restricted ... o — - — — 11,918 — _— 11818
Total Unrestricted and Restricted ... $24 263 $52,285 $826 $2,840  $295263 534,235 539,625 5449237
Component Units
Other Receivables
As of June 30, 1999
{doffars in thousands)
Other Total
Ohio University Medical Com- Com-
State of Ohio College ponent ponent
University Cincinnati  University  of Ohio Units Units
Accounts Receivable. ..o i 5242 647 $34 417 317,911 $24,288  $105427 $424 740
Interest Receivable..........cco e o i . 14,183 4226 913 645 4,665 24 636
Pledges Receivable. .......... —_ 38,926 —_ — — 38,928
Miscellaneous Receivable — 314 — — 6,213 6 627
Total Other Receivables ... . ...occcooiciiiiiees cen e, $256,880 $77 883 518,824 $24 937 $116,3056  $494 829
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Under long-term direct financing leases with local
governments for office space. the Ohio Building Au-
thority, a blended component unit, charges a pro-rata
share of the buildings’ debt service and operating

costs based on squarc-footage occupied.

Future leasc payments due the Ohio Building Au-

thority Internal! Service Fund, net of executory costs,
are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Leases

Year Ending June 30, Receivable

2000 . $ 4997

2007 Lo 5,001

2002 . 5,008

2003 5,012

2004 ., 5,036

Thereafter........oocvciiienic e 20,856

Total minimum lease payments................... 45910

Amount representing interest ... {16,590)
Present value of

ret minimum lease payments ................ $29,320

NOTE 7 INTERFUND AND INTRA-ENTITY BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund balances, as of June 30, 1999, and operating transfers among the primary government’s funds, for the
year ended June 30, 1999, arc as follows (dollars in thousands):

Due from Due to Advances Advances Operating Operating
Other Cther to Other  from Other Transfers-  Transfers-
Fund Type/Fund Funds Funds Funds Funds In Qut
Ganeral.................coooeeeee $ 22076 $ 41481 5 - § — § 201151 $1,308,827
Special Revenue:
Community and Economic Development ...... 3,333 2,601 e 145 689 73,330 38,660
HUmMan SeIvICES ..o 470 1,279 — — 10,753 39,059
Health. ... 162 45 — — 15,552 282
Mental Health and Retardation..................... 451 799 — — 4,239 e
Employment Services. .........ccoccoev e 24 — — — — 1,500
Education ..o 1,518 214 — — 1015246 57,819
Highway Safety ..o 2,695 1,058 — — 160,671 10,067
Highway Operating..........cccooooi i 4,219 3,387 — — 801,364 195,375
Natural Resources..........ccooee e, 399 91 —_ — 113 4,381
Wildlife and Waterway Safety...................... 276 13 — — 973 13
Revenue Distribution .........cccoce v 8,760 157 — — 73,646 720,762
Local Transportation [mprovements.............. 1,148 1 — —_ 81,759 —
Total Special Revenue Fund................... 23,455 9,845 — 145688 2,017,646 1,067,218
Debt Service:
Economic Development Bond Service........... — — — — 15,899 —
Coal Research/Development
Bond Retirement.........ccoccoovviininiiieenne — — — - 5,632 3
Development Bond Retirement .................... - — — — — 25
Highway Obligations Bond Retirement.......... 124 — — — — 49
Public improvements Bond Retirement......... — — — — o 13
Local Infrastructure Improvements
Bond Retirement ..............ccoovevrven i — 18 — — 108,878 -
Ohio Public Facilities Commission ................ 1,115 — — — 441,801 —
Chio Building Authority............c..cccoon, — — — — 238019 1,634
Enterprise Bond Retirement...........cccccoocee... — — — — 32,460 36,036
State Projects Bond Service.........occoovvieee. — — — — 10,000 10
School Building Program Bond Servige......... — — — — 55572 —
Highway Capital Improvements
Bond Semvice ... 4 — — — 51,349 109
Infrastructure Bank Bond Service................ — —_ — — 10,251 —
Total Debt Service Fund ................cc..cco.. 1,243 18 — — 869,961 37,882
(Continued)
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Due from Due to Advances  Advances Operating Operating
Other Cther to Other  from Other Transfers-  Transfers-
Fund Type/Fund Funds Funds Funds Funds in Out
Capital Projects:
Arts Facilities Building Improvements........... 91 — — — 77,840 —
Higher Education Improvements ................... 195 1,115 — — — 51
Highway Obligations Construction ............... 18 — — — — 8,885
Mental Health/Mental Retardation
Facilities Improvements.... 50 — — — — —
Parks and Recreation Improvements 10 — - — — —
Local Infrastructure Improvements... 1,602 3 — — 386 3
Ohic Building Authority.......c..ooon — — — — 3,351 270,388
Administrative Services
Building Improvements ... 212 — — — 100,966 3,351
Youth Services Building Improvemer:ts 83 — — — 50,410 —
Transportation Building Improvements.......... 8 — — — — —
Adult Correctional Building Improvements .... 8 20 — — e 250
Highway Safety Building Improvements....... 13 — — — — —
Ohio Parks and Natural Resources............... 9 — — — — 668
Highway Capital Improvement ...................... 19 — — — §.885 —
Sparts Facilities Building ... 78 — — — 39,449 —
Infrastructure Bank Obligations .................... 32 — — — — —
Total Capital Projects Fund..........ccco... 2427 1,198 — — 281,287 283,506
Enterprise;
Liquor Control.........ceceeoioieeie e e 84 2,287 — — — 108,840
Ohio Lottery Commission ..........ccocceveenieeen. — — — — — 696,303
Workers' Compensation..............cocoe — — — — — 5779
Underground Parking Garage ........ccccceeueeee. — — — — — 773
Office of Auditorof State ... 4 208 —— — — 32,344 —
Total Enterprise Fund ... 4,292 2,287 — -— 32,344 811,695
Internal Service:
Ohio Building Authority.............c.cooii - — — — 27,700 29,391
Ohio Data Network ... 9,093 336 — — —
Ohio Penal Industries ... 23,653 1,118 — — 9,220 —
Support Services. .o 4,338 70 — - — —
Telecommunications ..., 3,583 — — — — —
Total Internal Service Fund ..................... 40,567 1,525 — — 36,920 29,391
Expendable Trust:
Unclaimed Funds ..o 1,306 — 145 689 — — —
Pension Trust:
State Highway Patrol Retirement System ... 1,721 — — — — —
Agency:
Holding and Distribution .................c.cccooeeee — 22,477 — — — —
Payroll Wlthholding and Frmge Benefits........ 114 18,729 —_ — — —
Other .. . 96 — — — — —
Total Trust and Agency Funds .................. 3,237 41,208 145 689 — — —
Total per Financial Statements —
Primary Government ..........c.cocvierirnecenien 97,297 97,340 145,689 145689 3,539309 3,539,309
Reconciliation for Timing Differences for
Funds with December 31, 1958 Year-Ends, .. 43 — — — — —
Reconciled Total for the Primary Government . 97,340 97,340 $145680  $145689 $3,539,309 $3,539,309
Component Unifs:
Ohio State University......... ..o 271,881 271,881
University of Cincinnati........ccccovvvevincenenn 117,036 117,038
Other Component Units. ... 65,783 65,783
Total per Financial Statemeants —
Component Units...............coiiiiiine 454,700 454,700
Total Reporting Entity ..................  $5562,040  $552,040

State of Chio

37



7] STATE OF OHIO

./ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 7 INTERFUND AND INTRA-ENTITY BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

For the fiscal ycar ended June 30, 1999, the Capital
Projects Fund reports approximately §5.7 million in
residual equity transfers-out. The transfers represent
capital contributions to the Enterprisc and Internal
Service [unds, as discussed in NOTE 18. Addition-
ally, the Internal Service Fund reports a residual eq-
uity transfer-out in the amount of $419 thousand.
The transfer represents capital contributions to the
General Fixed Asscts Account Group.

Operating transfers between the primary govern-
ment’s funds and ils component units represent
transfers of moneys from the General Fund for in-
structional and non-instructional support at the state-
supported universities and state community collcges.

Details of amounts transferred during the year ended
June 30, 1999 are presented in the table to the right
(dollars in thousands).

NOTE 8 FIXED ASSETS

The following tables show fixed assets for the pri-
mary goveriment and its compoenent units by assct
category, as of Junc 30, 1999, and the changcs in the
primary government’s general fixed assets for the

Cperating
Transfers Operating
from Transfers to
Primary Component
Government Units

Primary Government:
Gatteral FUnd ....oovervmorvenemnnee B —  $1,564,910
Component Units:
Coflege and University Funds
Ohip State University.......o.oooes s 418,436 —
University of Cincinnati ... 188,342 —
Ohio University . . e e e 134,505 —
Miami University . .. ... s e 76,232 —_
University of Akron ... .. .. .. 97,8938 —_
Bowling Green State University ... 78,798 —
Kent State University....... . ... 108,864 —
University of Tolede ... ... . 83,869 —
Cleveland State University ... . 68,850 —
Youngstown State University...... . . 485,803 —
Whight State University .. ... - 89,152 -
Shawnee State University .......... . 14,930 —
Central State University....... ... . 17,692 —
Medical College of Ohip......... .. R 36,538 —
Terra State Community College . . ... 5,351 —
Columbus State Community College . 33,070 —
Clark State Community College ... .. . 6,564 -—
Edison State Community College..... .. 4,876 —
Southern State Community College .... 3,787 —
Washington State Community College 4,595 -
Cincinnati State Community College ... 168,729 e
Northwest State Community College... 4,358 —
Owens State Community College ... 24,521 —
Total Reporting Entity. . $1,664,910 31,664 910

year ended June 30, 1999, No projects were under
construction during fiscal year 1999 that resulted in
capitalized intcrest for the proprietary and [iduciary
fund types.

Primary Government
Fixed Assets

As of June 30, 1999
{doffars in thousands)

General Total
Internal Pension Fixed Primary
Enterprise Service Trust Assels Government
Land.........o oo $ 12,871 —_ $ 370 $ 212,421 $ 225662
BUildings ..c..covverieee e 248,243 5,733 3236 2,476,320 2,733,537
Land Improvements.................... — 771 — 159,514 160,285
Machinery and Equipment .......... 172,711 64,034 229 263,611 500,585
State Vehicles.............e 3,268 a77 16 241,854 248,015
Construction-in-Progress ............ — — — 535,645 535,645
Total Fixed Assets (at cost) ........ 437 098 71,415 3,851 3,889,365 4,401,729
Accumulated Depreciation.......... (206,325) {43,760} {886) —_ {251,071)
Total Fixed Assets {net) ........ $230,773 $27.655 $2,865 $3,883,365 $4,150,658
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Primary Government
Changes in General Fixed Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
fdoffars in thousands)

Beginning Deletions/
Balance Balance Net Balance
July 1, 1998 Adjustments Additions Transfers June 30, 1998
Land......ocoe e, $ 198,023 $ 4707 $ 10,577 $ {(886) $ 212421
Buildings .....ocoovvvioeeeii 2,256,807 69,212 178,545 (28,244) 2,476,320
Land Improvements .................... 166,987 1,287 5.414 4,174) 159,514
Machinery and Equipment .......... 228 811 8,608 50,380 {24,195) 263,611
State Vehicles...........ccocoeei 230,879 744 34036 {23,805) 241,854
Construction-in-Progress ............ 588,898 (86,092) 13,772 (380,033} 535,645
Total General Fixed Assets ... $3,660,405 $ (2,436) $692,733 ${461,337) $3,889,365
Component Unifs
Fixed Assets
As of June 30, 1999
{dolfars in thousands)
Ohio State University Chio Miami University
University aof Cincinnati University University of Akron
Land... § 34,722 $ 17,129 $ 10,531 § 2294 $ 16,968
Bmldlngs 1,474,648 814,381 344 104 326,563 297 455
Land 1mprc\.rements ................... 147,771 29,200 53,222 59,351 33,010
Machinery, Equipment,
and Vehicles .. . 708,630 107,110 80,706 96,679 $1,980
Library Books and Pubijcatlons . 131,121 90,590 52,884 40,398 51,029
Construction-in-Progress ... 193,727 166,029 4,277 24,900 3166
Total Fixed Assets (at cost) ....... 2,690,619 1,224 439 555,814 580,185 493,608
Accumulated Depreciation......... — — — — —
Total Fixed Assets (net)....... $2,690,619 51,224,439 5555,814 $560,185 $493,608
Cleveland Other Total
Kent State University State Compaonent Component
University of Toledo University Units Units
Land......oooii e $ 6,747 $ 17,798 $ 51,777 $ 53590 $ 211,556
Buildings ... 285,000 308,498 297,737 1,280,184 5,428,660
Land Improvements 34,466 28,950 14,934 89,739 490,643
Machinery, Equnpment
and Vehicles .. . . 63,168 57119 41,252 356,088 1,612,712
Library Books and PuthBUOHS. 48,245 19,152 47,063 91,847 572,330
Construction-in-Progress ........... 12,353 11,474 1,771 55,825 473,522
Total Fixed Assets {af cost}....... 449 980 442 991 454 534 1,927,253 8,789,423
Accumulaied Depreciation......... — — — (367) {367}
Total Fixed Assets (net)....... $449,980 $442 991 $454 534 $1,926,886 $8,789,056

NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

All part-time and full-time employces and clected

officials of the State, including its component units,

arc eligible to be covered by one ol the following

relirement plans:

Public Employees Retirement System
State Teachers Retirement System

State Highway Patrol Retirement System
Alternative Retirement Plan

State of Ohio
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NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

A. Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

Pension Benefits
PERS is a cost-sharing, delimed benefit multiple-
employer public employce retirement system.

PERS benefits are established under Chapter 145,
Ohio Revised Code. PLERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiar-
ics.

PERS issues a stand-alone financial report, copies of
which may be obtained by making a written request
to: Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio,
277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642,
or by calling (614) 466-2085.

Employer and emplovee required contributions to
PERS are established under the Ohio Revised Code
and arc based on percentages of covered employees’
gross salarics, which are calculated annually by the
relirement system’s actuaries. Contribution rates for
calendar year 1998 are as follows:

Contribution Rates —

Calendar Year 1998

Employee  Employer
Share Share

Regular Employees ................. 8.50% 13.31%
Law Enforcement Employess .. 9.00 16.70

Employer contributions required and made for the
last three vears [ollow {dollars in thousands).

Primary Government

Employer's
Employer's Contribution
Contribution for Law
For the Year Ended for Regular Enforcement
December 31, Employees Employees
1998 $212,114 $2.970
1997 218,984 2,747
1996 196,501 2,410
Component Units
Employer's
Contribution
For the Year Ended for Regular
June 30, Employees
1999 $100,392
1998 97,944
1997 96,962

Other Postemployment Benefits

All age and service retirees with 10 or more years of
service credit quality for healthcarc coverage under
PERS. Healthcare coverage for disability recipients
and primary survivor rccipients is also available,
Chapter 1435, Ohio Revised Code, provides the statu-
tory authority for employer contributions. For cal-
cndar ycar 1998, the portion of the employer rate
that 1s used to fund healthcare is 4.2 percent of cov-
ered payroll for law cnforcement and regular em-
ployees. Employces do not fund any portion of
healtheare costs.

PERS healthcarc bencfits are funded on a pay-as-
you-go basis. As of December 31, 1998, the un-
audiled estimate of the value of net assels available
for future healthcare benefits is $9.4 billion.

The State’s net costs for the PERS healthcare plan
are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government:
{for the year ended December 31, 1998)

Regular Employees ....ccevveiiiee $97,791
Law Enforcement Employees............ 998
Total..oo e, $98,789

Component Units:
(for the year ended June 30, 1899)........ $46,284

The number of cligible bencefit recipients for PERS
as a whole is 115,579, as of December 31, 1998; a
breakout of the number of eligible recipients for the
primary governnent and its component units, as of
December 31, 1998, is unavailahle.

B. State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)

Pension Benefits
STRS is a cost-sharing, defined benetit multiple-
cmployer public employee retirement system.

Participants in STRS, may retire afler 30 ycars of
credited service regardless of age, or at or aller age
55 with 25 vears of credited service, or at or after
age 00 with five years of credited service. Members
retiring before age 65 with less than 30 years of scr-
vice credit receive a percentage reduction in benefit
amounts, Retirecs arc entitled to a maximum annual
retirement benefit, payable in monihly installments
for life, equal to the greater of the “formula benefit”
or the “money-purchasc benefit™ caleulation.

State of Ohio
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Under the “formula benefit” calculation, the retire-
ment allowance is based on years of credited service
and the final average salary, which is the average of
the member’s three highest salary years. The annual
allowance is determined by multiplying the final
average salary by 2.5 percent plus .1 percent for
each ycar of Ohio contributing service in excess of
30 years, starting at 2.5 percent for the 31% year of
service, and by 2.1 percent for all other years of
credited service up to a maximum annual allowance
of 100 percent of final average salary.

Under the “money-purchase benefit” calculation, a
member’s lifetime contributions, plus interest at
specified rates, are matched by an equal amount
from contributed employer funds. This total is then
divided by an actuarially determined annuity factor
to determine the maximum annual retirement allow-
ance. Annually, after retirement, STRS benefits are
increased by the greater of the amount of the change
in the Consumer Price Index or the cumulative in-
crcase in prior vears, less previous cost-of-living
increases, up to a maximum of three percent.

A retirce of STRS or any other Ohio public retire-
ment system is cligible for re-employment as a
teacher after two months from the date of retirement.
Members and the employer make contribotions dur-
ing the period of re-cmployment. Upon termination
or the retiree reaches the age of 63, whichever comes
later, the retiree is cligible for a money purchase
benefit or a lump-sum payment in addition to the
original retirement allowance.

STRS also provides death, survivors’, disability,
healthcare, and supplemental benetits. STRS bene-
fits are established under Chapter 3307, Ohio Re-
vised Code.

STRS issues a stand-alone financial report, copies of
which may be obtained by making a written request
to: State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio, 275
East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771.

Employer and employee required contributions to
STRS are established by the Board and limited un-
der the Ohio Revised Code to employer and em-
ployee rates of 14 percent and 10 percent, respec-
tively, and are based on pereentages of covered em-
ployees’ gross salarics, which are caleulated annu-
ally by the retirement sysiem’s actuary. Contribu-

tion rates for fiscal year 1999 were 14 percent for
employers and 9.3 percent for cmployees. For
STRS, 6.0 percent of the employer rate is used to
fund pension obligations. The difference between
the total employer rate and the share used to fund
pension obligations is the percentage uscd to fund
the STRS healthcare program,

Employer contributions rcquired and made for the
last three years are as follows {doilars in thovsands):

Year Ended Primary Component
June 30, Government Units
1999 $2,876 $ 59,593
1908 4,384 101,964
1997 5,051 111,928

Other Postemployment Benefits

‘The STRS plan provides comprehensive healtheare
benefits to retirees and their dependents. Relirees
are required to make healthcare premium payments
at amounts that vary according to each retiree’s
years of credited service and choice of healthcare
provider. Retirces must pay additional premiums for
covered spouses and dependents.  Chapter 3307,
Ohio Revised Code, gives the STRS board discre-
tionary authority over how much, if any, of associ-
aled healthcare costs are absorbed by the plan. Cur-
rently, employer contributions equal to 8.0 percent
of covered payroll are allocated to pay for healthcare
benefits,

The employer centribution is financed on a pay-as-
yvou-go basis, As of June 30, 1998, net assets avail-
able for future healthcare benefits are $2.2 billion.
Net healthcare costs paid by the primary government
and its component units, for the vear ended June 30,
1999, totaled approximately $3.8 million and §79.5
million, respectively. The number of eligible benefit
recipients for STRS as a whole is 91,999, as of June
30, 1998; a breakout of the number of eligible re-
cipients for the primary government and its compo-
nent units, as of Junc 30, 1998, is unavailable.

C. State Highway Patrol Retirement System
(SHPRS)

SHPRS, a component vnit of the State, was estab-

lished in 1944 by the General Assembly as a single-

employer, defined beoctit pension plan and is ad-

ministered by the State.
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The plan issues a stand-alonc financial report that
includes financial statements and required supple-
mentary information, and the State reports the plan
as a pension trust fund. Copics of the financial re-
port may be obtaincd by writing to the Ohio State
Highway Patrol Retirement System, 6161 Busch
Boulevard, Suite 119, Columbus, Ohio 43229-2553,
or by calling (614) 466-2268.

SITPRS is authorized under Chapter 5505, Ohio Re-
vised Code, to provide retirement and disability
benefits to retired members and survivor benefits to
qualified dependents of deceased members of the
Ohio State Highway Patrol. Chapter 5505, Ohio
Revised Code, also requires contributions by active
members and the Ohio State Highway Patrol. The
employee contribution rate is established by the
General Assembly, and any change in the rate re-
quires legislative action. The SHPRS Retirement
Board establishes and certifies the employer contri-
bution rate to the State of Ohio every two years. By
law, the employer rale may not exceed three times
the employee contribution rate.

During calendar year 1998, active employees and the
emplover contributed 10 percent and 24 percent,
respectively, of active member payroll, of which all
of the emplovees’ contributions and 19.87 percent of
the employer’s contributions fund pension benefits.
The difference in the total employer rates charged
during calendar vear 1998 and the employer rates
applicable to the funding of pension benctits is ap-
plicd to the funding of postemployment healthcare
benefits. Effective July [, 1999, the employer rate
will decrease to 23.5 percent of active member pay-
roll, of which 19.5 percent will fund pension benc-
fits and 4.0 percent will fund postemployment
healthcare bencfits. Employee contributions will
remain unchanged.

SIIPRS’s financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting, under which expenses
are recorded when the liability is incurred and reve-
nues are recorded when they arc carned.

All investments are reported at fair value. Fair value
is, “the amount that the plan can reasonably expect
to receive for an investment in a current sale, be-

tween a willing buyer and a willing seller- that is,
other than in a foreed or liquidation sale.” Short-
lerm investments are reported al cost, which ap-
proximates fair value. Corporate bonds are valued at
the median price by the brokerage firms.

Securities traded on a national exchange are valued
at the last reported sales price at the current cx-
change rate. The fair value of real estate invest-
ments are bascd on the estimated current value and
on independent appraisals. Assets are valued with a
method that amortizes each year’s investment gain
or loss over a closed, four-year period.

The employer’s annual pension costs for the last
three calendar years are as follows (dollars in thou-

sands):

Percentage of

Employer's
Year Ended Primary Annual Pension
December 31, Governmeant Cost Contributed
1998 $13,060 100%
1997 12,202 100
1396 11,856 100

SHPRS used the enfry-age normal actuarial cost
method for the Schedule of Funding Progress for the
actuarial valuation, dated December 31, 1998, As-
sumptions vsed in preparing the Schedule of Fund-
ing Progress and in determining the annuval required
contribution include: a 7.75 percent rate of return on
investments; projected salary increase of five percent
attributable to inflation and additional projected sal-
ary increases ranging [rom .5 percent to 3.5 percent
per year attributable to seniority and merit; and post-
retirement increases each year equal to the increasc
in the Consumer Price Index (not to cxceed three
percent).

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized vsing the level-percentage of projected
payroll method over a closed period of 10 years.

The Schedule of Funding Progress for the last three
vears is presenled on the following page. Amounts
reported do not include assets or liabilities for
postemployment healthcarc benefits.
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SHPRS Schedule of Funding Progress

Last Three Calendar Years
{doffars in thousands)

A) (B) (©) ) (E) {F) (G)
Unfunded UAAL as
Actuarial Percentage of
Actuarial Accrued Ratio of Active Active Member
Valuation Accrued Valuation Liability {UAAL})  Assets to AAL Member Payroll
Year Liability {AAL) Assels {B)— (C} {CY(B) Payraoil (DW(F)
1998 $532,957 $509,860 $23,097 95.7% 565,154 35.4%
1987 (a) 406,917 460,667 36,250 92.7 62,233 58.2
1987 487,392 460,667 26,725 94.5 62,233 42.9
1986 454,514 411,318 43,198 90.5 59,239 728

(a) The plan was amended in 1997,

Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits. SHPRS
pays health insurance claims on behalf of all persons
receiving a monthly pension or survivor benefit and
Medicare Part B basic premiums for those eligible
benefit recipients upon proof of coverage. The
number of active contributing plan participants, as of
December 31, 1998, was 1,446. The cost of reliree
healthcare benefits is recognized as claims are in-
curred and premiums are paid. The calendar year
1998 expense was $3.1 million.

Healthcarc benefits arc cstablished in Chapter 5503,
Ohio Revised Code, and are advance funded by the
employer on the same actuarially determined basis
(using the same assumptions) as are the SITPRS pen-
sion benefits, as previously discussed. 1n addition,
the assumption that projected healthcare premiums
would incrcasc at a rate of [ive percent, compounded
annually, due to inflation was also used in the valua-
tion, The net assets available for benefits allocated
to healthecare costs at December 31, 1998 was $§91.5
million, and include investments, which are carricd
at fair value, as previously deseribed.

As of December 31, 1998, the actuarial accrued li-
ability for healthcare benefits, the portion of the pre-
sent value of plan promises to pay benefits in the
future that are not covered by future normal cost
contributions, was $87.9 million; the prefunded ac-
tuarial accrued liability for healthcare bencfits at that
date was $3.6 million.

Employer contributions are made in accordance with
actuarially determined requirements. The employer
contribution requirement was approximately $2.7

million or 4.13 percent of active member payroll for
the period January 1 through December 31, [998.

In 1998, the governing board of the SHPRS voted io
provide optical and dental coverage to retirees at no
cosl. Vision and dental coverage will be provided
beginning in August 1999 and January 2000, respec-
tively.

D. Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP)

Pension Benefits

The ARP is a defined contribution retirement plan
that 15 authorized under Section 3305.02, Ohio Re-
vised Code. The ARP provides at least three or
more alternative retirement plans for academic and
administrative cmployees of Ohio’s institutions of
higher education, who otherwise would be covered
by STRS or PERS. Classificd civil service employ-
ees are not eligible to participate in the ARP.

The Board ot Trustces of each public institution of
higher education enters into conlracts with each ap-
proved retircment plan provider. Once established,
full-time faculty and unclassified cmployees who are
hired subsequent to the establishment of the ARP, or
who had less than five years of service credit under
the cxisting retirement plans, may choose to enroll in
the ARP. The choice is irrevocable for as long as
the employce remains continuously employed in a
position for which the ARP is available. For those
employces that choose to join the ARP, any prior
employce contributions that had been made to STRS
or PERS would be transferred 1o the ARP. The Ohio
Department of Insurance has designated cight com-
panies as being eligible to serve as plan providers for
the ARP.
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Ohic law requires that employee contributions be
made to the ARP in an amount equal to those that
would otherwise have been required by the retire-
ment system that applies to the employce’s position.
Therefore, employees who would have otherwise
been enrolled in STRS or PERS would contribute
9.3 percent or 8.5 percent (9.0 percent for law en-
forcement employees) of their gross salaries’, re-
spectively. Employees may also voluntarily make
additional contributions to the ARP. Ohio law also
requires that cach public institution of higher educa-
tion contribute 6.0 percent of the employees’ gross
salary to the retircment plan in which the employce
would have otherwise been corolled. The amount of
this contribution is subject to acluarial review every
third year to determine if the rate needs to be ad-
justed to mitigate any negative financial impact that
the loss of contributions may have on STRS and
PERS. The Board of Trustees of each public institu-

NOTE 16 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The State has pledged its faith and credit for the
payment of principal and interest on general obliga-
tion bonds accounted for and included with obliga-
tions in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group.

Al various times since 1921, Ohio voters, by 15 con-
stitutional amendments (the last adopted in Novem-
ber 1995), have authorized the incurrcnce of general
obligation debt for the construction and improve-
ment of local infrastructure improvements, high-
ways, research and development of coal technology,
parks, recreation, and natural resources, and state
facilities, [In practice, general obligation bonds are
retired over periods of 10 to 25 years.

A 1987 constitutional amendment provided for the
issuance of $1.2 billion of general obligation bonds
for infrastructure improvements (Infrastructure
Bonds), of which no more than $120 million may be
issucd in any calendar year. As of June 30, 1999,
the General Asscmbly had authorized $1.2 billion of
these bonds to be sold, of which approximately $1.2
billion had been issued and $977 million (net of un-
accreted discount of $136.9 millien on deep-
discount bonds issucd) was outstanding. In Novem-
ber 1995, volers approved another constitutional
amendment that provided for the issuance of an ad-
ditienal $1.2 billion of Iaflrastructure Bonds, of

tion of higher education may also make additional
payments to the ARP based on the gross salaries of
cmployees multiplied by a percentage the respective
Board of Trusiecs approves.

The ARP provides full and immediate vesting of all
contributions made on behalf ol participants. The
contributions are directed fo one of the eight invest-
ment management companies as chosen by the par-
ticipants. The ARP does not provide disability bene-
fits, annual cosl-of-living adjustments, postretire-
ment health care bencfits or death benefils. Benefits
are entirely dependent on the sum of the contribu-
tions and relaied investment income generated by
cach participant’s choice of investment options.

Employer and employce contributions required and
paid for the year caded June 30, 1999 totaled $7.3
million and $5.3 million, respectively.

which no more than $120 million (plus any prior
years’ principal amounts not issued under the new
authorization) may be sold in any state fiscal year.
As ol June 30, 1999, the General Assembly had au-
thorized $360 million in Tafrastructurc Bonds to be
issucd under the provisions of the 1995 constitu-
tional amendment, of which $12¢ million had been
issucd and $116.3 million was cutstanding.

A 1968 consiitutional amendment authorized the
issuance of Highway Obligations in amounts up to
$100 miltion in any calendar year, with ne more than
$300 million in principal amount outstanding at any
one time. The aggregate of General Asscmbly au-
thorizations, as of June 30, 1999, for Highway Obli-
gations, was approximately $1.86 billion, of which
$1.75 biltion had been issued and $217.5 million
was oufstanding. Pursuant to an amendment voters
approved in November 1995, the remaining $109.7
million in General Assembly authorizations for the
issuance ol Highway Obligations cxpired December
31, 199¢.
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Through approval of the November 1995 amend-
ment, voters authorized the issuance of Highway
Capital Improvements Bonds in amounts up to $220
million in any fiscal ycar (plus any prior fiscal years’
principal amounts not issued under the new authori-
zation), with no more than $1.2 billion outstanding
at any time. As of June 30, 1999, the General As-
sembly had authorized the issuancc of approximately
$1.1 billion in Highway Capital [mprovements
Bonds, of which $375 million had been issued and
$515 million was cutstanding.

Coal Research and Development Bonds and Parks,
Recreation, and Natural Resources Bonds may be
issued as long as the outstanding principal amounts
do not exceed $100 and $200 million, respectively.
As of June 30, 1999, the General Assembly had au-
thorized the issuance of $150 million in Coal Re-
search and Development Bonds, of which $95 mil-
lion had been issued and $23.9 million was out-
standing. Tegislative authorizations for the issuance
of Parks, Recreation, and Natural Resources Bonds
totaled $180 million, as of Junc 30, 1999, of which
$130 million had been issued and $112.7 million
was outstanding.

General obligation bonds outstanding and bonds au-
thorized but unissued, as of June 30, 1999, are pre-
scnted in the table below.

I'or the year ended June 30, 1999, NOTE |5 summa-
rizes changes in general obligation bonds reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

Future general obligation debt service requirements,
as of Junc 30, 1999, are as follows (dollars in thou-
sands):

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2000 $ 182,995 $ 80,534 $ 263529
2001 e 186,020 74,383 260,403
2002 e 189,110 66,891 256,001
2003 192,515 59,081 251,596
2004 ... 181,940 51,263 233,203
Thereafter ...... 1,166,725 240174 1,406,809
2,099,305 572,326 2671631
Unaccreted
Discount......... {136,803} — (136,903)
Total............... 31,962,402 $572,326  $2,534,728

[n August 1998, the Treasurer of Statc issued $12.6
million in Infrastructure Improvement Refunding
Bonds, Series 1998, to advance refund $12.6 million
in certain maturities of the Infrastructure Improve-
ment Bonds, Series 1992. The net procceds of $13.4
million (after payment of approximately $124 thou-
sand in bond issuance costs, including the under-
writers™ discount) were used {o purchase U.S. gov-
ernment securities, which were deposited in an ir-
revocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for
all future debt service payments on the refunded
bonds. As a resull, the bonds are considered fo be
defeased, and the liability for the bonds has been
removed from the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group.

Primary Government
General Obligation Bonds

As of June 30, 1999
{dollars in thousands)

Average
Fiscal Net Maturing Authorized
Years Interest Through Qutstanding But
Description of General Obligation Bond Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance Unissued
Infrastructure Improvements...........c.occ.o... 1990-89 4.7%-8.2% 2018 $1,083302 $240,000
Highway Obligations..........ccooce e 1893-97 4.5%-4 8% 2004 217,500 —
Highway Capital Improvements................ 1997-09 4.4%-4.8% 2009 515,000 517,000
Coal Research and Development............. 1992-96 4.5%-5.6% 2005 23,800 55,000
Parks, Recreation, and
Natural Resources ...........oooooeiveeeeeennes 15994-59 4.5%-5.86% 2014 112,700 50,000
Total General Obligation Bonds............ $1,962,402 $862,000
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The State advance refunded the bonds to reduce its
total debt service payments over the next 10 years by
approximately $435 thousand. The refunding re-
sulted in an economic gain of approximately $367
thousand. The economic gain is the differcnce be-
tween the present value of the debl service payments
on the old and new debt.

[n prior years, the Treasurer of State defeased certain
[nfrastructure Improvement Bonds by placing the

NOTE 11 REVENUE BONDS AND NOTES

The State Constitution permits Stale agencies and
authorities to issue bonds that are not supported by
the faith and credit of the State. These bonds pledge
incomc derived from user fees and rentals on the
acquired or constructed assets to pay the debt ser-
vice. lssuers for the primary government include the
Ohio Building Authority (OBA), which has issued
revenue bonds on its own behalf and for the Ohio
Bureau of Workers® Compensation, the Treasurcr of
State for the Ohio Department of Development’s
Office of IFinancial Incentives, and the Department
of Transportation. Major issucrs for the State’s
component units inciude the Ohio Water Develop-
ment Authority, the Ohio State University, the Uni-
versity of Cincinnati, and the University of Toledo.

A. Primary Government

Revenue bonds accounted for in the Enterprise Fund
finance the costs of the William Green Building,
which houses the main operafions of the Ohio Bu-
reau of Workers™ Compensation in Columbus.

OBA revenue bonds reported in the Internal Service
Fund finance the costs of office buildings and related
facilities for shared use by local governments. The
principal and intcrest requirements on these bonds
are paid from rentals received under the long-term
lease agreements discussed in NOTE 6.

Economic development bonds, issued by the Treas-
urer of State for the Office of Financial Inceatives
Direct FLoan Program, provide [inancing for loans
and loan guarantces to businesses within the State,
which cannel obtain conventional financing for eco-
nemic development projects that create or retain jobs
in the State. The taxablc bonds are backed with
profits derived from the sale of spirituous liquor by
the Ohio Department of Liguor Control and pledged
moncys and related investment earnings held in re-

proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to pro-
vide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the various trust accounts’ as-
sets and liabilitics for the defeased bonds are not
mcluded in the State’s financial statements. As of
Junc 30, 1999, $62.9 million of Infrastructure Tm-
provement Bonds outstanding are considercd de-
feased.

serve under a trust agreement with a financial insti-
tution. As of Junc 30, 1999, approximately $159
million in cconomic development bonds payable
from liguor profits were outstanding.

Additionally, taxable economic development bonds
in the amount of $2.5 million, issucd by the Treas-
urcr of State in connection with the Ohio Enterprise
Bond Program, were outstanding, as of June 30,
1999. Proceeds [rom this bond issuance in fiscal
year 1988 were placed in a reserve with trustce and
are pledged to support, in part, the payment of prin-
cipal and interest on other economic devclopment
bonds issued under this program.

During fiscal year 1999, $15.6 million of Ohio En-
terprise Bonds were issued under the authority of
Section 166.09, Ohio Revised Code, to provide pri-
vate entities with capital financing for economic de-
velopment projects. The Ohio Enterprise Bonds,
which arc reported as “no commitment” debt in
NOTL 16, are primarily secured by the property fi-
nanced, and payments by the borrowing entities are
used to retire the debt and to service intcrest pay-
ments.

In fiscal year 1998, the Treasurer of State issued $70
million in State Infrastructure Bank Bonds for the
Department of Transportation.  The bonds finance
construction costs of the Spring-Sandusky Highway
Project in Columbus. The State has pledged federal
highway receipls as the primary source of moneys
for meeting the principal and interest requirements
on the bonds,

Revenue bonds outstanding for the primary govern-
ment, as of June 30, 1999, are presented in the table
on the following page.
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Primary Government
Revenue Bonds

As of June 30,1999
{dolfars in thousands)
Fiscal Waturing
Year Interest Through Qutstanding
Description of Revenue Bond Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance
Enterprise:
Chio Building Authority/
Bureau of Workers' Compensation ..., 1954 3.3%-51% 2014 $191,864
[nternal Service:
Chio Building AUhOTitY..... oo 1986-97 4.5%-9.8% 2008 31815
General Long-Term Obligations:
Treasurer of State:
Economic Development ... 1988-97 6.4%-9.7% 2022 161,535
State Infrastructure Bank.................ccoiiv e 1998 4.3%-5.0% 2008 63,225
Total General Long-Term Cbligations ..........cccocvvivieei 224,760
Total Revenue Bonds ........ocoeeeeeeeeeee e $448,439

For the year ended June 30, 1999, NOTE 15 sum-
marizes changes in rcvenue bonds reported in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group,

Future bond service requirements for revenue bonds
of the primary government, as ol Fune 30, 1999, are

as follows (dollars in thousands):

Enterprise Fund

General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2000.......... 3 11,440 $ 14851 § 26,291
2001 ... 12,090 14,170 26,260
2002 ... 11,375 13,487 24,862
2003 ............. 12,045 12,819 24 864
2004 ... 12,745 12,105 24,850
Thereafter..... 165,065 105,431 270,456
Total cooeeei . $224 760 $172,863 $397623

[n October 1994, the Treasurer of State defeased
outstanding Serics 1989 Liguor Prolits Refunding
Bonds issucd for the Office of Financial [ncentives’
Direct Loan Program by placing the proceeds of the
Series 1996 Taxable Development Assistance Bonds
in an irrcvocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly,
the trust account’s assets and lLabilities for the de-
feased bonds arc not included in the State’s financial
statements. As of June 30, 1999, $22 million of the
Series 1989 bonds are considered defeased.

In December 1998, the Treasurer of State entered
into a forward purchase refunding agreement to ad-
vance refund approximately $102 million in Series
1996 Taxable Devclopment Assistance Bonds on
October 1, 2006. Under the terms of the bond pur-
chase agreement, the underwriter has agreed to pur-
chasc approximately $102 million in Series 1998
Taxable Development Assistance Refunding Bonds
and deliver to the escrow ageat on or before August
25, 2006 cash and/or dircet U.S. government obliga-
tions sufticient to provide for the redemption of the

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2000............. $ 7,000 $ 9209 $18,209
2001............. 8,000 8,915 16,915
2002............ 9,000 8,671 17,571
2003............. 10,000 8175 18,175
2004............. 11,000 7,734 18,734
Thereafter.... 149 255 41,318 190,573
194,255 83,922 278,177
Unamortized
Discount....... {2,391) — {2,391)
Total............ $191,8684  $83,922 §275,786
Internal Service Fund
Year Ending
June 38, Principal Interest Total
2000........... $ 3,039 $ 1,882 $ 4,821
2001............ 3,194 1,728 4,922
2002........... 3,359 1,565 4,924
2003, 3.531 1,384 4,925
2004............. 3,730 1,196 4,928
Thereafter.... 15,354 4,958 20,312
32,207 12,723 44,930
Unamortized
Discount....... {392) — {392)
Total............. $31,815 $12,723  $44,538
State of Chio
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refunded bonds on October 1, 2006. Bcecause the
State has not taken delivery of the proceeds from the
issuance of the Scrics 1998 Taxable Development
Assistance Refunding Bonds, as of June 30, 1999,
no obligation for the refunding bonds has been in-
cluded in the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group.

B. Component Units

Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA} bonds
and notes provide financing to local government
authorities (LGA) in the State of Ohio for the acqui-
sition, construction, maintenance, repair, and opera-
tion of water development projects and solid waste
projects, inciuding the construction of sewage and
related water treatment facilities. The principal and
interest requirements on OWDA obligations are
generally paid from investment earnings, [lederal
funds and/or repayments of loan principal and inter-
cst thereon [rom the LGAs.

A portion of OWDA’s outstanding bonds has been
issued for the Water Pollution Control Loan Pro-
gram, which provides low-cost financing to LGAs
for the construction of wastewater treatment facili-
ties. In the event pledged program revenues, which
consist of interest payments from the LGAs as reim-
burscment for construction costs, are not sufficient
to meet debt service requirements for the bonds, the
Gieneral Assembly may appropriate moncys for the
full replenishment of a bond reserve. As of Decem-
ber 31, 1998, approximately $555.8 million in bonds
were outstanding for this program.

Future bond service requirements for the Water Pol-
lution Control Loan Program revenue bonds, as of
December 31, 1098, arc as follows (dollars in thou-
sands):

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2000 $20730 § 29035 349,765
2001 . 19,910 28,087 47,997
2002 21,535 27,057 48,592
2003 ... 22,860 25,984 48,844
2004 ... 24270 24,750 49,020
Thereafter...... 444,695 171,845 616,640
554,000 308,858 860,858
Unamortized
Premium........ 1,839 — 1,839
Total ... $555,839  §306,858 5862657

Generally, bonds and notes issued by the state uni-
versitics and state community colleges are payable
trom the institutions’ available receipts, including
student fees, rental income, and gifts and donations,
as may be provided for in the respective bond pro-
ceedings, for the construction of residence and din-
ing halls and auxiliary facilities such as hospitals,
parking facilities, bookstlores, and athletic facilities.

Except as previously discussed with respect to
OWDA’s Water Pollution Control Loan Program
bonds, the State is not obligated in any manner [or
the debt of its component units.

Future bond service requirements for revenue bonds
and notes reported in the component unit funds, as
of June 30, 1999, are presented in the table below
and on the following page.

Component Units
Future Funding Requirements for Revenue Bonds

As of June 30, 1999
{doftars in thousands)

Chio Water Development Authority

{12/31/98) Ohio State University University of Cincinnati
Year Ending
December 31 or June 30, Principal  Interest Total Principal  Interest Tatal Principal Interast Total
$ 383810 % 78494 $ 162,304
95 670 74,380 170050  $112,057 5 8887 $120944 £ 56904 5 12,751 § 69655
90,045 70,225 160,270 20,173 8,223 28,396 11,476 10,852 22,328
89.815 66,127 155,942 20,945 7.533 28,478 12,116 10,280 22,406
88,385 51,685 150,580 16,083 6.925 23,018 12,806 9.683 22,489
— — -- 13,644 6,461 20,105 11,715 9,042 20,757
1,082,730 393074 1,481,804 105,340 41,272 146612 156,491 65767 222258
1,830,985 749,985 2,250,950 288,262 79,301 367,553 261,508 118,385 379,893
Unamortized
Discount.............. {27,115) — {27,115} — — — — — —
Total ... ... .. 51,503,850 5749985 $2253835 §288,252 579,301 5367553  $261,508 5118385 $379.883
(Continued}
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NOTE 11 REVENUE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued}

Component Units
Future Funding Requirements for Revenue Bonds (Continued)

As of June 30, 1999
{doffars in thousands)

University of Toledo

QOther Component Units

Total Component Units

Year Ending
December 31 or June 30,  Principal  Interest Total Principal  Interest Total Principal  Interest Total
1999 ... .. $ 83810 5 78494 5 182,304
2000.... ... ... 5 3871 S 4770 S5 8641 $ 25921 § 17073 3 42,934 294 423 117,861 412 284
2001 ... 3,983 4,643 8,626 29,645 15,818 45 463 155,322 109,761 265,083
2002 4,030 4,442 8,472 17,777 14,547 32324 144,683 102,939 247 622
2003, ... 4229 4232 8 461 153,083 13,714 31,797 140,108 96,238 238,345
2004 ... 4449 4,010 8,459 17,998 12,837 30,835 47 806 32,350 80,156
Thereafter......... 69,472 40,122 109,594 242 258 105,605 347 864 1,656,292 651,840 2,308,132
90,034 62,219 152,253 351,683 179,594 531,277 2522442 1189484 3,711,926
Unamortized
Discount.............. — — — (351} — (351}  (27.466) —  {27,456)
Total ..o $90,034 $62,219 $152253 $351,332 3179594 $530,926 52,494,676 51,185,484 $3,684,460

NOTE 12 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Special obligation bonds reported in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group have been
authorized and issued by the Ohio Building Author-
ily {(OBA), the Ohio Public Facilities Commission
(OPFC), and the Treasurer of State for the Depari-
ment of Education. OBA bonds finance the capital
cosls of categories of [acilitics including correctional
facilities and office buildings for state departments
and agencics and, in some cases, related facilities for
local governments. OPFC bonds finance the cost of
capital facilities for state-supported institutions of
higher education, mentdl hygiene and retardation,
and parks and recreation. Elementary and Secon-
dary Education Bonds, which the Treasurer of State
issues for the Department of Education, finance the
cost of capital facilities for local school districts.

The State reports OBA bonds issued for capital pro-
jects that beneflt statc agencies as special obligation
bonds, while OBA bonds issued to finance the costs

of local government facilitics are reported as reve-

nue honds {(See NOTE 11).

Pledges of lease rental payments from appropriations
made lo the General Fund and the Highway Safety
and Highway Operaling Special Revenue funds,
meneys held by (rustees pursuant to related trust
agreements, and other receipts, as required by the
respective bond documents, secure OBA, OPFC, and
the Elementary and Secondary Liducation bonds.

Special obligation bonds outstanding and bonds au-
thorized but unissued, as of Junc 30, 1999, arc pre-
sented in the table below.

For the year ended June 30, 1999, NOTE 15 summa-
rizes changes in special obligation bonds reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Accouni Group.

Primary Government
Special Obligation Bonds

As of June 30, 1999
{doflars in thousands)

Maturing

Fiscal Authorized
Years interest Through Qutstanding But
Organization Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance Unissued
Ohis Building Authority ............................. 1086-99 2.0%-9.8% 2018 52,264,079 $ 744,000
Ohio Public Facilities Commission............. 1992-99 4 4%-6.1%" 2013 2,543,320 219,746
Elementary and Secondary Education ...... 1996-99 3.7%-5.8% 2008 254,945 560,000
Total Special Chligation Bonds............. $5,062,344 $1,523,746

*Average Gffective Tnterest Rates

State of Chio
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'uture special obligation debt service requirements,
as of June 30, 1999, arc as follows (dollars in thou-
sands);

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2000 ... B 479,732 $ 283553 § 733,285
2001 .............. 468,682 227 651 596,333
2002 .............. 441,106 201,435 642 541
2003 ............. 429,009 179,872 608,971
2004 ... 425,435 158,498 583,933
Thereafter...... 2,818,280 659,951 3,478,241
Total e $5,062,344 $1,680,960 $6,743,304

During fiscal year 1999, the OBA had the following
bond refundings.

¢ In Scptember 1998, the OBA issued $43.7
million in special obligation bonds with an
average interest rate of 4.5 percent to re-
tire $41 million in bonds with an interest
rate of 6.3 percent.

e In February 1999, the OBA issued $70.8
million in special obligation bonds with an
average interest rate of 4.5 percent to re-
tire $67 million in bonds with an interest
rate of 6.3 percent,

o In May 1999, the OBA issued $18.9 mil-
lion in special obligation bonds with an
average interest rate of 4.6 percent to re-
tire $18 million in bonds with an interest
rate of 6.2 percent.

The nct proceeds of $138.5 million, plus an addi-
tional $148 thousand from existing debl service
moneys were placed with trustees to retire the bonds
at the call date, and consequently, the Tiability asso-
ciated with the refunded bonds has been removed

NOTE 13 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

As of June 30, 1999, approximately $16.8 million in
certificate of participation obligations were reported
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group. In fiscal year 1992, the Department of
Transportation issued $8.7 million of certificates of
participation obligations to finance the acquisition of
the Panhandle Rail Line Project. During fiscal year
1996, the Department also sold $10 million in cer-

from the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group.

The refunding transactions in September, February,
and May reduced the OBA’s total future debt service
payments by about $3.4 million, $6.2 million, and
$1.3 million, respectively, and resulted in an eco-
nomic gain {difference between the present values of
the debt scrvice payments on the old and new debt)
ol approximately $2.6 million, $4.5 million, and $.9
million, respectively.

In July 1998, the OPFC issued $21.3 million in spe-
cial obligation bonds to advance refund $26.4 mil-
lion of outstanding Mental Health Capital Facilities
Bonds, Series 1991A. The net proceeds of $21.6
miltion (after payment of $103,177 for underwriter’s
discount), plus an additional $6.4 million from exist-
ing debt service moneys, were used to purchase U.S,
government securities, which were placed in an ir-
revocable trust with an agent to provide for all future
debt service payments on the refunded principal.
The OPFC refunded the Mental Health Capital Fa-
cilities Bonds to reduce its debt service over the nexi
eight years by approximately $2.3 million to obtain
an economic gain of approximately $3.8 million.

As a result of this transaction, the advance refunded
bonds for the OPFC are considered defeased, and the
related liability has been removed from the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

[n prior years, the OBA and OPFC defeased certain
bond issues by placing the preceeds of new bonds in
irrevocable trusis to provide for all future debt ser-
vice payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the
various trust accounts’ asscts and liabilities for the
defeased bonds are not included in the State’s finan-
cial statements, As of June 30, 1999, $424.5 million
and $202.9 million of OBA and OPFC bonds out-
standing, respectively, arc considercd deteased.

tificates of participation obligations to finance State
assistance Lo the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority for a share of the Cleveland Waterfront
Transit Line Project’s construction cost, and $10.2
million in obligations to provide assistance to the
Rickenbacker Port Authority for facility improve-
ments al the Rickenbacker [nternational Airport in
Franklin and Pickaway countics.

State of Ohio
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NOTE 13 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION (Centinued)

Primary Government
Certificate of Participation Obligations

As of June 30, 1899
{doffars in thousands)

Fiscal WMaturing
Year Interest Through  Cutstanding
Project |ssued Rates Fiscal Year Balance

General Long-Term QObligations:
Depariment of Transportation:

Panhandle Rail Line Project ... 1992 6.0%-68.5% 2012 $ 6,805
Waterfront Transit Line Project ... 1996 4.6%-4.8% 2003 6,340
Rickenbacker Port Authority Improvements.................. 1996 8.1% 2007 3,530
Total Certificates of Participation Obligations................... $16,765

General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group

Under the certificate of participation financing ar-
rangements, the State is required to makc payments

. . . - _ Year Ending

]‘rom_ thcﬂTransportatlor} Certificate Reln_'emenl Debt June 30, Principal Interest Total

Scrvice Fund and the General Fund subject to bien-

ial appropriations that approximate the interest and 2000. ... §2175 $ 913 § 3088

Tial appropri at app : * 2001 ... 2,285 803 3,088

principal payments made by trustces to certificate 2002, 2.405 685 3,000

helders. 2003.......c.... 2,530 558 3,088
2004, .. 890 465 1,355

Obligations outstanding for the primary government Thereafter.. 6480 1.893 8,373
Total............ $18,765 $5,317 $22,082

under certificate of participation financing arrange-
ments, as of June 30, 1999, are presented in the table
above.

For the year ended June 30, 1999, NOTE 15 summa-
rizes changes in certificatc of participation obliga-
tions reported in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group.

As of June 30, 1999, the primary government’s fu-
ture commitments under the certificate of participa-
tion financing arrangements are as follows (dollars
in thousands):

For the State’s component units, approximately
$13.2 million in certificate of participation obliga-
tions arc reported in the College and University
[Funds. The obligations lnance building construe-
tion costs at the Ohio State University and Univer-
sity of Cincinnati,

As of June 30, 1999, future commilments under the
certificate of participation financing arrangements
for the State’s component units are detailed in the
table below.

Component Units
Future Funding Requirements
for Certificate of Participation Obligations
As of June 30, 1999
{doflars in thousands)

Chio State University University of Cincinnati Total Companent Units

Year Ending June 30, Principal  Interest Total Principal  Interest Total Principal  Interest Total
200000 o § 795 $ 501 % 1,295 5 250 $ 98 $ 348 $ 1,045 $ 599 § 1644
2001, .. 820 471 1,291 250 a7 337 1,070 558 1,628
2002 .., a70 437 1,307 250 75 325 1,120 512 1,632
2003, .. ... 25 401 1,326 250 63 313 1,175 464 1,639
2004 980 361 1,341 80 51 141 1,070 412 1,482
Thereafter......... 6,900 2,524 9,424 840 233 1,073 7.740 2,757 10,497

$11,280 54,895  $15985 $1,820 $607 $2,537 $13.220 $5302  $18522
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NOTE 14 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

As of June 30, 1999, other general long-term obliga-
tions of the State reported in the General Long-Term
Obligaticns Account Group are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Compensated Absences (A) ... $ 311,646
Lease Agreements (B.) ...........cccieiis 6,087
Judgments, Settlements,
and Claims (C.) v 63,830
Litigation Liabilities {C.) ... 82,373
Workers' Compensation Obligation (D.) 568,100
Total Other General
Long-Term Obligations................... $1,012,136

For the year ended June 30, 1999, NOTE 15 summa-
rizes the changes in other general long-term obliga-
tions reported in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group.

A. Compensated Absences

To lessen the impact of terminal leave pay on a
given State agency’s budget, an accrued leave [und-
ing program was instituted by law in 1982. State
agencies must contribute a percentage of their gross
payroll to a common pool of resources from which
terminal leave expenditures/expenses are paid. The
amount of cash equity with Treasvrer and related
interest receivable available to satis[y terminal pay
claims al Junc 30, 1999 was approximately $25.5
millicn, These and related assets arc reported as part
of the Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits
Agency Fund.

The compensated absence liability for the primary
government’s proprietary funds is reported net of the
funds’ portion of accrued leave funding and is in-
cluded in “Accrucd Liabilities.” The compensated
absence liability for the primary government’s gov-
ernmental funds is also reported net of the funds’
portion of the accrued leave funding and is reported
as part of the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group.

For the primary government, the gross compensated
absences liability, as of June 30, 1999, was $371.2
million, of which $36.6 million is allocable to the
proprietary funds and $334.6 million is allocable to
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
The net (after reduction of the $25.5 million) com-
pensated absence liability, as of June 30, 1999, was
$345.7 million, of which $34.1 million is reported in
the proprietary funds and $311.6 million is reported

in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group.

For the State’s component units, the compensated
absences liability, as of June 30, 1999, in the amount
of $192.5 million is included in “Accrued Liabili-
ties.”

B. Lease Agreements

The State’s primary government leases oftice build-
ings and office and computer equipment. Although
the lease terms vary, most leases are renewablc sub-
ject to bicnnial appropriations by the General As-
sembly. If the likelihood of the cxereise of a fiscal
funding clausc in the lease agreement is, in the man-
agement’s judgment, remote, then the lease is con-
sidered noncancelable for financial reporting pur-
poses and is reported as a fund expenditurc/expense
for operating leases or in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group or appropriate proprie-
tary fund type for capital leases.

Assets acquired through capital leasing are valued at
the lower of fair market value or the present value of
the future minimum lcase payments at the lease’s
inception. The noncurrent portion of capital lease
obligations for the proprietary fund typcs are re-
ported in those funds as long-term obligations. The
related assels and depreciation of these assets are
included in the proprietary funds. Capital lease ob-
ligations for the governmental fund types are re-
ported in the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group and the related assets are reported in
the General I'ixed Assets Account Group.

Operating leases (leases on assets not recorded in the
combined balance sheet) contain various renewal
optlions as well ag some purchase options.

Any cscalation clauses, sublease rentals, and contin-
gent rents are considered immaterial to the future
minimum lease payments and current rental cxpendi-
tures. Operating lease payments are recorded as ex-
penditures or expenses of the related funds when
paid or incurred.

The primary government’s total opcrating lease ex-
penditures/expenses tor fiscal ycar 1999 were ap-
proximately $89.4 million,

State of Chio
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NOTE 14 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

[Future minimum lease commitments for operating
leases and capital leases judged to be noncancelable,
as of June 30, 1999, are as [ollows (dollars in thou-
sands):

Primary Government

Operating
Year Ending June 30, Leases
$10,861
1,527
88
51
13
$12,550
Capital Leases
General
Year Ending Enterptise Long-Term
June 30, Funds Obligations Total
2000............ $1,569 52,866 $4,435
2001 .o, 1,266 2172 3,438
2002 ... 1,237 747 1,984
2003 ... — 445 446
2004 ... — 197 197
Thereafter. ... — 303 303
Total minimum
lease payments 4,072 6,731 10,803
Amaolint
representing
interest ........... {339} {844 (983}
Present value
of net minimum
lease payments $3,733 56,087 $9.820

As of June 30, 1999, the primary government had
the following fixed assets (net of accumulated de-
preciation for proprietary funds) under capital leases,
which are reported under “Accrued Liabilities” in
the proprictary {unds (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government

General
Enterprise Fixed
Fund Assets Total
Equipment . . 34,060 512,360 $16,420
Vehicles . . — 37 37
Total ... ... $4,080 $12,367 $16,457

Amortization cxpense for the proprietary [unds is
included with depreciation expense.

For the component units, capital lease obligations
arc included under the “Accrued Liabilities” ac-
count. lulure minimum lease commitments for
capital leases judged to be noncancclable and fixed
assets under capital leases, as of June 30, 1999, arc
presented in the table below.

C. Judgments, Settlements, and
Claims/Litigation Liabilitics

The Ohio Department of Fducation has been in-

volved with several school descgregation court cases

filed against the State by various local boards of

education. In cases when the judgment went against

Component Units
Future Funding Requirements for Capital Lease Obligations
and Fixed Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases

As of June 30, 1999
{doflars in thousands)

QOther Total
Ohio State University Miami Component Component

Year Ending June 30, University of Cinginnati University Units Units
§ 2,549 $ 7.029 § 2,554 $ 8,560 $ 20,692
2,883 7822 2,351 6,364 19,500
1,918 7924 2103 7,853 19,795
1,918 7.923 1,676 2,121 13,638
a2 7.921 1,222 1178 11,223
861 135,442 2,235 4,026 142 664
Total Minimum Lease Payments..... 11,111 174,181 12,141 30,102 227 515
Amount Representing Interest........ {1,445) {71,703} {1,8955) (3,811) {78,914)

Present Value of Net Minimum
Lease Payments........ .o $ 9,668 $102,458 $10,188 526,291 $148 801
Land oo 8 - s — g — $ 517 3 517
Buildings....coooee i, — 151,984 1,152 7284 150,430
Land Improvements ... ... ... — — — 5340 5,340
Equipment 12,673 —_ 14,802 34,267 61,742
Vehicles ... ... — — — 599 599
Total ... 312,673 5151,984 $15,954 $48,067 $5228,628
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NOTE 14 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued}

the State, the courts decided the State was responsi-
ble for sharing in all past and futurc desegregation
costs. As of June 30, 1999, the State was responsi-
ble for an estimated $33 million liability for past
desegregation costs, which is recorded in the Gen-
cral Long-Term Obligations Account Group until
such time that it becomes payable from the General
Fund.

Additionally, the State has accrued $21.4 million
and $9.5 million for potential rcfunds and other
claims, respectively.

For information on the Statc’s loss contingencics
arising from pending litigation, see NOTE 22.

D. Workers’ Compensation Obligation

The State’s primary government is permitted to pay
its workers’ compensation liability on a terminal-
funding (pay-as-you-go) basis. As a result, the
Workers” Compensation Enterprise Fund recognized
an unbilled premium receivable for the State’s por-
tion of its actuarially determined liability for com-
pensation, which is recorded in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group, in the amount of
$568.1 million.

E. Liabilities Payable from Restricted Asscts

Deferred Prize Awards

Deferred prize awards payable in installments over
future years totaling approximately $1.4 billion, as
of June 30, 1999, are recorded as “Liabilities Pay-
able from Restricted Assets” at present value based
upon interest rates the Treasurer of Statc provides
the Ohio Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund. ‘The
interest rates, ranging from 4.0 to 11.7 percent, rep-
resent the expected long-term rate of return on the
assets restricted for the payment of deferred prize
awards. Once established for a particular deferred
prize award, the intcrest rate does not fluctuate with
changes in the expected long-term rate of return.
The difference between the present value and gross
amount of the obligations is amortized into income
over the terms of the obligations using the interest
mcthod.

The present valuc of future payments of unpaid prize
awards, as of Junc 30, 1999, is as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Year Ending June 30,

2000 i $ 167,807
2001 .. 167,171
2002, 167,411
2003, 167,166
2004, .., 163,732
Thereafter...................c.... 1,440,801
2,273,788

Unamortized Discount........... (916,068)
Net Prize Liability ................. $1,357,720

Prizes can be claimed within six months of the draw-
ing date for on-ling games and within six months of
the closing date [or instant games. After the expira-
tion of the statutory six-month period, the prize li-
ability is reduced by the amount cstimated for un-
claimed prizes.

Tuition Benefits

The actuarial present value of future Luition benefits
payable [rom the Tuition Trust Authority Enterprise
Fund totaling $316.6 million, as of June 30, 1999,
arc recorded as “Liabilitics Payable from Restricted
Assets.” The valuation method reflects the present
value of estimated tuition benefits that will be paid
in future years and is adjusted for the effects of pro-
jected tuition increases al state universities and state
community colleges and termination of plan partici-
pation,

The following assumptions were used in the actuar-
ial determination of tuition benefits payable: 7.5 per-
cent rate of return, compounded annually, on the
investment of current and future assets; a projected
tuition inerease of 6.0 percent, compounded annu-
ally; and a 3.0 percent Consumer Price [ndex (CP1)
inflation rate. The assumed rate of projected luition
increase is a compounded average result. Tuition
rates are assumed to grow bascd on a formula re-
Nlecting CPI, student enrollment, and proportion to
total expenditurcs covered by tuition.

F. Reserve for Compensation

The Workers® Compensation Enterprise Fund pro-
vides benefils o employees for losses sustained
from job-related injury, disease, or death. The Bu-
reau has computed a reserve for compensation, as of
June 30, 1999, in the amount of $12.6 billion. The
reserve, which includes estimates for reported claims
and claims incurred but not reported, is included in
the “Benefits Payable” balance reported for the En-
terprise Fund. NOTE 23A. describes the changes in
this liability.

State of Ohio

54



7] STATE OF OHIO

~../ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 15 CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM QBLIGATIONS

Changes in general long-term obligations, for the
year ended June 30, 1999, are presented in the [ol-
lowing table.

Fiscal year 1999 additions to the general obligation
bonds and special obligation bonds do not include

premiums/{discounts) and bond issuance costs.
These costs came to approximately $4.2 million and
$8.9 million, respectively for each type of boud issu-
ance, and are netted with bond proceeds and refund-
ing bond proceeds reported on the governmental
fundy’ combined operating statement.

Primary Government
Changes in Other General Long-Term Obligations
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

(doffars in thousands)

General
Obligation

Revenue
Bonds Baonds
(NOTE 10} (NOTE 11)

Other
Special Certificates General
Obligation of Long-Term

Bonds Participation  Obligations
{(NOTE 12} (NOTE 13} (NOTE 14) Total

Balance, as of June 30, 1998 ................ $1,568,183 $236,805 $4,831558 $18615 $ 050,684 §7,605845
Additions:
Debt IS8UES....coi e 562,635 — 868,255 — — 1,430,890
Deep-Discount Accrefions ........cc....... 17,029 — 1,783 — —_ 18,812
Increase in Compensated Absences. — — — — 34,733 34,733
Increase in Lease Obligations ........... — — — — 2,257 2,257
Increase in Workers’
Compensation Obligation............... — — — — 30,400 30,400
Increase in Judgments,
Seftlements, and Claims ...c..coceeee — — — — 45 830 45,830
Increase in Litigation Liabilities.......... — — — — 32,473 32473
Total ADdItiONS ........oooovereeeeecerevee, 579 664 — 870,038 — 145,603 1,695,395
Deductions:
Debt Retirements, Terminations,
and Defeasances ..o, 185,445 12,045 639,252 1,850 — 838,582
Decrease in Lease Obligations.......... — — — —_ 10,205 10,205
Decrease in Judgments,
Settlements, and Claims............... — — —_ — 47,786 47 786
Decrease in Litigation Liabilities ........ — — — — 26,250 26,250
Total Deductions .......ooeeeeeen e 185,445 639,252 1,850 84,241 922,833
Balance, as of June 30, 1999, ............ $1,062.402 $224,760 $5,062, 344 $16,7656 $1,012,136 $8,278,407

NOTE 16 NO COMMITMENT DEBT

The Statc of Ohio by action of the General Assem-
bly created various financing authorities for the cx-
pressed purpose of making availabie fo non-profil
and, in some cases, for profit private entities lower
cost sources of capital financing for facilities and
projects found to be for a public purpose. Fees are
assessed to recover related processing and applica-
lion costs incurred.

The authorities” debt instruments represent Limited
obligations payable selcly from payments made by
the borrowing entities. Most of the bonds are se-
cured by the property financed. Upon repayment of
the bonds, ownership of acquired property transfers
to the entity served by the bond issuance. This debt

is not deemed Lo constitute debt of the State or
pledge of the faith and credit of the State. Accord-
ingly, these bonds arc not reflected in the accompa-
nying financial slatements.

As of June 30, 1999, revenue bonds and notes out-
standing that represcat “no commitment” debt for
the State are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Ouistanding
Organization Amount
Chio Department of Development:
Ohio Housing Finance Agency........ $1,877.237
Chig Enterprise Bond Program....... 104,300
Hospital Facilities Bonds................ 8,730
Total No Commitment Debt ... $2,080,267

State of Chio
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NOTE 17 ENTERPRISE FUNDS — SEGMENT INFORMATION

The primary government has six enterprise funds,
which provide for the tuition guarantee program,

Segment information, as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1999, is as follows {dollars in thou-

liquor salcs, lottery sales, workers’ compensation sands):

insurance services, underground state parking facihi-

ties, and government audit and management advi-

sory services.

Tuition Chio Underground  Office of Total
Trust Liguor Lottery Workers' Parking Auditor Enterprise
Authority Confrol  Commission Compensation  Garage of State Funds

Operating Revenues............. § 97,120 $397,018 $2272,018 § 3625174 $ 2,589 $33,040 § 6,426,959
Depreciation............cccoceeeneee. 114 2,730 13,831 13,722 421 2,039 32,657
Amortization of Premiums..... — — 99,204 393 — — 99,597
Operating Income (Lass)....... 25,888 104,435 628,322 1,149,396 720 31,000y 1,877,759
Operating Transfers-in.......... — — — — — 32,344 32,344
Operating Transfers-out........ — 108,840 696,303 5779 773 — 811,695
Net Income (Loss)................ 25868 (4,666} (68,807} 1,137,500 22 173 1,080,080
Fixed Asset Additions ........... 121 2,570 1,924 6,325 444 4,299 15,683
Fixed Asset Disposals........... 61 2,641 1,554 42,186 — 7,763 4,205
Net Working Capital............. 34,585 11,708 131,623 {73,624) 1,885 15,827 122,004
Increase (Decrease) in

Cash & Cash Equwalents . (320) {1,819 (25,167}  (1,228,362) 422 637  (1,254,809)
Total Assets .. e 427,545 50,172 2676837 23,938,562 10,874 30,380 27,134,379
Liabilities F’ayable from

Restricted Assets ., 316,600 — 2,361,762 — — — 2,678,362
Bonds and Other Non-

current Liabilities Payable

from Operating Revenues .. 80 2,004 4188 12,784 565 89 5643 12,796,569
Total Equity {Deficits)............ 110,487 12,399 192,522 5,238,687 9,242 17,925 5,581,272

NOTE 18 CHANGES IN CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

For the fiscal year ended Junc 30, 1999, changes in contributed capital reported in the primary government’s pro-

prietary funds arc as follows (dollars in thousands):

Enterprise
Fund Internal Service Fund
Total
Underground Internal Total
Parking Ohio Data  Ohio Penal  Support Service Proprietary
Garage Network Indusiries  Services Fund Funds
Contributed Capital Balance, July 1, 1998 ...... $ — $39,345 51,512 $5,257 $46.114 $46,114
Additions:
Capital Contributions from Other Funds
{reported as Residua! Equity Transfers-out):
Capital Projects Funds:
Mental Health/Menta! Retardation
Facilities Improvements..................e — — — 275 275 275
Administrative Services
Building Improvements ............ccocoeevevinnn 411 4720 — —_ 4720 5131
Adult Correctional Building Improvements... — — 250 — 250 250
Total Additions............ove e 411 4,720 250 275 5,245 5,656
Contributed Capital Balance, June 3G, 1899 ... $411 544,065 $1,762 $5,532 $51,359 $61,770
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NOTE 19 FUND EQUITY

A. Fund Dcfieits

The Local Infrastructure Improvements Bond Re-
tirement Debt Service Fund and the Adult Correc-
tional Building Improvements Capital Projects 'und
report a fund balance deficit of $18 thousand and
$14.9 million, respectively, as of June 30, 1999,

B. Other Reserves and Designations

Details on the "Reserved for Other” account re-
ported for the governmental and cxpendable trust
funds and the “Restricted Fund Balances™ account

ers” Compensation l'und in the amounts of $43.4
million, and $107.8 million, respectively.

Reserved retained carnings for the Internal Service
I'und, as of June 30, 1999, are provided for the fund-
ing of future health care benefils in the amount of
$204 thousand.

As of June 30, 1999, designations of the General
Fund's unreserved fund balance are as follows (dol-
lars in thousands):

reported for the component unit funds, as of June 30, Unreserved,
1999, arc presented in the table below. Designated
General Fund Fund Balance
Retained earnings for the Enterprise Fund, as of June glck?lmeSTﬁX IT%dq]cét_ion Erogram ----------- %22;?}3
. . . . ) N ublic School Building Program............. .
30, 1999, are reserved for the payment of deferred SchoolNet Plus Program.................... 85,400
lottery prizes from the Ohio Lottery Commission Budget Stabilization ........o..veeeeereeeeeeen 46,374
Fund and insurance claims payable from the Work- Interactive Video Learing Program....... 4,600
Total Designations ................... $755,259
Primary Government
Reserved for Other Fund Balance
As of June 30, 1999
{doltars in thousands)
Special Capital Expendable
General Revenue Projects Trust Total
IAVEITEOTIEE .o eeeeeeee e e e e eeeeeee e $ 1,000 $33,269 $ - 5 — $ 34,269
Other Assets — Prepaids ... e 6,453 177 — — 6,830
Human Services Stabilization........ccccoeevee e 100,000 — — — 100,000
Loan Commitments ... — 4,800 64,696 — 68,586
Health Care Benefits ... 6,446 4 447 3 — 10,896
Advances to Other FUnds......oooevvveeeeeeeee — — — 145,689 145,689
Department of Development's
Office of Mincrity Financial Incentives —
Mini-Loan Program Deposits ... 1,066 — — — 1,066
Total Reserved for Other Fund Balance........ $114 965 $42 793 564,699 $145 689 $368,146
Component Units
Restricted Fund Balance
As of June 30, 1998
{doffars in thousands)
University Other Total
Ohio State of Component  Component
University Cincinnati Units Units
General Operations {includes Auxiliary Enterprises) $ 185058 $ 81502 $ 85968 § 352526
Loan Programs ... 55,292 30414 104,444 180,150
Endowment and Quasi-Endowment Activities ..o, 998 033 1,078 G44 195,443 2,272 420
Plant Operations ... — 25,510 21,143 46,653
Annuity and Life INCOME ... — 5,423 — 5423
University Foundations ... — 52,179 1,991 54170
Grants and Contracts............oooevvec — — 2,697 2,697
Student QOrganizations and Support Services ... — — 167 167
Total Restricted Fund Balance ... %1,238,381 $1.273,972 $411,853  $2,924.206
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NOTE 19 FUND EQUITY (Continued)

As of June 30, 1999, designations of the component units funds” unreserved fund balance arc as follows.

Component Units

Designated Fund Balance

As of June 30, 1999

{dollars in thousands)

Other Total
Chio Miami Component Compenent
Designated for: University University Units Units
Educational and General Programs......c..cccoie $18,103 $32 877 $112,318 $163,298
Auxiliary Enterprises... .o 3,099 1,803 8,045 12,947
Hospital Operations ... — — 444 444
Loan Programs ... 1,064 849 1,402 3,315
Endowment and Quasi-Endowment Activities .............. 13,029 32 455 36,348 81,832
Plant Operations............ccooooveeemieeeeseeneeee e 48,630 2,148 453,384 97,162
Federal and State Grants ..o — — 2,631 2,631
Total Designated Balance ... $83,925 $70,132 $207.572 $361,629
NOTE 20 COMPONENT UNIT FUNDS
Condensed financial statemcnts for the component unit funds arc as follows.
Component Units
Condensed Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 1999
{doltars in thousards}
Ohio Water
Development University Other Total
Authority Chio State of Component Component
(12/31/98) University Cincinnati Units Units
Assets
Cash Equity with Treasurer ............... $ 305 $ — 3 — S — % 305
Cash and Cash Equivalents .............. 15,655 61,633 46,235 128,830 250,353
INVESEMENES oo rsiie e 934,053 1,580,851 597,571 947 720 4,170,195
Receivables ... 1,879,267 318,544 106,578 281,246 2,583,635
Due from Other Funds ..........c.....cceoee. 1,805 271,881 117,036 53,878 454,700
INVENTOMBS ...ooveee e — 20,203 4,377 18,676 43,258
Restricted Assets...........coceecen — 11,027 — 12,603 23,630
Fixed Assets (net of accumulated
depreciation, as applicable) ............. 370 2,690,619 1,224,439 4 873628 8,789,058
Other Assets....coccvvee e 19,073 26,703 706,031 37,438 789,245
TOta ASSELS . ceveo oo 32,850,628 $4.989,461 $2,902,267 $6,362,019  $17,104,375
Liabilities
Accounts Payable..........._......... $ 20525 $ 87,088 $ 29,081 $ 74,531 $ 211,233
Accrued Liabiliies.......ooe e, 6,619 201,964 203,702 296,470 708,755
Intergovernmental Payable............... — —_— — 441 441
Due to Other Funds ..........coceiveiieeee 1,805 271,881 117,036 63,878 454 700
Deferred Revenue .........ccooveeeeeeracenns — 70,149 10,540 103,413 184,102
Refund and Other Liabilities ............... 4,094 30,8580 66,129 42,879 144 092
Revenue Bonds and Notes................ 1,503,850 288,252 261,508 441,366 2,484 976
Certificates of Participation............... — 11,280 1,830 — 13,220
Total Liabilities........cc.oooo v 1,536,093 861,622 689,926 1,022,978 4,211,519
Fund Equity and Other Credits
Investment in General Fixed Assets ... — 2,384,591 925,921 4 444 675 7,755,187
Total Unreserved Retained Earnings.. 1,313,635 — — — 1,313,635
Total Fund Balance...........cooocoevviees — 1,643,248 1,286,420 894,366 3,824,034
Total Fund Equity and Other Credits .. 1,313,635 4,027 839 2,212,341 5,339,041 12,892 856
Total Liabilities, Fund Equity
and Other Credits .......cooevveee $2,860,628 $4.089,461 $2,802 267 $6,362,019 $17,104,375
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Colleges and Universities
Condensed Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999
{doftars in thousands)
Total
College and
Other University
Chio State University Colleges and Component
University of Cincinnati Universities Units
Total Revenues and Other Additions......................... $1,957,131 $ 610,016 $ 2,392,524 $ 4,959,671
Total Expenditures and Other Deductions........................ {2,018,250) (662,765) (3,145,562) (£,826,577)
Operating Transfers from Primary Government................ 418,486 186,342 960,082 1,564,910
Net Increase {(Decrease) for the Year.........ccccoein 357,367 133,593 207,044 698,004
Fund Balance and Other Credits, July 1 {as restated) ...... 3,670,472 2,078,748 5,131,997 10,881,217
Fund Balance and Other Credits, June 30 ... $4,027,838 $2,212,341 $11,579,221

$ 5,338,041

Colleges and Universities

Condensed Statement of Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes

For the Year Ended June 30, 1999

{dolfars in thousands)

Total REVENUES ..oeeeee e

Expenditures:

Educational and General .......................
Auxiliary Enterprises.........ocooo e
HOSPItalS ..o,

Total EXpendifures . .c..cocce v
Mandatory Transfers, Net.........ov
Total Expenditures and Mandatory Transfers............

Other Transfers and Additions (Deductions}:

Operating Transfers from Primary Government.............
Nonmandatory Transfers, Net ..............

Additions {Deductions).............

Total Other Transfers and Additions (Deductions)......

Net Ingrease in Fund Balances............cooeeeeeiieenn

Total
College and
Other University
Chio State University Colleges and Component
University of Cincinnati Universities Units
....................... $1,429,358 $438,570 $1,958,608 $3.824,536
....................... 1,147,059 533,764 2,305,951 3,886,774
....................... 132,953 52,849 369,688 555,400
....................... 482,200 — 139,439 621,639
1,762,212 586,613 2,815,078 5,163,903
34,278 18,551 45,804 99,633
1,796,490 605,164 2,861,882 5,263,636
414,127 184,203 956,405 1,564,735
....................... (17.387) {12,080} (63,215) (92,682)
10,796 (977) 12,188 22,007
407,538 171,146 505,378 1,484,060
$ 40404 $ 2,552 $ 2,104 $ 45080

NOTE 21 JOINT VENTURES AND RELATED ORGANIZATIONY

A. Joint Ventures

Great Lakes Protection Fund (GLPF)

The Great Lakes Protection Fund is an Illinois non-
profit organization that was formed to further ederal
and state commitments to the restoration and main-
tenance of the Great Lakes Basin’s ecosystem. The
governors of seven of the eight statcs that border on
the Great Lakes comprise the GLPF’s membership.
Under the GLPF’s articles of incorporation, each
state is required to make a financial contribution.

[ncome earned on the contributions provides grants
to projects that advance the goals of the Great Lakes
Toxic Substances Control Agreement and the bina-
tional Great Lakes Quality Agreement.

Each governor nominates two individuals 1o the
GLPT’s board of directors who serve staggered {wo-
year terms.  All budgetary and financial decisions
rest with the board except wheo restricted by the
GL.PF’s articles of incorporation.
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Annually, one-third of the GLPF’s nct carnings is
allocated and paid lo member states in propertion to
their respective cash contributions to the GLPF. The
allocation is based on the amount and period of time
the statcs’ contributions were invested. GLPEF earn-
ings distributions arc to be used by the states to fi-
nance projects that are compatible with the GLPF’s
objectives. Ohio has applied its distribution (ap-
proximately $1.1 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 1998} to the operations of its own protection
program, known as the [.ake Lrie Protection Pro-
gram, which is modeled aller the GLPF.

Required contributions and contributions received
from the states, which border the Great Lakes, as of
December 31, 1998 (the GLPF's year end), are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Contribution Contribution Contribution

Required Received  Percentage

Michigan.......... $25,000 $25,000 30.8%
Indiana* ........... 16,000 — —
Ningis .............. 15,000 15,000 18.4
Chio......cco. . 14,000 14,000 17.3
New York......... 12,000 12,000 14.8
Wisconsin........ 12,000 12,000 14.8
Minnesota........ 1,500 1,500 1.9
Pennsylvania ... 1,500 1,500 1.9

Total ........ $97,000 $81,000 100.0%

“The State of Indiana has not yet elected to join the
Great Lakes Protection Fund.

Summary financial information for the GLPF, for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, 15 as fol-
lows (dollars in thousands):

Cash and Investments. . ..........ccccoeevieennne $127.091
Other Assets .o 523

Total ASSEtS ..o $127 614
Total Liabilities ... $ 2,510

Total Fund BEqQuity .....ococoeere e 125,104
Total Lighilities and Fund Equity ...  $127,614

Total Revenues and Other Additions........... $ 18,213
Total Expenditures ............ccoooveee e (9,250
Net Increasa in Fund Equity.......... $ 8,963

In the event of the Fund’s dissolution, the State of
Ohio would receive a portion of the Fund’s asscts
equal to the lesser of the amount of such assets mul-
liptied by the ratio of its required contribution to the
required contributions of all member states, or the
amount of its required contribution.

Local Community and Technical Colleges

The State’s primary government has an ongoing, fi-
nancial responsibility for the funding of six local
community colleges and cight technical colleges.
With respect to the local community colleges, State
of Ohio officials appoint three members of cach col-
lege’s respective ninc-member board of {rustees;
county officials appoint the remaining six members.
The governing hoards of the technical colleges con-
sist of either seven or nine trustees, of whom State
officials appoint two and thrce members, respec-
tively; the remaining members are appointed by the
local school boards located in the respective techni-
cal college district.

The Ohio General Assembly appropriates moneys to
these institutions from the General Fund to subsidize
operations so that higher education can become
more financially accessible to Ohio residents. These
expenditures are included in the “Higher Education
Support™ expenditure function reported in the Gen-
eral Fund. The primary government also provides
financing for the construction of these institutions’
capital facilities by meeting the debt service re-
quirements for the Higher Education Facilities bonds
issued by the Ohio Public Facilities Commission
{OPFC) for these purposes. ‘T'he capital outlay ex-
penditurcs for the projects financed by the OPFC
bond issuances are included in the Iligher Education
[mprovements Capital Projects Fund.

State of Ohio
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During fisca! year 1999, expenditures reported in the
General Fund and the Higher Education Improve- primary government’s accountability for these or-
ments Capital Projects Fund in support of the local ganizalions does not extend beyond making the ap-
community and technical colleges are as follows pointments.

{dollars in thousands):

Chio Legal Assistance loundation. Ilowever, the

During fiscal year 1999,

Higher
Education  Capital
Support Qutlay Total

Local Community Colleges:
Cuyahoga Community College. § 40443 § 9,782 3 50,225

Jefferson Community College .. 3,731 191 3822
Lakeland Community College .. 13,827 788 14,615
Lorain County
Community College............... 15,709 294 16,003
Rio Grande
Community College................. 3,982 66 4,048
Sinclair Community College..... 34,080 4,851 38,931
Total Local
Community Colleges ............ 111,772 15672 127744
Technical Colleges:
Belmont Technical College....... 4726 339 5,065
Central Qhio
Technical College........... ... 4,100 490 4,550
Hocking Technical College....... 16,383 2,028 18,423
Lima Technical College............ 6,559 4,788 11,347
Marien Technical College......... 3,408 36 3,445
Muskingum Technical College.. 5,385 16 5,401
Morth Central
Technical College.. .............. 6,844 388 7,230
Stark State College
of Technology...... .. ......... 9,234 1,065 10,299
Total Technical Colleges ... 56,642 9,158 65,800
Total oo e $168,414  $25130 §193544

Information for obtaining complete financial state-
ments for cach of the primary government’s joint
ventures is available from the Ohio Office of Budget
and Management.

B. Related Organizations

Officials of the State’s primary government appoint
a voting majority of the governing boards of the
Ohio Turnpike Commission, the Petrolcum Under-
ground Storage Tank Release Compensation Board,
the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority, the
Higher Education Facility Commission, and the

The primary government distributed
$2.3 millioa in motor vehicle fuel excise
tax collections from the Special Reve-
nue Fund to the Ohio Turnpike Com-
mission,

Separate funds, cstablished for the Pe-
troleum Underground Storage Tank Re-
lease Compensation Board, the Ohio Air
Quality Development Autheority, and the
Higher Education Facility Commission,
were accounted for on the primary gov-
crnmeat’s Central Accounting System.
The primary purpose of the funds is to
sireamline payroll and other administra-
tive disbursement processing for these
organizations. The financial aclivitics
of the funds, which do not receive any
funding support [rom the primary gov-
ernment, have been included in the
Other Agency Fund.

The Public Delender’s Office compen-
saled the Ohio Tegal Assistance Foun-
dation approximately $594 thousand
from the Special Revenue Fund for ad-
ministrative services performed under
contract for the distribution of State
funding to nonprofit Icgal aid societies.
Also, during fiscal year 1999, the Ohio
Leual Assistance Foundation received
approximately $695 thousand in statc
assistance {rom the Special Revenue
Fund.

NOTE 22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Litigation

The State, its units, and employees arc partics to
numcrous legal proceedings, which normally occur
in governmental opcrations.

In instances when the unfavorable outcome of pend-
ing litigation has been assessed to be probable, li-
abilitics arc recorded in the [inancial statements.
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As of June 30, 1999, $62.4 million in liabilities ul-
timately payable from various governmental funds
has been recorded in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group for this purpose.

Litigation, similar 1o that in other states, has becn
pending in Ohio courts since 1991 questioning the
constitutionality of Ohio’s system of school funding.
The Ohio Supreme Court concluded in 1997 that
major aspects of the system (including basic opcrat-
ing assistance and state loans) were unconstitutional.
The Court ordered the State to provide for and tund
sufficiently a system complying with the Ohio Con-
stitution, staying its order to permit time for respon-
sive cotrective actions by the Ohio General Assem-
bly. The Court indicated that property taxes may
still play a role in, but “can no longer be the primary
means” of, school funding. The Court remanded the
casc to the trial court to hear evidence and render an
opinion on the constitutionality of the enacted legis-
lation which opinion could then be appealed directly
to the Ohio Supreme Court. A bearing in the trial
court was subscquently held on the constitutionality
of the legislation enacted since 1992 to enhance
school funding consistent with the Supremc Court
decision.

Tn February 1999, the trial court judge issued his
ruling. He concluded that the State continues o be
not in compliance with the constitutional require-
ments, and ordercd the State “lorthwith to provide
for and fund a system of funding public clementary
and sccondary education in compliance with the
Ohio Constitution and the [1997] directive of the
Ohio Supreme Court.” He also ordered the State
Board of Education and the State Superintendent of
Public Instruction to preparc and submit to the Gen-
eral Assembly proposals for compliance with the
trial court orders and the Supreme Court directive.

The State has appcaled the trial court’s decision to
the Supreme Courl. The Supreme Court has granted
the State’s request for a stay, pending appeal, of im-
plementation of the trial courl’s order. Oral argu-
ments took place before the Supreme Court on No-
vember 16, 1999. Tt is not possible at this time to
state what the results of any appeal might be, or,
should plaintiffs prevail on appeal, the elfect on the
State’s present school [unding system.

As part of its post-1991 responsc, the General As-
sembly has increased statc funding for public
schools. In addition, the General Assembly placed
two issues on the May 1998 primary baliot. The
voters approved neither, One was a constitutional
amendment authorizing additional state debt issuing
capacity, and the other was an increase in Ohio’s
salcs tax. That constitutional amendment would
have authorized general obligation debt to pay costs
of school facilities throughout Ohio and facilities at
state institutions of higher education. As discusscd
further in NOTE 23, on November 2, 1999, voters
approved a constitutional amendment to authorize
the use of State-backed general obligation bonds for
school facilities.

Other litigation pending in the Ohio Court of Claims
contests the Ohio Department of [Tuman Services’
prier Medicaid financial eligibility rules for married
couples when one spouse is living in a nursing [acil-
ity and the other spouse resides in the community.
The Department promulgated new eligibility rules
effective January 1, 1996. The Department appealed
an order of the federal court directing it to provide
notice to persons potentially affected by the former
rules from 1990 through 1995, and the Court of Ap-
peals ruled in favor of the Department; plaintiff’s
petition for certiorari was not granted by the U.S.
Supreme Court. As 1o the Court of Claims case, it is
not possible to state the period {beyond fiscal year
1999) during which necessary additional Medicaid
expenditurcs would have to be made. Plaintiffs have
estimated total additional Medicaid expenditures at
$600 millicn for the retreactive period and, based on
current law, it is estimated that the State’s share of
those additional expenditures would be approxi-
mately $240 million. In April 1999, the Court of
Claims decertified the action there as a class action;
plaintiffs have appealed the decertification.

All other legal proceedings are not, in the opinion of
management after consultation with the Attorney
General, likely to have a material adverse effect on
the financial position of the State’s fund types and
account groups.

B. Federal Awards

The State of Ohio receives significant awards from
the federal government in the form of grants and
entitlements, including certain non-cash programs
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(which arc not included in the General-Purpose Fi-
nancial Statements). Receipt of grants is generally
conditioned upon compliance with terms and condi-
tions of the grant agreements and applicable federal
regulations, including the expenditure of resources
for cligible purposcs. Substantially all grants are
subject to either the Federal Single Audit or to fi-
nancial compliance audits by the grantor agencies of
the federal government or their designees. Disal-
lowances and sanctions as a result of these audits
may become liabilities of the applicable funds or the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

As a result of the 1998 State of Ohio Single Audit
{completed in December 1998), approximately $3.1
million of federal cxpenditures is in question as not
being appropriate under the terms of the respective
grants. The amount of expenditurcs, which may be
ultimately disallowed by the grantor, cannot be de-
termined at this time, and consequently, no provision
for any liability or adjustments for this matter has
been recognized in the Stale’s [inancial statcments
tor the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.

C. Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 1999, the Department of Transporta-
lion had contractual commitments of approximately
$1.36 billion for highway construction projects.

NOTE 23 RISK FINANCING

A, Workers’ Compensation Benefits

The Ohic Workers’ Compensation System, which
the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and the Tn-
dusirial Commission administer, is the exclusive
provider of workers’ compensation insurance to pri-
vate and public emplovers in Ohic who are not self-
insured. The Workers’ Compensation Enterprisc
Fund provides benefits to employccs for losses sus-
tained fron work-related injuries or illnesses.

The “Benefits Payable™ account balance, as of June
30, 1999, in the amount of approximately $12.6 bil-
lion includes reserves for indemnity and medical
claims, including actuarial estimates for both re-
ported claims and claims incurred but nol reported.
The estimate for this liability is based on historical
claims experience data and assumptions and projec-
tions as to future events, including claims frequency,
severity, persistency, and inflationary trends for
medical claim reserves.

Funding for future expenditures is expected to be
provided from federal, primary government, general
obligation and revenue bonds, and local government
sources in the amounts of $572.1 million, $392.9
million, $357.9 million, and $39.1 million, respec-
tively.

As of June 30, 1999, non-highway construction
commilments for the primary government’s budg-
eted capital projects funds are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Capital Projects Fund

Arts Facilities Building Improvements ......... $ 18,793
Higher Education Improvements ............... 167,423
Mental Health/Mental Retardation Facilities
Improvements... 23,487
Parks and Recreatlon Improvements .......... 11,836
Local Infrastructure Improvements.............. 13
Administrative Services
Building Improvements ... 40,772
Youth Services Building Improvements ....... 25,056
Transportation Building Improvements........ 7,397
Adult Correctional Building Improvements .. 126,855
Highway Safety Building Improvements...... 4,359
Chio Parks and Natural Resources............. 31,198
Sporis Facilities Building......ocooooon, 36,682
TOHAL . cevveveeererereeeiere e e $493,711

The compensation adjustment cxpenscs liability,
which is included in “Refund and Other Liabilities™
in the amount of approximately $1.4 billion, 1s an
cstimate of futlure expenses to be incurred in the
seltlement of claims. The estimate [or this liability
1s based on projected claims-related expenses, esti-
mated costs of the Health Partnership Program, and
the reserve for compensation.

Management of the Ohio Bureav of Workers” Com-
pensation and the Industrial Commission of Ohio
believes that the reported liability estimales arc ade-
quate; however, the ultimate liabilities may vary
from amounts provided. The methods of making
such estimates and for establishing the resulting li-
abilities are reviewed and updated quarterly based
upon current circumstances.  Any  adjustments
resulting from changes in cstimates are recognized
in the current period.
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Benelils payable and the compensation adjustment
expenses liability are discounted at 6.25 percent in
fiscal year 1999 and 6.5 percent in fiscal year 1998.
The undiscounted reserves for the benefits and com-
pensation adjustment expenses totaled $30.2 billion,
as of June 30, 1999, and $33.6 billion, as of June 30,
1968, For additional information, refer to the
I'und’s separate audited {inancial report, for the fis-
cal year ended June 30, 1999.

Changes in the balance of benefits payable and the
compensation adjustment cxpenses liability [or the
Workers’ Compensation Program during the past
two fiscal years are presented in the table below.

B. Ohio Med Health Plan

Emplovees of the primary government have the op-
tion of participating in the Ohio Med Health Plan,
which is a fully self-insured health benefit plan es-
tablished July 1, 1989. Medical Mutual of Ohic ad-
ministers the plan under a claims administration con-
tract with the primary government.

When it is probable that a less has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably cstimated, the
primary government reports liabilities [or the gov-
ernmental and proprietary funds, Liabilities include
an amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported. The plan’s actuary calculates estimated
claims liabilitics based on prior claims data, em-
plovee enrollment figures, medical trends, and ex-
perience,

Governmental and proprietary funds pay a share of
the costs for claims settlement based on the number
of employees opting for plan participation and the
type of coverage selected by participants. The pay-
ments are reported in the Payroll Withholding and

Fringe Benefits Agency Iund until such time that
the primary government pays the accumulated re-
sources to Medical Mutual of Ohio for claims sel-
tlement,

For governmental funds, the primary government
recognizes claims as cxpenditures to the extent that
the amounts are payable with expendable available
financial resources; any remaining accrued unfunded
liabilitics are reported in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. For proprietary funds,
claims are recognized as expenses when incurred.

Conscquently, claims liabilities that exceed financial
resources accounted lor in the Payroll Withholding
and Fringe Benefits Agency Fund are reported as
unfunded liabilitics in the proprietary funds and in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

As of June 30, 1999, approximately $32.4 million in
assets was available in the Agency l'und. Changes in
the balance ot Ohio Med health claims liabilitics
during the past two fiscal years are as follows (dol-
lars in thousands):

Fiscal Year  Fiscal Year

1999 1998
Claims Liabilities,
asofJuly 1. $20,054 $18,732
Incurred Claims........ 84,916 73,311
Claims Payments..... (84,878} {71,989)
Claims Liabilities,
asof June 30 ........... $20,092 $20,054

As of June 30, 1999, resources on deposit in the
Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits Agency
Fund for the payment of claims exceeded the esti-
maled claims lability amount by $12.3 million,

Primary Government
Changes in Workers’ Compensation Benefits Payable
and Compensation Adjustment Expenses Liability
Last Two Fiscal Years
{doltars in miflions)

Benefits Payable and Compensation

Fiscal Year 1999  Fiscal Year 1998

Adjustment Expenses Liability, as of July 1...................... $14,517 514,464
Incurred Compensation

and Compensation Adjustment Benefits ... 1,110 1,628
Incurred Compensation

and Compensation Adjustment Benefit Payments ... {1,800) {1,908)
Change in Liability Due to Decrease in Discount Rate ........ 314 334
Benefits Payable and Compensation

Adjustment Expenses Liability, as of June 30........ $14,041 514,517
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thereby, resulting in a funding surplus. The surplus
is offset with a “Due to Other Funds” balance re-
ported in the Agency Fund with corresponding “Due
from Other Tunds™ balances reported in the paying
funds.

NOTE 24 TOBACCO SETTLEMENT

In November 1998, the Attorneys General of 46
states, five U.S. territorics, and the Disirict of Co-
lumbia signed the Master Settlement Agreement
(MSA) with the nation’s largest tobacco manutac-
turers. This signaled the end of litigation brought by
the Attorncys General against the manufaciurers in
1996 for state health care expenses attributed to
smoking-related claims. The remaining four slates
(Florida, Minncsota, Mississippi, and Texas) settled
separately.

According to the MSA, participating tobacco manu-
facturers are required to adhere to a variety of new
marketing and lobbying restrictions and provide
payments to the statcs in perpetuity.

Under the MSA, the basc payments to the states are
estimated to total $206 billion through 2025, Ohio’s
share of the base payments through 2025 is esli-
mated to be approximately $9.87 billion.

While Ohio’s sharc of the base payments will not
change over time, the amount of the annual payment
is subject to a number of adjustments including,
among others, an inflation adjustment and a volume
adjustment. Some of these adjustments (for exan-
ple, inflation) should contribute to an increase in the
payments and others (for cxample, volume) may
decrcasc the payments. But the net effect of these
adjustment factors on future payments is very uncer-
tain, which makes it difficult to speculate on how
different Ohio’s real payments will be from the cs-
timated payments.

NOTE 25 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

A. Dcbt Issuances

Subscquent to June 30, 1999 (December 31, 1998
for the Ohio Water Development Authority), the
State issued major debt as detailed in the table on the
following page.

C. Other Risk Finaneing Programs

The primary government has established programs
to advancc fund potential losses tor vehicular liabil-
ily and theft in office. The potential amount of loss
arising from these risks, howevcer, is not considered
malerial in relation to the State’s financial position.

In addition to a sharc of the base payments, Ohio
will receive an estimated $239.5 million from the
Strategic Contribution Fund. The Strategic Contri-
bution Fund was established to reward states that
played leadership roles in the tobacco litigation and
settlement negotiations. Allocations from the $8.6
billion fund are based on a state’s contribution to the
litigation and settlement with the tobacco compa-
nies. These payments are also subjeet o the adjust-
menl factors outlined in the MSA.

The total that Ohio is estimated to receive under the
MSA is $10.1 billion. The estimated amount of fu-
ture payments is as {ollows (dollars in thousands):

Payments
from
MSA Strategic Total

Year Ending Base Contribution Estimated

June 30, Payments Fund Payments
2000............ S 443,893 $ — § 443,893
2001, . 348,780 — 348,780
2002............ 418,783 _— 418,783
2003............ 422,746 — 422,746
2004........ 352,827 — 352,827
Thereafter ... 7,882,393 238,500 8,121,893
Total .......... 0,860,422 $239,500 $10,108,922

No payments under the settlement have been re-
ceived through June 30, 1999, and no balances re-
lated to the settlement have been included in the
State’s financial statements [or the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999,

On November 2, 1999, Chio voters approved a con-
stitutional amendment (Sections 2{n} and 17 of Arli-
cle VIIT} that authorizes the State to issue general
obligation bonds to finance building construction,
maintenance, and repairs at Ohio’s elementary and
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Debt Issuances

Subsequent to June 30, 1999
{doflars in thousands}

Net
Interest
Organization/Issue Date of Bond Cost Amount Type of Debt
Primary Governmenti:
Ohio Public Facilities Commission:
Higher Education Capital Facilities Bonds,
Series F1998A e July 27, 1999 4.8% $100,000 Special Obligation
Ohio Building Authority:
State Facilities Bonds —
Adult Correctional Building Fund Project,
1909 Series A i, July 1, 1999 5.3% 150,000 Special Obligation
Treasurer of State:
Infrastructure Improvement Bonds,
Series 1999 ... September 15, 1959 5.5% 120,000 General Chligation
Major New State Infrastructure Bonds,
Series 19991 e, August 1, 1999 4.7% 20,000 Revenue
140,000
Total Primary Government............ $390,000
Component Unils:
Ohio Water Development Authority Variable
Water Development Revenue Notes — Rate—4 05%
Series 1999-A. e May 1, 1999 Initial Rate $ 13,205 Revenue
University of Akron
General Receipis Bonds, Series 1999 August 31, 1988 5.7% 131,320 Revenue
Total Component Units.............. $144,625

secondary schools and at statc-supported and state-
assisted institutions of higher education.

The amendment allows the Ohio General Assembly
to issue bonds, without requiring a votc of the citi-
zenry, if the cost of paying debt service (principal
and interest) on all outstanding State bonds is cqual
to no more than five percent of the total State’s esti-
mated revenues for the General Revenue [und (a
budgetary fund) and from net lottery proceeds duc-
ing the fiscal year in which the obligations are to be
issued. The amendment permits net lottery procceds
to only be used to pay off bonds issued for projects
at primary and secondary schools. The amendmient
also allows the Ohio General Assembly o waive the
five percent debt limit on a particular issue or
amount of the obligations il three-fifths of the Ohio
House and Ohio Senate vote Lo do so.

B. Child Support Enforcement Tracking System

The U.S. Department ot Health and Human Services
imposed a tinancial penalty on the State for not hav-
ing the statewide computerized Child Support En-
forcement Tracking System operational by October
1, 1997. Ohio has agreed to accept an alternative
penalty, as provided by the Child Performance and
Incentive Act of 1998, Under the alternative pen-
alty, $14.6 million was considered payable, as of
June 30, 1999, and has been included in the inter-
governmental payable balance for the General Fund.

Since the system was not operational by Octlober 1,
1999, the State could face an additional federal pen-
alty of $18.7 million; however, 90 percent of this
amount would be refunded fo the State, if the system
becomes operational by October 1, 2000.
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C. Workers’ Compcnsation Enterprise Fund -——
Premium Dividend Credit

On October 21, 1999, the Bureau of Workers’ Com-
pensation (BWC) Qversight Commission approved a
one-time, 75 percent dividend credit for public em-
ployers. The dividend credit approximating $140
million will be reflected in public employers’ bills in
January 2000.

In addition, private cmployers will also receive a
three-percent average rale reduction totaling $40
million, as reflected in the bills they receive in De-
cember 1999, The BWC Oversight Comimission
approved this rate reduction in March 1999.

D. Deferred Prize Payments

Effective July 1, 1999, the Ohio Lottcry Commis-
sion allows annuity lottery prize winners the oplion
to cash out their remaining delerred prize payments
at a discounted lump-sum. This option expires De-
cember 31, 1999,

E. Tobacco Settlement

On November 12, 1999, the Master Settlement
Agreement, which is discussed in NOTE 24, reached
statc-speeific finality status when the State of Vir-
ginia formally approved its acceptance of the settle-
ment, Under the lerms of the agreement, tobacco
industry payments to the states could not begin until
at least 80 percent received court approval for their
settlements.

State of Ohio

67



REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION



L’“" STATE OF OHIO

o REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

JUNE 30, 1999

YEAR 2004 ISSUES

The Ycar 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in
electronic data-processing systems and other equip-
ment that may adversely affect operations in fiscal
year 1999 and beyond.

The following stages have been identified as neces-
sary to implement a Year 2000-compliant system.
Completion of these stages is not a guarantee that
systems or equipment will be Year 2000-compliant.

Awareness Stage — In this first stage, an or-
ganizalion cstablishes a budget and project
plan {for example, a timeline or chart noting
major tasks and due dates) for dealing with the
Year 2000 issue.

Assessment Stage — While in this stage, an
organization begins the actual process of iden-
tifying all of ifs systems (preparing an inven-
tory) and individual components of the sys-
tems. An organization may decide to review
all system components or, through a risk
analysis, identify only mission-critical systems
and eguipment — systems and equipment
critical to conducting operations.

Remediation Stage — During this stage, an
organization actually makes changes to sys-
tems and equipment. This stage decals primar-
ily with the technical issues of converting ex-
isting systems, or switching to compliant sys-
tems. Decisions are made on how to address

Year 2000 system or equipment issues, and
the required changes arc made.

Validation/Testing Stage — At this stage, an
organization validates and tests the changes
made during the conversion process. The de-
velopment of test data and test scripts, the
running of test scripts, and the review of test
results are crucial for this stage of the conver-
gion process to be successful. If the testing re-
sults show anomalies, the tested area needs to
be corrceted and re-tested.

Primary Government

To address Year 2000 issucs, the State of Ohio es-
tablished the Year 2000 Competency Center within
the Department of Administrative Services. The
Center’s mission is to lead, support, and facilitate
achievement of Year 2000 compliance throughount
the primary government to ensure uninterrupted ser-
vice to Ohio’s citizens.

As summarized in the table below, the Year 2000
Competency Center has identified the stages under
which the following computer systems critical to
conducting State operations fall, as of June 30, 1999.
The stage identified for each sysiem is the stage the
respective State agency was in the process ol com-
pleting at year-end. As of Juneg 30, 1999, all of the
primary government’s mission-crifical systems had
compleled the awareness and assessment stages.

Stage/System

Description of System

Remediation Stage
Board of Regents’

Grants and Scholarships System...............co... System processes and accounts for grants and scholarships to students.

Department of Administrative Services’

State Payroll System ... System processes and accounts for payroll transactions for State agencies.

Department of Rehabilitation and Correction’s

Prison Security System ..o, Systern provides security at the 31 State correctional facilities.

Validation/Testing Stage
Department of Administrative Services’

Fleet Management System.........ccoceiienis System tracks inventory, maintenance costs, and utilization of State-owned vehicles.

Department of Education's

School Finance System ... System tracks the distribufion of education program funds to school districts, county
boards, and institutions.

Department of Human Services’

Medicaid Management Information System....... System processes all Medicaid claims for payment to medical service providers.
Support Enforcement Tracking System.............. System accounts for the collection and distribution of child support payments in Ohio.

Treasurer of State’s

AS400-Warrant Processing — Redemptions....... System fracks daily settlements with warrant-clearance banks and provides journals for
recancilement of redeemed State warrants.
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The Year 2000 Competency Center identified the following systems as completing the validation/testing stage, as

of JTune 30, 1999,

System

Description of System

Auditor of State's Warrant-Writing System...... ...

Board of Regent's’ Funding System........... ...

Bureau of Employment Services"
Unemployment Compensation Tax System. ...

Unemployment Caompensation
Benefits Delivery System.................. ...

Department of Administrative Services’
Fixed Asset Management System.................

Department of Commerce's
Unclaimed Funds System.........oinns

Department of Health's
Women, Infants and Children {(WIC) System......

Department of Human Services’
Client Registry Information-Enhanced System...

Department of Public Safety’s:
Cashiers System........ccoviiiiiiiinrnrarene o

Law Enforcement Automated Data System.... ..
Tax Distribution System.........coeivinii,

Cepartment of Transportation’s:
Appropriations Accounting System ...................

Construction Management System ................
Current Billing System ..o

Office of Budget and Management's
Central Accounting System, ...

Department of Taxation's
Integrated Tax Administration System.... ...

Treasurer of State's
AS400-Cashiers Processing........cis .

System writes warrants for State payroll, tax refunds, Department of Human Services
payments, and payments to vendors for equipment, products, and services.

System allocates funding to State-assisted higher education institutions.
System accounts for employer unemployment tax assessments and payments.
System accounts for unemployment benefit payments

System supports the management of State-owned fixed assets with data input from State
agencies

System tracks the consolidation, safekeeping, and accounting of escheat property de-
rived from inactive accounts in financial instifutions and other companies.

System processes payments for WIC program participants.

System supports the issuing of food stamps and other public assistance benefits to eligi-
ble recipients in Chio.

System accounts for the collection of motor vehicle registration and operator license
fees.

System maintains data for remote access by law enfarcement officials.

System tracks the distribution of motar vehicle registration and license fees to Ohio’s
counties.

System tracks and controls costs, budget, and allocations for transportation projects.
System accounts for highway construction project progress and payments.

System generates the billing to the federal government for reimbursement of highway
canstruction costs.

System performs and tracks all State agency budget and accounting activities, such as,
appropriations, allotments, payments, payroll, and revenue.

System accounts for collections from various State taxes, including persanal income tax,
sales tax, and corporation franchise tax.

System accounts for State agency deposits in the State Treasury

In addition to the preceding disclosures on the mis- .
sion-critical systems, which the Year 2000 Compe-
tency Center identified, the following organizations
made disclosures on Year 2000 issues affecting their
mission-critical systems in their respective sepa-

rately issucd financial reports.

The Bureau of Workers®™ Compensation had
compleled the awareness, assessment, and
remediation stages for all of its mission-
critical systems. As of Junc 30, 1999, the Bu-
reau was cngaged in the validation/testing
stage [or its Actuarial System and Rates Sys-
tem. As of its fiscal year-end, the Burcau had

o As of June 30, 1999, the Ohio Building Au-
thority had completed the awareness, assess-
ment, remediation, and validation/testing
stages for its [Fundwarc operating softwarc,
which controls the Authority’s data files and
reporting capabilities.

completed the validationftesting stage for ils
Claims Management System, Payments Sys-
tem, Employer Policics and Premiums System,
and Tnvestments System.
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s As of June 30, 1999, the Ohio Lottery Com-
mission had completed the awareness, assess-
ment, remediation, and validation/testing
stages for its On-Linc Gaming System, [nstant
Ticket Gaming System, and Administrative
Support System.

¢ The State [lighway Patrol Retirement System
(SHPRS) had completed the awareness and
assessment stages for the systems listed below
by its fiscal year-end and was in the following
stages of work in process, as of December 31,
1998.

SHPRS System Stage
Benefit ......coooe i Remediation
Financial Reporting.............. Remediation
investment Reporting........... Validation/Testing

Validation/Testing

+ STAROhio, through the Office of the Treas-
urer of State, STAROio s nvestment adviser
and administrator, had completed an inventory
of STAROhio’s computer systems. The in-
ventory included Carnegie Capital Manage-
ment Company, STAROhic’s co administra-
tor, and Provident Bank, STAROhio’s custo-
dian and transfer agent. STAROhio reported
that the Treasurer’s portfolio management sys-
tem, Provident Bank’s transfer agency system,
the Federal Reserve Bank’'s wire system, and
Carnegie Capital’s portfolio and dividend ac-
counting system arc critical to conducting op-
erations.

Carnegie Capital Management Company con-
tracted with Analysts International to upgrade
its portlolic and dividend accounting syslem,
which was in the testing and validation stage,
as of June 30, 1999,

As of June 30, 1999, the primary government had
contractual commitments totaling approximately
$142.9 million to make compuler systems and other
equipment Year 2000-compliant.

The primary government’s Year 2000 rcmediation
efforts have been aimed primarily at ensuring unim-
peded and uninterrupted operation, including tax
collections, investment activities, and timely pay-
ment of its obligations. However, because of the vn-
precedented nature of the Year 2000 issues, the ef-
fects and the success of the primary government’s
remediation efforts cannot be fully determinable un-
til the Year 2000 arrives. Consequently, manage-
ment cannol assure that the primary government will
be Year 2000 ready, that its remediation cfforts will
be successtul in whole or in part, or that parties with
whom the primary government does business will be
Year 2000 ready.

Major Discretely Presented Component Units
The Ohio Water Development Authority disclosed
that it had completed the awareness and assessment
stages for ils mission-critical systems by its liscal
vear-end of December 31, 1998. The Authority also
reported it had $155 thousand committed, as of De-
cember 31, 1998, to make its computer systems Ycar
2000-compliant.

As of June 38, 1999, the Ohio State University dis-
closed that it had not completed the awareness stage
for two of its 64 mission-critical systems while the
remaining 62 systcms were in varying stages of
work in process beyond the awarcness stage. As of
June 30, 1999, the University reported no signiticant
contractual agreements with respect to making ils
computet systems Year 2000-compliant.

As of June 30, 1999, the Universily of Cincinnati
disclosed that it completed the awareness, assess-
ment, and remediation stages [or all of its mission-
critical systems, and it had contractual commitments
totaling $93 thousand to make ils compuier systems
Year 2000-compliant.

Additional information on Year 2000 issues for each
of the above discretely presented major component
units can be found in their respective separately is-
sued [inancial reports.

State of Chio

70



This page left blank intentionally.



SUPPLEMENTARY
SCHEDULES OF
EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS



STATE OF OHIO

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
SUMMARIZED BY STATE AGENCY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

STATE AGENCY

Ohio Department of Human SeIVICES. i $ 5,159,402,201
Ohio Bureau of EMPIOYMENt SCIVICES.....oiuiuiuiieieteietet ittt ettt b bbbttt ettt b besenenas 952,782,740
Ohio Department of BAUCAION. ... ottt et 823,643,870
Ohio Department Of TranSPOrTALION.......cvie ettt e bbb 704,553,406
Ohio Department of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilitics..........cociincncircnnornns 353,021,292
Ohio Environmental Protection AZRICY ..o irriree e ee st nesene e se e saeseseeneseeessesesseseenes 305,612,261
Ohio Department of Health........... 266,997,297
Ohio Department of Development 210,283,434
OChio Rehabilitation Services COmMISSION. oo s 175,657,086
Chio Department of Mertal Health. ... ... 152,154,911
Ohio Department 0f AZINE.. .. bbb bbbttt bbb ebenas 137,293,502
Chio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services.....c e 84,422,792
Chio Department of PUbLic Safefy........cccciiiiicciimme i 43,285,031
Ohio Office of Criminal Jstice SeTVICES. . iiir e e s e s ae st be e be e besnenas 29545834
Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Correction............omieceeeeeeeee e 22,083,794
Ohio Department of Natural ReSOUICES. ..ot eb bbb 20,466,636
ONI0 AGJULAIE GENMETAL 1.vev. ettt e b e 17,926,693
Ohio Office of Information, Learning and Technology..........cooo oo, 16,756,049
Ohio Altorney General’s OffiCe. ..o e 16,583,508
Ohio Department of Youth SErvICes..... ..o s e e 11,040,386
L T A= (T Lol £} 11 L= T USROS TRR PR 6,676,187
Ohio Department 0F AZFICUIUIE. ..o e 6,176,936
OO LIBrary BOAI..........ooveeie et 1ttt s s et bt bbb bbb e et 4 885,536
ONT0 BOUTH OF REZEIMS. ...ttt sttt e e ot snsesassne 3,603,563
Oh10 Court 0F CLAIIIS. ...ttt ettt ess s as s s 22 s2s et eaas e s ebesbestesaeabesaeessassabesssassanssesasesss s 2,720,500
Ohio Legal RIZIES SEIVICE....i ittt s st b et b ettt ettt et enerrr e rareas 2,227,595
Ohio Civil RIZHES COMILISSION. t1exrreiarirrierirtrieresisttet ettt st oaet s et se st s et sres s aesieren e e 2,112,352
Ohio Department of Administrative SErVICES......oovvveeeees i e 1,431,142
Ohio Department OF COMITIEIT  ...oveuiitri ittt s bt et ebee et 1,356,299
Public Utilities Commission 0F ORI0.....cmmmmrriiii e e se s aiees oo 1,204,983
(170 School TO1 the BIINd. ... vecceeee ettt e e e e te e aeeeeeaeeeteeaeeeaean 1,083,183
ORI0 ATES COUIEIL oot et eiisr s e asttsse s e e e taaeeeesreenrs e e ebetseneeeseeseeaeesseeseemessteesessaeseeesessaneean 915,500
ONI0 SO0 0T THE DBEL .. .eti ettt et eeee st et e e e see b e bbb 44440 m e s rmean e eenesbesaessanesresessans 627,495
Ohio Department OF IISUFANGCE. .. ... ivivverrreiicic e ercseeereeeeeae oo eseseese e e e e sesme e b in e seassaeaen 545,776
Ohio Judiciary/SUPTEIME COUTT......o i bbb ee e ne e e e renenenenenena 472,430
Ohio Department OF TAXALIOM. ..vviiiriseiii ittt aassss et ess e st st e es et st ss s e st atesanssnsesnanens 57,462
Ohio Public Defendet CommiSSior. . e ettt 4140t e st et e eestesteseessessessesteseessenes 24 550
Ohio Student Ald COMMUISSION. «.vvvvvivvrerrericnis ettt raer e s S 5,566
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 9,539,679,868
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BY STATE AGENCY AND FEDERAL PROGRAM

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

STATE AGENCY/FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TiTLE

Ohio Adjutant General

U.S. Department of Delenge
12.401 National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance (QO&M) Projects
Total U.S. Department of Defense

Total Ohio Adjuiant General,

Ohio Department of Adminijstrative Services

U.S. General Services Administration
39.003 Denation of Federal Surplus Personal Property.......coooovoinnseeeeeeeeeeni
Total 118, General Services Administrafion...............oonniiniionnn.

U.8. Department of Energy
81.041 State ENEIZY PrOZYAINL..........oooee et sttt sttt ee e n e
Total 11.8. Department of Energy

Total Ohio Department of Administrative Services

Ohio Department of Aging

U.8. Department of Agriculture
10.570 Nutrition Program for the Elderly {Commodities). ...
Total U.S. Department of Ariculture........ooc.ivececrccieeeccnmeneneneecmnennes

U.S. Department of Labor
17.235 Senior Community Service Employment PIOZIam. ..o ieeeieeeeieeecee e
Total U.S. Department of Labor.......c.ooovieeieieeeeiiieie v svsecans

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

93.041 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title VII, Chapter 3 --

Programs tor Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation..........
03.042 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title V11, Chapter 2 --

Long Term Care Ombudsman Services for Older Individuals....................
93.043 Spccial Programs for the Aging -- Title TIL, Part F -

Disease Prevention and Health Promaotion Services.......ocoveveieeciiececnenene,
93.044 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title LI, Part B ~

Grants for Supportive Service and Senior Centers........oocvvveeiereireeeerenin,
93.045 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title 111, Part C -- Nutrition Services..........
93.046 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title [11, Part [3 --

In-Home Services for Frail Older Individuals..............ccccc oo
93.048 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title [V --

Training, Research and Discrctionary Projects and Programs........c.co.......
93.5608 Low-Income Home Energy ASSISTANCE. ..oooieccicccnemineere e
93.778 Medical AsSiStance PIOSIAIL......ccceieeicres et se et ee e see b seenesrene e
93.779 Health Care Financing Research, Demonstrations and Evaluations..................
93.951 Demonstration Grants to States with Respect to Alzheimer's Discase...............

Total U.8. Department of Health and [uman Scrvices. .o veeeeeenns

Corporation for National and Community Service

94.003 State COMIMISEIONS. ivvereeeeiiiir e e
94.004 Learn and Serve America - School and Community Based Programs.............
94.006 ATNEIICOTPS oottt bbbt b
94.007 Planning and Program Development Grants

94.009 ‘Training and Technical Assistance..............

Total Corporation for National and Community Service

Totul Ohio Department of Aging T~

$ 17,926,693
$ 17,926,693
$ 17,926,693
$ 1388878
§  1.388,878
$ 42,264
3 72264
$ 1431142
§ 5019301
§ 5,019,301
$ 3,797,502
§ 3,797,507
$ 167,322
209,599

459,663
13,855,685
17,483,605
317,595

50,000

335,601
91,894,028
47242

88,779

§ 124909119
$ 360,733
157,124
2,801,788
85,967

161,968

§ 3.567,580
$ 137,293,502
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STATE AGENCY/FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

Ohio Department of Agriculture
U.5. Department of Agriculture

10 Cooperative Pest Recordkeeping COntract. ..o b 16,404
10.023 Plant and Animal Disease, Pest Control, and Animal Care........c.co.oovveenennn. 59,612
10.071 Federal-State Cooperation in Warchouse Examination Agreement................... 25,450
10.163 Market Protection and Promiotion. ... ....cocoeeeoiee e ccesesissss s sssaia s eas s 538373
10.475 Cooperative Agreements with Stales for Intrastate Meat and Poultry
IS PECEIOML. vttt ettt bbb bbbttt b et ee s 4,693,123
10.664 Cooperative Forestry Assistance.........oieeeieieieieeeeccccci e 189,446
10.769 Rural Development GIaNTS.......coocveevneriiscnene e ssenes i soons 125,000
Total U.8. Department of Agricullure. ... $ 5,647,408
1.5, Envirenmental Protection Agency
66.700 Consolidated Pesticide Enforcement Cooperative Agreemonts.....ovevvveeevnennns $ 403,157
Total U.S. Environmental Protection AZeney. ... $ 403,157
(1.8, Department of Health and Human Services
93 Food Sanitation Inspection COMEACT........cv oo 5 115371
93 Tissue Residue ComtTatl. ..ot eeee e e e s eens s ene s esss et ssasees 11,000
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Scrvices............con S 126,371
Total Ohio Department of Agriculture $ 6,176,936

Ohio Department of Aleohol and Drug Addiction Services
U.S. Department of Justice

16.579 Byme Formula Grant ... $ 8,380
16.727 Combating Underage DIinKing...oovovrierneieneseee s 257,174
Total U.S. Department of JUSHCC. ... 5 265,554
.S, Department ol Education
84.186 Safe and Drug-Tree Schools and Communitics - State Grants..........ooooees 3 4,265,033
Total U.S. Department of FAuCation.....cooveorvencrere e 3 4,265,033
U.S. Department of Health and 1Iuman Services
93 Tederal Administration Reimbursement Fund.......in.. $ 726,838
93 State AssessMEnt StUY ..o 4,374
93.102 Demonstration Grants for Residential Treatment for Women and Their
(03T 153 OO 305,868
93.196 Ceoperative Agreements for Drug Abuse Treatment Improvement Projects
I TAFZEE CIHEBS...ecveviee e 3,095,833
93.561 Job Opportunities and Basic Skills Training........ccoooeivrmevienreircn e 19,802
893778 Medical ASSiStANCE PROZIAM ..o e 11,927,991
93,939 Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse.........c.c......... 63,811,499
Total U.S. Department of 1lealth and Human Services....ooconvcccicicccnce. 8 79,892,205
Total Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services......... S 84,422,792

Ohio Arts Council
National Foundaticn on the Arts and the Humanities

45025 Promotion of the Arts -- Partnership Agreements.... i — S 915,500
Total National Foundation on the Arts and the Humamtles 3 915,500
Total Ohio Arts Council . 8 915,500
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STATE AGENCY/FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

Ohio Attorney General's Office

U.S. Department of Justice

16.541 Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention - Special Emphasis............oe.
16.554 National Criminal History Improvement Program. .. ... oo e
16.560 Justice Research, Development, and Evaluation Project Grants........ccc.ccoovines
16.575 Crime Victm ASSISTANCE......ccrvier et s
16.579 Byrne Formula Grant PrOZram. ... e sssesens
16.580 Edward Byme Memoerial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance
Discretionary Grants Programl........covvcmnniic s
16.588 Violence Against Women Formula Grants.......oce e,
16.598 State Identification Systems Grant Program ...,
Total U.S. Department of JUSEe. ..ot

U.S. Department of Health and Human Scrvices

93.775 State Medicaid Fraud Control Units, . ..ccooeeeecrimincc i
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services....ooni

Total Ohio Attorney General's Office. i,

Ohio Civil Rights Commission

361,039
776
171,583
12,187,246
1,656,750

2,259
2,021
172,728

14,554,402

2,026,106

7,020,106

16,583,508

U.5, Department of Tlousing and Urban Development

14.401 Fair Housing Assistance Program -- State and Local,......occooooineeiiinn
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development....................

U.5. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

236,590

736,500

1,875,762

1,875,762

2,112,352

2,720,500

7,720,500

30.602 Empleyment Discrimination -- State and Local Fair Employment Practices
ALenEy CONACTIS .....iviie ettt s
Total U.S. Equal Emplovment Opportunity Commission........ooveeeeenes
Total Ohio Civil Righis Commission......

Ohio Court of Claims

U.S. Department of Justice

16.576 Crime Vietim Compensation ... e
Total U.S. Department 0f JUstice. ..o
Total Ohio Court of Claims........cvninmi .

Ohio Depariment of Commerce

2,720,500

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

66.804 State Underground Storage Tanks Program. ...
66.805 Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Program...........ccceveiicvivvvnnns

Total U.S. Environmental Protection AZeacy.......cooevinnee e

Total Ohio Department of Commerce........cocrrminmiinnne.

Ohie Office of Criminal Justice Services

152,654
1,203,645

1,356,200

1,356,299

U.S, Department of Justice

16.523 Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grants..........cocceeieeeieeeciire e cvvnne
16.540 Tuvenile Justice and Delinquencey Prevention -- Allocation to States...............
16,548 Title V -- Delinquency Prevention Program ...
16.549 Part E -- Statc Challenge ACHVItIES. ... e e
16.550 State Justice Statistics Program for Statistical Analysis Centers.................
16.554 National Criminal History Improvement Program (NCHIP).....ooieiiiis
16.560 Justice Research, Development, and Evaluation Project Grants........oco.o.ovevevees
16.579 Byrne Formula Grant PTOZEAIIL ..ot s
16.588 Violence Against Women FOrmula Grants.....ccoiiinrrr i rerre s onnssssssssens
16.589 Rural Domestic Violence and Child Victimization Enforcement

Grant Program

3,068,683
2,715,897
767,356
15,185
37,449
1,091,106
74,992
14,920,367
5,384,260

277,548
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STATE AGENCY/FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services (Continued)

1.8, Department of Justice (Continued)

16.592 Local Law Enforcement Block Grants PrOZUAm.....ocooeveievenenereeeseeses s
16.593 Residential Substance Abuse Treatment {or State Prisoners..............o.
Total U.8. Department of JUSTICE.......ocov oo

Total Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services

Ohio Department of Development

U.8. Department of Commerce
11,307 Economic Adjustment AsSiStanCe. ..o
Total U.S. Department of COMMEICE. v

U.S. Department of 1{ousing and Urban Development

14.182 Lower Income Housing Assistance Program - Section § Moderate
RENADTHIALION. .....ovoccvv et
14.228 Community Development Block Grants/State's Program. ..o,
14.231 LEmergency Sholter Grants Prograim........oeee oo
14.235 Suppoertive Housing PrOZUAM. ..o
14,238 Shelter PIIS CAS......ccciiiiisiveveseccicnmninnrimnnn i s sessnsssssssens
14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program. ...
14.241 Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS. ..
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development........cvveeeenees
U.S. Department of Labor
17.249 Employment Services and Job Training -- Pilot and Demonstration Program..
Total U.8. Department of Labor. ...
Appalachian Regional Commission
23.011 Appalachian State Research, Technical Assistance, and Denionstration
g T [oT2 £ OO OO PO
Total Appalachian Regional Commission. .

U.S. Small Business Administration

59 Small Business Expert and Trade. ...
59.037 Small Business Development Center.....co e
Total U.S, Small Business Administration........ocooveeenneie s

U.S. Department of Energy

81 Petroleum Violation ESCrow FURASs. ..o oo,
81.039 National Energy Information Center........vmmmieeieieeeececcececcceeiei
81.041 State ERErEY PrOZEAM. ..c.coiiieieieiece s
81.042 Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons.........ooocovveceeiiiiinieenecn
81.086 Conservation Research and Development.........ccooiiiincsenne
81.105 National Industrial Competitiveness through Cnergy, Environment, and

L COMOIICS ..ottt vt ettt b s s ns e e
81.62X-S7236V Encrgy Bfficiency 10 Shools.... ..o

Total U.S. Department of ENergy.. oo
11.S. Department of Health and Human Services
93.568 Low-Income Home Encrgy ASSiSANCC. ..o
93.569 Community Services Block Grant........occoovevircncecneree e e
93.571 Community Services Block Grant Discreticnary Award -- Community

Food and NULTTLION. ...coieie e eseecaesaes e saesassassassassasssessascansanssasssesnes

Total 1.8, Department of Health and TIuman Serviees........ooonnvenn.

Total Ohio Department of Development

941,870
251,121

§ 29,545,834
§ 29,545,834
$ 81,373
§ 81,373
§ 54,081,467
54,069,003
2,962,429
201,723
135,100
7,749,251
910,893

§ 120,109,866
$ 52,160
5 52,160
$ 154,471
3 154,471
$ 4,000
3,077,699

§ 3,081,699
§ 5533471
2,145
1,584,057
6.413,302
3413
324,826
45,382

§ 13,906,596
$ 52,140,360
20,599,596
157,313

§ 72,807,069
$ 210,283,434
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BY STATE AGENCY AND FEDERAL PROGRAM

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

STATE AGENCY/FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

Ohio Department of Education

.S, Department of Agriculture

10.550 FOod DISIITBULION. ..oovecovevercrrcicmmmnnnnr s 24,830,750
10.553 School Breakfast Program.......cociice e v 27,935,431
10.555 National School Lunch Program. ... iveeomrienree s vsnesns o 140,934,094
10.556 Special Milk Program for Children..........ooccoviiccccs 941,364
10.558 Child and Adult Care Food Program.......cccccccveerirerirerererrs s sreecsesisrorene s 45,091,144
10,539 Summer Food Service Program for Children 4,324,759
10.560 State Administrative Expenses for Child NUtrition........oevececiiccienennnee 3,070,765
10.564 Nutrition Education and Training PrOgram......c e 127,421
10.574 Team NUTTHON GEAMES. .o vt riiriiieeesiesssessssseseesaesseseessessessessessessessesanseesseseas 22,025
Total U.S. Department of Agricultire. ..o 247.277.753
11.8. Department of Defense
12.630 Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and Engineering............... 32,385
Total U.8. Department of Defense......oeeiennnninn s 32,385
U.8. Department of Labor
17.24% Employment Services and Job Training -- Pilot and Demonstration Programs. 17,315,625
17.250 Tob Training Partnership ACk....o...ocoooiiiiiccc s e s en 3,061,355
Total U.8. Department of Labor.......ccoiiiie s 20,376,980
U.S. Appalachian Regional Commission
23.002 Appalachian Area Development.. ... 80,673
Total U.S. Appalachian Regienal Commission..........cwmn 80,673
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
64.124 All-Voelunteer Force Educational ASSISTANCE. ....vvveveieieeieeeeeiii e e e 513,507
Total U.S. Department of Veterans ATTairs.........ooviin 513,507
U.8. Department ol Cducation
84.002 Adult Education -- State Grant Program.....e e 11,959,234
84.010 Title T Grants to Local Educational AZencies.......ooovovinnncneieienicnccnnnns 207.852915
84.01 Migrant Education -- Basic State Grant Program........ooiiie, 2,094,175
84.027 Special Tducation - Grants 10 SEAES.......ccoeeverreremrrrrein s sisseseens 109,658,305
84.029 Special Education -- Personnel Development and Parent Training................... 95,888
84.048 Vocational Education -- Basic Grants t0 States. ..o oevveireerei e sasssrans 40,880,704
84.158 Secendary Cducation and Transitional Services for Youth with Disabilities..... 246,037
84.162 Tmmigrant BAUCAtion. ... csnirnneseensnasssninns OO 347,842
84.173 Special Education -- Preschool Grants.......coooeiincicccce, 10,971,139
84.185 Byrd Honors Scholarships... et 1,606,090
84.186 Salc and Drug-Free Schools and Communities -- State Granis........cccoceeeeeenns 16,604,974
34.194 Bilingual Education Support Services.......oo s s 43,195
84.196 Education for Homeless Children and Youth ... 1,063,547
84.206 Javits Gifted and Talented Students Education Grant Program.......cco.oonen. 186,887
84.213 Even Siart -- State BEducational Agencies.....cci 4,042,022
84.215 Fund for the Improvement of EAUcation. ..., 220,079
84.216 CAPIA]l EXPONSES...ccvireiriiiis i s e st s e 2,122,667
84.243 TeCh-Prep BaUCALON. ..c.cvcerre s et 4,284,723
$4.248 Demensiration Projects for the Integration of Vocational and Academic
LOATTINE. ....cooveviiitiesven sttt e s et ee st st r st r bt e r e s n e e n s 15,382
84.276 Goals 2000 -- State and Local Education Systemic limprovement Grants......... 21,290,107
84.281 Eisenhower Proftssional Development State Grants...........coovnnn. 11,694,826
84282 T SO0 ettt ettt b b s er e ebe ettt n 807,410
84,298 Innovative Education Program Strategies.......ooeeveeeeeee e seecreeesvesee e 11,980,753
84.314 Even Start -- Stalewide Family Literacy Progrant......cooooeeeenncnnecceeenns 41,967
State of Chio 78



STATE OF OHI0O
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STATE AGENCY/FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

Ohio Department of Education (Continued)

.S, Department of Education (Continued)

84.323 Special Education -- State Progranm Improvement Grants for Children
WIth DISABIILIES.....cveiee e cerritsrr e e e e e st et e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenaanaeens 280,539
84.332 Comprehensive School Reform Demonstration Program..............c.coooieieee 2,256,445
Total U.S. Department of EAUcation...........ccoevieeeieeeiicnneee e 552,747,852
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
93,283 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention -- [nvestigations and
Technical ASSISTANCC. ..ottt eesee et rs ittt te e aeseeee s e eeseeeeeeneeesseras 37,382
93.5601 Job Opportunities and Basic SKills TEATNINE. ....ovvveveeeeeeeeeecccnsoe e 87,683
93.575 Child Care and Development Block Grant........ooeeieeiiec e, 823,202
93.600 Head SEALT. ..ottt ettt a et et esereea 204,731
93.938 Cooperative Agreements to Support Comprehensive School Health
Programs to Prevent the Spread of HIV and Other Tmportant
Health Probloms. et tii it 629,787
Total U.S. Department of Ilealth and Human Serviccs. ..o cinnnnan. 1,782,785
Corporation for National and Community Service
94.004 Learn and Serve America - School and Community
BAsed PrOZIAMS...ocviirere i assesnsse b sae s st et se et saesssressanas 831,935
Total Corporation for National and Community Service..........ovovveerevaee.e. 831,935
Total Ohio Department of Education 823,643,870
Ohio Burcau of Employment Secrvices
U.S. Department of Labor
17.002 Labor TOree SLaliSLICS. ..veoe e ioiiiiisisi e e eis e s s e bbssb s s errenesseearnrenres 2,636,432
17.203 Labor Certification for Alien Workers.......ccoov oo 317.395
17.207 Employment ServiCe.....oooiii e 37,169,058
17.225 Unemployment INSUTANCE..........cccoieerecceeerermrere s eaesreneas 793,657,775
17.245 Trade Adjustment ASSISTANCE ~= WOIKES. oo v 6,106,480
17.246 Lmployment and Training Assistance -- Dislocated Workers......ooovvvvnn, 32,256,337
17.249 Employment Services and Job ‘I'raining -- Pilot and Demonstration Programs. 306,916
17.250 Job Training Partnership ACt........ccooer it 71,588,589
17.504 Consultation AZTEEIMETIS. ioiviii ettt bbb e 1,339,702
17.801 Disabled Veterans' Outreach Program {DVOPY ..o 3,683,800
17.802 Veteran's Employment Program. ... 5,000
17.804 Local Veterans' Employment Representalive Program... ..o ceve e 3,715,250
Total T.S. Department oF Labor.. ... 952,782,740
Total Ghio Bureau of Employment Services 952,782,740
Ohio Environmental Protection Agency
U.S. Department of Defense
12 FUSRAP Oversight: Diamond Magnesium Sile and Luckey
Berlyllim ST ..ot 34,510
12,113 State Memorandum of Agreement Program for the Reimbursement of
TECHRICAD SOIVICES.cviivetiiree ettt e ee e s e seeeneeeaen 479995
Total U.S. Department of Defense. ..o 514,509
U.S. Department of Transportation
20.703 Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and
Planning GramtS........ocueee oottt ettt sttt e en e e e e ees 210,015
Total U.S. Department of Transportalion.........co e 210,015
1.5, Environmental Protection Agency
66.454 Water Quality Management PLanming.........o..covoecivinicciicicicnnnn 403,053
66.438 Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds........ocoveiiiciecceeeee 281,721,491
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Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (Continued)

U.8. Environmental Protection Agency {Continued)

66.460 Nonpeint Source Implementation Grants........cooovcc s 2,142,862
66.461 Wetlands Protection -- Development Grants.........coocooccincinconnnnennee 82,390
66.463 National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Svstem Related State
Program GFANS. ..o viinnne s st ta st atsssaasssessssaass 8,068
66.407 Wastewater Operator Training Grant Program (Technical Assistance)............. 64,373
66.408 Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water Statc Revolving Funds.......oooee..e. 04,797
66.470 Hardship Grants Program for Rural Communities............ocooe i 33,168
66,500 Environmental Protection -- Consolidated Reseatch....ococoiennons 49,502
66.605 Performance Partnership Grants..........ccooveeiviieesicee e 12,783,178
60.606 Surveys, Studies, Investigations and Special Purpose Grants..........ocooeeein, 2,802,629
66,708 Pollution Prevention Grants PrOZram. ..o 75,414
66.802 Superfund State Site -~ Specific Cooperative Agreements........ooovvnenerenenenns 2,579,544
66.810 CEPP Technical Assistance Grants PrOgram..........ocooeeeeccinmnccenesranns 114,799
Total U.S, Environmental Protection AZency........oeeeeeeeee e ceceeveenns 302,955,008
U.S. Department of Energy
81 Cost RecoVery GIANTS......ooo i 713,997
81 Agreement i PrinCiple ... 1,218,072
‘Total U.S. Department of ERErgy.....cccooerrimiiiniiiiernieeeininineas 1,932,069
Total Ohio Environmental Protection AZency........cccsenmeneseceses 305,612,261
Ohio Department of Health
U.8. Department of Agriculture
10.557 Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and
L4331 15 [ =TT OO PO 168,002,593
10.559 Summer Food Service Program for Children.....ooo, 22,946
10.572 WIC Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (FMNP)Y.........cooooiiiiiiireee 228,922
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture.........oooooiicccceccceenae 168,254,461
U.5. Department of Housing and Urban Development
14.900 Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing.............c......... 1,111,899
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.................... 1,111,899
U.S. Department of Justice
16,579 Byrne Formula Grant Program. ... 38,023
Total U.8. Department of JUSTICE.......oco i s 38,023
U.5. Department of Labor
17.005 Compensation and Working Conditions Data...........cooiininicn 23,845
Total U.8. Departraent of Labor...... 23,845
U.S. Department of Transportation
20.600 State and Community Highway Safety.......cooii 14 870
Total U.S. Department of Transportation........c.oeeeiveeeieee e, 14,870
U.8. Environmental Protection Agency
06.032 State Indoor RAdOn GIaRES........oioe et et aeet e aeeaeeeans 369,119
66.701 Toxic Substances Compliance Monitoring Cooperative Agreements................ 12,8604
66.707 TSCA Title 1V State l.ead Grants -- Certification of Lead-Based
Paint Professionals..... ... e vt 306,234
Total U8, Environmental Protection ABLNCY. .. s 688217
U.S. Department of Encrgy
a1.104 Technology Development for Environniental Management.........cooooooveeeenennes 234,737
Total U. 8. Department 0f ENCrEY. ..o 234,737
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Ohio Department of Health (Continued)
U.8, Department of Education

84.181 Special Education -- Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities.............. $ 12,189 128

Total U.S. Depattment oF EQUCEHON. ..o, $ 12,189,128
U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission
87.801474435 Consumer Product Safety Commission.........covvnriceeiveirne e sses s $ 2,839

Total U.S. Consumer Product Safely Commission..........ooocovneccenee $ 2,839
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
93 Ryan White - Cleveland Funds............cooeccse s $ 200,000
93.A-98-07-384 Ohio Family Health Survey. ... 33,197
93.05-9805-0H-5002  Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment.........ooovvvervnrereeecveveecn e, 208,088
93.05-9905-0H-5002  Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment. ... ..o, 470,711
93.110 Matemal and Child Health Federal Consolidated Programs.....ocoveevicvevcvnnrnnn. 193,288
93.118 Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS) Activity.......cccooeiinccnen. 874,616
93.130 Primary Care Services -- Resource Coordination and Development

Primary Care OiCes. ..o 238,712
03.161 Health Program for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry.......oovvnnnnnn. 302,191
93.197 Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Projects -- State and

Community-Based Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention and

Surveillance of Blood Lead Levels in Children.......oooveeeeeeeeeeeeeee 1,124,194
93.217 Family PIanning -~ SeTVICES.....ccocciiecirie e e s 3,302,527
93.223-97-4192 TFDA X-Ray INSPECHION.....cccviieiriiice et e 13,815
93,223-99-4434 Mammography Quality Standard Act Tnspections...........ooiin 319,768
03.235 AbstiNENce BEAUCATION.........cviv ettt sttt eee s 1,723,874
93.262 Occupational Safety and Health Research Grants.........oooieiiiiiiiiin, 249,059
03.268 T O ZATION GTHIES 1o v v seeeeeee e e eeesasassessee s eae s s ea e 2 a4 e tetmteantteaneneantaasatann 5475158
93.283 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention -- Investigations and

TeChiICal ASSISTANCE .o viiiree s seree et citis e et st st starssa 2 sea s aatataasarsaaersns 1,224,621
93.556 Family Preservation and Support SErvices. ... ... eeriiees i eene 332,994
93.563 Child Support Enforcemenlo .. s 2,177
93.777 State Survey and Certification of Health Care Providers and Suppliers......... 15,811,308
93.778 Medical Assistance Progranl.........cccooeoeeecciiiimmnmnnnnnnne e sesese e seeseeens 103,237
93.913 Grants to States for Operation of Offices of Rural Health.....oooooovinn. 35,832
93.917 HIV Cate Formula GEANS.......coveeeeeeeece et ete st ste st see e see e seesaeseesreseeseesee s 8,227 691
93.919 Cooperative Agreements for State-Based Comprehensive Breast

and Cervical Cancer Early Detection Programs.........c.c.oocoeeiievcveeeencnnnn, 3,709,521
03.940 HIV Prevention Activities -- Health Department Based.............ccooveveeiinenn, 4,566,799
03.944 Human Immunodeficiency Virus(BIV)/Acquired Immunedeliciency

Virus Syndrome (ATDS) Survelllance ..o 445,741
93.965 Coal Migers Respiratory Impairment Treatment Clinics and Services.............. 352761
93.977 Preventive Health Services -- Sexually Transmitted Diseases

CONIOT GIAMLS. ..ot e e et e et e e e s eas e eeas s e eaassaaseaiens 1,990,140
93,978 Preventive Health Services -- Sexually Transmitted Diseases Roscarch,

Demonstrations, and Public Information and Education Grants................. 46,950
03.988 Cooperative Agreements for State-Bascd Diabetes Control

Programs and Evalvation Surveillance Systems.......oocoeeeieneveie e, 361,024
93.991 Preventative Health and Ilealth Scrvices Block Grant..........cooovvvvveviviveievinen, 8,756,772
93.994 Matemnal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States........cocoveeenee, 23 007,642

Total U.S. Department of ITealth and Human Services..........o.cocoveeinenn, 3 83,705,308
Social Security Administration
96.0600-98-32638 Vital Statistics -- Social Security COnlract. ..o, b 121,360
96.0600-98-32782 Vital Statistics -- Social Securily Enumeration Contract............cocoecveveeececnnne. 261,853
96.200-95-7236 Vital Statistics -- Health STatistics......coi e 332,799
96.200-98-7265 Vital Statistics -- National Death TReX ..o e 17,458

Total Social Security AdmMImISTation ..o ccenecciccie e $733,970

Total Ohio Department of Health $ 266,997,297
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Ohio Department of Human Services
U.S. Departiment of Agriculiure

10.551 FOOA SLAIMPS. c.cvivivititeieieieiece ettt ttetetesesesetese e e sttt raevetesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesnseen S 343,358,917
10.361 State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program........ccooveon... 69,143,207
10.568 Emergency Food Assistance {Administrative Costs).. o mmeeeeeeeeeeeeeene, 1,735,607

Total U.S. Department of Agriculturc.. ... icicsvccisiecnvicnvienennn. . 5 0614237731

11.5. Department of Health and Human Services

93.554 Emergency Protection Grants ~ Substance ADUSC......cvoivoivvoveeneeceeeeiennn $ 36,533
93,556 Family Preservation and Support Services 9.497.101
93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 329,666,870
03,503 Child Support EnfOTCemMEnt...........ccoeeiioriiininne e 124,381,197
03.566 Refugee and Entrant Assistance -- State Administered Programs........ccooee...... 2,726,534
03.570 Community Services Block Grant - Discretionary Awards........ccccoeeeeeeneneee. 61,799
93.575 Chitd Care and Development Block Grant... ettt Attt erbes 6,096,461
93.576 Refugee and Entrant Assistance -~ Drscretmnary Gran’ts ................................... 220,135
93.584 Refugee and Entrant Assistance -- Targeted ASSIStAnce.......oooeiirinvincinina, 358,208
93.585 Empowerment Z.0mE5 PO ..ot 1,224,554
93.390 Community-Based Family Resource and Support Grants.........ooeocoveecoreecnenen. 993,946
§3.595 Welfare Reform Research, Evaluations, and National Studies..........ccooeeiveennn. 52,753
93.596 Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care

and Development FURd.........ccooooieeeecceeeeeeeeeeee e 115,072,510
03.597 Grants to States for Access and Visitation Programs........cocoeeeeveeeveeeereeeveenne, 243,577
93.643 Children's Justice Grants 10 SIALES... .. voeeeereeiiiieeieeeeer et csiie s eaia s e te st e astasinaan 109,556
03.645 Child Welfare Services -- State Grants........ocooooererevnneie e 9,341,295
93.647 Social Services Research and Demonsiration............o.oo e ivveveeieece e 124,635
93.652 Adoption Opporilnilics........coiiiiiiec e 123,800
93.636 Temporary Child Care and Crisis NUISEIICS......cccooviiiiiccecnen s 172,620
93.658 TFoster Care - TILe LV-E. ... ettt e e 188,618,170
93.659 AdopLion ASHSANCE. ..ot e e e 79,865,051
93.667 Social Services BIock Grant.........ooooiiei et 67,836,890
93.669 Child Abuse and Neglect State Grants. ... v 1,189,163
93.671 Family Violence Prevention and Services/Grants for Battered Women's

Shelters -- Grants to States and Indian Tribes....ccccvvnrrie e, 2,532,967
93.672 Community-Based Prevention Program..........ocoovvviriniviici i 39,838
93.674 INAependent LiVIRZ. ..c.c.ce ettt vsvs st e 2,829,537
93,778 Medical AssiStance Program . ... st 3,601,746,860

Total U.S. Department of Ilealth and Human Services......ocoevvivieiee.. S 4,545,164,560

Total Ohio Department of Human Services $ 5,159,402,2M

Ohio Office of Information, Learning and Technology
U.S. Department of Education

84.318 Technology Literacy Challenge Tund Grants........ocoeeeeiveeiiiiiies s by 16,736,049
Total T.S. Department of EQUCation..........ccoeiiccccec e, 5 16,736,049
Taotal Ohio Office of Information, Learning and Technology............... $ 16,736,049

Ohio Department of Insurance
U.S. Department of Health and Human Serviees

03,779 Health Care Financing Research, Demonstrations and Evaluations.................. $ 545,776
Total U.S. Department of Human Services.......cco.ooovviviinien s $ 545,776
Total OQhio Department of Insurance $ 545,776

Ohio Judiciary/Supreme Court
U.S. Department of Justice

16.579 Byrne Formula Grant PrOgrami... ..ot e seeeseseseseseens 5 179,206
16,585 Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program........ccoccccoccmmrmeneenoneoronesni s 1,784
Total U.S. Department 0f JUSLHCE...ocovrree e £ 180,990
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Ohio Judiciary/Supreme Court (Continued)
U.S. Department of Transportation

20.600 State and Community Highway Safety ..o 8 14,398
Total U.S. Department of Transportation...........oeevevenenneincenesneneenn: S 13,398

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

93.586 State Court Improvement PIOZIaI. ... 8 281,042
Total U.8. Department of Human SCrvices.....ovo s 3 281,042
Total Ohio Judiciary/Supreme Court................ w3 472,430

Ohio Legal Rights Scrvice
U.S. Department of Education

84,161 Rehabililation Services - Client Assistance Prograim........coooeoveevennenncnne. $ 360,034

84.240 Program of Protection and Advocacy of Individual Rights........coin 343,189
Total U.S. Department of EJUCATION. ...vvvvriiieccceeeeeeeeee e ¥ 703,223

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

93.138 Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental Illness........................ $ 623,506

93.630 Developmental Disabilities Basic Support and Advocacy Gratts..................... 900,866
Total U8, Department of Health and Fluman Services..........oooevenne b 1,524,372
Total (rhio Legal Rights Scrvice $ 2,227,395

Ohio Library Board

National Foundation on the Arts and the Humanities

45310 State LiBrary PIOGIAML ...ceweeereeceetierirreiie ettt $ 4,101,117
Total National Foundation on the Arts and the Humanities..........oocoeeeeeee $ 4,101,117

U.8. Department of Cducaticn

84.034 Library Services Construction Act/Library Improvement. ... $ 369,483

84.035 Interlibrary Cooperation and Resource Sharifg.........oomimimmiom oo 127,595

84.154 Public Library Construction and Technology Enhancement.........oooooiie. 287,341
Total U.S. Department of EAUeation. ... $ 784,419
Total Ohio Library Board.. 9 4,885,536

Ohio Department of Mental Health
U.8. Depariment of Education

84.002 Adult Education -- State Grant PrOZIaNT. ... $ 95,794
84.034 Library Services Construction Act/Library [mprovement. ... 1,447
Total U.S. Department of EduCation.......cccccereceeeecincneeneeeeeninns 8 97,241
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
93.104 Comprehensive Community Mental Health Services for Children
with Serious Emotional DiStrbances. . e eeeeeeeeeeeveeseecereseeecaeaeas $ 244,200
93.150 Projects for Assistance in Transition for lHomelessness (PATH)..............oeen. 617,417
93.667 Social Services BIOCKk GLANt........cooo oo et nne 8,833,150
93.778 Medical ASSIStANCE PrOZIAM. ..ot v 132,764,878
93,958 Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services.......oooeceecccencns 9437451
Total U.S. Department of Tlealth and Human Serviecs...oni, T 151,897,096
Social Sceurity Administration
96.007 Social Security ~ Rescarch and Demonstration. ... $ 160,574
Total Social Security AdMInISIration... ... § 160,574
Total Ohio Department of Mental Health $ 152,154.911
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Ohio Department of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities

U.S. Department of Education

84.002 Aduit Education -- State Grant Program......cccoccviininneeeeeeeeeeeeceeeins $ 433,171
84.024 Early Education for Children with Disabilities 69,977
84.161 Rehabilitation Services -- Client Assistance Program 116,417
84.181 Special Education -- Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities.............. 148,459
Total U.8. Department of EQUCAON........ccocoovvoviviiviiiis e $ 768,024
U.8. Department of Health and Human Services
03.630 Developmental Disabilities Basic Support and Advocacy Granis.................... $ 3,006,236
93.656 Temporary Child Care and Crisis NUISETIES.....coovvreeee et 47,195
93.667 Social Bervices BIOoCK GIanl........coooi oot eee e eee e eee e 12,157,675
03.778 Medical ASSIStANCE PUOZIAITL. .co..evevee ettt ee e e ee et s e enaneens 336,635,005
Total U.S. Department ol Health and Human Services........oovvevveeeeveenn. $ 351,846,111
Corporation for National and Community Service
94.011 Foster Grandparent PrOZIAML........ccoo oo s $ 407,157
Total Corporation for National and Community Service........oooveveecnene. $ 407,157
Total Ohio Department of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities $ 353,021,292
Ohio Department of Natural Resources
U.S. Department of Agriculiure
10.064 Forestry InCentives PrOZIAIML........ccoooeveieeeere ettt aeanees $ 6,200
10.069 Congervative Reserve PIOZram.. ... 7.286
10.652 FOresiry RESEAITH .ov.ievetetetetcteteteteieies ettt ettt cb et s et bbb eeeeeea 6,500
10.664 Cooperative Forestry ASSISIANCE. ...oooviiiieveiteeeeet et aeaeeas 883,767
Tolal T1.5. Department of Agricultilee. ....eecceininnnniincrneeee s $ 905,753
U.S. Department of Commerce
11.407 Interjurisdictional Fisheries Act of 1986.........ccovoiiei i $ 5,630
11.419 Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards..........oooeeveecvcecceceenn, 713,750
11,420 Coastal Zone Management Estuarine Rescarch Reserves.............oivviiviinn 166,697
Total U.S. Department of COmMMOTCE....ooviveee et $ 886,077
U.S. Department of the Interior
15.250 Regulation of Sur{ace Coal Mining and Surface Effects of Underground
01T VT 1T 1T OO U 5 1,253,494
15.252 Abandoned Mine Land Reclamation {AMLR} Program..........ccococveiincee, 7,759,539
15.605 Sport Fish Restoration ... ersinss et ssses st 3,681,757
15,611 Wildlife RESTOAtION. ....cviiieeieeeeeeeeeee ettt et ee e e e e eeeeeeaeeae s 2,665,215
15.615 Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation Fund...............ocoeoiooveeeeeene. 22,375
15.808 U.S. Geological Survey -- Research and Data Acquisition...............covereee, 186,081
15916 Outdoor Recreation -- Acquisition, Development and Planning..............ccco...... 192,113
Total U.S. Department of the TRECHOT, ...o.oov oo 3 15,760,574
U.S. Department of Labor
17.600 Mine Health and Safely Granis.. ..o s $ 96,571
Total U.S. Department of Labor.........oceeeeeerrieeee et $ 96,571
U.S. Department of ‘I'ransportation
20.005 Boating Safety Financial AsSiSlance. ..., e $ 2,250,272
20219 Recreatienal Trails Program.. ..o 111,898
Total U.S. Department of Transportation..........c.voveviierrerosseeeseeeeseeaens $ 2,362,170
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Ohio Department of Natural Resources (Continued)
U.8. Environmental Protection Agency

66.433 State Underground Water Source Protection...........cocococnrncornnmnnnees $ 255117
66.460 Nonpeint Source Implementation Grants..........cconeens 175,683
66,461 Wetlands Protection - Development Grants..........ooooovvnioveeeeeeeeee e 24,691
Total U.S. Environmental Proleclion AZENCY ... ieeieeceiece e $ 455,491
Total Ohto Department of Natural Resources. S 20,466,636

Ohio Public Defender Commission
U.S. Department of Justice

16.579 Byrne Formula Grant Program..........ovvccovccciieccccccinnn e $ 24,550
Total U.S. Department of JUSHCC......ccvovr e $ 24,550
Total Ohio Public Defender Commission $ 24,550

Ohio Department of Public Safety
U.S. Department of Justice

16.554 National Criminal ITistory Improvement Program (NCITIP)........ccoooveiivviiiinnas $ 58,859
16.579 Byrne Formula Grant Program.............o s ssnen 15,475
Total U.S, Department 0f JUSHICE. ......cocoeeeeeieriirernisssnssssisssrnseses s e 5 74,334
.S, Department of Energy
§1.104 Technology Develepment [or Environmental Management.............coooooe. $ 74,179
Total U.S8. Department of JUSLICE......cccooireiviiiiinn e 5 74,179
U.S. Department of Transportation
20217 MOLOr CArtier SAFELY ..ot S 51,532
20218 National Motor Carrier Safety ... 2,398,154
20.600 State and Community Highway Safety.......c.cocmininre e 7,111,182
20.703 Interagency Hazardous Materials
Public Sector Training and Planning Grants..........ccicnee 21,246
Total U.S. Department of Transportation........... e oeceseeeeeee e anss 3 9,582,114
Federal Emergency Management Agency
83.011 Hazardous Malcrials Training Program for Implementation of the
Supeefund Amendment and Reauthorization Act (SARA) of 1986............ $ 14,824
83.505 Statc Disaster Preparedness Gran.........oovveeveineeee e seeesreseereseess s sanan 11,226
83.534 Emergency Management -- State and Local AsSISIance. ..o cccecececenne, 3,468,606
83.535 Mitigation ASSISTAILCE. ... .ccoriiiieeeeeee bbb 109,272
83.543 Individual and Family Grants..........cccoovireeriincece et ens 3,702,844
83.544 Public AsSIStance GIANTS......ccooov oo e se e s ees s 20,278,863
83.545 Disaster Housing PrOZIAM. ... e 1,865,824
83.548 Hazard Mitigation GUant.... ... e s 3,917,264
83.551 Project Impact - Building Disaster Resistant Communities.................coccceeenn. 20,552
‘Total Federal Emergency Management Agency.............ccvvvnererrnennn, $ 33,389,275
U.S. Department of Health and Human Setvices
93.127 Emergency Medical Services for Children..........oocooccncneccnc $ 135,750
93.14! EMS for Children Enhancement Grant. ..o iee e eeveenn e ens 9.379
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.......oooovcienne b 165,129

Total Ohio Department of Public Safety......cccoconiiiinvvrrssssssseseee. 9 43,285,031

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
U.S. Department of Transportation

20.218 National Motor Carrier Safety..... 5 900,246
20.700 PIPCINE SAfEEY. ..ottt ettt teea 250,042
Total 11.8. Department of Transportalion........c e $ 1,150,288
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Public Utilities Commission of Qhio (Continued)

U.S. Department of Cnergy

81.079 Regional Biomass Encrgy Programs .......occovevennneeninenis s $ 54,695
Total 11.S. Department of ENergy......cocoocciniiicin s $ 54,693
Total Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. S 1,204,983
Ohio Board of Regents
U.S. Department of Education
84.069 lLeveraging Educational Assistance Partnership........oooooin 8 1,012,607
84.243 Tech-Prep BAUCALION. ...ttt e s 109,586
84.281 Cisenhower Professional Development State Grants..........oooeeenennenencnenenens 2,021,513
Total U.S. Department of EQUCAtion. ....cceeeeeeeceeoniccccecceie $ 3,145,706
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
93.778 Medical ASSISTANCE PrOZram . ... .o s $ 519.857
Total U.S, Department of Health and [Tuman Services. ... $ 519,857
Tatal Ohio Board of Regents.........cinmnnnnn, $ 3,663,563
Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Correction
U.S. Department of Agricullure
10.553 School Breakfast PrOZIant.. ..o $ 694,915
1,555 National School Lunch PrOZUaITL. ... i atse oo 872,633
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture.. ..o & 1,567,570
U.S. Department of Justice
16.572 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program........ciie s b 571,304
16.575 Crime VICHIT ASSISTANCE ... ooeeeeeees ettt e eeeeeeesa e re e e e ee e e e e eeesaa g s seeenes 66,000
16.579 Byrne Formula Grant PROZIAM ... 1,197,586
16.3580 Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Entorcement Assistance
Discretionary Grants PrOZTANL........ooooiiii s 5,718
16.586 Vielent Offender Incarceration and Truth in Sentencing Incentive Granis........ 15,277,123
Total U.S. Department 0f JUSHCC. ..o e $ 17,117,751
U.S. Department of Education
84.002 Adult Education -- State Grant Program........o s S 690,085
84.013 Title I Program for Neglected and Delinquent Children.... 862,883
84.027 Special Cducation -- Grants 10 SIates.....e e 80,922
84.034 PUbBLC LIBFATY SEIrVICCS. .oiieiieieiei et ettt teaeees 12,002
84.048 Vocational Education — Basic Granfs 10 SIales.....ccoooveeee e 818,660
84.298 Innovative Education Program Strategies........ccovemnmieiiiccsiecccece, 9,691
84.331 Grants 1o States for Incarceraled Youth Oftenders...ooveeer e 624,250
Total U.S. Department of Edueation.........owemmmiiiieiiiic i 5 3,398,493
Tuotal Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Correction.................. $ 22,083,794
Ohio Rehabilitation Services Commission
U.S. Department of Lducation
84.126 Rehabilitation Services -- Vocational RehabilitationGrants to States............... $ 110234,383
34.128 Rehabilitation Services — Service Projects......ciiicnccc, 285,820
84.169 Independent Living -- State GIaNIS...ccocvereii e s sssss s o sesnanss 488,721
84.177 Rehabilitation Services -- Independent Living Services for Older
Individuals Who Are Blind........c..ooo 170,959
84.187 Supported Employment Services for Individuals with Severe Disabilities........ 1,721,529
Total 1.5, Department of EUcation...........coovv e § 112921412
U.5. Department of Health and Human Services
03,234 Traumatic Brain IULY. .o ettt et s aeaaes e $ 38,298
Total U.S. Department of Health and [Human Services........oe. b 38,298
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Ohio Rehabilitation Services Commission (Continued)

Social Security Administration
96 Program Inceme for Rehabilitating Recipients of Social Security Income
and Supplemental Security Income -- Vocational Rehabilitation

Program (CFDA# 841260 .. ...t
96.001 Social Secarity -- Disability INSUrANCE .vovooovrveecci i

Total Social Security AdMINISIrATION ...oeiee s

Total Ohio Rehabilitation Services Commission

Ohio School for the Blind

U.S. Department of Agriculture

10.553 School Breakfast Program
10.555 National School Lunch PrOBIaIN......cc..coeeeveer e beseeve e

Total U.S. Department 0f AGrculurc.....oooveicinciccncneneeceeeerees

U.S. Department of Education

84.027 Special Education - Grants 10 SIates. ..ocovveii i
84.186 Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities -- State Grants..........cocoieens
Total U.S. Department of EQUCation. ... ..o

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

93.778 Medical AgsIS1ance PEOZIANML. .......ciirreieeree ettt s s s ereees
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services......cooovveiccinnne

Total Ohio School fur the Blind

Ohio School for the Deaf

U.S. Department of Agriculiure

10.353 Schoo! Breakfast PrOZramml ...t
Total U.S. Department o AZricUULC. ... oo e

U.S. Department of Education

84.026 Media and Captioning Services for Individuals with Disabilities....................
84.027 Special Education -- Grants 10 STAES.......occvveer e s
84.186 Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities -- State Grants.......cccceerivinn
84276 Goals 2000 - State and Local Education Systemic Improvement Grant...........
84.298 Innovative Education Program Strategies. ..o
Total U.S. Department of EAucation...........coeneceeieeeens
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
93.778 Medical AsSiStance Prografl. ...
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.............co e
Total Ohio School for the Deaf.....

Ohio Student Aid Commission

UJ.8. Department of Education

84.032 Federal Faniily EAUeation Loans..........ocv v en e
Total U.S, Department of Educalion. ...

Total Ohio Student Aid Commission

Ohio Department of Taxation

U.S. Department of Transportation

201205 Highway Planning and Construction. ...
Total 1.8, Department of Transportalion. ...

Total Ohio Department of Taxation

$ 6,004,572
56,602,804

§ 62,697,376
$ 175,657,086
$ 8,880
12,313

3 21,193
$ 1,034,836
949

$ 1.035,785
$ 26,205
3 76,205
S 1,083,183
$ 50,957
3 50,957
$ 2,000
484,986

1,786

66,431

1018

5 $56,221
S 20,317
3 20,317
$ 627,495
$ 5,566
3 3,566
5 5,566
$ 57,462
3 57,462
$ 57,462
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Ohio Department of Transportation

U.S. Department of Transportation

20.106 Alrport Improvement PrOZTam.....c.c..coimreirrmerrisnsisisssssss s ssssesases 305,615
20.203 Highway Planuing and CONSTUCTION........civiseereseresnensessessessessesisnenis 664,539 624
20.308 Local Rail Freight ASSISLANCE. .........ccovveeceeeeeeeeceeeeeeee e 268,985
20,500 Tederal Transit -- Capital Improvement Grants.............ocooeeeececcccccen 14,713,153
20.505 Federal Transit -- Metropolitan Planning GIamiS.........cco i 2,563,016
20.507 Tederal Transit - FOrMULA GEANTS.......ocoioe oot e e s 304,646
20.509 Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized ATeas.......covevrierereeeerris e 6,088,252
20,513 Capital Assistance Program for Elderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities. 1,734,848
20.600 State and Community Highway Saltty....o e, 19,319
Total U.S. Department of Transportation. ... 691,137,458
Appalachian Reglonal Commission
23.003 Appalachian Development Highway SySteImM......cooiniineineennnsnen s 13,015,819
23.008 Appalachian Local Access Roads.......c.cooccinnciiicccccccc 400,128
Total Appalachian Regional Commission.........oooeeeeeeeneecseeeeninns 13,415,948
Total Ohio Department of Transportation 704,553,406
Ohio Veterans' Home
U.S. Department of Agriculture
10.550 Food Distribution 447
Total U.S. Department of Agrieulturc.....ooeeicineciceeie e 447
U.8. Department of Veterans Affairs
64.005 Grants to States for Construction of State Home Facilities.....ccoooveeovveneiiveen 45,437
64.014 Veterans State Domiciliary Care....o e 1,253,220
64.015 Veterans State Nursing Home Care. ... 5,377,083
Total U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs... 6,075,740
Total Ohio Veterans' Home 6,676,187
Ohio Department of Youth Services
U.8, Department of Agriculture
10.553 School BreaKast PIOZIAML .......ccoovee e e e s ee e 867,893
10,555 National School Lunch PrOgram. ... 1,240,837
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture.........ccoovineiinciii e 2,108,730
U.5. Department of Justice
16.540 Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention -- Allocation to States................ 102,210
16.575 Crime Victim ASSISIANCE . ..oovivieeeee e seee e vreisbass e e e teeeeseeseeeseeseesesessssssaseen e 63,071
16.57% Byrme Formula Grant PIOZram ... srsssnes 977,428
‘Total U.S. Department of JUSHICE.....eveveveeeeeecceeccceee 1,142,709
National Foundation on the Arts and the Humanities
45301 [nstitute of Museum and Library Services --
General Operating SUPPOIT.......covrorririimere et s 8,111
Total National TFoundation on the Arts and the Humanities............coooees 8111
U.8. Department of Education
84.013 Title [ Program for Negleeted and Delinquent Children..........oool 922,127
84.027 Special Fducation -- Granis 10 SALCS......ovwimmmmi s 122,304
84.048 Vocational Education -- Basic Grants t0 States.........c.ooov e 79,032
84.151 Chapter 2 <~ State BIock GIants.........ccoocoiiiiiemiiimiiimis 17,444
Total U.8, Department of Bducation.............ccioininr e 1,140,907
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Ohio Department of Youth Services (Continued)
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

93.638 Foster Care-Title TW-E..........ccooeeererisieeceeeeeeeesssrersresesessnssesessensasssnees $ 6,086,785
93.778 Medical AsSistance PrOgrant. .. ..o 318,531
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.....onireeen. $ 6,405316

Corporation for National and Community Service
94.006 ATNETICOIPS..oocveecvceevctetet ettt teteteteseset et ess et e e eeb st tstsetetesesesesesetesesesesesnsnsnsns $ 234,613
Total Corporation for National and Community Service........ocooovvecnnn. $ 234,613
Total Ohio Department of Youth Services . 5 11,040,386
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 9,539,679,868
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FEDERAL AGENCY

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services....o e $ 5423776242
U.S. Department of AZrCUIIIIE. ...oc.cvii et b e e e 1,045,091,304
LS. Departmient 0F LABOE .. .....c.oiiiiiieieie ittt bbb et et ase s s e 977,129,798
11.S. Departmont 0F EAUCRLOT. ..o v ettt et e nb s 710,493,059
U.S. Department of TRANSPOITALION........ccoieoiamir st csasisteear s sess e o se s se e seeae e s arabesaesesbesnas 704,324,775
U.S. Environmenial Proteclion ABBIICY ..o orir et s sisceseottcsensseesesenssessesenssesssens 305,858,832
.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development...........ccoviiiiieeeeeesesesesesesesesees 121,458,333
1.8, Department 0f JUSHCE...c.coi ettt et e ra e bbbt b bbb erenas 65,664,627
Social Security AMUNISIEATION. ..o ettt e r e 63,591,920
Federal Emergency Management AZETICY i rirererrersesesssssmnsssessssississsrossmeassssansisascseaasansssessesessass 33,389,275
11LS, Department 0f DefenSe. . oottt 18,473,587
ULS. Department 0f LAEIEY.....cciimiii et s 442 16,244,540
ULS, Department of the INEerior. ...t e 15,760,574
U.S. Appalachian Regional Commission.. ...t renns 13,651,092
1J.8. Department of Veterans ATTRITS. ... s 7,189,247
Corporation for National and Community Service.. ... 5,041,285
National Foundation on the Arts and the HUmANITIES. ......covveeee et ceeeeeeeecccriis s esbe s e rree e 5,024,728
U.S. Small Business AGIMUIISTIALION .........voceceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeestestessstessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessessenes 3,081,699
11.5. Equal Empleyment Opportunity COmIMISSION. ..o 1,875,762
U.S. General Services AdmUNISTATION. .....c.ooiiiee et e st se b sa b b s s be e beeans 1,388,878
U8, Department O COmMMICITE ...cvivivieiretete ettt ra et 808888800 4ttt et s e 967,430
U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission. ... e s 2,839
TOTAL EXPENDITURES... . eeeteraarR L ettt ettt taas st e saesE b § 9,539,679,868
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FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE
U.S. Department of Agriculture

10 Cooperative Pest Recordkeeping Contract... O 16,404
10.025 Plant and Animal Disease, Pest Control, and Ammal Can, ................................ 59,612
10.064 Forestry Incentives PrOgram. ...t e 6,200
10.069 Conservative RESErVe PIOSIAML..........c.cueueeeeereteterererieirentrerieeeietebessreeeesesesesenernns 7,286
10.071 Federal-State Cooperation in Warehouse Examination Agreement................... 25,450
10.163 Market Protection and Promotion. ... 538,373
10.475 Cooperative Agreements with States for Intrastate Meat and Poultry

THSPECHIOI. ... oottt ettt e s et 4,693,123
10.550 FOOd DISTIBULON. ..o er e e e e n e e 24,831,197
Food Stamp Cluster:
10.551 FOOA SEAMPS. c111ctereiererieietetete ettt ettt ettt ettt rerer e er e st arerererebebenas 543,358,917
10.561 State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program.........coeveee. 69,143,207

612,502,124
Child Nutrition Cluster:
10.553 School Breakiast Program. ... e 29,558,076
10.555 National School Lunch Program...............cceoiionnneinnneeeseseee e 143,059,899
10,536 Special Milk Program for CHIlAIen.......coooev v ssemsssrenens 941,364
10.559 Summer Food Service Program for Children........ooooeeiiinc s 4,347,705
177,907,044

10.557 Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children.... 168,002,593
10.558 Child and Adult Care Food Program...........ccocoeeiciiin i 45,091,144
10.560 State Administrative Expenses for Child Nutrition......................o. 3,070,765
10.564 Nutrition Education and Training Program. ... 127,421
10.568 Emergency Food Assistance (Administrative Cosls)........ooiin, 1,735,607
10.570 Nutrition Program (or the Elderly (Commodities)......oooov 5,019,301
10.572 WIC Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (FMNP)....cooooe, 228,922
10.574 Tearn NULEION GIaANTS. o ettt se sttt ste s n st rans st s sssrass e 22,025
10.652 FOresiry ReSEarchi......coovi i e e e 6,500
10.664 Cooperafive FOrcstry ASSISIANCE. ......vvvierieieiiice e 1,073,213
10.769 Rural Development Grants......v e eminssensascssessenerans 125,000

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 1.045,091,304
U.S. Department of Commerce
11.307 Economic Adjustment ASSISTaNCE. .. ... rvomeeeeeee e $ 81,373
11.407 Interjurisdictional Fisheries Act 0f 1986, 5,630
11.419 Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards.........cooooeien 713,750
11.420 Coastal Zone Management Estuarine Research Reserves. ..., 166,697

Total U.S. Department of Commerce $ 67,450
U.S. Department of Defense
12 FUSRAP Oversight: Diamond Magnesium Site and Luckey Beryllun Site $ 34,510
12.113 State Mcemorandum of Agreement Program for the Reimbursement of

TeChnICal SEIVICES......ci it s 479,999
12.401 National Guard Military Opcrations and Maintenance (Od&M) Projects........... 17,926,693
12.630 Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and Engincering............... 32,385

Tatal U.S. Department of Defense...innmimunmmmmsnne, 9 18,473,587
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
14.182 Lower [Income Housing Assistance Program -- Section 8 Moderate

RehabilItation. v vvieieeiiiiiiii it e e et b eenne e $ 54,081,467
14228 Community Development Block Grants/State's Program............ccoooiveienn. 54,069,003
14.231 Emergency Shelter Grants PrOQUaIIL..........cooeoeoereecrieene e srvsnsssssasssssace 2,962,429
14.235 Supportive Housing PrOgram. ... 201,723
14.238 SRElteT PIUS CarE v e et ene s 135,100
14,239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program.........ccooi e, 7,749,251
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FEDERAL AGENCY/CTDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (Continued}

14241 tlousing Opportuntties tor Persons with AIDS.... . 910,893
14.401 Fair Heusing Assistance Program -- State and Local... i, 236,590
14.900 Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control int Privately-Owoed Housing.......cvoe........... 1,111,899
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.. .. T 121458355
U.S8. Department of the Interior
15250 Regulation ol Surtace Coal Mining and Surface Etfects of Underground
0] MUIIIE. L. ottt bbb re sttt e e e e e 1,253,494
15.252 Abandoned Mine Land Reclamation {AMLR) Program........ccooooveveroeeeeeeceeene, 7,759,539
Fish and Wildlife Cluster:
15.605 Sport Fish Restoration...........cccoocoi i 3,681,757
15.611 WAITE ReSTOTAtION. ...ttt cne s 2,665,215
6,346,972
15.615 Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation Fund.....nn 22,375
15.808 U.S. Geological Survey -- Research and Data Acquisition.... 186,081
15916 Outdoor Recreation — Acquisition, Development and Planning............co......... 192,113
Total U.S. Department of the INterion. ... e, 3 15,760,374
U.S. Department of Justice
16,523 Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grants..........ocoooev e, 3,008,683
16.540 Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention -- Allocation to States............... 2,818,107
16.541 Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention -- Special Emphasis.....ooevene..o.., 361,039
16.548 Title V -- Delinquency Prevention Program.........cvvncn i 767,356
16.549 Part E -- State Challenge ACHVItIEs........cooov e 15,185
16.550 State Justice Statistics Program for Statistical Analysis Centers..........cccoeeveee. 37,449
16.554 National Criminal listory Improvement Program (NCHIP).........ccoeierennnn.. 1,150,741
16,560 Justice Research, Development, and Evalnation Project Grants..........o.ocoeeeee. 246,575
16.572 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program..........cccvviccimmmnn e, 571,304
16.575 Crime ViIcting ASSIStAIICE . ...cviieee e e ceees st e s e e et et eee s sessaaesaeas 12,316,317
16.576 Crime Vietim Compensation.......cocccieeeeneeeeeeeereii e seseseseseens 2,720,300
16.579 Byrne Formula Grant PrOZYaIIL. ... ...cccccceiecinierrenss e sseseseseeseseesesaesssssssssanseans 19,017,765
16.5R80 Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance
Discretionary Grants PrOgram.......vececeeceeeccccr e 7.977
16.585 Drug Court Discretionary Grant Prograil.......coeveeeecerecereseeeeeeeeee e 1,784
16.586 Violent Offender Incarceration and Truth in Sentencing Incentive Grants........ 15,277,123
16.588 Violence Against Women Formula Grants.........ccoooiiiin e, 5,386,281
16.589 Rural Domestic Violence and Child Victimization Enforcement
GIAnt PrOZUaIL. .o e ae st bt b e 277.548
16.592 Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program.......cc.oooooviiii e 941,870
16.593 Residential Substance Abuse T'reatment for State Prisoners.......coovvveeevieeeenne 251,121
16,598 State [dentification Systems Grant Programl.........cooceevenciiieieinneeeeeeeeeeee. 172,728
16.727 Combating Underage Drinking.....covvvccincecciecineesecce e 257174
Total 1.8, Department of Justice 63,604,627
U.S. Department of Labor
T2 LabOr FOTCe StatISTICS. ..c.eceeeeeee e eeeeeeeeee e e e e e e s s e e e e een e 2,636,432
17.005 Compensation and Working Conditions Dala............cconvin e, 23,845
17.203 Labor Certification for Alien Workers......ccovii e ecasrse s 317,395
Employment Services Cluster:
17.207 Employment SEIVICE. ......coiieeeieectcicieie ettt s vt seet st seseseseeas 37,169,058
17.801 Disabled Veterans' Qutreach Program (DVOP).......oooieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeer e 3,683,806
17.804 Local Veterans' Employment Representative PrOZram...........cove v eersireeeeens 3,715,250
44,568,114
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
BY FEDERAL AGENCY AND FEDERAL PROGRAM

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Department of Labor (Continued)

V7225 Unemployment Insarance............... S ST
17.235 Senior Community Service Emplovment Program............oovvminnnnnnnn.,
17.245 Trade Adjustment Assistance -- WOrkers...... ..o
JTPA Cluster.

17.246 Employment and Training Assistance -- Dislocated Workers..............
17.250 Job Training Partnership AC. ...
17.249 Employment Services and Job Training -- Pilot and Demonstration Programs.
17.504 Consultation AZIERIMIETIES. ..c..cceveivee e cererrre et saenas
17.600 Mine Health and Safety Grants........c...coeoorreeenniic e
17.802 Veterans' Employment Progral. ... ccoevevneeneeee e

Total U.S. Department of Labor

U.S. Department of Transportation

20.003 Boating Satety Fmancial ASSIStRICE. ..o
20.106 Alrport Improvement PEOZIAM.. ..o s
20.205 Highway Planning and COnstruction...........coevrnneenncnc e e,
20.217 MoLor Carrier SAfety ... e
20218 National Motor Carrier Safefy ..o
20219 Recreational Trails Program ...
20.308 Local Rail Freight ASSISUANCE........c.ceeeivre v eereeeciirie et saeneas
Federal Transit Cluster:
20.500 Federal Transit -- Capital Improvemeny Grants...........ccoereeenerreenerreiene e
20.507 Federal Transit -- Formula Grants.........o e,
20.505 Federal Transit -- Metropolitan Planning Grants............oinnn
20.509 Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized Areas .
20.513 Capital Assistance Program for Elderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities,
20.600 Stalc and Community Highway Safety......cccooi v
20.700 Pipelime Saftty. oo
20.703 Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and

Planting Grant8......cocoiviiiiiii s

Total .8, Department of Transportation

U.S. Appalachian Regiona! Commission

23.002 Appalachian Area Development....... e
23.003 Appalachian Development TTighway System.......oooeecce
23.008 Appalachian Local Access Roads.........oemmmeiiiiciiicccceceeceeeieinas
23.011 Appalachian State Research, Technical Assistance, and Demounstration
PO EEES vttt ettt sttt n e s et s
Total U.S, Appalachian Regional Commission.........ovinininn,
U.8, Equal Employment QOpportunity Commission
30.002 Employment Discrimination -- State and Local Fair Employment Practices
AZeNCY CONEACTTS ... ve e ccrstccine e e e st e te e e e e eeeee e eee e e eenes
Total U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission........uuemanss

U.S. General Services Administration

36.003 Donation of Federal Surplus Personal Property......
Total U.S, General Services Administration.......

793,657,775
3,797,502
6,106,430

32,256,337
74,649,944
106,906,281

17,674,701
1,339,702

96,571

5,000

$ E::BIZEB:EE

3 2,250,272
305,615
664,597,086
31,532
3,298,400
111,868

268,985

14,713,153
304,646
15,017,799

2,563,016
6,688,252
1,734,848
7,155,769

250,042

231,261

5 80,673
13,015,819
400,129

154,471
5 13,651,092

3 1,875,762
$ 1,875,762

$ 1,388,878
§ 1,583,378
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FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

National Foundation on the Aris and the Humanities

450235 Promotion of the Arts -- Partnership Agreements...... . $ 915,500
45.301 Institute of Museum and Library Services — General Operating Support.......... 8111
45310 State Library PrOgrani. ..o et 4,101,117

Total National Foundation on the Arts and the Humanitics.....ccueveeenn. $ 5,024,728
U.S. Small Business Administration
549 Small Business Export and Trade........c.ooovoeiiei e $ 4,000
59.037 Small Business Development Center........oo i 3,077,699

Total U.S. Small Business Administration 3 3,081,699
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
64.005 Grants to States for Construction of State Home Facilites........... . S 45,437
H4.014 Veterans State Domiciliary Care... o 1,253,220
64.015 Veterans State Nursing Home Care.. ... e 5,377,083
64.124 All-Volunteer Force Educational ASSISTANCE ..o o veee e 513,307

Total U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs ,189,
U.8. Environmental Protection Agency
66.032 State Tndoor Radon Grants.. ... eeeeee oo eris e eeneeeiasseeeteeaneiains % 369,119
606.433 State Underground Water Source Protection. ..., 255117
66.454 Water Quality Management Planming........cooo e 403,053
66.458 Capitalization Grants for State Revelving Funds....iiciccns 281,721,491
66.460 Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants..........oo e 2,318,545
66.461 Wetlands Protection -- Development Grants......ooovrvvreveerrevervevc e 107,081
66.463 National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Related State

PIOQram GIANLS........ccoeieeeireecrereeesvase e et s sbe b e 8,008
66.467 Wastewater Operaler Training Grant Program (Technical Assistance)............. 64,373
66.468 Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds..................... 94,797
66.470 Harship Grants Program for Rural Communities..........ccooveeeneireenencsnnee e 33,108
66.500 Environmental Protection -- Consolidated Research... ..o 49,502
66.605 Performance Partnership Grants........occooeerrerererc e 12,783,178
66.606 Surveys, Studics, Investigations and Special Purpose Grants......co.occinnnnn. 2,802,629
66.700 Consolidated Pesticide Enforcement Cooperative Agreements. ......oooeeeevenene. 403,157
66.701 Toxic Substances Compliance Monitoring Cooperalive Agreements................ 12,864
66.707 TSCA Title IV State [ead Grauts - Certification of Lead-Based

Paint Professionals.. . ..o tiit et st 306,234
66.708 Pollutien Prevention Grants Program. ... 75,414
66.802 Superfund State Site -- Specific Cooperative Agreements............ccocovvveeeenenas 2,579,344
60,804 State Underground Storage Tanks Program. ... 152,654
66.805 Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Program. ... ieininns 1,203,645
66.810 CEPP Technical Assistance Grants Progra........c.ccoceeeeeiereceeeseeeee e 114,799

Total U.8. Environmental Protection Agency § 305,858,832
U.S. Department of Energy
g1 Agreement In Principle ... e $ 1,218,072
81 Cost RECOVETY CTANTS 101 civisinnnereneer e cecem e assesasnasaasasessensssessssanssens 713,997
81 Peiroleurm Violation Escrow FURAS.....o e 5,533,471
81.039 National Energy Information Center.. ..ot 2,145
81.041 State ENergy PTOZIAT ..ottt se b saeaesbeneas 1,626,321
81.042 Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons.....oooooovovevcvcececcecececee, 6,413,302
81.079 Regional Biomass Energy PrOZram ......cccvvrvririrre i 54,695
81.086 Conservation Research and Development. ... 3,413
81.104 Technology Development for Environmental Management......ooeeeriveee. 308,916
81,105 Nationat Industrigl Competitiveness through Energy, Environment, and

COTIOIILICS ettt ettt e e e et ae s e e et e se e s e e st e eae s s e e besaee e 324,826
81.62X-8Z236V Encrgy Efficlency in Schools........ccoooiiiirieiiie e 45,382

Total U.S. Department of Fnergy.. 5 16244540
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FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

Federal Emergency Management Agency

83.011 Hazardous Materials Traming Program for Tmplementation of the

Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act (SARA) ol 1986............
83.505 State Disaster Preparedness GUant. .. ...
83.534 Emergency Management -- State and Local ASSISTANCE.........occvecvcncncnns
83.535 MitIZALION ASSISEAICE. ....c.cvieieieerrr i s
§3.543 Individual and Family Grants.........cccocoeiimmmeieiineccccceeieienes
83.544 Public ASSISTANCE GRANTS.....viee it
83.545 Disaster Housing PrOZEAM .....cocov e
83.548 Hazard Mitigation GEant.........cccoeimrmmeeeeeeeiee e
83.551 Project Impact - Building Disaster Resistant Communities........o e

Total Federal Emergency Management Agency

U.S. Department of Education

14,824
11,226
3,468,606
109,272
3,702,844
20,278,863
1,865,824
3,917,264
20,552

k) ¥ b

34.002 Adult Tducaiion -- Siafe Grant PrOgram. ... e e
84.010 Title [ Grants to Local Educational Ageneles.....iicicccie i
84.011 Migrant Education -- Basic State Grant PrOZram. .......ccooivvviinnimsrsneenes
84.013 Title I Program for Neglected and Delinguent Children........oveiinciinn
84.024 Early Education for Children with Disabilities........ccoooovincncincinin
84.026 Media and Captioning Services for Individuals with Disabilities......................

Special Education Cluster:

13,478,284
297,852,915
2,004,175
1,785,010
69,977
2,000

84.027 Special Education — Grants (0 SELES.........ovvivriiiisiiiiiiis 111,381,353
84.173 Special Education -- Preschool Grants.........ccooviinciiccnsecsssssnsnenns 10,971,139
122,352,492

84.029 Special Fducation -- Personnel Development and Parent Training.................... 95,888
84.032 Federal Family EQucation LOans.. ... e 5,560
84.034 Library Services Construction Act/Library Improvement. . ... 382,932
84.035 Interlibrary Cooperation and Resource Sharing.......ooovi 127,595
84.048 Vocational Education -- Basic Grants t0 States. .. ... v 41,778,396
84.069 Leveraging Educational Assistance Partnership.......oo.oo 1,012,607
84.126 Rehabilitation Services -- Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States............... 110,254,383
84.128 Rehabilitalion Services -- Service Projects......oceiiciciicccnccins 285,820
84.151 Chapter 2 -- State Block Grants.......ccocoovininnienecercen oo 17,444
84.154 Public Library Construction and Technology Enhancement... 287.341
84.158 Secendary Education and Transitional Services for Youth mth Dndbllltlcs ,,,,, 246,037
84.161 Rehabilitation Services -- Client Assistance Program.........cccoooervecvveeneecenn 476,451
84.162 Inmigrant BAUCAHON. .....c.ovvsvrvecccevccrmnnnc i e 347,842
84.169 Independent Living -- STALE GIANTS.........cooiiri e 488,721
84.177 Rehabilitation Services -- Independent Living Services for Older

Individuals Who Are B 170,959
84.181 Special Education -- Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities.............. 12,337,587
84.185 Byrd Honors Scholarships.... ..o e 1,606,090
84.186 Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities — State Grants....................... 20,872,742
84.187 Supported Employment Services for Individvals with Severe Disabilities........ 1,721,529
84,194 Bilingual Education Support Serviees. ..o 143,195
84.1%6 Education for Homeless Children and Youth........cooooveeviveeeeeeeee e 1,063,547
84.206 Javits Gilted and Talented Students Education Grant Program........................ 186,887
84.213 Even Start -- State Educational AZencies. ... 4,042,022
84215 Fund for the [mprovement of BAUCation...... i s 220,079
84216 Capilal TXPEISES....viereeeer ettt sttt sa s e 2,122,667
84.240 Program of Protection and Advocacy of Individual Rights......oooo 343,189
84,243 Tech-Prep BdUCAON. ...t s s e 4,394,309
84.248 Demonstration Projects for the Integration of Vocational and Academic

T 11T SO DU OO 15,382
84.276 Goals 2000 -- Sfate and Local Education Systemic Improvement Grants......... 21,356,538
84.281 Eisenhower Professional Development State Grants........coovevvereeenenncnncins e 13,716,339
84.282 Charter SCROOLS.c.ceeeeeeeeeeee ettt erna bt 807,410
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FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE
U.S. Department of Education (Continued)

84.298 Innovative Education Proaram Sralegles. ... rvercreriiiininesesssresessseren 11,991,462
84.314 Even Start -- Statewide Family Literacy Program..........o.ccoociiiiriiienennnnn, 41,967
34.318 Technology Literacy Challenge Fund Grants............oiininn e, 16,736,049
84.323 Special Education -- State Program Improvement Grants for Children
WITH DESABIIICE. ..o et e 280,339
84.331 Grants to States for Incarcerated Youth Offenders. ..o 624,250
84.332 Comprehensive School Reform Demonstration Program.......ocooenneeeeeeene. 2,256,445
Total LS, Department of Education $ 710,493,059
U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission
87.801474435 Consumer Product Satety COomIMISSION. ... creesteeseseereseereesens $ 2,839
Total U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission......ccucimeiccnsecsssrcnnns S 2,839
1.5, Department of Health and Human Serviees
93 Federal Administration Remmbursement Fund.........ccoooooiiiiiiiiierne $ 726,838
03 Food Sanitation INnSpection COMIACE. ........ccormvrmrresre e s ceeve e 115,371
93 Ryan White - Cleveland Funds.........coovviee e 200,000
03 State AssessiEnt STUAY....oooii e e s ne e 4,374
93 Tissue Residue COMIACT. ......ooe oot e s o e 11,000
93.041 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title VII, Chapter 3 --
Programs {or Prevention of Elder Abusc, Neglect, and Exploitation.......... 167,322
93.042 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title VII, Chapter 2 --
Long Term Care Ombudsman Services for Older Individuals.................... 2(19,599
93.043 Special Programs for the Aging -- Titie 111, Part F --
Diseasc Prevention and Health Promotion Services.... e eeeeeeeeen 459,663
Aging Cluster:
93,044 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title III, Part B --
Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers..........occoeve i icnnrennnn, 13,855,685
93.045 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title [11, Part C -- Nulrition Services.......... 17,483,605
31,339,290
03.046 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title LI, Part D --
Tn-Home Services for Frail Older Tndividuals......ooovoevieie e, 317,595
93.048 Special Programs for the Aging -- Title IV --
Training, Research and Discretionary Projects and Programs.................... 50,000
03.05-9805-0H-5002  Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment..............cccoooeeiiieveieceiececieeenn, 208,088
93.05-9905-0H-3002  Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment.....oococccnnnrenevcecececececeeeeeene, 470,711
93.102 Demonstration Grants for Residential Treatment for Women and Their
) CEECIL e ee e e e er s e e e er e e enen et eneeeneneeee e 305,868
93.104 Comprehensive Community Mental ITealth Services for Children
with Serious Emotional Disturbances (SED).....ovcvieeieeeeici i 244,200
93.110 Maternal and Child Health Federal Consolidated Programs.......o...o.veeeveveeeenee. 153,288
93.118 Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDSY Activity ..o 374,616
93.127 Emergency Medical Services for Children.. ..o, 155,750
93.130 Primary Care Services -- Resource Coordination and Development
Primary Care Offices.......cocoociirei e 238,712
93.138 Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental [ness..............ccoone. 623,506
03.141 EMS for Children Enhancement Graml.... ..o e sees s 9.379
93.150 Projects for Assistance in Transition for Homelessness (PATH)......ccoecevin, 617417
93.161 Health Program for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry......ooooe.... . 302,191
93.196 Cooperative Agreements for Drug Abuse Treatment Impr ovemu,nl Pm]ects
in Target Cmes ......................................................................................... 3,095,833
93.197 Childhood Lead Poisening Prevention Projects - State and
Community-Based Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention and
Surveillance of Blood Lead Levels in Childeen....ooevvveccvcnreeeeeeeen, 1,124,194
93.217 Family Planning -- SCrvices.. oottt 3,302,527
93.223-97-4192 FDA X-Ray INSpection.......c e SN 13,815

State of Ohio 94



STATE OF OHIO

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
BY FEDERAL AGENCY AND FEDERAL PROGRAM
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

U.8. Department of Health and Human Serviees (Continued)

93.223-99-4434 Mammeography Qualily Standard Act Inspections................ccos 319,768
93.234 Traumatic Brain INJUEY ...ooeeee e ssssres s ssssress s 38,298
93.235 ADbSHNENCe EdUCation.... oot 1,723 874
93.262 Cccupational Safety and Health Research Grants...........ooiiinnn 249,059
93.268 TIMIUNIZATION GIAIES. .....ecveeeeeeieeeeceec e e e e e ss s s eese e 5,475,158
93.283 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention -- [nvestipations and
TECHRICAl ASSISTAIICE. .. eeeeieeeeeee e ceee e eeteeee e e e e et e e e ete et e eaeeeaeeses e saeeseeens 1,262,003
93.554 Emergency Proteclion Grants - Substance AbUSe.......on 36,533
93.556 TFamily Preservation and Support Services. ..o 9,830,095
93,558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families......oooiiniiicnn, 329,666,870
93.561 Job Opportunitics and Basic Skills Training..........ccoooir e, 107,485
93.503 Child Support Enforcement. ... oeircrneiereneie e 124,383,374
93.566 Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered Programs........cccoevevee. 2,726,534
93,568 Low-lncome Home Energy Assistance 52,475,961
93.569 Communily Services BIock Grant.......coocieerrroesvnonsine e 20,599,596
03.570 Community Services Block Grant - Discrationary Awards........oovvnnennnenn. 61,799
93.571 Community Services Block Grant Discretionary Award —-Community
Food and NULFTHION. ........ooooiiieeee et se s e se s e s e ste s e s testestestesaesaeseeseessenssanns 157,313
Child Care Cluster:
93.575 Child Care and Development Block Grant.......ooovvenimmnimernmmenmsens 6,919,663
93.396 Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care
and Development FUrld. ... 115,072,510
121,992,173
93.576 Refugee and Cntrant Assistance -- Discretionary Grants.........oooceeeeceenenns 220,135
93.584 Refugee and Entrant Assistance -- Targeted ASSIStaNce..........coovvecnccnenn. 358,208
93.585 Empowerment Zones Programl.............ccoiiiciiiinmisissie e 1,224,554
03,586 State Court Improvement Program ... e 281,042
93.590 Community-Based Family Resource and Support Grants...........coocoeveccenenns 993,946
03.595 Welfare Reform Research, Evaluations, and National Studies....coooveveeeeene 52,753
03.597 Grants to States for Access and Visitation Programs.........ocoooeoieines 245,577
93.600 THCAA BEAIT....vcvoverreeecececcacaresernrararesrrrre s ssceesesesesesesssssessaesssseesesrr s s sesasasasasasssns 204,731
93.630 Developmental Disabilities Basic Support and Advocacy Grants.................c.... 3,507,102
93.643 Children's Justice Grants to SAIES......oviieererereseresececcrinenecasassaesse b ereseeaes 109,556
G3.645 Child Welfare Services -- State Grants.....ccoooooe oo isee s 9,341,295
93.647 Social Services Research and Demonstration..............cocovv oo ieeeseeeereceeve e, 124,635
93.652 Adoplion OpPoriinities.. ..o s 123,800
93.656 Temporary Child Care and Crisis NUIsetries. ..o 219,815
93.658 Foster Care -- TIle IV-E...cooo oot 194,704,955
93.659 AdOPLON ASSTSIANCE. ..oveoieeie et bt ea e enena 79,865,051
93.667 Social Services BIOCK GIant........coooei et ees e e st aeaaas 88,827,715
93,669 Child Abuse and Neglect State Grants..........ccoooecicicimmne e 1,189,163
93.671 Family Violence Prevention and Services/Grants for Battered Women's--
Shelters Grants to States and Indian Teibes...cocoiiiiiniiieccee e 2,532,967
93.672 Community-Based Prevention PrOgrail...... e seeseeesvesesss s 39,838
93.674 Tndependent LIVINE. ... oottt ettt ns s s s s s nsnsnes 2,829,537
Medicaid Cluster:
93,775 State Medicaid Fraud Control UnilS.....ooeee oo cceccie e e ee e 2,029,106
93.777 State Survey and Certification of Health Care Providers and Suppliers............ 15,811,308
93.778 Medical AsSiStance PrOSIAML.....ccoieeiiirin ettt e see e eee e e e 4,175,956,909
IJiz\: :\Ezg
93,779 Ilealth Care Financing Rescarch, Demonstrations and Evaluations................. 593,018
93.913 Grants to States for Operation of Offices of Rural Health,, ..o, 35,832
03917 HIV Care Formula Grants.........ococooeeineeci s 8,227,691
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FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (Continued)

93919 Cooperative Agreements for State-Based Comprehensive Breast

and Cervical Cancer Early Detection Programs........ccevveecnvncvnninrerenns
93.938 Cooperative Agreements to Support Comprehensive School Health

Programs to Prevent the Spread of TITV and Other Important

Health ProOBLEMIS......oovcvee et e e
93.940 HIV Prevention Activities -- Health Department Basced.......oooo
93.944 Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)/Acquired Immunodeficiency

Virus Syndrome (ATDS) Surveillance. o
93.951 Demenstration Grants to States with Respect to Alzheimer's Disease..............
03.958 Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services. ...
93.959 Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse....................
03,965 Coal Miners Respiratery Impairment Treatment Clinics and Services...........
93.977 Preventive Health Services -- Sexually Transmitied Discases

CONFOL GIRIES. ..o e b rasr s e e anaens
93.978 Preventive Health Services -- Sexually Transmilted Diseases Research,

Demonstrations, and Public Information and Education Grants................
93.988 Cooperative Agreements for State-Based Diabetes Confrol ..

Programs and Evaluation of Surveillance Systems.........coooooiienenens
93.991 Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant.....evieieieieieeni
93.994 Maternal und Child Health Services Block Grant to the States.............ooceeene.

03-A-98-07-384

Corporation for National and Community Service

Ohio Family Health Survey

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

94.003 SEALC COIMITIISETONS. .o cteceeeeceeeeeecssecissainsenassanae e e rene e rers s aebe b a e seenas
94.004 Learn and Serve America - School and Community Based Programs...............
94.006 AMBILCOEPS. ..t eeee e ettt b s nb s s
94.007 Planning and Program Development Grants..........ooooeeeiccccccccceies
84.009 Training and Technical ASSISTANCE. ccovrrronriirini s e
24.011 Foster Grandparent Program...............c.ccovees

Total Corporation for National and Community Service....ncacacs

Social Security Administration

96

96.0600-98-32688
96.0600-98-32782
96.001

96.007
96.200-95-7236
96.200-98-7265

Program Income for Rehabilitating Kecipients of Social Security income
and Supplemental Security Income -- Vocational Rehabilitation

Program {(CFDA# 84.126)

Vital Statistics -- Social Security Contract........
Vital Statistics -- Secial Security Enumeration Contract............ccooooivveeiiins

Social Security -- Disability [nsurance
Social Security -- Rescarch and Demonstration
Vital Statistics -- [lealth Statistics

Vital Statistics - National Death TAAK ..o
Total Social Security Administration.....

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

3,709,521

629,787
4,566,799

445741
88,779
9,437,451
63,811,499
352,761

1,990,140
46,950

361,924
8,756,772
23,007,642
33,197

i k 3

$ 360,733
989,059
1,036,401
85,967

161,968

407,157

ki k]

$ 6,094,572
121,860

261,853
56,602,804
160,574

332,799

17,458

$ 9,539,679,868
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STATE OF OHIO

NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, revised June 30, 1997,
requires 2 Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards (Supplementary Schedule). The
State of Ohio reports this information using the
following presentations:

¢ Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards Summarized by State Agency

» Supplementary Schedule ol Expenditures of
Federal Awards by State Agency and Federal
Program

» Supplementary Schedule ot Expenditures of
liederal Awards Suvmmarized by Federal
Agency

* Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards by Fcderal Agency and
Federal Program

The schedules must report total disbursements for
each federal financial assistance program, as listed in
the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA).
The State of Ohio reports each federal financial
assistance program not officially assigned CFDA
numbers with a two-digil number that identities the
federal grantor agency or with a two-digit federal
grantor agency number followed by a federal contract
number, when applicable.

A. Reporting Entity

The Supplementary Schedules include all federal
programs the State of Ohio has administered for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, The State’s financial
reporting entity includes the primary government and
its component unifs.

The State of Ohio’s primary government includes all
funds, account groups, elected officials, departments
and agencies, bureaus, boards, commissions, and
authorities that make up the Statc’s legal entity.
Component units, legally separate organizations for
which the State’s clected officials are financially ac-
countable, also comprisc, in part, the State’s report-
ing entity. Additionally, other organizations for

which the naturc and significance of their rclation-
ship with the primary government are such that
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s finan-
cial statements to be misleading or incomplete
should be included in a government’s financial
reporting entity.

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, detines financial accountability. The criteria
for determining financial accountability include the
following circumstances:

e appointment of a voting majority of an organi-
zation’s governing authority and the ability of
the primary government to either imposc its
will on that organization or the potential for
the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial bur-
dens on, the primary government, or

e an organization is fiscally dependent on the
primary government.

The State has excluded federal financial assistance
reported in the Discretely Presented Component Units
—College and University Funds from the Supple-
mentary Schedules.  The respective schedules of
expenditures of federal awards for the following
organizations, which constitute component units of
the State since they impose or potenfially imposc
financial burdens on the primary government, arc
subject to separate audits under OMB Circular A-133.

Colleges and Universities:
State Universities:
Bowling Green State University
Central State University
Cleveland State University
Kent State University
Miami Universily
Ohio State University
Ohio Universily
Shawnee State Universily
University of Akron
University of Cincinnati
University of Toledo
Wright State University
Youngstown State University

State of Ohio
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STATE OF OHIO

NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

State Community Colleges:
Cincinnati State Community College
Clark State Community College
Columbus State Community College
FEdison State Community College
Northwest State Community College
Owens State Community College
Southern State Community College
Terra State Community College
Washington State Comynunity College

Medical College:
Medical College of Ohic at Toledo

B. Basis of Accounting

‘The State prepares the Supplementary Schedules on
the cash basis of accounting; therefore, the State
recognizes expenditures when paid rather than when
it incurs obligations.

C. Transfers of Federal Funds Among

State Agencies
The State has adopted the following policies to
avoid the overstatement of federal financial
assistance reported on the Supplementary Schedules.

e A state agency that receives federal funds
from another state agency to assist in meeting
the requirements of an assistance award
reports the federal assistance in its accounts.
In such cases, the State excludes the
interagency disbursements of federal moneys
from the accounts of the state agency that
originally receives the funds from the federal
government.

» When a state agency uscs federal assistance
moncys to purchase goods or scrvices from
another state agency, the State inciudes the
interagency disburscments of federal moneys
in the accounts of the state agency making the
purchase. The state agency [tom which goods
and services are purchased does not report the
receipt  of federal moneys as  federal
assistance.

D. Indirect Costs
Indirect costs beneflit more than one lederal program

and arc not directly allocable to the programs
receiving the bencfits. The State recovers these
costs from the federal government by applying
federally  approved indirect cost rates or by
allocating the indirect cosls among benefiting
programs in accordance with federally approved
plans.  The State recognizes indirect costs as
dishursements in the Supplementary Schedules.

E. Valuation of Non-Cash Federal Assistance
The State reports the following non-cash federal
assistance  programs on the  Supplementary
Schedules.

s lood Commodities (CFDA# 10.350)
Federal assistance for this program represents
the value of food the State distributcs to
subrecipients during the fiscal year. The U.5.
Department of Agricuiture assigns the prices
at which the State values donated food
commeoditics.

* frood Stamps (CFDA# 10.351)
Federal assistance for this program represents
the value of food stamp benefits the State and
ils agents distribute to eligible recipients
during the fiscal ycar. Distribution occurs
when bencficiarics receive food stamp
coupons or, in the case of electronic benefits
transfer (EBT), when the State credits the
value of program benelils to beneficiaries’
smart cards. ‘The State values food stamp
coupons at their face amount.

s Federal Surplus Personal Property (CFDA#

39.003)

Federal assistance for this program represents
the fair market value of federal sorplus
personal property the State distributes to
subrecipients during the [iscal year. The State
calculates fair market value at 23.3 percent of
the property’s original acquisition cost, in
conformity with guidelines the U.S. General
Services Administration establishes.

Year-end balances of the Staie’s non-cash federal
assistance programs can be found in NOTE 3.

State of Ohio
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 2 CAPITALIZATION GRANTS FOR REVOLVING LOAN FUNDS (CFDA# 66.458)

As of Tune 30, 1999, outstanding loans for the
Capitalization Grants [or Revolving Loan Funds
Program totaled approximately $589 million.

As reported for the Ohio Environmenta! Protection
Agency, the calculation of federal assistance for the
loan program includes the following elements.

Capitalization Grant Loan Balance,

as of 6/30/98 ... $613,141,596

Loans without Compliance

Requirements................ e te et {311,231,662)

Net Loan Balance {Loans with

Compliance Requirements)........ccceu..e. 201,908,934

New Loans Dishursed in FY 1999 ... 82,485,173
Net Principal Repayments

Receivedin FY 1995............ccoviiieniee. (9,199,390)
Capitalized Interest

Famed in FY 1999 ... 2,787,884
Current Loan Activity ... 76,083,667
Ending Loan Balance (Loans with

Compliance Requirements)..................... 277,983,601
Administrative Costs in FY 1995............ 3,727,850

Total Federal Assistance for Fy 1689 ... $281,721,491

NOTE 3 INVENTORY BALANCES FOR NON-CASH FEDERAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

As of June 30, 1999, the outstanding inventory balances for the non-cash federal assistance programs are as follows:

Cutstanding
Balance,
CFDA# Non-Cash Program as of 6/30/99
10.551 Food Stamp CoUPONS ... $121,572,378
10.550 Food Commodities ...t e 3,225,513
39.003 Federai Surplus Personal Property ... 7,760

$124,805,651

NOTE 4 HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM (CFDA# 14.239)

During fiscal year 1999, the Statc’s Supplementary
Schedules show the Department of Development
spent approximately $7.7 million on the Home
Investment Partnerships Program.

Other Ohio governmental entities outside the State’s
reporting entity also benefited under this program
during fiscal year 1999 by drawing an additional

$15.7 million directly from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Dcvelopment. Because the
State does not participate directly in this facet of the
program, it does not account for this financial
activity on its accounting system. Consequently, the
Obio local governments® participation in this
program has not been included in the State’s
Supplementary Schedules.

NOTE 5 FEDERAL MORTGAGE INSURANCE AND GUARANTEES

Certain mortgage loans of the Ohio Housing Finance
Agency, a unit within the Ohio Department of
Development, are insured by the Federal Housing

1999, outstanding FHA-insured loans approximated
$4.7 million and mortgage loans guaranteed by the
VA approximated $485 thousand.

Administration (FHA) or guaranteed by the
Veterans’ Administration (VA). As of June 30,
State of Ohio 99
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NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 6 FEDERAL TAX CREDIT PROGRAMS

The Ohio Housing Finance Agency {OHI'A) within
the Ohio Department of Development administers

the following [ederal tax credit programs for the
State of Chio.

A. Federal Low-Income Housing
Tax Credits Program

The Federal Low-lncome Ilousing Tax Credit
Program allocates federal tax credits to the owners
of qualified low-income rental housing units to be
used over a 10-year period. For the 1999 allocation
year ended December 31, 1999, OHFA allocated
approximately $15.9 million of federal tax credits
under this program.

B. Federal Mortgage Credit Certificate Program
The Federal Mortgage Credit Certificate Program
allocates tax credits to qualifying homebuyers
purchasing qualifying homes o be applied against
their federal income lax liability in the year of
purchase (if any) and/or carried forward for use in
the subscquent three years. In the year ended June
30, 1999, OHFA issued/commilled approximately
$10.3 million in federal tax credits under this
program.

State of Ohio
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AUDITORS’ REPORTS
ON COMPLIANCE AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS



STATE OF OHIO 35 North Fourth Street

. Ohio 43216
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Chio
Telephone 614-466-3402

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-443-9275
Facsimtle 6147287192

Report on Cempliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based ¢on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Bob Taft, Governor
State of Qhiop
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 1899, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose firancial
statements are the responsibility of the State's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements
of the following organizations which are a part of the primary government:

Capitot Square Review and Advisory Board Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation
Office of Financial Incentives and Industrial Commission of Chio
Office of the Auditor of State State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio

Also, we did not audit the following compeonent units:
Blended
Ohio Building Authority State Highway Patro} Retirement System
Ohio Public Facilities Commission

Discretely Presented

Bowling Green State University Miami University University of Teledo
Columbus State Community College Ohio State University Wright State University
Cleveland State University Ohio University Youngstown State University
Kent State University University of Akron

Medical College of Ohio at Teledo University of Cincinnati

in addition, we did not audit the financial statements of the Public Employees Retirement System, Police and
Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund System, State Teachers Retirement System, and School Employees
Retirement System, whose assets are held by the Treasurer of State and are included as part of the State's
trust and agency fund type. These financial statements reflect the following percentages of total assets or
liabilities and revenues or additions of the indicated fund types, account groups, and discretely presented
compoenent units:

Percent of Total Percent of Total

Assets/(Liabilities) Revenues/Additions
Special Revenue Fund Type 7% 0%
Debt Service Fund Type 45% 10%
Capital Projects Fund Type 1% 47%
Enterprise Fund Type 88% 57%
internal Service Fund Type 30% 11%
Trust and Agency Fund Type 97% 47%
General Fixed Assets Account Group 9% —
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (66%) —
Discretely Presented Component Units 83% 94%

The financial statements of these independently audited organizations and the assets of these retirement
systems were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the financial statements of these independently audited organizations and the amounts of the
retirement systems audited by other auditors included in the fund types and account groups comprising the
general-purpose financial statements is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
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Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Cver Financial Reporting
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Page 2

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
Generai of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the State of Ohio’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an ohjective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opiniocn. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Gaovernment Auditing
Standards.

Other auditors performed tests of noncompliance related to the organizations listed above and the results
of those tests are reported separately in the audit reports of those entities. There was no noncompliance
related to these organizations which were considered reportable for the State of Ohio,
We noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the management of the
State of Ohio in separate management letters issued at various times during the year.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the State of Ohio’s internal control over financial
reporting, except for those entities identified above which were performed by other auditors, in order to
determine ourauditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and
not to provide assurance on the internal control over financiat reporting. However, we noted certain matters
invoiving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be reportable
conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our atiention relating to significant deficiencies
in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reperting that, in our judgment, could
adversely affectthe State of Ohio’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent
with the assertions of management in the financial staiements. These reporiable conditions are identified
in the summary of findings and questioned costs on pages 114 through 115 and described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Other auditors performed procedures to obtain an understanding of the internal controls of the organizations
listed above. There were no comments related to these organizations which were considered reportable
for the State of Ohio.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low levei the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that
are alsa considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the reportable conditions described above, we
considered the items identified and described in the summary of findings and questioned costs on pages
114 through 115 to be material weaknesses.
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Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Page 3

We noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to the
management of the State of Ohio in separate management letters issued at various times during the year.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Siate Legislature, and the federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

November 19, 1999
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StAaTE OF OHIO

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR 35 North Fourth Street
Columbus, Ohio 43216
Jim PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Telephone614-466-3402

800-443-9275
Facsimile 614-728-7199

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major
Federal Program and internal Control Over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

The Honorable Bob Taft, Governor
State of Qhio
Columbus, Ohio

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the State of Ohio with the types of compliance requirements described
in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. The State of Ohio’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedute
of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the State of Ohio's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on the State of Ohio’s compliance based on our
audit.

Federal programs of the State College and University funds are subject to audit precedures under Office of
Marnagement and Budget Circular A-133 and are reported on separately.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the

standards appiicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we pfan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance occurred with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federat

program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the State of Ohig’s compliance with

those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis fer our opinion. Our audit does not

provide 2 legal determination on State of Ohio's compliance with those reguirements.

As identified in the summary of findings and questioned costs on pages 114 and 115 and described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the State of Ohio’s Department of Human
Services was not in compliance with the following Codes of Federal Regulations related to eligibility:

7 CFR 272.8(a)(1) 7 CFR 272.8(g)(4) 7 CFR 272.8(i)(3)

7 CFR 272.8())(2) 7 CFR 273.2(R){6) 42 CFR 435.952(f)

45 CFR 205.51(a) 45 CFR 205.56(a)(1) 45 CFR 205.56(a){(1)(v)
45 CFR 435.952(f)
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Repart on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each
Major Federai Program and Internal Control Over Compliance
In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

Page 2

As aresult, we were unable to gain assurance the Department’s Income and Eligibility Verification System
{IEVS) and Client Registry Informaticn System - Enhanced (CRIS - E) were functioning to ensure proper
determinations of eligibility and continued eligibility of recipients were being made. In our opinion, the State
of Chio's compliance with these requirements is necessary for the State of Ohio to comply with the
requirements applicable to the following programs:

10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster
03.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the State of Ohio
complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999.

The results of our auditing procedures also disclosed other instances of noncompliance with those
requirements that are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are
identified in the summary of findings and questioned costs on pages t14 and 115 and described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

We also noted certain instances of noncompliance that do not require inclusion in this report that we have
reported to the management of the State of Ohio in separate management letters issued at various times
during the year.

Internal Control Qver Compliance

The management of the State of Ohio is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the State of Ohio’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing cur epinion on compliance and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider
to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal contro! over compliance that, in our
judgment, could adversely affect the State of Ohio’s ability to administer a major federal program in
accordance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Reportable conditions
are identified in the summary offindings and guestioned costs on pages 114 and 115 and described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components dees not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal
program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance
would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be repertable conditions and,
accordingly, would not necessarily disciose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material
weaknesses. However, of the reportable conditions described above, we consider certain items identified
in the summary of findings and questioned costs on page 114 and 115 and described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses.
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Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each
Major Federal Program and Internal Control Over Compliance
In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

Page 3

We also noted other matters involving the internal controls over federal compliance that do not require
inclusion in this report that we have reported io the management of the State of Ohio in separate
management letters issued at various times during the year.

Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio as of and for
the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the table of contents, and have issued our opinion thereon dated
November 19, 1898. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards Summarized by State Agency, Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures of Federat Awards
by State Agency and Federal Program, Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Summarized by Federal Agency, and Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards by
Federal Agency and Federal Program (schedules) are presented for purposes of additional anaiysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and are nct a required part of the general-purpose financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose
financiat statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-
purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information of management, the State Legislature, the federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

JIM PBRR
Auditor of State

January 31, 2000, except for the Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards, as to which the date is November 19, 1989
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 § .505

STATE OF CHIO
JUNE 39, 1999

(a1 Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(1)) Were there any material control weakness conditions Yes
reported at the financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(1)) Were there any other reportable control weakness conditions | Yes
reported at the financial statement fevel (GAGAS)?
(1) (i} Was there any reported material noncompfiance at the No
financial statement level (GAGAS)?
{d)(1){iv) Were there any material internal control weakness conditions | Yes
reported for major federal programs?
() (1)) Were there any other reportable internal controi weakness Yes
conditions reported for major federai programs?
{d)(1)(v) Tvpe of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Qualified and
Unqualified
(d)(1){vi) Are there any other reportable findings under §.5107 Yes
(d)(1){vii) Major Programs (list): See pages 111
through 112
(d)(1)(vifi} Doltar threshold for Type A and B Programs? A >$27,773,858
B: all others
(d1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? No
Finding Number 1999-HUM26-045

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

See federal finding # 1999-HUM26-045 on page 168, this finding is also required to be reported in

accordance with GAGAS.

Finding Number

1999-HUM27-046

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

See federal finding # 1999-HUM27-046 on page 170; this finding is also required to be reported in

accordance with GAGAS.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

GAAP PACKAGE SCHEDULES

Finding Number 1699-HUMS3-001

State Agency Ohio Department of Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

Each year, the Ohio Department of Human Services is required by the Office of Budget and Management
(OBM) to complete various “GAAP Package” schedules which are used by OBM in preparing the State of
Ohio Financial Statements. It is imperative these schedules be accurate and complete to avoid misstating
the financial statements. It is management's responsibility to ensure control procedures are in place and
operating effectively to prevent errors in these schedules.

Revised GAAP Package Schedules had to be submitted to OBM for fiscal year 1998 bacause the original
schedules were incomplete or contained errors, identified by the auditors, as noted below:

. GAAP Schedule B-1 - Intergovernmental Receivable/Federat {GRF - Medicaid) - This schedule
calculates the amount of Medicaid funds receivable from the federal government by subtractingfederal
receipts from the federal share of amounts paid in June, 1999, However, the original calculation
applied the federal financial participation (FFP) rate to the amounts received from the federal
government when the FFP rate had already been taken into consideration at the time of the
drawdown. As a result, the federal receivable on the original B-1 Schedule was overstated by
$68,018,923.

. GAAP Schedule B-2 - Intergovernmental Receivable Federal (Fund 384 - TANF) - This schedule aids
in calcutating the amount of TANF funds receivable from the federal government by determining the
net over/{under)payments in TANF monies to county agencies. The original schedule submitied to
OBM was incomplete due to preblems occurring within the County Reporting (CORe) system, which
accounts for county-level activity related to various federai programs. Testing of the supporting
documentation for the B-2 Schedule related to county activity was significantly delayed because
information related to all county roll-over amounts was not provided in a timely manner. In addition,
there were various errors within the Stark County CORe reports which also could not be reconciled.
Therefore, we were unable to verify the reported net overpayment to counties of more than $7 million
until very late in the audit process.

As a result of these errors and the lack of supporting documentation, a significant amount of time was
required by CDHS personnel, audit staff, and OBM to investigate and/or correct the amounts reported.
These delays significantly impeded the preparation of the Financial Statements and could have impacted
the submission of the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report to the Government Finance Officer's
Association. In addition, errors in the information submitted to OBM in the GAAP Package schedules may
have resulted in misstatements in the amounts reported in the State of Ohio’s Financial Statements.

The Cash Management Supervisor indicated the error on the B-1 Schedule was due to oversight and a
calcufation worksheet being added after the supervisor's review, ultimately causing the errors to be
uncovered. He believed the error would have been caught during the supervisor's review had the worksheet
been included. County Finance Personnel stated the delays in receiving county information for the B-2
Schedule were caused by technical problems with the CORe system.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

GAAP PACKAGE SCHEDULES (Continued)

We recommend the Department strengthen their internal controls by ensuring sufficient support
documentation is attached to the ali GAAP package schedules prior to supervisory review. The suppart
documentation should allow the reviewer to recalculate and obtain assurance the schedule being submitied
is accurate and complete. In addition, the Department should thoroughly review and evaluate the CORe
system to identify programming and other technical problems which may impact the receipt of accurate and
timely county information. Priority should be placed on correcting these deficiencies to reasonably ensure
the data provided by the system is reliable.

Finding Number 1999-HUM14-033

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

See federal finding # 1999-HUM14-033 on page 154; this finding is also required to be reported in
accordance with GAGAS.

Finding Number 1998-HUM16-035

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

See federal finding # 1999-HUM16-035 con page 157; this finding is also required to be reported in
accordance with GAGAS.

Finding Number 1998-HUM22-041

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

See federal finding # 1999-HUM22-041 on page 165; this finding is also required to be reported in
accordance with GAGAS.

Finding Number 1999-HUM23-042

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

See federal finding # 1999-HUM23-042 on page 166; this finding is also required to be reported in
accordance with GAGAS.

Finding Number 1998-HUM24-043

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

See federal finding # 1999-HUM24-042 on page 167; this finding is also required to be reported in
accordance with GAGAS.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Finding Number 1998-HUM25-044

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

See federal finding # 1999-HUM25-044 on page 188; this finding is also required to be reported in
accordance with GAGAS.

Finding Number 1299-HUM28-047

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

See federal finding # 1999-HUM28-047 on page 171; this finding is also required to be reported in
accordance with GAGAS.

The questioned costs are summarized by federal agency, program, and amount on page 113.

The findings and questioned costs are summarized by state agency and type on pages 114 and 115.

The findings and questioned costs are detailed by state agency on pages 116 to 215.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAMS

Percent of
CFDA # Program Name Disbursements Total
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Food Stamp Cluster
10.551 Food Stamps $543,358,917 5.70%
10.561 State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamps $69,143,207 0.72%
Total Food Stamp Cluster $612,502,124 6.42%
Nutrition Cluster
10.583 School Breakfast Program $29,558,076 0.31%
10.555 National School Lunch Program $143,059,399 1.50%
10.5568 Special Milk Program For Children $941,364 0.01%
10.559 Summer Food Service Program For Children 54,347,705 0.05%
Total Nutrition Cluster $177,907,044 1.86%
10,557 Special Suppl. Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, & Children  $168,002,583 1.76%
10.558 Child and Adult Care Food Program $45,091,144 0.47%
1).S. Deparfment of Housing and Urban Development
14.182 Lower Income Housing Assistance Program — Section 8 $54,081,467 0.57%
14.228 Community Development Block Grant/State's Program $54,065,003 0.57%
U.S. Department of Labor
Employment Services Cluster
17.207 Employment Service $37,169,058 0.39%
17.801 Disabled Veterans' Outreach Program (DVOP) $3,683,806 0.04%
17.804 Local Veterans' Employment Representative Program $3,715,250 0.04%
Total Employment Services Cluster $44,568,114 0.47%
17.225 Unemployment Insurance $793,657.775 8.32%
JTPA Cluster
17.246 Employment & Training Assistance — Dislocated Workers $32,256,337 0.34%
17.250 Job Training Partnership Act $74,649,944 0.78%
Total JTPA Cluster $106,906,281 1.12%
U.S. Department of Transportation
20.205 Highway Planning and Censtruction $664,597,086 6.97%
L.S. Environmental Protection Agency
66.458 Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds $281,721,491 2.95%
1.5, Bepartment of Education
84.010 Title | Grants to Local Education Agencies $297,852,915 3.12%
Special Education Cluster
84.027 Special Education — Grants to States $111,381,353 1.17%
84.173 Special Education — Preschool Granis $10,971,139 0.12%
Total Special Education Cluster $122,352,492 1.28%
84.048 Vocational Education — Basic Grants to States $41,778,306 0.44%
84.126 Rehabilitation Services — Vocational Rehabilitation to States $110,254,383 1.16%
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAMS

Percent of
CFDA # Program Name Dishursements Total
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Aging Cluster
Special Programs for the Aging — Title I}, Part B - Support
93.044 Services $13,855,685 0.15%
93.045 Special Programs for the Aging — Title I, Part C - Nutrition $17,483,605 0.18%
Total Aging Cluster $31,339,290 0.33%
93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families $329,666,870 3.46%
93.563 Child Support Enforcement $124,383,374 1.30%
93.568 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance $52,475,961 0.55%
Child Care Cluster
93.575 Child Care Development Block Grant $6,919,663 0.07%
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care
93.596 and Development Fund $115,072,510 1.21%
Total Child Care Cluster $121,992,173 1.28%
93.658 Foster Care — Title IV-E $194,704,955 2.04%
93.659 Adoption Assistance $79,865,051 0.84%
§3.667 Social Services Block Grant $88.827,715 0.93%
Medicaid Assistance Cluster
93.775 State Medical Fraud Control $2,029,106 0.02%
State Survey and Certification of Health Care Providers and
93.777 Suppliers $15,811,308 0.17%
93.778 Medical Assistance Program $4,175,956,909 43.77%
Totai Medicaid Cluster $4,193,797,323 43.96%
93.959 Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse $93,811,499 0.98%
Social Security Administration
96.001 Social Security ~ Disability Insurance $56,602,804 0.59%
Total Major Federal Programs $8,942,809,323 93.74%
Other Federal Programs $596,870,545 6.26%
Total Federal Awards Expenditures $9,539,679,868 100.00%
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

STATE OF OHIO
SUMMARY OF QUESTIONED COSTS BY FEDERAL AGENCY
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

PAGE QUESTIONED

FEDERAL AGENCY/CFDA NUMBER/PROGRAM TITLE NUMBERS(S}) COSTS
U.S. BEPARTMENT GF AGRICULTURE

10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster 142 $266
Tota? U.S. Department of Agriculture $266
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

84.027/84.173 - Special Education Cluster 123 $23.417

84.186 - Safe and Drug Free Schools 120 200,000

84.213 - Even Start 120 118,782

Various Programs 121 106,189
Total U.S. Department of Education $448,388
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

93.044/93,045 - Aging Cluster 116 $7,294,320

93.596 - Child Care Cluster 142 276

93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 142,147,150 247,634

93.658 - Foster Care 139,140,144 1,415,289

93.667 - Social Services Block Grant 145,146,148,149 5,622,607

93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster 141,142 31,923
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $14,612,04%
TOTAL QUESTIONED COSTS - STATE OF QHIO $15,060,703
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STATE OF QOHIO
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED CQSTS
JULY 1, 1998 THROUGH JUNE 30, 1999

FINDING TYPE OF PAGE
AGENCY/COMMENTS NUMBER FINDING @ REFERENCE
Ohio Department of Aging (AGE)
1. Subrecipient Monitoring 1999-AGE01-002 Questioned Costs 116
2. Subrecipient Cost Allocation Plan 1999-AGEQ2-003 Reportable Condition 118
3. Subrecipient Contractual Agreements 1999-AGE03-004 Reportable Condition 118
Ohio Department of Education (EDU}
1. Incorrect Expenditure Ceding 1999-ECU01-005 Questicned Cost 120
2. Incorrect Federal Draw 1999-EDU02-006 Questioned Cost 120
3. Grant Admin. Payment System Reports 4999-ELU03-007 Questioned Cost 121
4. Expenditure Made After Period of Avail. 1999-EDU04-008 Questionad Cost 123
5. Subrecipient Monitoring 1999-EDU05-009 Noencompliance 123
6. On-site Reviews 1899-EDU0G-010  Noncompliance 125
7. State Agency Review Criteria 1999-EDUQ7-011  Noncompliance 126
8. Suspension and Deparment 1899-EDU0S-012 Nencompliance 127
9, DP - Application Dev. Documentation 1889-EDU09-013 Repertable Condition 125
Ohio Bureau of Employment Services (BES)
1. Cash Management 1999-BES01-014 Nencompliance 130
2. Subrecipient Monitoring 1989-BES02-015 Noncompliance 131
3. Property Management 1999-BESD3-018  Noncompliance 133
4. Untimely Report Submission 1999-BESC4-017  Nencompliance 134
5. Use of Transmittal Letter 1999-BES05-018 Noncompliance 136
Ohio Department of Health {DOH)
1. Subrecipient Monitoring 19938-DOH01-019 Noncompliance 137
Ohio Department of Human Services (HUM)
1. Foster Care - Unallowable Maintenance 1999-HUMM-020 Questioned Costs 139
2. Faster Care - Incomplete Meonitoring 1999-HUMO2-021 Questioned Costs 140
3. Medicaid - Drug Rebate Payments 1999-HUMO03-022 Questioned Costs 141
4. Missing Support Doc. - Hamilton County 1999-HUMO4-023 Questioned Costs 142
5. Clothing Cost Reimbursement - Lorain County  1999-HUMO5-024 Questioned Costs 144
6. Monitoring Subrecipients - Lorain County 1999-HUMD6-025 Questioned Cosis 145
7. No Evidence of Eligibility - Summit County 1999-HUMO7-026 Questioned Costs 146
8. Unallowable Indirect Costs-Summit County 1999-HUMO08-027 Questioned Costs 147
9. No Evidence of Eligibility - Franklin County 1999-HUM09-028 Questioned Costs 148
10. Unallowable Expenditures-Franklin County 1999-BUM10-029 Questicned Costs 149
11. Improper Expenditures - Franklin County 1993-HUM11-030 Questioned Costs 150
12, IEVS - Dye Dates 1999-HUM12-031 Noncompliance 151
13. IEVS - Inadequate Documentation 1998-HUM13-032 Noncompliance 153
14. IEVS - Monitoring by ODHS 1999-HUM14-033 Noncompliance™®* 154
15. TANF - Sanctions 1899-HUM15-034 Noncompliance 155
16. Lack of Corrective Action 1999-HUM16-035 Noncompliance** 157
17. Unapproved Indirect Cost Allocation Amend. 1999-HUM17-036 Noncompliance 158
18. Subrecipient Monitoring 1999-HUM18-037 Noncompliance 160
19. Untimely SETS implementation 1999-HUM19-038 Noncompliance 161
20. Unreviewed Food Stamp Reports 1999-HUM20-039 Noncompliance 161
21. Untimely Eligibility Redeter.-Various Counties  1999-HUM21-040 Noncompliance 163
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STATE OF CHIO
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
JULY 1, 1998 THROUGH JUNE 30, 1999

FINDING TYPE OF PAGE
AGENCY/COMMENTS NUMBER FINDING @ REFERENCE
Ohio Department of Human Services (HUM)

22. IEVS - Menitoring by Counties 1899-HUM22-041 Material Weakness™ 165
23. |EVS - Training 1999-HUM23-042 Material Weakness** 166
24 DP - Accusacy of CRIS-E Input 1998-HBUM24-043  Material Weakness™* 167
25. DP - Manual Overrides of CRIS-E {Fiats) 1999-HUM25-044  Material Weakness™* 168
26. TANF - Monitering 1999-HUM26-045 Material Weakness* 169
27. Food Stamp SAS 70 Report 1999-HUM27-048 Material Weakness® 170
28. Review-Food Stamp EBT Vendor Reports 1999-HUM28-047 Material Weakness** 171
29. Foster Care Contracts 1999-HUMZ2S-048 Material Weakness 172
30. No Historical Payment Data in FACSIS 1999-HUM30-048 Material Weakness 173
31. Child Support Bank Recenciliations 1999-HUM31-050 Material Weakness 174
32. SETS - Lack of Training & Support to Co, 1999-HUM32-051 Material Weakness 176
33. SETS - System Development Life Cycle 1909-HUM33-052 Material Weakness 177
34. Voucher Summary Support Detail 1999-HUM34-053 Reportable Condition 178
35. Control Weaknesses/Coding Errors-Expend. 1999-HUM35-054 Reportable Condition 180
36. Contracts/Relationships with Co. Agencies 1999-HUM36-055 Reportable Condition 182
37. Medicaid - MECQ Eligibility Reviews 1999-HUM37-056 Reportable Condition 183
38. Medicaid - Verification of Third-party Liabilities  1998-HUM38-057 Reportable Condition 184
39. Medicaid - Documentaticn of Reviews 1999-HUM39-058 Reportable Condition 186
40, Medicaid - Provider Overpayment Controls 1999-HUM40-059 Reportable Condition 187
41. Medicaid - HCAP & Nursing Franchise Fees 1998-HUM41-060 Reportable Condition 188
42, Medicaid - Long-Term Care Patient Liabiities  1999-HUM42-081 Reportable Condition 190
43. Medicaid - Managed Care Provider Verification 1999-HUM43-082 Reportable Condition 191
44. Child Care - Monitoring Procedures 1999-HUM44-063 Reportable Condition 191
45, Internal Audits-Testing Automated Controls 1899-HUMA45-064 Reportable Condition 192
46. Late County Reponrts - Various Counties 1999-HUMA46-085 Reportable Condition 194
47. Missing Documentation - Varicus Counties 1999-HUMA47-086 Reportable Condition 198
48. Supervisory Review of Case Files-Various Co.  1999-HUM48-0687 Reportable Condition 205
49. RMS Procedures Not Followed-Various Co. 1999-HUM48-088 Repertable Condition 207
50. Expenditure Approval - Various Counties 1999-HUMS50-06% Reportable Condition 210
51. Request-S§ Reimb/IV-E Waiver-Hamilton Co.  1999-HUM51-070 Reportable Condition 212
92. DP - Application Documentation 1999-HUMS2-071 Reportable Condition 213

Ohio Department of Transportation (DOT)
1. Monitoring of Prevailing Wage Laws 1999-DOT01-072 Reportable Condition 215

@ The finding types reported in this column represent items which are being reported in the report on
compliance requirements applicable to each major federal program and internal controls over

compliance in accerdance with OMB Circular A-133.

* These items are also material weaknesses in the report on compliance and internal controls

over financial reporting based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards.

** These items are also considered reportable conditions in the report on compliance and internal controls

over financial reporting based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF AGING

1. SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING
Finding Number 1998-AGE01-002
CFDA Number and Title 93.044/93.045 - Aging Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
QUESTIONED COSTS $7,294,320

45 CFR 74.2 states, in part:

Recipient means an organization receiving financial assistance directly from an HHS awarding
agency to carry out a project or program. The term includes public and private institutions of higher
education, public and private hospitals, commercial organizations, and other quasi-public and
private non-profit organizations such as , but not limited to, community action agencies, research
institutes, educational associations, and health centers.

45 CFR 74.21 states, in part:
(b) Recipients’ financial management systems shall provide for the following:

(1) Accurate, current and complete disclosure of the financial results of each HHS-sponsored
project or program in accordance with the reporting requirements set forth in 45 CFR 74.52,

(3) Effective control over and accountability for alf funds, property and other assets. Recipients
shall adequately safeguard all such assets and assure they are used solely for authorized
purposes.

(7} Accounting records, including cost accounting records, that are supported by source
documentation.

The Area Agency on Aging Region Nine {Agency)} is a subrecipient of the Department of Aging which
receives both federal and state funding. As previously reported in a special audit to the Department of Aging
dated May 7, 1999, this Agency's accounting records do notreadily identify how employees’ payroll charges
are distributed among the Agency’s funds. The Agency did maintain some monthly time studies but they
were not consistently completed by employees. There was no correlation between the percentage of time
worked to funds charged; the payrolt master files were not updated based upon the time studies. The payroll
charges for January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1998 amounted to $6,325,831, which result in Questioned
Costs.

Area Agency on Aging Region Nine also shared office space with a not-for-profit organization, CORE Health,
Inc. CORE Health, Inc.’s accounts were co-mingled with the Agency’s general ledger. The receipts and
expenses of CORE Health, Inc. were inciuded in the Agency’s bank account. In 1967 and 1998, CORE
Health, Inc. revenue and expenditure reperts showed deficits of $90,625 and $384,279 respectively, totaling
$474,904. This deficit was funded by the Agency’s funds resulting in Questioned Costs of $474,804.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

OHiO DEPARTMENT OF AGING

1. SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING (Continued)

The general ledger accounts for CORE Heaith, Inc. included a $200,000 lcan from the Agency which has
not been repaid. The loan was financed by the Agency who paid interest to the lender totaling $12,399. The
principal was repaid from state emergency funds in March, 1999, for which the Agency remains liable. The
principal and interest of $212,399 result in Questioned Costs.

In addition, there were various expenditures, listed on the following table, made from Area Agency on Aging
Region Nine that did not provide adequate documentation to support the necessity, purpose, or
autherization for the expenditures made.

Description of Expenditures Amounts

A down payment made by the Agency to purchase the building was not repaid by $82,818
CORE Health, Inc. when CORE Health, Inc. later assumed ownership.

The Agency paid CORE Health, Inc. rental space for 30,000 square feet at $7.50 71,938
and $8.50 per square foot in 1997 and 1998, respectfully. The square footage for
the entire bullding was 26,442 square feet resulting in excess rental charges for
3,558 square feet. Additionally, the Agency's 1998 rental fee was $.50 per square
feet higher that other building tenants.

The Agency purchased office furniture and equipment for the building without 45,760
documentaticn to support authorization or necessity for the purchases,

The Agency made lease payments to a satellite office which was not accupied by 37,200
Agency personnel.

The Agency paid for a cleaning service without adeguate documentation although 19,100
they employed a staff person for cleaning at the time.

There were various expenses by the Agency which lacked adequate 24,372
documentation or authorization for proper purpose. These included entertainment
charges, employee gifts, legal fees, auto expenses, and credit card purchases.

Total Questioned Costs $281,186

Undocumented charges to a federal program by a subrecipient exposes the Department to potential fines
or penalties and may jeopardize future federal funding. The Department was aware of potential issues with
Area Agency on Aging Region Nine and reguested our assistance with performing additional audit
procedures.

We recommend the Department strengthen the breadth and extent of its menitoring procedures. These
procedures should include the review of payroll support documentation, contracts, relationships with not-for-
profit organizations, and proper purpose of expenditures made by the Agencies.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF AGING

2. SUBRECIPIENT COST ALLOCATION PLANS

Finding Number 1999-AGE02-003
CFDA Number and Title 93.044/93.045 - Aging Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

Formal cost allocation plans must be in place and approved by the Department's management when Area
Agencies on Aging (AAA) receive funding from both federal and state sources. In addition, monthly and
quarterly reports provided by the AAA's are to be reviewed in a timely manner to ensure funds are spent in
accordance with program guidelines.

The Department has not required AAA’s with multiple funding sources to provide cost allocation plans. Area
Agency on Aging Region Nine did not have a cost ailocation plan for its multiple fund sources as well as the
cther not-for-profit organizations operating at the facility. As a resuit, the Depariment's management is
developing policies and procedures to reguire AAA’s to submit these plans in the future.

There is an increased likelihcod of the Department disbursing funds which may not be allowable for program
purposes if cost allocation plans are not required from AAA's. Additionally, without timely monitoring of the
AAA's monthly and quarterly reports the Department decreases the timeliness for detecting financial
difficulties at the AAA’s.

The Department's management indicated they had not considered the necessity for requiring cost allocation
plans from AAA’s. Monthly and quarterly reports were reviewed by Department personnel when staffing was
available since no Department policy required a review of these reports within a defined time period.

The Department should develop pelicies and implement procedures which require AAA’s to submit cost
allocation plans to the Department for approval before disbursing funds to the AAA's. When the
Department’s internal auditors conductmonitoring visits, procedures should include inspecting AAA facilities
to determine whether the AAA is complying with the approved cost allecation plan. The Department should
develop a procedure which outlines a defined time period in which reports should be received and reviewed
by Department personnel. A tracking list may assist the Department in ensuring ali monthly and quarterly
reports from AAA's are received and reviewed by Department personnel in a timely manner, When
reviewing these reports particular emphasis shouid be placed on comparing the AAA's reported receipts and
disbursements against Deparimental information,

In their Corrective Action Plan on page 226, the Department disagrees with the Auditor's recommendation
that formal cost allocation plans are necessary since other cost accounting methods are included in its
current policies. Based on the variety of cost allocation issues identified in the questioned costs, the current
policies, in cenjunction with the Department's monitoring function, are not effective in preventing
noncompliance.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF AGING

3 SUBRECIPIENT CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENTS
Finding Number 1999-AGE03-004
CFDA Number and Title 93.044/93.045 - Aging Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPCRTABLE CONDITION

[tis management’s responsibility to require a contractual agreement between the Department and the Area
Agencies on Aging (AAA) to clearly establish responsibilities and expectations when administering or
assigning program requirements.

The Department did not have contracts with the 12 AAA's for the state and federal monies administered by
the AAA's nor did they have a general contract tc denote terms under which the AAA’s were expected to
perform and specify the rights of the Department for oversight of state and federal monies. The
Department’'s management is in the process of updating their Policy and Procedure Manual tc more clearly
define their roles and monitoring responsibilities as well as developing a general contract between the
Department and the AAA's.

Without a contractual agreement in place to establish uniform responsibilities for all AAA’s, the Department
increases the risk that inconsistent responsibilities and expectations are being applied by each ofthe AAA’s.
The Department believed their existing Policy and Procedure Manual adequately addressed their interests
and monitoring responsibilities.

We recommend the Department consider development of a general contract between the Department and
the AAA’s. The contract should include necessary clauses to define public records as well as responsibilifies
a Board of Trustees have ioward providing necessary assurances to the Department for any and all
operations they undertake. Inaddition, the contract should address requirements applicable to each source
of public money received.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

1. INCORRECT EXPENDITURE CODING

Finding Number 1999-EDUO1-005

CFDA Number and Title 84.186 - Safe and Drug Free Schools

Federal Agency Department of Education

QUESTIONED COST - UNALLOWABLE $200,000

20 USC 7113 states, in part:

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (2), an amount equal to 80 percent of the total amount altocated
to a State Under section 7111...for each fiscal year shall be used by the State educational agency
and its local educational agencies for drug and viclence prevention activities in accordance with this
section...(ii} an amount equal to 20 percent of such total amount shall be used by such independent
State agency for drug and violence prevention activities in accordance with this section.

{d) (1) A state educational agency shall distribute not less than 91 percent of the amount made
available under subsection (a) of this section for each fiscal year to local education agencies in
accordance with this subsection.

The Department disbursed $200,000 from the Safe and Drug Free Schools program {CFDA #84.186) for
expenditures related to the Substance Abuse and Preventative Maintenance Block Grant (CFDA #93.8589),
a pass-through grant from the Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services. Total expenditures
for the Safe and Drug Free Schools program were approximately $16.6 million.

Non-compliance with Federal program guidance could result in sanctions and/or adversely affect future
program funding. In addition, the Department did not use Safe and Drug Free Schools program funds for
their intended purpose to the detriment of those forwhom the program was designed to serve. The account
clerk erronecusly charged CAS fund 3D1, Safe and Drug Free Schools, instead of CAS fund 4D1, the
Substance Abuse and Preventative Maintenance Block Grant.

We recommend the Department, with assistance from the Office of Budget and Management, transfer

$200,000 from fund 4D1 {Substance Abuse and Preventative Maintenance Block Grant) to fund 3D1 (Safe
and Drug Free Schools program).

2. INCORRECT FEDERAL DRAW

Finding Number 1999-EDU02-0086
CFDA Number and Titfe 84.213 - Even Start State Educational Agencies
Federal Agency Department of Education
QUESTIONED COST - UNALLOWABLE $118,782

20 USC 6363 (b) (1), states, in part:

Each state shal! use the grant funds received under section 6382 (d)(1) and not reserved under
subsection (a) to award subgrants to eligible entities to carry out Even Start programs.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

2. INCORRECT FEDERAL DRAW {Continued)

The Department drew $118,782 from the Family Literacy Initiative (CFDA# 84.314)in error and spentthese
funds on the Even Start Program (CFDA #84.213) which expended approximatety $4 million during the fiscal
year. The error was detected during testing of draws made by the Department.

The effect of such an error is fo direct funds intended for the Family Literacy Initiative program to the Even
Start Program, resulting in that program expending mere funds than was allocated by the U.S. Department
of Education, the grantor agency. The impact of overspending in the Even Start Program could be that such
funds may be required to be returned to the grantor agency to the detriment of future program operations.
In addition, the efroneous expenditure would cause the Schedule of Federal Awards to be inaccurately
presented. An account clerk correctly recorded the fund and reporting category for the Even Start Program
on the revenue receipt but recorded the grant number for the Family Literacy Initiative programin error. The
Assistant Director used only the grant number recorded on the revenue receipt to draw funds from the
Federal government without comparing it to the fund and reporting category for agreement.

We recommend the Department, with assistance from the Office of Budget and Management, transfer
$118,782 from the Even Start program to the Family Literacy Initiative program to correct the previous error.
Fusther, we recommend the Department review the revenue receipt coding more carefully prior to requesting
program funds from the grantor agency.

3. GRANT ADMINISTRATION PAYMENT SYSTEM REPORTS

Finding Number 1998-EDUQ3-007

CFDA Number and Title All Programs Administered by the Department

Federal Agency Department of Education

QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED $108,189

34 CFR 80.20 (b)(2) states:

Grantees and subgrantees must maintain records which adequately identify the source and
application of funds provided for financially-assisted activities. These records must contain
information pertaining to grant or subgrant awards and authorizations, obligations, uncbligated
balances, assets, liabilities, outlays or expenditures, and income.

We noted the following discrepancies between the revenue amounts reported by the Grant Administration
and Payment System (GAPS) and the amcunts shown as revenue on the state’s Central Accounting System
(CAS):
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SCHEDULE QF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

3. GRANT ADMINISTRATION PAYMENT SYSTEM REPORTS {Continued)

GAPS Sysitem
CFDA Program Revenue CAS Revenue Difference
84.002 [Adult Education - State Grant Program $ 14865495 § 13,430,729 $ 1.434,766
84.010 [Title | Grants to Locai Educational Agencies 318,698,632 297,716,742 20,881,890
84.011 [Migrant Education - Basic State Grant Program 2,192,710 2,098,175 94,535
84.013 [Title | Program for Neglected & Delinguent 1,570,272 1,700,518 (130,246
84.027 [Special Education - Grants to States 85,385,216 111,508,807 (26,121,591
84.029 |Special Education - Personal Development and 112,803 101,667 1,138(
Parent Training
84.048 Nocational Education - Basic Grants to States 41,780,806 41,492 430 268,376
84.162 [Immigrant Education 352,378 351,437 o941
84.173 [Speciai Education - Preschoo! Grants 10,753,513 10,550,513 203,000
84.186 [Safe & Drug-Free Schools and Communities - 17,636,836 16,522,082 1,114,554
State Grants
84.194  |Bilingual Education Support Services 123,767 128,767 (5,000
84.196 |Education for Homeless Children and Youth 1,122,896 1,058,500 64,396{
84.206 avits Gifted and Talented Students Education 308,000 289,136 18,864
Grant Program
84.213 [Even Start - State Educational Agencies 4,198,535 4,045,042 153,493
84.215 [Fund for the improvement of Education 134,125 197,101 (62,978
84.243 [Tech-Prep Education 4,543,081 4,530,281 12,800
84.276 [Goals 2000 - State and Local Education Systemic 22,315,151 21412137 903,014
Improvement Grants
84.281 [Eisenhower Professional Development Grants 12,016,420 11,654,465 321,955
84.298 [nnovative Education Program Strategies 12,260,163 11,830,239 350,624|
84.314 [Even Start - State Family Literacy Program 157,855 41,780 116,075
84.318 |Technology Literacy Challenge Fund Grants 16,849,500 16,694,500 155,000f
84.923 [Appalachian Regional Commission 201,956 80,673 211,283
Total:| $ 567,679,910 $ 567,573,721 $ 106,189]

I addition, the Department did not perform periodic reconciliations of amounts reported in GAPS with
amounts recorded in CAS to ensure the validity of reported amounts. Finally, we noted that several
adjustments were made by an authorized Department user but were not authorized by management. Due
1o these circumstances, we must question the amount of the discrepancies between revenue per GAPS and
that recorded in the state financial system.

Without sufficient monitoring activities in place, the Department cannot reasonably ensure the accuracy of
cash draws made through GAPS for federal grants or the amount available for those grants. In addition, the
Department would be unable to ensure that only authorized transactions are being made by authorized
users, resuiting in potentially abnormal activity and fraud.

According to the Fiscal Consultant responsibie for cash draws, GAPS is a new systemwhich had many flaws
when introduced by the US Department of Education. In addition, the state Department had attempted for
several months to reconcile the amounts recorded on GAPS to official state accounting records to no avail.

We recommend the Department enter into discussions with the U.S. Department of Education to determine
the disposition of the differences noted previously. In addition, we recommend the Department reconcile
GAPS-reported amounts with CAS amounts frequently to monitor the transactions posted to both systems.
Finally, we recommend that adjustments be properly documented and maintained centrally. Al
reconciliations and significant adjustments should be approved by management.
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4, EXPENDITURE MADE AFTER PERIOD OF AVAILABILITY

Finding Number 1288-EDU04-008

CFDA Number and Title 84.027 & 84.173 - Special Education Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Education
QUESTIONED COST - UNALLOWABLE $23,417
34 CFR 80.23 {b) states:

Agrantee must liquidate all obligations incurred under the award not later than 90 days after the end
of the funding period... The Federal agency may extend this deadline at the request of the grantee.

The Department disbursed $23,417 to a subrecipient on May 11, 1968 from the 1996 Preschool project
grant, The period of availability for this grant was from July 1, 1996 to September 30, 1997 with a carryover
provision from October 1, 1997 to September 30, 1988. Accordingly, all obligations incurred under this grant
were required to be liguidated by December 31, 1998. This expenditure was made 130 days after the
required liquidation date, with no extension requested, Therefore, we will guestion the entire amount of the
disbursement. Total expenditures for this program was approximately $11 million,

If the Department does not liquidate its obligations in accordance with Federal regulations, it could be
required to repay the funds to the Federal government. According to the Grants Manager, it appears the
expenditure was not checked to determine that funds were still available prior to its approval for payment.

We recommend the Department contact the Federal cognizantagency in order to determine the disposition
of the expenditure being questioned. |n addition, we recommend the Department more closely monitor
expenditures to help ensure that funds are spent within the peried of availability by reviewing fund balances
in Federal grant accounts prior o the expiration of the period of availability.

5. SUBRECIPIENT MCNITORING

Finding Number 1999-EDUC5-009

CFDA Number and Title Alf Programs Administered by the Department

Federal Agency Departments of Agriculture and Education
NONCOMPLIANCE

OMB Circular A-133, Subpart D, §__.400 (d) for audits of Fiscal Years beginning after June 30, 1986, states,
in part, that a pass-threugh entity shall perform the following for the Federal awards it makes:

(3) Monitor the activities of subrecipients as necessary to ensure that Federal awards are used for
authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant
agreements and that performance goals are achieved.

)] Ensure that subrecipients expending $300,000 or more in Federal awards during the subrecipient's
fiscal year have met the audit requirements of this part for that fiscal year.
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5. SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING {Continued)

(5) Issue a management decision on audit findings within six months after receipt of the subrecipient's
audit report and ensure that the subrecipient takes appropriate and timely corrective action.

During our review of the subrecipient monitoring functions at the Department, we noted the following
exceptions:

. The Office of Grants Management had not received 30 of 483 audit reports for subrecipients
required to have an audit for fiscal year 1997 and had not received 60 of 448 audit reports for
subrecipients reguired to have an audit for fiscal year 1998.

. Fifteen of 60 fiscal year 1997 and 1398 audit reports tested had not been closed or had a corrective
action letter sent to the district within six months.

. The subrecipient audit logs maintained by the Office of Grants Management:

»  had multiple Information Retrieval Numbers (IRN), the internal identification number given fo an
entity, for the same subrecipient;

» did not indicate IRN numbers for 17 entities receiving Federal funds;

» had two entities with the same IRN number;

»  had 244 entries where the Federal Tax ID number was used for more than one entry on the log;

» did not list Federal Tax 1D numbers on the audit log for 17 entities which received Federal funds.
. Six of ten Corrective Action memoranda forwarded by the Office of Grants Management to the

Division of Child Nutrition Services were not on file to document the resolution of audit findings.

. The Division of Vocational Education did not have a tracking system in place to ensure that audit
findings forwarded by the Office of Grants Management were resolved and approved in a timely
manner by management.

The Department has approximately 2,500 subrecipients which collectively receive over $500,000,000 in
Federal subsidy payments.

Without complete and accurate information contained within the subrecipient tracking system, the
Department cannot be reasonably assured that all subrecipients required to submit audit reports have done
$0 or have had appropriate and timely corrective action resolutions. As a result, the risk that Federal funds
may be spent improperly by the subrecipient or that effective and timely corrective action may not be taken
on their reported internal control weaknesses and Federal noncompliance issues is increased.

According to the Grants Manager, the preblem with delinquent reports continues to relate mainly to non-profit
institutions subject to the audit requirements under OMB Circular A-133. In addition, the Department had
limited control in ensuring that audits are completed and the reports are submitted timely, since the audits
are not conducted by Department personnel. As to inaccuracies with the log, the Office of Grants
Management does not have access to records from other divisicns within the Department of Education
which would assist them in determining the completeness and accuracy of the log.
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5. SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING (Continued)

We recommend the Department increase its efforts in recording audit reports into the fracking system and
validating information contained within the system. Those subrecipients who do not submit reports within
the required period should be notified of their noncompliance and stronger action taken for those whao remain
delinquent, including the withholding of future funds until compliance is achieved. In addition, we
recommend the Department provide the Office of Grants Management with access to all pertinent division
records to allow the proper tracking of subrecipients and eliminate duplicate Information Retrieval Numbers.

6. ON-SITE REVIEWS
Finding Number 1995-EDU0G-010
CFDA Number and Title 10.558 - Child and Adult Care Food Program
Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
NONCOMPLIANCE

7 CFR 226.6(1) states, in part:

Documentation of supervisory assistance activities, including reviews conducted, corrective actions
prescribed, and follow-up efforts, shall be maintained on file by the State agency.

7 CFR 226.6()) states, in part:

State agencies shall annually review 33.3 percent of all institutions [sponsoring organization, child
care center, outside-school-hours care center, or adult day care center.] State agencies shall also
ensure that each institution is reviewed according to the following schedule. (1) Independent
centers, sponsering organizations of centers, and sponsoring organizations of day care homes with
1 to 200 homes shall be reviewed at least once every four years.

Reviews of sponsoring organizations shall include reviews of 15 percant of their child care, adult day
care, and outside-school-hours care centers and 10 percent of their day care homes. (2)
Sponsoring organizations with more than 200 homes shall be reviewed at least once every two
years. Reviews of such sponsoring organizations shall include reviews of 5 percent of the first 1,000
homes and 2.5 percent of all homes in excess of 1,000. (3) Reviews shall be conducted for newly
participating sponsoring organizations with five or more child care facilities or adult day care facilities
within the first 90 days of program operations.

The Department did not monitor its 690 Child and Adult Care Food program subrecipients for compliance
with program regulations as follows:

. Only 121 on-site reviews, representing 17.5 percent of participants, were completed during the audit
period.
. Three of 20 on-site reviews tested did not have a signed Completion of Carrective Action Memos

on file as evidence of the review and acceptance of the subrecipients’ corrective action plans. In
addition, the Department could not preduce documentation that a corrective action plan was
submitted to correct review deficiencies.
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6. ON-SIiTE REVIEWS (Continued)

. One of two newly participating institutions tested with greater than five facilities was not reviewed
within 90 days of beginning operations as required. The institution began participation in the
program on June 8, 1998 and was not reviewed until March 3, 1999, 178 days in excess of the
requirement.

Without performing on-site reviews when they are reguired and ensuring adequate corrective action plans
are filed, there is increased risk that institutions are not operating the Child and Adult Care Food Program
inaccordance with program regulations and will continue to administer the program to the potential detriment
of the children and adults for whom the program is intended to serve. According to the Assistant Director,
staffing limitations have hampered the Depariment’s efforts to achieve compliance with this reguirement.
In addition, at the start of the year, an etror was made when calculating how many reviews needed to be
completed to meet the federal requitements. The number of sponsors was erronecusly divided by four,
instead of three, meaning the Department assighed consultant reviews based on a 25 percent goal instead
of the required 33.33 percent.

We recommend the Department pericdically review the on-site review database to determine the progress
toward meeting regulatory requirements. If necessary, the Department should reassign on-site reviews to
program consultants o help ensure the appropriate number of reviews will be completed. In addition, we
recommend the corrective action completed database field not be updated until an approved corrective
acticn memo s received, approved and filed. During the periodic review of the database, management can
identify those completed reviews for which corrective action plans are still outstanding and take appropriate
action as hecessary. Finally, we recommend that an additional field be added to the database to track the
date the institution began program participation. Atthe time these institutions are entered into the database,
the on-site review should be immediately assigned and communicated to the appropriate consultant to help
ensure the review is completed within the appropriate time.

7. STATE AGENCY REVIEW CRITERIA

Finding Number 1999-EDU07-011
CFDA Number and Title 10.553, 10.555, 10.556, 10.559 - Child Nutrition Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Agriculture

NONCOMPLIANCE

7 CFR 210.18 {p) states, in part;
{p) the Siate agency must have on file:

(1) Criteria for selecting schools on first and follow-up reviews in accordance with paragraphs
(e}2)(iiy and (i}{2)(ii) of this section.
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7. STATE AGENCY REVIEW CRITERIA (Continued)
7 CFR 210.18 ()(2)(ii) states, in part:

When the number of schools selected on the basis of the criteria established in paragraph (A)
through paragraph {C) of this paragraph are not sufficient to meet the minimum number of schools
required under paragraph (g)(1) of this section, the schools selected for review shall be selected on
the basis of State agency criteria which may include low participation schools, recornmendations
from a food service director based on findings from on-site visits or the claims review process
required under Sec. 210.8(a) of this part; or any school in which the daily iunch counts appear
questionable, e.g., identical or very similar claiming patterns, and/or large changes in free lunch
counts.

The Departmentdid not have documented State criteria for selecting schools for initial review in accordance
with 7 CFR 210.18 (p)(t} for the 1,400 subrecipients participating in the Child Nutrition Cluster programs.
One consultant within the Division of Child Nutrition is responsible for determining which schools will have
an initial on-site review conducted by the Department for the National School Lunch Program and the
selection criteria is not standardized.

Without documented criteria for selecting which schools will have an initiat on-site review, the Department
risks losing its intellectual capital should the consultant responsible for the selections resign or retire, In
addition, assurance cannoct be provided that all schools selected for initial on-site reviews are evaluated
againstthe same risk factors, allowing for the possibility of over looking a problem school building. According
to the Director of Child Nutrition Services, the Department has an experienced consultant who is familiar with
the laws and regulations for the National School Lunch Program responsible for sefecting schools for the
initial on-site reviews of school food authorities and did not see the need of having and using documented
criteria to select schoals.

We recommend the Department establish and document a set of criteria for selecting schools for the initial

on-site review. The criteria should be devised after assessing the potential risks to which schools are
subject in order to provide reasonable assurance that each schoolis consistently and effectively evaluated.

8. SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

Finding Number 1999-EDU08-012

CFDA Number and Title All Programs Administered by the Department

Federal Agency Departments of Agriculture and Education
NONCOMPLIANCE

7 CFR 3017.510(b)(1) and 34 CFR 85.510(b)(1) state, in part:

Each participant shall require participants in lower tier covered transactions to include the
certification in Appendix B to this part for it and its principals in any proposal submitted in connection
with such lower tier covered transactions.
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8.  SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT (Continued)
7 CFR 3017.510(b)(2) and 34 CFR 85.510(b}(2) state, in part:

A participant may rely upon the certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered
transaction that it and its principals are not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from the covered transaction by any Federal agency, unless it knows the certification is erroneous.
Participants may decide the methed and frequency by which they determine the eligibility of their
principals.

The Department of Education did not obtain suspension and debarment certifications as follows:

Grant CFDA Number of Subrecipients Number of
without a Valid Suspension | Subrecipients
and Debarment Certification

Child and Adult Care 10.558 8 of 40 tested 690
Food Program

Child Nutrition Cluster 10.553, 10.555., 20 of 20 tested 1,400
10.556, 10.559

Vocational Education 84.048 20 of 20 tested 94

Without obtaining the necessary suspension and debarment certifications, the Department risks providing
Federal awards to entities that are suspended or debarred from participation in Federa! programs which
could potentially resultin a disaliowance of costs, annulment or termination of the award, issuance of a stop
work order andfor debarment or suspension from receiving Federal awards.

According to the Nutritional pregrams fiscaf consultant, she was not aware the requirement applied to
subrecipients. According to the Child and Adult Care Food Program Assistant Director, the cerifications
were not obiained for the family day care homes paricipating in the program due to an oversight. According
to the Vocational Education fiscal officer, they have revised the forms for future periods but did not change
the form for the year audited.

We recommend the Ohio Department of Education require that all subrecipients receiving Federal awards
from the Department complete and sign the suspension and debarment certification in 7 CFR 3017.510
Appendix B and 34 CFR 85 Appendix B at the time of application in order to comply with Federal laws and
regulations pertaining to suspension and debarment.
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9. DATA PROCESSING - APPLICATION DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE
Finding Number 1899-EDU09-013
CFDA Number and Title All Programs Administered by the Department
Federal Agency Depariments of Agriculture and Education

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

The use of formal, well documented procedures for computer application development and maintenance is
vital for communicating management's operational goals and intentions to programming personnel as well
as training new staff. Such written procedures can help ensure that computer applications developed or
modified by programming management perform accurately, efficiently, and meet management's
requirements. The procedures sheuld cover such areas as programming standards, naming conventions,
methodology description, schedules and budgets, design standards, approvalproceduresforusers, approval
procedures for data processing management, and testing standards.

The Department did not have written procedures to track the program change request process from the initial
assignment of a project through to the project's compietion for application modifications related to the
Education Management Information System (EMIS), Child Nutrition System {CNS), Vocational Education
{VOC-ED), and the Schoot Foundation Fund. In addition, programming management did not prepare formal
schedules or budgets for development or maintenance projects.

Without formal procedures for application development, critical data processing applications could be
improperly designed, modified or implemented.

According to the Assistant Directer of Information Management Services, due to time and cost constraints,
the Department's programming management had not developed and implemented formal standards for the
various stages of the application program change process. Instead, the procedures were maintained
informally.

We recommend that formal standards for the program change request process be established throughout
the entire life cycle. Each phase of the life cycle should be planned and controlled, comply with the
developed standards, be adequately documented, be staffed by competent personnel, and have project
checkpoints and sign-offs.
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1. CASH MANAGEMENT
Finding Number 1999-BES01-014
CFDA Number and Title 17.246 - Employment and Training Assistance: Dislocated Workers
17.250 - Job Training Partnership Act
Federal Agency Department of Labor
NONCOMPLIANCE

U.S. Treasury regulations in 31 CFR part 205, which implement the Cash Management Improvement Act
of 1990 {CMIA), require State recipients to enter into agreements which prescribe specific methods of
drawing down (funding techniques) Federal funds for selected large programs. The State-administered
JTPA/EDWAA federal program is subject to a CMIA Treasury/State agreement, which states the "State shall
reguest funds such that they are credited fo a State account not more than two business days before making
disbursements.” When the entity also acts as a pass-through agency for federal funding, it is the
responsibility of the entity’s management to institute an effective internal control system which requires the
implementation of processing procedures that promote the consistent and timely processing of requests in
order to minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and the
disbursement to subrecipients of program funding.

Two of the three months selected for testing showed the Bureau maintained excessive daily balances.
During September 1998, the Bureau maintained an average daily balance of $ 959,189 with the average
daily expenditures of $481,657 (nearly twice their immediate need); during December 1998, the Bureau
maintained an average daily balance of $392,567 with the average daily expenditures of $318,595 (more
than 1.2 times their immediate needs).

In addition, 13 of the 60 (22 percent} draw down requests tested indicated the money was not disbursed
within the required two business days after being requested. Most of these disbursements occurred one
day later than allowed, although one disbursement occurred three business days later than allowed. Per
discussion with an employee at the state Office of Budget and Management (OBM), which is responsible
for entering into the Treasury/State agreement on behalf of the State as well as calculating any interest
liability for the State, the Bureau incurred interest charges of $16,274 for the EDWAA program and $36,040
for the JTPA program during FY 1999,

By not establishing effective procedures for minimizing the cash balance to cover only the program's
immediate needs, the Bureau risks not being in compliance with the Cash Management requirements and
thereby losing federal funding or incurring questioned costs, although no related costs were questioned
during this period. Also, for each day after the required two day disbursement requirement, the State is
responsible for paying interest to the federal government.

The excess average daily balance was caused by inaccurate estimates of the Bureau's cash needs. OBES
estimates the amount of their immediate needs based on the amount of vouchers processed the previous
two days, the current cash balance, and the amount of accounts payable. When the Bureau became aware
of this condition in February 1899, it altered the method used to estimate its cash needs. Management
believes the new process will eliminate the deficiency; we did not note an exception for the one month we
tested under the new method. Also, the Bureau has a general understanding ar special arrangement with
OBM to process vouchers from the JTPA/EDWAA federal program on a priority basis in order to meet the
two day requirement of the CMIA. The Bureau has control over the preparation of the voucher, but has no
control aver the processing of the voucher, which is performed by OBM.
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1. CASH MANAGEMENT (Continued)

We recommend the Bureau reevaluate the current procedures in place and establish and implement
appropriate internal contro! procedures to help ensure adequate estimates of the cash needs for the
JTPA/EDWAA federal program. We also recommend the Bureau review the draw down requests that did
not meet the federal requirement to determine whether the delay occurred at the Bureau or OBM and
consider alternatives to comply with the requirement. One such alternative may be to urge OBM to
renegotiate the Treasury/State CMIA agreement to provide for a longer disbursement period to better
accommedate the clearance patterns.

2. SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING

Finding Number 1999-BES02-015
CFDA Number and Title 17.246 - Employment and Training Assistance; Dislocated Workers
17.250 - Job Training Partnership Act
Federal Agency Department of Labor
NONCOMPLIANCE

20 CFR 627.480 refers to the Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133, which states, in part:
400 Responsibilities.

(d) Pass-through entity responsibilities. A pass-through entity shall perform the following for the
federal awards it makes:

(3) Monitor the activities of subrecipients as necessary to ensure that Federal awards are used
for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of
contracts or grant agreements and that performance goals are achieved.

{(4) Ensure that subrecipients expending $300,000 or more in Federal awards during the
subrecipient’s fiscal year have met the audit requirements of this part for that fiscal year.

(5) Issue a management decision on audit findings within six months after receipt of the
subrecipient’s audit report and ensure that the subrecipient takes appropriate and timely
corrective action.

(6) Consider whether subrecipient audits necessitate adjustments of the pass-through entity’s
own records.

(7) Require each subrecipient to permit the pass-through entity and auditors to have access
1o the records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to comply
with this part.
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2. SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING (Continued)
405 Management Decision.

(a) General. The management decisicn shall clearly state whether or not the audit finding is
sustained, the reasons for the decision, and the expected auditee action to repay disallowed costs,
make financial adjustments, or take other action. Ifthe auditee has not completed corrective action,
a timetable for follow-up should be given. Prior to issuing the management decision, the Federal
agency or pass-through entity may request additional information or documentation from the
auditee, including a request for auditor assurance related to the documentation, as a way of
mitigating disallowed costs. The management decision should describe any appeal process
available to the auditee.

Under the JTPAJEDWAA federal program, the Bureau awarded 36 grants to subrecipients or Service
Delivery Areas (SDA) for PY 96 and 34 grants for PY 97. The Bureau prepares an Audit Tracking Log to
help determine the SDAs fiscal year, due dates of audit reports, and other monitoring information. The
following deficiencies were noted in the Bureau’s monitoring activities:

. The Bureau did not receive the required subrecipient audit reports timely from two of the ten SDAs
tested. One audit was due 2/23/99 but not received until 3/4/99, while the other was due 1/31/29
but not received until 2/11/99.

. The Bureau did not timely review and issue a management decision on audit findings within six
months after receipt of the subrecipient's audit report and ensure that the subrecipients took
appropriate and timely corrective action for 35 of the PY 96 SDAs and 23 of the PY 97 SDAs. The
number of days in excess of the required deadline before the Bureau made an “initial determination”
ranged from 10 to 401 days. As of 11/10/99, the date of the test, the Bureau had not yet made a
“final determination” for 10 of the PY 96 SDAs and 11 of the PY 97 SDAs.

. One PY 96 SDA was granted two extensions, one until 4/30/98 and another until 6/30/98, even
though the original due date for the audit report was not until 7/31/98. The report was received on
7/13/98.

. The PY 97 Audit Tracking Log listed the incorrect due date for 22 of the SDAs. These were shown

with a 7/1/99 due date when they should have been 7/31/99. In addition, two other SDAs were
listed with the wrong fiscal years; one was shown as 7/1/97 to 6/30/28 when it should have been
11197 to 12131797, while the other was shown as 1/1/97 to 1/31/87 when it should have been 1/1/97
to 12131/97.

Without sufficient monitoring procedures, the Bureau cannot ensure the requirements of Circular A-133 have
been met. Moreover, if the Bureau is not in compliance, federal funding could be reduced or taken away,
or sanctions imposed by the federal grantor agency. Noncompliance could also result in the Bureau having
to repay partor all of the grant awards to the federal government, although no related costs were guestioned
during this period.

Management stated these conditions was caused by the Bureau’s Power Chio Division having insufficient
personnel to perform monitoring procedures during the related time periods. In addition, one of the PY 97
SDAs with the wrong fiscal year was in the process of changing its fiscal year; the new fiscal year was
shown instead of the old and then current fiscal year.
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We recommend the Bureau assess the adequacy of their controls over subrecipient monitoring to determine
if the controls and personnel resources are sufficient to comply with the federal requirements. We also
recommend the Bureau use the controls to properly monitor their subrecipients and resolve any subrecipient
audit findings in a timely manner in compliance with Circular A-133. We recommend the Bureau designate
an employee other than the preparer to review the Logs for accuracy and completeness. In addition, the
Bureau should consider and implement the practice of withholding future awards to subrecipients who are
not in compliance with the federal audit provisions.

3. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

Finding Number 1999-BES03-016

CFDA Number and Title All Programs Administered by the Buresu

Federal Agency Department of Labor
NONCOMPLIANCE

28 CFR 97.32 (b) states:

A State will use, manage, and dispose of equipment acquired under a grant by the State in
accordance with State laws and procedures.

Section J 1 of the State’s Property Inventory Directive 96-02, prepared by the Department of Administrative
Services, requires that, in addition to state reguirements, state agencies must also adhere 1io federal
guidelines and rules for inventory requirements. The federal Common Rule, Subpart C, Section .32,
Paragraph (d) states:

Proceduresfor managing equipment (including replacement equipment), whether acquired inwhole
or in part with grant funds, until disposition takes place will, as a minimum, meet the following
requirements:

Property records must be maintained that include a description of the property, a serial number
or other identification number, the source of property, who holds title, the acquisition date, and
cost of the property, percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property, the focation,
use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition data including the date of
disposal and sale price of the property.

Per the coding used on vouchers, which are maintained only for a limited number of years, the Bureau has
a method in place to distinguish between assets purchased with federal money and those purchased with
state money. However, except for newly acquired assets, the Bureau’s inventory records do not sufficiently
identify the portion of an asset's total cost paid from each funding source, nor do the records indicate the
particular federal grogram that paid for all or part of the inventory asset. Two of the 20 (10 percent) inventory
items tested did not include this information. In October 1998, the Bureau put into use a new inventory
system, which has the capability of providing this information, but since the information was not available
under the old fegacy inventory system, the new system does not list the funding source and specific federal
programs for the majority of assets.
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Other weaknesses noted with the inventory process include the following items:

. One of the inventory controls identified was that a yearly physical inventory be performed and the
results certified by the designated cost center manager within the specified period. Two of the 12
(17 percent) cost centers tested did not submit the certification timely, Information from the cost
centers is used to prepare the annual agency inventory certification.

' Of 20 items tested, discrepancies were noted between the inventory record and an inspection of the
physical item.

» A monitor was recorded as a computer.
»  Two items were recorded with the incorrect cost center location.
»  Seven items could not be located.

. A capital lease purchase item, valued at$ 75,910 and purchased in August 1998, was not recorded
on the inventory records as of Cctober 1999, over a year later.

As a result of the inability to sufficiently identify the portion of assets purchased with state and federal
money, the Bureau cannot determine how much residual value may be required to be returned to the federal
grantor agency at the time of the asset's disposal. Inaccurate, incomplete and untimely recording of
individual assets increases the risk that inventory records wili not be accurate, complete and reflect the
actual assets owned by the Bureau.

Management indicated the Bureau's older fixed asset system did not have the capability to separate
percentages of state and federal participation used to acquire an asset nor to identify the federal program
name and federal CFDA number used te acquire an asset; therefore, this information was not included in
the new system. Although this information may be able to be obtained from expenditure documents, it is
not very readily available nor is it retained indefinitely. The new Fixed Asset Management Division is still
in its infancy, and did not realize the errors noted had occurred.

We recommend the Bureau contact the Department of Labor to obtain written guidance on how to handle
the lack of information on the funding source and program participation of the older assetitems. During the
interim, the Bureau should enter this required information from the expenditure documents that it still has
available to it. Moreover, we recommend the Bureau stress to the cost center managers the importance of
submitting timely, accurate and compiete information for inclusion into the agency’s inventory records.

4, UNTIMELY REPORT SUBMISSION

Finding Number 1999-BES04-017

CFDA Number and Title 17.225 - Unempioyment Insurance

Federal Agency Department of Labor
NONCOMPLIANCE

The Bureau is required by federal regulations to report program expenditures and other data to the federal
grantor agencies on a regular basis. As the federal grantor for the Unemployment Insurance (U1} federal
program, the Department of Labor has established the following requirements regarding reporting:
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4. UNTIMELY REPORT SUBMISSION (Continued)

The UI-3 worksheet and SF 269 [Financial Status Report] are due within 30 days after the end of
the reporting quarter. {Chapter Il, § II, D of the ET Handbook No. 336, Unemployment Insurance
State Quality Service Plan (SQSP) Planning and Reporting Guidelines, 16™ edition]

The ETA-227 [Querpayment Detection and Collection Activities] report is due quarterly on the first
day of the second month after the quarter of reference. [Page IV-3-5 of the ET Handbook No. 401,
Unemployment Reports Handbook, 2nd edition]

The ETA 581 report for each calendar quarteris due in the Employment and Training Administration
National Office on the 20" day of the second month fallowing the quarter to which it relates, i.e., May
20, August 20, November 20, and February 20. [Page of the ET Handbook No. 401, Unemployment
Reports Handhook, 2nd edition]

The Bureau did not submit the following reports to the Department of Labor within the required deadlines,
as indicated by the following table:

Report Reports Tested Quarter(s) Late Due Date Date Submitted | Days Late
ETA 581 4 December 1998 February 20, March 15, 1999 23
1999
ETA 227 4 December 1998 February 1, 1999 | February 2, 1999 1
-3 4 December 1998 January 30, 1898 | February 1, 1999 2
June 1999 July 30, 1999 August 4, 1559 5

Noncompliance with the Department of Labor's requirements for submitting and preparing the reports by the
required deadline could result in the loss of federal funds for the program or defay reimbursement for
completed activities. Moreover, future funding could be adversely affected if inaccurate information is used
by the federal government to determine award amcunts. Management stated the fate submissions were
caused by additional time needed to prepare the reports due to multiple divisions being involved in their
preparation. The UC Tax/Contribution Division and UC Program Liaisen Division process the reports before
forwarding them to the Lakor Market Information Division for finat completion.

We recommend the Bureaureview the Department of Labor requirements for preparing and submitting these
reports and institute monitoring and control procedures to reasenably ensure they submit the reports by the
established filing deadlines. One method this could be achieved is by maintaining a tickler file with the report
filing dates or a checklist for those employees responsible for preparing, reviewing, and submitting the
reports. Another method this could be achieved is by the Bureau providing specific training and instructions
to employees who assume new responsibility in the reports submission process. Another alternative is that
the Bureau request extensions from the federal grantor agency when they know they aren't going to submit
the reports timely.
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5. USE OF TRANSMITTAL LETTER
Finding Number 1999-BES05-018
CFDA Number and Title 17.225 - Unemployment Insurance
Federal Agency Department of Labor
NONCOMPLIANCE

26 CFR 31.3302 (a) - 3(a) requires states to annually certify for each taxpayer the total amount of
contributions required 1o be paid under state law for the calendar year and the amounts and dates of such
payments in order for the taxpayer to be allowed the credit against the FUTA tax. Section 5.07 of the
Internal Raevenue Service Guide for Computerized Certification of State FUTA Credits {Document 6581)
states “All state agencies are utilizing magnetic tape to certify FUTA credits. A transmittal letter (Exhibit 1)
should be used by all state agencies to forward the certification data to MCC [Martinsburg Computing
Center]. ... A second copy of the transmittal letter will be also sent to the appropriate FUTA Coordinator.”

Although the Bureau submitted the Certification and tape for calendar year 1998 timely in April 1899, it did
notinclude a transmittal letter with the tapes. The transmittalletter includes space for a certification number,
type of record data, signature of releasing official, and other information. As a result, the Bureau hasn't
complied with the requirement, which could cause the tapes to be lost, misplaced or delayed in their arrival.

This condition occurred because the Bureau's employees responsible for submitting the tapes stated they
considered the use of the transmittal letter optional instead of mandatory.

Wa recommend the Bureau take appropriate steps to ensure the persons responsible for submitting the
tapes are aware of the existence of and need to use and do actually use the required transmittal letter.
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1. SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING

Finding Number 1899-DOH01-019
CFDA Number and Tiffe CFDA 10.557 - Special Supplemental Food Program for Women,
fnfants, and Children
Federat Agency Department of Agriculture
NONCOMPLIANCE

The Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133 states, in part:

400 Responsibilities.

(d) Pass-through entity responsibilities. A pass-through entity shall perform the following for the

federal awards it makes:

1.

Monitor the activities of subrecipients as necessary to ensure that Federal awards are used
for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of
contracts or grant agreements and that performance goals are achieved.

Ensure that subrecipients expending $300,000 or more in Federal awards during the
subrecipient's fiscal year have met the audit requirements of this part for that fiscal year.

Issue a management decision on audit findings within six months after receipt of the
subrecipient's audit report and ensure that the subrecipient takes appropriate and timely
corrective action.

Consider whether subrecipient audits necessitate adjustments of the pass-through entity’s
own records.

Require each subrecipient to permit the pass-through entity and auditors to have access
to the records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to comply
with this part.

.405 Management Decision.

(a) General. The management decision shall clearly state whether or not the audit finding is
sustained, the reasons for the decision, and the expected auditee action to repay disallowed costs,
make financial adjustments, or take other action. Ifthe auditee has not completed corrective action,
a timetable for follow-up should be given. Prior to issuing the management decision, the Federal
agency or pass-through entity may request additional information or documentation from the
auditee, including a request for auditor assurance related to the documentation, as a way of
mitigating disallowed costs. The management decision should describe any appeal process
available to the auditee.
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1. SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING (Continued)

The Department has 76 subrecipients of the Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) program, of these, 44
subrecipients met the audit requirements of Circular A-133. The Department did not receive and review all
of the required WIC program subrecipient audit reports, due in state fiscal year 1999, or ensure the
subrecipients took appropriate and timely corrective action on audit findings. Testing in this area indicated
the feliowing conditions:

As of November 1999, two of the subrecipients did not have a current report on file at the
Department; furthermore, 15 submitted their reports late. Also, the Department did not review 19
of the recelved reports on a timely basis per Circular A-133, did not determine that timely corrective
action was taken by subrecipients for 17 audi reports, and may not have reflected in Department
records the effects of noncompliance for the same 17 audit reports. Funds disbursed to this
program's subrecipients during calendar year(s) 1897 andfor 1998, for which an audit report would
have been due in fiscal year 1999, approximated $ 108,777,306 program expenditures.

In addition, the Department lacks sufficient policies and procedures 1o identify risks and determine
risk assessments associated with the program subrecipients.

Without sufficient monitoring procedures, the Department cannot ensure the requirements of Circular A-133
have been met. Moreover, if the Department is notin compliance, federal funding could be reduced or taken
away, or sanctions imposed by the federal grantor agency. Noncompliance could also result in the
Department having to repay part or all of the grant awards to the federal government, although no related
costs were questioned during this period.

The condition was caused by the Department's Internal Audit Section and Grants Administration Section,
which have the responsibility for monitoring WIC subrecipients, lacking sufficient policies and procedures
toidentify risks and determine risk assessments of the subrecipients to ensure that subrecipient audit reports
are received in & timely manner, Furthermore, the department has not adequately monitored the controls
in place to follow up on these audit reports to ensure timely desk reviews are performed. In addition, the
Department has not implemented controls to address any potential follow-up acticn by the subrecipient
and/or the Department.

We recommend the Department assess the adequacy of their controls over subrecipient monitaring to
determine if the controls are sufficient to comply with the federal requirements. We also recommend the
Department use the controls to properly monitor their subrecipients and resolve any subrecipient audit
findings in a timely manner in compliance with Circular A-133. In addition, the Department should consider
withholding future awards to subrecipients who are not in compliance with the federal audit provisions.
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1. FOSTER CARE - UNALLOWED MAINTENANCE CHARGES

Finding Number 1999-HUMO01-020

CFDA Number and Title 93.658 - Foster Care

Federat Agency Department of Health and Human Services

QUESTIONED COST - UNALLOWABLE $1,393,067

42 U.S.C. §675 (4)(a) states:

The term “foster care maintenance payments” means payments to cover the cost of (and the cost
of providing) food, clothing, sheiter, daily supervision, school supplies, a child's personal incidentals,
liability insurance with respect to a child, and reasonable travel to the child’s home for visitation.
In the case of institutional care, such term shall include the reasonable cost of administration and
operation of such institution as are necessarily required to provide the items described in the
preceding sentence.

In response tc a prior year questioned cost, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
instructed the Ohio Department of Human Services (ODHS} to revise their practice of classifying
non-maintenance expenses (reimbursable from the federal government at 50%) as maintenance expenses
(reimbursable at 58%) on Title IV-E private family foster care facilities’ cost reports; and to make a series
of adjustments beginning with the June, 1999 quarter. As a result, ODHS made an estimated adjustment
on their June 30, 1989 IV-E 12 report to reduce the amount of federal reimbursement requested by
$617,657. ODHS then reclassified the unallowable maintenance costs to administration on the GDHS 2910
reports used to calculate the rates for reimbursement for private foster care facilities. ODHS applied these
adjusted rates to those costs associated with services occurring after April 1, 1999 and determined the
amount of overpayment to be only $313,752, therefore, no additionai adjustment were made. However, the
OBHS calculations did not take inte consideration those non-maintenance costs for services occurring prior
to April 1, 1998 which had been reimbursed during fiscal year 1999 at the higher maintenance rate. These
amounts represent a net overcharge of federal Title IV-E Foster Care funds of an estimated $1,393,067,
resulting in questicned costs. This figure was calculated by multiplying the total estimated amounts for three
months {based on amounts and percentages from the ODHS payment information} by four to determine an
annualized estimate, and subtracting the $617,657 adjustment made.

if appropriate adjustments are not made to correct overcharges, ODHS may be subjected to penalties or
sanctions which may jeopardize future federal funding and imit their ability to fulfill program requirements
te provide foster care services to children in need. ODHS personnel indicated they interpreted the HHS
request to apply only to those service dates after April 1, 1999 and, therefore, believed they had complied
with the HHS request.

We recommend QODHS revise their adjustment calculations to capture all services dates for which federal
reimbursement was received during fiscal year 1999 using the incorrect rate and adjust future rates to
properly classify maintenance and non-maintenance costs. We also recommend ODHS abtain additional
guidance from HHS regarding any additional adjustment which may be required.
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2. FOSTER CARE - INCOMPLETE MONITORING

Finding Number 1999-HUMO2-021

CFDA Number and Title 93.658 - Foster Care

Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED 3 Pending

OMB Circular A-133. §___.300 states, in part, the auditee shall:

{b) Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides reasonable assurance that the
auditee is managing Federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of
contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect on each of its Federal programs.

{c) Comply with Jaws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements related to
each of its Federal programs.

The Ghio Department of Human Services is responsible for administering the State's Foster Care Program
which includes approximately $49 million in payments to private family foster care facilities. These facilities
receive federal reimbursements for each child they place with a foster family and are responsible for making
payments to those families. The fees paid to the private family foster care facilities are calculated based on
financial information they submit on the ODHS 2910 report which identifies the administrative and
maintenance costs associated with the placements. During fiscal year 1999, the Rate Setting Unit within
the Bureau of Resource Management performed limited desk reviews of these cost reports which involved
checking the forms for mathematical accuracy and comparing current year information to the previous year.
In addition, the Department’s audit group started audits of 12 ODHS 2910 forms submitted during fiscal year
1998 reporting 1997 financial information, however, none of these audits were completed. Therefore the
procedures in place were not sufficient to determine if the amounts reported on the ODHS 2910 reports were
accurate, complete, properly categorized, and representative of actual expenses incurred by the facilities
in placing the children, or that rates calculated from these amounts were appropriate. Based on procedures
performed in special audits of some of these facilities, we were able to gain some assurance that amounts
actually paid to the foster families for room and board were reasonably accurate. However, we were unable
to verify the amounts paid to these facilities for non-room and board costs, estimated te be $21,938,683,
were accurate. Since the Auditor of State, in conjunction with ODHS, is currently in the process of
performing individuai audits of the 25 larger facilities, selacted based on risk and reflecting approximately
80% of the dollars paid to the 2910 facilities, questioned cost amounts will not be included in this report, but
will be reported separately in each individua! facility audit report. These reports are estimated to be released
on June 30, 2000.

Without reasonably ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the information reported on the ODHS 2910
costs reports, the risk is greatly increased that unallowable costs will be included causing the facility
reimbursement rates to be inflated. As a result, the risk that payments made to these private family foster
care facilities would be unallowed, resulting in an over-claim of federal financial assistance, is also greatly
increased. Therefore, ODHS may have to repay over-claimed amounts to the US Department of Health and
Human Services, which may subject them to fines ang penalties. ODHS Bureau of Resource Managament
maintained that monitoring Title [V-E maintenance payments is the responsibility of the county public
children services agencies (PCSA's} because the program is State-supervised, county-administered.
However, ODHS administrative management personnel have indicated they are in the process of evaluating
this situation and making changes as appropriate.
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2. FOSTER CARE - INCOMPLETE MONITORING (Continued)

We recommend ODHS monitor Title IV-E payments to private family foster care facilities to reasonably
ensure they are only for allowed activities. This may include, but is not limited to, reconciling the CDHS
2910 cost reports to audited financial statements of the facllities, and/or independently testing Title IV-E
private family foster care facilities on a sample basis to determine whether;

. maintenance and administrative costs reported are accurate, complete, and allowable;
. costs reported are properly categorized;

. discrepancies, if any, were explainable and reasonable under the circumstances, and
. further actions, such as recovery for overpayments or rate adjustments, are needed.

In their Corrective Action Plan on page 234, the Department indicates this report incorrectly states that 12
audits were not completed. However, no audit reports or other documentation were presented during the
audit to substantiate the reviews were completed.

3. MEDICAID - DRUG REBATE PAYMENTS

Finding Number 1999-HUMO03-022
CFDA Number and Title 93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
QUESTIONED COSTS - UNALLOWABLE $9,468

OMB Circular A-87, Attachment A requires charges te federal programs be net of all apglicable credits.
“Applicable credits refer to those receipts or reduction of expenditure-type transactions that offset or reduce
expense items allocable to Federal awards as direct or indirect costs. Examples of such transactions are;
purchase discounts, rebates or allowances, recoveries or indemnities on losses, insurance refunds or
rebates, and adjustments of overpayments or erroneous charges. To the extent that such credits accruing
to of received by the governmental unit relate to allowable costs, they shall be credited to the Federal award
elther as a cost reduction or cash refund, as appropriate”. The Pharmacy Services Unit follows the Health
Care Financing Administration’s (HCFA) guidance on all Medicaid drug rebate issues. The HCFA release
No. 26 requires manufacturers to calculate and pay interest “for all rebates not paid in a timely manner...”
The release alse places the responsibility to collect interest due and report those amounts to HCFA with the
State. As such, itis management’s responsibility to design and implement control procedures to reasonably
ensure all rebate payments have been properly calculated, submitted timely, and include any interest owed.

Of the 40 receipts selected for testing from the 1,500 processed during the audit period, 27 were not paid
within 30 days of mailing, as required. For 22 of the 27 late payments, interest was not calculated and paid
by the manufacturer and not pursued by ODHS, resulting in questioned costs of $9,468. In addition, internal
controls over drug rebates totaling approximately $139 million were not being consistently applied to ensure
timely hilling and collection of drug rebates, as indicated below:

. for five of five quarters tested, the rebate invoice was not mailed within 60 days after the end of the
quarter;
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3. MEDICAID - DRUG REBATE PAYMENTS (Continued)

. supporting documentation was not available for 19 of 40 invoices, therefore, we were unable io
determine if adjustments were reasonabie and properly coded, or to ensure zero rebates were either
calculated or explained by the fabeler; and

. for four of 31 receipts tested, the Pharmacy Services Unit Administrator did not complete the
Summary Sheet for Rebate Reconciliation to evidence his review of the reconciliation submitted by
the labeler,

By failing to collect the accurate amount of late drug rebate interest from manufacturers, the Department
forfeits revenue to which itis entitled, directly reducing the amount of funding available to finance operations
and/or program activities. Furthermore, any penalties that may be imposed by HCFA for noncompliance with
program procedures could further reduce available funding.

The Pharmacy Services Administrator indicated the missing support decumentation had been sent to a
storage location to be archived; the Department tried to retrieve the information, but it could not be located.
He also indicated the current practice is to only review the complex labeler reconciliations.

We recommend the Department implement and/or strengthen control policies and procedures related to the
collection of interest on late drug rebate payments to provide reasonable assurance that all interest is
properly caiculated and submitted by the manufacturers in accordance with the HCFA Release No. 26. This
would include ensuring all invoices are mailed within 60 days after the end of the quarter (or within 22 days
of the HCFA release date) and reviewing all labeler reconciliations. We also recommend the Department
take appropriate steps to reasonabiy ensure all supporting documentation related to the drug rebates is
maintained and readily accessible for review.

4, MISSING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION - HAMILTON COUNTY

Finding Number 1999-HUM04-023

CFDA Number and Title 10.551410.561 Food Stamp Cluster
93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.575/93.596 - Child Care Cluster
93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services

QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED - TANF $228,457
QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED - MEDICAL ASSISTANCE CLUSTER 22,455
QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED - CHILD CARE CLUSTER 276
QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED - FOOD STAMP CLUSTER 266

7 CFR 272.1(f) states, in part; “Each State agency shali retain all program records in an orderly fashion, for
audit and review purposes, for a periog of 3 years from the month of the crigin of each record. The State
agency shall retain fiscal records and accountabte documents for 3 years from the date of fiscal closure.”

45 CFR 74.53 (b) states, in part: “Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other
records pertinent to an award shall be retained for a period of three years from the date of submission of the
final expenditure repart.”
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4, MISSING SUPPGRT DOCUMENTATION - HAMILTON COUNTY {Continued)

The Hamilton County Department of Human Services (HCDHS) incurs expenses to operate various federal
assistance programs and/or pay benefits to or on behalf of recipients for the Ohio Department of Human
Services (ODHS). During fiscal year 1999, program expenditures were processed by both the fiscal and
program sections within the Hamilton County Department of Human Services, then forwarded to the
Hamiiton County Auditor for warrant preparation. For the first six months of the audit period, the supporting
documentation related to these payments was maintained at the HCDHS; as of January 1, 1998, the county
changed its procedures and required expenditure supporting documentation for all county departments be
forwarded with the voucher to the county auditor for filing. However, nine vouchers and supporting
documentation selected for testing could not be located; all these items were processed after January 1999
Therefore, we could not determine if the expenditures were allowable for the programs, resulting in
questioned costs, as indicated below:

. $266 (projected to be approximately $10,000) refated to two of ten vouchers selected from the
$70,499 in total Food Stamp direct expenditures,

. $222 891 related to two of ten vouchers selected from the $1,815,815 in total TANF-OWF direct
expenditures;

. $5,566 (projected to be approximately $63,000) related to two of ten vouchers selected from the
$1,727,966 in total TANF-PRC direct expenditures;

. $276 (projected to be approximately $200,000) related to one of 17 vouchers selected from the
$34,852,573 in total Child CGare Cluster direct expenditures; and

+ $22,455 related to two of 10 vouchers selected from the $10,746,451 in total non-payroll indirect
cost charges related to public assistance programs {(Food Stamps, TANF, Child Care, Social
Services Block Grant, and Medicaid). Due to complexities with the ODHS cost allocation
methodology, itwould not be efficient to try to calculate which portions of the $22,455 were allocated
to each of these programs. Therefore, we have questioned the entire amount for the Medicaid
Program.

Without documentation to substantiate the use of federat funds, the County Department of Human Services
cannot reasonably ensure the costs charged to these programs were accurate, complete, and/or allowable.
If uncorrected, additional questioned costs could be identified increasing the county’s liability 2nd potentially
impacting federal funding to be received in future years.

Based on discussions with HCDHS Fiscal Personnel, the Hamilton County Auditor was overwhelmed with
the amount of documentation they received when they took responsibility for filing the vouchers and
supporting documentation for all county departments ang fell behind in the filing process.

We recommend the Hamilton County Department of Human Services take the necessary actions to
reasonably ensure all vouchers and related documents which support expenditures from federal programs
administered on behalf of ODHS are properly maintained and readily accessible for review and/or reference.
This coulg involve coordination with the County Auditor to ensure they are filing these records timely and
accurately; andfor maintaining copies of the vouchers, invoice, and other supporting documents at the
HCDHS.
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5. CLOTHING COST REIMBURSEMENTS - LORAIN COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN

SERVICES
Finding Number 1999-HUMO05-024
CFDA Mumber and Tille 93.658 - Foster Care
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
QUESTIONED COST - UNALLOWED $22,222

45 CFR 95.517 (a) states, in part:

A State must claim Federal Financial Participation costs associated with a program only in
accerdance with its approved cost allocation plan.

Secticn 2.6 of the Child Welfare Waiver Demonstration states, in part:

the walivers do not apply to title IV-E administrative costs, which the State will measure and claim
under current law and regulations and shall be cost neutrat.

In addition, the County Administration for Programs Social Service Administrative Cost Distribution
Agreement states, in part:

Social Services administrative costs include salaries, related compensation and operational costs
inclusive of rent, leases, utilities, supplies, etc., for all employees assigned to social service/child
welfare program areas. These costs are added to the Social Services related shared costs to form
the Social Services administrative cost pool.

The Lorain County Department of Children Services reported $61,509 in Foster Care clothing expenditures
in the Social Services administrative cost pool for FY 1989. However, these were direct costs of the Foster
Care Program and should have been covered by the program menies advanced to the county as part of their
IV-E waiver. The Lorain County Department of Children Services will benefit and be reimbursed $22,222
for reporting these Foster Care direct expenditures in the Social Services administrative cost pool. This
amount was calculated by applying the Title [V-E percentages to the Social Services expenditures reported
on the Fiscal Year 1989 quarterly reconciliations of the Social Services Random Moment Sampling. A
portion of the $22,222 was based on actual reimbursements received by the Lorain County Department of
Children Services and a portion was estimated from the submitted Social Services expenditures reported
on the third and fourth quarter reconciliations of the Social Services Random Moment Sampling.

By reporting these direct costs in the Social Services administrative cost pool, the Lorain County Department
of Children Services was reimbursed for costs previously covered under their Title IV-E waiver allocations.
Waiver allocations do not apply to title IV-E administrative costs. The Fiscal Director of the Lorain County
Department of Children Services indicated that she was unaware that these costs should not be reported
in the Social Services administrative cost pool.

We recommend the Lorain County Department of Children Services amend their current policies and
procedures to reasonably ensure only allowable costs are included in cost pools. This would include
eliminating the practice of including clothing and other maintenance type costs associated with the Foster
Care program in the cost peol. We also reccmmend the County implement menitoring controls to provide
assurance the established policies and procedures are being applied consistently.
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6. MONITORING SUBRECIPIENTS - LORAIN COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Finding Number 1989-HUMO0B-025
CFDA Number and Title 93.667 - Social Services Block Grant
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED $475,324

OMB Circular A-133, Subpart D, §__.400 (d) states, in part, that a pass through entity shall perform the
following for the Federal awards it makes: *(3) Monitor the activities of subrecipients as necessary to ensure
that federal awards are used for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, and the
provisions of contracts or grant agreements and that performance goals are achieved.”

The Lorain County Department of Human Services paid $475,324 during FY 1999 to seven subrecipients
to reimburse them for costs associated with the Social Services Block Grant (Title XX). These payments
represented approximately 88% of the total direct cost disbursements for this program at 1.orain County.
Although procedures had been established reguiring a review of the Title XX subrecipients’ financial activity,
no such monitoring occrued during the period of July 1, 1898 through June 30, 1999.

As aresult, the Lorain County Department of Human Services cannot determine if these Federal funds were
used for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, and the contract provisions, or that
program objectives were met. |n addition, county management cannet be reasonably assured that internal
controls associated with these subrecipient programs are sound or that appropriate actions are taken to
correct weaknesses. According to county management, they did not monitor the activities of Title XX
subrecipients during FY 1992 due to staffing constrainis.

We recommend the Lorain County Department of Human Services re-evaluate their current staffing needs
to ensure appropriate resources are available to perform the required subrecipient monitoring procedures.
We also recommend the County expand the scope of their procedures to include compliance testing
designed to provide reasonable assurance these federal awards are used only for authorized purposes; are
in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements; and that
performance goals are achieved. These monitoring procedures could include on-site visits, review of
documentation supporting requests for reimbursement, and/or limited scope audits to address one or more
compliance requirements (i.e. activities allowed or unallowed; allowable costs/cost principles; eligibility;
matching; see OMB Circular A-133, Section 230(b){2) for additional informaticn on limited scope audits}.
In addition, we recommend county management implement a system to track the status of the monitoring
procedures performed and the status of any required corrective actions resulting from those procedures.
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7. NO EVIDENCE COF SOCIAL SERVICES ELIGIBILITY - SUMMIT COUNTY

Finding Number 1998-HUMO7-026
CFDA Number and Tifle 93.667 - Social Service Block Grant
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED $889,245

42 USC 1397 authorizes that federal funds will be appropriated for the purposes of consolidating Federal
assistance to States for social services into a single grant, increasing State flexibility in using social service
grants, and encouraging each State, as far as practicable under the conditions in that State, to furnish
services directed at specified goals of Title XX - Block Grants to States for Social Services. The section of
OMB's Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance related to this program states “Beneficiary Eligibility: Under
Title XX, each eligible jurisdiction determines the services that will be provided and the individuals that will
be eligible to receive services.” Cne of the responsibilities of the Summit County Department of Human
Services (SCDHS), as an administrator of this federa! program, is to determine eligibility of the program
participants or monitor the activities of subrecipients or vendors who make such determinations.

During FY 1989, the SCDHS contracted with local area providers to determing the applicant's eligibility for
Title XX services furnished by the provider, All of these providers were required to maintain case files to
document the participant’s eligibility and to submit a Provider Expenses form for Service Under Contract,
a Title XX Service Summary, and a Roster of Social Services Delivered documenting the names of those
individuals receiving Title XX services during the month. The Finance Department at the SCDHS used this
infarmation to reimburse the Title XX providers with Federal funds. However, we noted the SCDHS did not
conduct any on-site monitoring reviews of these Title XX providers during our audit period of July 1, 1998
through June 30, 1999. Such reviews would normally be documented on a Title XX Eligibility Monitoring
Worksheet. In addition, SCDHS itself did not have procedures in place 1o determine or verify ligibility of
individuals receiving Title XX services from local providers prior to reimbursing those providers for services
rendered. Therefore, we have questioned $889,245 of the total $1,268,218 Title XX expenditures of Summit
County, which were reimbursed to those providers.

Without a review of the eligibility determinations made by the provider or the independent determinations
made by the County, the risk that ineligible individuals may be receiving Title XX services without SCDHS’
knowledge increases. According to the Contract Supervisar, providers are responsible for determining
eligibility and, generally, the SCDHS will verify the eligibility of the individuals listed on the Roster of Social
Services Delivered form at the time of the on-site review of the provider. However, SCOHS had spent most
of state fiscal year 1999 performing reviews for the Child Care Davelopment Fund providers and there was
not enough time te perform reviews of the Social Services Block Grant providers.

We recommend the SCDHS determine whether their Title XX providers (those that determine an individual's
eligibility to participate) are subrecipients or are vendors, in accordance with OMB Circutar A-133, § __210,
which provides guidance on distinguishing between a vendor and a subrecipient. Two of the characteristics
listed for a subrecipient are: 1) the organization determines who s eligible to receive federal assistance, and
2) has responsibility for adherence to applicable federal program compliance requirements. § __.400 {d} of
the Circular lists a pass-through entity’s respensibility. Two of these responsibilities listed are: 1) advise
subrecipients of the requirements imposed on them by federal laws, regulations and contract or grant
provisicns; and 2) monitor the activities of the subrecipient 1o ensure that federal awards are used for
authorized purposes. (§__.105 of the Circular defines the terms subrecipient, vendor and pass-through
entity.)
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7. NO EVIDENCE OF SOCIAL SERVICES ELIGIBILITY - SUMMIT COUNTY (Continued)

Ifthe providers are determined to be subrecipients, we recommend SCDHS perform monitoring ofthese Title
XX providers at least on an annual basis to determine whether they have complied with all material laws and
regulations, including eligibility. If the SCDHS determines their Title XX providers are vendors, we
recommend the County implement procedures to determine eligibility for all individuals receiving Title XX
services and refer these individuals to the appropriate providers or establish a system to verify the eligibility
of all individuals listed on the providers' Rosters of Social Services Delivered prior to disbursing funds to
these providers.

8. UNALLOWABLE INDIRECT COSTS - SUMMIT COUNTY

Finding Number 1999-HUMO08-027
CFDA Number and Titfe 93.558 - Temparary Assistance for Needy Families
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Setvices
QUESTIONED COST - UNALLOWED $1,674

OMB Circular A-87, Attachment A, Sections E 1 and F 1, respectively, state “Direct costs are those that can
be identified specifically with a particular final cost objective”, and “Indirect costs are thase: (a} incurred for
a comman or joint purpose benefitting more than one cost objective, and (b} not readily assignable to the
cost objectives specifically benefitted, without effort disproportionate to the results achieved.” Atthe county
level, indirect costs generally include general administrative costs (e.g., income maintenance telephone
expenses, general accounting, incormne maintenance payroll and equipmen) and facility costs (e.g., rental
costs, operations and maintenance) that are not treated as direct costs.

Six of 20 indirect cost vouchers tested, equaling $22,511 from total Summit County Depariment of Human
Services indirect costs of $18,157,109, were for expenditures which directly related to the Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) grogram, and included expenditures for uniforms, clothes and car
repairs spent to allow recipients to be employable under the JOBS program. As such, these expenditures,
which totaled $1,674, should not have been coded as indirect costs and are being questioned. Due to the
complexities with the Department's cost allocation methodology, it would not be efficient to try to calculate
which portions ofthe $1,674 {projected to be $1,350,229) were improperly allocated to non-TANF programs.
Therefore, we have guestioned the entire amount for the TANF program.

By charging to a cost pool, such costs were allocated to multiple federal assistance programs in addition to
the TANF program, Those federal assistance programs charged include the Food Stamp Cluster, Medicaid
Cluster, Child Care Cluster and Social Services Block Grant. Mis-coding expenditures wilt cause incorrect
reporting of program expenditures and may lead to federal fiscal sanctions or may require the County to
repay some or all of the grant awards. Management stated the vouchers were coded to the indirect cost
pool because the Ohio Department of Human Services did not offer codes which would allow themto charge
these type of expenditures to a specific program unless the county had a contract enacted with the vendor.

We recommend Summit County Departmeni of Human Services contact the Ohic Department of Human
Services and request codes be added to the list to allow the proper allocation of expenditures. We further
recommend that, until the Ohio Department of Human Services expands their list of codes, Summit County
Department of Human Services charge all direct expenditures to the applicable program in the code which
is set up for contracted vendor services.
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9. MONITORING SUBRECIPIENTS - FRANKLIN COUNTY

Finding Number 1698-HUMO09-028
CFDA Number and Title 93.667 - Social Services Block Grant
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED $3,515,398

OMB Circular A-133, Subpart D, § 400 (d) states, in part, that a pass through entity shali perform the
following for the Federal awards it makes: “{(3) Monitor the activities of subrecipients as necessary to ensure
that federal awards are used for authorized purposes in caompliance with laws, regulations, and the
provisions of contracts or grant agreements and that performance goa's are achieved.”

During State fiscal year 1998, the Franklin County Department of Human Services (FCDHS) contracted with
local area service providers to provide Title XX Social Services and determine the applicant’s eligibility for
the services. Atotal of $3,5615,398 was paid during fiscal year 1999 to the contracted service providers, who
the FCDHS considgers to be subrecipients. Although county management indicated procedures had been
established to monitor the activities of the Title XX subrecipients, no such monitoring cccurred during the
period of July 1, 1988 through June 30, 1998.

As a result, the FCDHS cannot determine whether these federal funds were used for authorized purposes
in compliance with the federal regulations, contract provisions, or objectives associated with the Social
Services Block Grant program. In addition, county management cannot be reasonably assured thatinternal
controls associated with these subrecipients are socund or that appropriate actions are taken to correct
weaknesses.

FCDHS management indicated the procedures which had been performed in the past to monitor the
contracts with the Title XX subrecipients were not conducted during fiscal year 1999 due to staffing and other
resource constraints. FCDHS management identified the activities of the Title XX subrecipients to be lower
risk, because of the limited number of problems with these providers over the years, and believed their
limited resources would be more effectively used on higher risk areas where problems had been identified.

We recommend the Franklin County Department of Human Services re-evaluate their current staffing needs
to ensure appropriate resources are available to perform the required subrecipient monitoring procedures.
These monitoring procedures could include on-site visits, review of documentation supporting requests for
reimbursement, and/or limited scope audits to address one or more compliance requirements {e.g., activities
allowed or unallowed; allowable costs/cost principles; eligibility; matching). See OMB Circular A-133,
Section 230(b)(2) for additional information on limited scope audits. In addition, we recommend county
management ensure a system is in place to track the status of the monitering performed and the status of
any required corrective actions resulting from those procedures.
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10. UNALLOWABLE SCCIAL SERVICE EXPENDITURES - FRANKLIN COUNTY

Finding Number 1999-HUM10-029
CFDA Number and Title 93.667 Social Services Block Grant
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
QUESTIONED COST- UNALLOWABLE $742,640

45 CFR Subtitle A, §96.71 (a) states “Section 2005 (2)(2} and {a}(5) (42 U.S.C. 1397d {a}(2) and (a)(5)) of
the Social Security Act establishes prohibitions against the provision of room and board and medical care
uniess, among other reasons, they are an “integrai but subordinaie” part of a State-autherized social service.
“Integral but subordinate” means that the room and board provided for a short term or medical care is a
minor but essential adjunct to the service of which it is a part and is necessary to achieve the objective of
that service. Room and board provided for a short term shall not be considered an integral but subordinate
part of a social service when itis provided to an individual in a foster family home or other facility the primary
purpose of which is to provide food, shelter, and care or supervision, except for temporary emergency
sheiter provided as a protective service.”

The Franklin County Department of Human Services entered into a contract in fiscal year 1998 to provide
$8 million of Social Services Block Grant (Title XX} funds to the Franklin County Public Children Services
Agency. The majority of the contract expenditures for fiscal year 1999 were used by Children Services o
pay the administrative costs of its case workers. However, $742,640 of the contract payments during our
audit period were for the purpose of providing room and board to children who were not eligible under Title
IV-E. These costs are not allowable for the Title XX program and will be questioned.

Continued noncompliance with federal program guidance could result in sanctions and/or adversely affect
future federal funding. The Franklin County Department of Human Services indicated they believed these
costs were allowable because the State Social Services Block Grant plan developed by the Ohio Department
of Human Services allowed these types of expenditures. Therefore, they were not aware the contract they
entered into with Children Services was in violation of the federal regulations. Since the federal regulations
override the State plan, we must question the amount of $742,640.

We recommend the FCDHS work with the Ohio Department of Human Services to amend the current Social
Services Block grant plan to eliminate the use of Title XX funds for room and board and other unallowed
expenses. To avoid this situation in the future, we also recommend FCDHS independently research the
federal requirements refated to the Social Services Block Grant and other federal programs received to
reasonably ensure they are aware of the federal compliance requirements related to these monies prior to
entering into contracts and/or disbursing funds. FCDHS should then monitor the contracts to make sure the
funds are being used for allowable purposes only.
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1. IMPROPER EXPENDITURES - FRANKLIN COUNTY

Finding Number 1899-HUM11-030

CFDA Number and Title 93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
QUESTIONED COST - UNDOCUMENTED $13,739
QUESTIONED COST - UNALLOWED $3,764

Governmental units assume responsibility for administering Federal funds in a manner consistent with
underlying agreements, program objectives, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-87, "Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments”,
Attachment A, subsection C states, in part:

1. Factors affecting allowability of costs. To be allowable under Federal awards, costs must meet
the following generat criteria;
a. Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of
Federal awards.

3. Allocable costs.
a. A cost is allocable to a particular cost objective if the goods or services involved are
chargeable or assignable to such cost objective in accordance with relative benefits
received.

To determine the allowability of costs in accordance with the abave requirements, each vendor payment
made must be supported by a proper invoice from the vendor and be properiy coded to identify the type of
expenditure incurred and the program involved. In addition, it is important to process payments using
consistent methods throughout the year and maintain documentation to support any payments that are not
processed in the standard manner,

One of 10 TANF/Chio Works First (OWF) expenditures tested did not have an invoice to support the
payment to a vender for $13,739. The only documentation te support the payment was generated by the
Franklin County Department of Human Services (FCDHS). This type of expenditure is normally processed
through the computer, butin this case, the payment was processed manually. The County could not provide
any documentation or explanation to support why the payment was processed manuaily. In addition, aline
itern on one of the 10 expenditures selected for testing was incorrectly coded. The line item totaling $3,764
(projected to be $17,838) was coded to a TANF/OWF account, but the expenditure should have been coded
to a food stamp employment training (FSET) account. Our test included a total of $250,355 OWF
expenditures out of the total OWF expenditures of $1,186,474 incurred during the audit period.

Without obtaining and maintaining a proper description of the services to be provided, the Franklin County
Department of Human Services risks purchasing services from ineligible vendors or for unallowable
purposes. |t appears the fiscal department did not catch the incorrect coding during the processing of the
invoice. As a result, the error was carried through to the payment.

To prevent similar errors from oceurring in the future, management at the FCDHS should require that all
payments be supported by an invoice approved by authorized personnel. The fiscal department should
return any payment requests that are received without an authorized invoice; and should be required to
verify each expenditure has been coded correctly before making the payment, and to provide an explanation
for any payments made that are not consistent with the other payments made during the ysar.
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12 INCOME AND ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION SYSTEM - DUE DATES

Finding Number 1999-HUM12-031

CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster
93,558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.775/93.777/23.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services

NONCOMPLIANCE

Federa) regulations require states to maintain an IEVS system, as indicated below:
7 CFR 272.8(a){1) states, in part:

State agencies shall maintain and use an income and eligibility verification system (IEVS), ... as
specified in this section.

7 CFR 272.8(i}(3) requires the State plan to:

For each of the data sources specified in paragraphs (¢} and ({f) of this section, a separate
description of how the State agency will select (target) information items for the actions specified
in paragraph (g) (1) of this section [which requires state agencies to take action on these items].

45 CFR 205.51(a) states, in part:

A State plan ... must provide that there be an Income and Eligibility Verification System...in the
State.

45 GFR 205.56(a)(1) states, in part:

... States wishing to exclude categories of information items from follow-up must submit for the
Secretary’s approval a follow-up plan describing the categories of information items which it
proposes to exclude.

In accordance with these sections, the Ohic Department of Human Services {(ODHS) implemented IEVS and
established their own targeting system for processing IEVS matches. The system procedures and due dates
were outlined in “CRIS-E Flash #61" when IEVS was integrated within the Client Registry Information
System - Enhanced (CRIS-E} computer system. ODHS CRIS-E Flash #61states:

ODHS intends to monitor CDHS [County Departments of Human Services) for both high and
medium data exchange alerts to ensure compliance with state and federal regulations for timeliness
and quality.

“CRIS-E Flash #61" specifies the due dates for completing IEVS alerts, depending on the program and the
priarity ranking assigned by the Department of Human Services (e.g., high, medium, or low). Low alerts are
considered informational only and are not required to be processed although they are issued with a
completion due date, The chart below details the "Flash #61" due dates and compares them with the due
dates required by federal regulations and guidelines for those states not using their own targeting system.

State of Ohio 151



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

12. INCOME AND ELIGIBILITY VERIFtCATION SYSTEM - DUE DATES {Continued)

Federal Ftash #61
Priority Due Date Pue Date
Program Ranking (No. of days) (No. of days)

Food Stamps High 90 80
" Medium 20 120
" Low a0 180
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families High 45 45
* Medium N/A 120
* Low N/A 180
Medical Assistance Program High 45 45
* Medium 45 120
) Low 45 180

We selected five large counties representing approximately 45% of the nearly 1.9 million annuat IEVS hits
for testing related to the timely completion of IEVS alerts in accordance with the ODHS standards set forth
in Flash #61; the results are summarized below.

Type of Hit No, Tested No. of Errors Error Rate
High Priority 90 39 43.3%
Medium Priority 25 7 28.0%
Low Priority 10 3 30.0%
TOTAL 125 49 39.2%

Tardiness ranged from three to 545 days on high priority alerts, and 53 to 519 days for medium priority
alerts. Thirteen of the 36 delinquent high priority, three of the seven medium pricrity, and one of the three
low priority alerts were never addressed. The low priority item not addressed related to an item given to
Montgomery County for a case outside their county. Based on these results, it appears the Ohio Department
of Human Services was not completing IEVS alerts according to the time lines established in their state plan
and documented in Flash #61. This increases the risk that benefits (totaling approximately $543 million for
Food Stamp, $542 millien for TANF, and $6 billion for Medicaid) may be given to ineligible recipients or for
inappropriate amounts, and may lead to delays in detecting such over-issuance, particularly since the largest
error rates occurred in the high priority matches.

ODHS personnel stated the responsibility for addressing IEVS alerts rests with the counties under the State
supervised, county administered approach; and ODHS did not have sufficient resources to effectively
monitor county activities.

We recommend the Chio Department of Human Services work with the counties to implement control
poiicies and procedures which reasonably ensure that matches are completed by the due dates specified
in "Flash #61; and that ODHS monitor the activities of the counties to determine if they are following the
established controls and are complying with the due date reguirements.
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13. INCOME AND ELIG!IBILITY VERIFICATION SYSTEM - INADEQUATE DOCUMENTATION

Finding Number 1698-HUM13-032

CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
NONCOMPLIANCE

7 CFR 272.8())(2) states:

The State agency shall document as required by § 273.3(f)(6) its use of information obtained
through the IEVS both when an adverse action is and is not initiated.

7 CFR 273.2(f)(6) states:

Case files must be documented to support eligibility, ineligibility, and benefit level determinations.
Documentation shall be in sufficient detail to permit a reviewer to determine the reasonableness and
accuracy of the documentation.

The Income and Eligibility Verification System (IEVS) compares income, as reported by the recipients, to
information maintained by oufside sources, Of the 125 IEVS hits tested from five County Departments of
Human Services, 53 hits (37 high, nine medium, and seven low priority} lacked adequate documentation in
the Client Registry Information System - Enhanced (CRIS-E) to explain how the items were resolved and
the impact on the recipients’ eligibility/benefits. Thirty-eight of these 53 related to social security matches
for which the prior history is removed from the system after December 1 each year; and an additional 17
were not completed. Without adequate documentation, a reviewer cannot determine if an IEVS alert has
been resolved accurately which may lead to benefits being issued to ineligible recipients or benefits paid
in inappropriate amounts.

The noncompliance appears to be caused by inadequate supervision at counties to assure that detailed
documentation for each alert resolution is in the case file and/or on CRIS-E. Additionally, counties have not
implemented adequate policies and procedures for operating IEVS at the county level. County coordinators
noted ODHS has not offered guidance to establish better controls at the local level.

We recommend the Ohio Department of Human Services work with counties to develop and implement a
more thorough and consistent supervisory review process on the documentation of IEVS alert resolutions.
The performance of this supervisory review should be documented to provide assurance to county and
ODHS management the control is being performed. Additionally, formal county policies and procedures
should be implemented which detail what is required for caseworkers to adequately document IEVS alert
resolutions.
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14, INCOME AND ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION SYSTEM - MONITORING BY ODHS

Finding Number 1999-HUM14-033

CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster
93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services

NONCOMPLIANCE

7 CFR 272.8(g){4) states:

State agencies shall use appropriate procedures to monitor the timeliness requirements in
paragraph {g)(2) of this section.

42 CFR 435.952(f) states:

The agency must use appropriate procedures to monitor the timeliness requirements of this section.
45 CFR 205.56(a)(1){v} states:

The State agency shall use appropriate procedures to monitor the timeliness requirements specified
in this subparagraph;

We noted the following weaknesses with regard to monitoring by ODHS of the nearly 1.9 million IEVS alerts
given to the counties each year:

. No internal review section has performed a review of IEVS at the state or county level.

. The ODHS CRIS-E system cannot generate reports on processingtimeliness, track match resolution
outcomes or the costs associated with working matches, or other management data.

. QDHS has not developed or implemented performance standards (e.g, permissible error rates) to
be used by the counties so that ODHS can monitor the quality of performance, although this proved
effective in one test county that had implemented its own standards.

. ODHS has provided few standardized procedures for processing IEVS alerts at the county level.
Each county may follow different procedures. The procedures issued by ODHS have not been
updated since the issuance of Flash #61 July 1, 1982.

. ODHS has provided limited information specifically designed to enhance and standardize the efforts
of the county |EVS coordinators and assist them in monitoring local level activities.

Without sufficient or accurate data, ODHS cannot make informed management decisions about the cost
effectiveness or the overall effectiveness of IEVS. ODHS also cannot be reasonably assured that IEVS is
being utilized at the county level as intended due to the divergent operating procedures at different counties.
Federal fiscal sanctions in the form of fines and penalties against ODHS for high eligibility error rates could
result,
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INCOME AND ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION SYSTEM - MONITORING BY ODHS (Continued)

ODHS personnel stated the responsibility for addressing IEVS alerts rests with the counties under the State
supervised, county administered approach; and ODHS did not have sufficient resources to effectively
monitor county activities.

Based upon the weaknesses identified, we recommend:

QODHS continue work on their current cost-benefit analysis of IEVS.

ODHS implement changes recommended by the IEVS Advisory Committee to enhance the
management of [EVS in the counties and improve cost-benefit data availability.

ODHS incorporate new data matches into the current IEVS system to allow compliance tracking to
occur within the CRIS-E system and make |EVS more efficient.

ODHS work with County IEVS Coordinators to establish standards for work processing and review
at the county level.

the ODHS Bureau of County Audits include a review of IEVS as part of their county-level audits.
the ODHS Bureau of Internal Audits review [EVS operations at the state level.

ODHS develop standard performance measures regarding error rates, time required to complete
an alert, efc. to be used by each of the 88 counties,

ODHS provide updated processing procedures to be used by all 88 counties in the administration
of IEVS.

15. TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES - SANCTIONS
Finding Number 1999-HUM15-034
CFDA Number and Title 93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Federaf Agency Department of Health and Human Services
NONCOMPLIANCE

42 U.S.C. 607 (&) states, in part;

(1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), if an individual in a family receiving assistance under the
State program funded under this part refuses to engage in work required in accordance with this
section, the State shall... reduce the amount of assistance or... terminate such assistance subject
to good cause and other exceptions as the State may establish.

(2) Exception - a State may not reduce or terminate assistance under the State program funded
under this part based an the refusal of an individual to work if the individual is a single custodial
parent caring for a child who has not attained 6 years of age, and the individual proves that the
individual has demonstrated inability ... to obtain child care.
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15. TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES - SANCTIONS {Continued)
42 USC 608 (a)(2) stales:

If the agency responsibie for administering the State plan approved under part D of this subchapter
determines that an individual is not cooperating with the State in establishing paternity or in
establishing, modifying, or enforcing a support order with respect to a child of the individual, and the
individual does not qualify for any good cause or other exception established by the State pursuant
to section 654(29) of this title, then the Siate -

1. shall deduct from the assistance that would otherwise be providéd to the family of the individual
under the State program funded under this part an amount equal to not less than 25 percent of
the amount of such assistance; and

2. may deny the family any assistance under the State program.

Itis management's responsibility to establish policies and procedures which reasonably assure compliance
with these federal requirements and ensure appropriate supporting decumentation is maintained.

As part of our testing for the Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) program, we attempted to
obtain a listing, download, or other information which would identify specific sanctions imposed for the
program at both the State and county levels, However, this information was not available at the state level,
nor at four of the ten counties selected, therefore, we could nct determine if the Department of Human
Services was in compliance with these federal requirements.

Without accurate and accessible information regarding sanctions imposed, management cannot reasonably
assure and/or monitor the Department’s compliance with these program requirements. This increases the
risk that benefits will be paid to individuals who are not eligible to receive them or for improper amounts.
The Program Analysis Supervisor indicated limited information related to sanctions could be captured from
the CRIS-E system, however, the current structure does not allow for this information to be identified by
sanction type or by recipient.

We recommend the Department of Human Services maintain a listing, database, or other appropriate form
identifying , by type, of all sanctions for the TANF program which should be used by management to monitor
compliance with TANF program requirements. Additionally, ODHS program superviscrs or other appropriate
personnel should select a sample of these sanctions from the database and test periodically to ensure TANF
benefiis are not mistakenly reduced or terminated.
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16. LACK OF CORRECTIVE ACTION

Finding Number 1999-HUM16-035
CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster
93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.858 - Foster Care
93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services
NONCOMPLIANCE

OMB Circular A-133. §__ 300 states, in part, the auditee shall:

{f) Follow up and take corrective action on audit findings, including preparation of a summary
schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan in accordance with § ___.315{b) and

§  .315(c), respectively.

In the State of Ohio, the responsibility to implement appropriate control policies and procedures to evaluate
each audit finding, develop a corrective action plan, and ensure appropriate corrective action is taken is
given to the management of each department or agency.

Of the 53 comments included in the fiscal year 1999 State of Ohio Single Audit Report for the Department
of Human Services, 26 relate to comments which were included in the prior year's report; many of these
comments have been repeated for several years. This indicates that appropriate corrective actions were

not taken to correct these items. The table below lists the most significant of these recurring issues:

Unallowable Maintenance Costs

e 5

INVOLVED

Foster Care

Questioned Costs

IEVS - Due Dates

Food Stamps, TANF, Medicaid

Noncompliance

IEVS - Inadequate Documentation

Food Stamps, TANF, Medicaid

Noncompliance

IEVS - Monitoring by ODHS

Food Stamps, TANF, Medicaid

Noncompliance

Sanctions Documentation

TANF

Noncompliance

IEVS - Monitoring by Counties

Food Stamps, TANF, Medicaid

Material Weakness

IEVS - Training

Food Stamps, TANF, Medicaid

Material Weakness

Accuracy of CRIS-E Input

Food Stamps, TANF, Medicaid

Material Weakness

Manua! Overrides of CRIS-E

Food Stamps, TANF, Medicaid

Materiat Weakness

Inadequate Manitoring

TANF

Material Weakness

SAS 70 Report

Food Stamps

Material Weakness
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16. LACK OF CORRECTIVE ACTION (Continued)

Without appropriate corrective actions on audit report comments, the risk the Department will be subjected
to fines or penaities or that funding will be reduced is increased. Based on our observations, the cause of
these uncorrected items appears to stem from the fact that multiple individuals have been involved with
preparing the corrective action plans. These individuals have not always agreed with the finding made,
therefore have been unwilling to make changes; have not recognized the seriousness of these items; and/or
have not devoted the resources necessary to implement the recommendations.

We recommend the Department form an audit committee to address audit findings and help ensure
necessary cofrective actions are taken. This committee should be comprised of top management-level
personnel for each major section of the Department and should be responsible for:

meeting with the auditors at the entrance conference and throughout fieldwork to gain an understanding of
the scope of testing being performed, discuss exceptions noted, and address audit concerns;

. preparing a formal corrective action plan for each audit finding to be submitted to the Office of
Budget and Management for inclusion in the overall State of Ohio Corrective Action Plan made part
of the Single Audit Report, and

. ensuring appropriate follow-up and corrective actions are made to help resclve the audit findings
and reducefeliminate repeated comments.

17. UNAPPROVED INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION AMENDMENTS

Finding Number 1999-HUM17-036
CFDA Number and Title Various programs administrated by the Department
Federal Agency Various

NONCOMPLIANCE

Indirect cost are those costs that benefit common activities and, therefore, cannot be readily assignedto a
specific direct cost objective or project. In order to recover indirect costs, organizations must prepare cost
allocation plans (CAPs) or indirect cost rate proposals (IDCRPs} in accordance with the guidelines provided
in OMB Circular A-87 and submit them to the Federal cognizant cost negotiation agency for approval. These
plans are required by the terms of 45 CFR part 95, which incorporates OMB Circular A-87 by reference, and
they must be revised and resubmitied to the Federal Government whenever an organizational or
programmatic change invalidates the currently-approved allocation method. Specifically, 45 CFR 95.509
states:

{a) The State shall promptly amend the cost allocation plan and submit the amended plan ta the
Director, DCA [Division of Cost Allegation] if any of the following events occur:

(3) The State plan for public assistance is amended so as to affect the allocation of costs.

The Department's approved cost atlocation plan for fiscal year 1999 identified various cost pools which
captured expenditure data using selected reporting categeries and spending responsibility centers (fromthe
State’s Central Accounting System) to allocate approximately $170 million in indirect costs to various federal
programs. However, each ofthe five cost pools tested (representing approximately 80% of the charges from
the 29 pools in the plan} for 3* quarter indirect charges included numerous instances where the spending
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17. UNAPPROVED INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION AMENDMENTS {Continued)

respansibility centers actually charged did not agree with those identified in the CAP for that particular pool,
as detailed below. Although these costs may have been allowable for allocation, there was no evidence to
indicate these changes had been approved by the federal government.

01 All except M521, M543, M561

93.596/93.575
05 All DR32, DR5G, DR52, FI0, 1A30, 1A34, WD52
06 All DRO1, DR10, 1A33, MS10, MS21, MS40, MS50, MS6Q,

MS61, RP10, PR11, 22Cl]

15 10.551/10.561, IA22, IA33, M543, MS60, WD00

93,558, and

03.775/93.777/193.778

22 93.775/93.777/93.778 MD36, MD37, MD38, MS842, MS43, M350, MS51, MS52,
MS61

As a result, the risk is greatly increased that indirect costs could be allocated to incorrect federal programs
or for improper amounts. This could subject the Department to questicned costs and/or penalties from the
grantor agencies. The Cost Allocation Unit Supervisor stated the spending responsibility centers listed in
the CAP may not be all-inclusive for a particular cost pool, and, depending on the circumstances, certain
spending responsibility centers may apply to different cost pools in differentquarters. Bureau of Accounting
persannel, who are responsible for coding the expenditures and ensuring they agree to the CAP, could not
explain the variances noted. '

We recommend the Department amend its current practice of including expenditures in cost pools retated
to spending respensibility centers not specifically listed in the CAP for that pool. The Department should
either identify in their initial CAP the list of spending responsibitity centers which relate solely to the identified
cost pools and those which may apply to varying cost pools; or submit a revised CAP for approval by the
federal government which would include all possible spending responsibility centers chargeable to each
pool. We alsc recommend the Department establish andfor strengthen policies and procedures to
reasonably ensure the reporting categories and spending respensibility centers used in allocating indirect
charges coincide directly with those listed in the approved CAP for each cost pool.
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18. SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING - MEDICAID

Finding Number 1999-HUM18-037

CFDA Number and Title 93,775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
NONCOMPLIANCE

OMB Circular A-133, Subpart D, § 400 {d} states, in part, that a pass-through entity shall perform the
following for the Federal awards it makes:

{3) Monitor the activities of subrecipients as necessary to ensure that Federal awards are used for
authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or
grant agreements and that performance goals are achieved.

(4) Ensure that subrecipients expending $300,000 or more in Federal awards during the
subrecipient's fiscal year have met the audit requirements of this part for that fiscal year.

(5) Issue a management decision on audit findings within six months after receipt of the
subrecipient's audit report and ensure that the subrecipient takes appropriate and timely
corrective action.

During fiscal 1999, ODHS determined four state agencies, who receive approximately $588 million in
Medicaid funding, should be considered subrecipients. However, the Department did not implement
procedures to monitor the activities of these subrecipients beyond the computer reviews performed by MMIS
and CRIS-E of individual and provider/service eligibility. As a result, the Department is not in compliance
with the subrecipient monitoring requirements of OMB Circular A-133, and cannot be reascnably assured
these agencies have met the requirements of the Medicaid program. ODHS personnel indicated they were
not fully aware of their responsibilities with regard to subrecipient monitoring, therefore, procedures were
not established.

We recommend the Depariment review the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and implement the
necessary subrecipient monitoring procedures. These procedures should, at a minimum:

. include on-site monitoring and other procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance the
subrecipients are in compliance with program laws, regulations, and requirements;

. be performed on a regular and on-going basis; and
. provide assurance appropriate corrective actions are taken to address errors or weaknesses
identified.
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19. UNTIMELY SETS IMPLEMENTATION

Finding Number 1999-HUM19-038

CFDA Number and Title 93.563 - Child Support Enforcement

Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
NONCOMPLIANCE

The Family Support Act of 1988 (FSA ‘88) outlined the broad policy guidelines for statewide automation in
the child support enforcement program. The deadline for certification was mandated for October 1, 1695
with a federal sanction of 100% of the IV-D monies for compliance with the 850+ requirements. The
deadline was subseguently moved to October 1, 1997 and then amended to a yearly certification review and
a sliding scale of federal sanctions of 4% and escalating every year through 2002. The Personat
Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996 mandated an additional 32 new SETS pelicy
requirements, with mandatory implementation dates ranging from October 1997 to October 2000.

As of June 30, 1999, approximately 350,000 of the estimated 700,000 child support cases of the State had
not been input onto SETS. This includes the material portions of the caseloads from alt of the largest
metropolitan counties in Ohio. In addition, various other program deficiencies, as discussed later in this
report (including issues related to account reconciliations and system development life cycie), caused SETS
to be incomplete and/or ineffective. As a result, ODHS has already incurred over $30 million in sanctions
and is subject to additional increasing sanctions until SETS is fully implemented.

ODHS management indicated the reasons for the untimely implementation of SETS are, in part, due to the
size and complexity of this project. In addition, the original SETS contractor was terminated and the SETS
project had to be reinitiated which lost valuable time in the development of the system.

We recommend the Department agency take the appropriate steps necessary to ensure that SETS is
implemented by October 1, 2000 deadline extension to avoid any further federal sanctions.

20. UNREVIEWED FOOD STAMP REPORTS

Finding Number 1999-HUM20-039

CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
NONCOMPLIANCE

7 CFR 274.4 (b) states, in part:

(a) Required Reports. The State agency shall review and submit the following reports to FNS on
a monthly basis:

(1) Form FNS-250, Food Coupon Accountability Report

(2) Form FNS-46, Issuance Reconciliation Report
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20. UNREVIEWED FOOD STAMP REPORTS (Continued)

Sound internal controls would require this review to include procedures to verify the information reported is
accurate and complete, and to be documented by the State agency in some way to evidence it was
performed.

Under the current operating structure, County Departments of Human Services are responsible for
accounting for and issuing food stamp coupons and EBT cards to recipients; and reporting the issuance
activity and inventory balances to ODHS on a monthly basis. ODHS is responsible for reviewing the
information and submitting it to the federal government. However, we noted:

. consolidated FNS -250 and FNS-46 reports are not prepared to reflect the total Food Stamp activity
for the State of Ohio, as reported by the 88 counties agency issuance/storage facilities resulting in
approximately 140 separate FNS-250 and 90 FNS-46 reports being submitted to the federal
government each menth. In addition, there are no tracking procedures in place to ensure all county
reports have been received or that ali reports have been submitted timely to FNS.

. none of the FNS-250 or FNS-46 reports, from the 555 and 365 submitted for the four months
selected, showed any evidence they had been reviewed by ODHS prior to forwarding them to the
federal government, although the Program Specialist indicated he had performed the reviews.

. seven of 80 FNS-250 reports tested from the 445 submitted for three of the four sample months
reported coupon inventory balances which did not agree to the supporting documentation submitted
by the counties and § of 80 did not have county supporting documentation attached. In addition,
county support was not available for review at ODHS for one of the four sample montns, therefore,
we could not determine if the information reported on the FNS-250 reports was accurate.

. 27 of 30 FNS-46 reports tested from the 276 submitted for three of the four sample months reported
issuance information (both coupon and EBT) which did not agree to the CRIS-E system. Inaddition,
CRIS-E support information was not available for review for one of the four sample months,
therefore, we could not determine if the information reported on the FINS-250 and FNS-46 reports
was accurate.

. one of 30 FNS-46 reports tested was not mathematically accurate.

Without adequately documenting the review of the FNS-26 and FNS-46 reports, management cannot be
reasonably assured the required reviews are being performed as intended. If the reports are not reviewed
thoroughly and timely, the risk of inaccurate information being submitted to the federal government related
to Food Stamps, as occurred during the audit period, is increased. This could result in fines or penalties
being imposed on the Department; and limits the grantor agency's ability to assess the operational
effectiveness of the Food Stamp Program. The Program Specialist responsible for reviewing the FNS-46
and FNS-250 reports indicated he is not required to document this review and that he did not receive a copy
of the CRIS-E report in order to verify the accuracy of the information.

To help ensure the information reported to the federal government of the FNS-250 and FNS-46 reports is
accurate and complete, we recommend ODHS establish and implement policies and procedures requiring:

. a thorough review of county reports to provide reasonable assurance the information reported is
accurate and complete. This mustinciude verifying the information reported by the counties agrees
with the CRIS-E system. These reviews could be documentation with the reviewer's signature or
initials and date on the reports. Additionally, procedures should be implemented which prohibit the
submission of reports to the federal grantor agency without documented supervisory approval;
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20. UNREVIEWED FOOD STAMP REPORTS (Continued)

. a tracking log be utilized to ensure all county information is received and included in the information
forwarded to the federal government; and to aid in monitoring these counties who are not submitting
their information timely and/or accurately sc that appropriate corrective actions can be taken;,

. consolidated reports be prepared and submitted to the federal government depicting state-wide
Food Stamp information.

. management periodically review the activities of the personnel responsible for performing these
procedures to help ensure they are operating effectively.

As indicated in the Corrective Action Plan on page 243, the Department does not agree with this finding.
However, the Department is ultimately responsible to ensure complete and accurate information is reported
to the federal government in a timely manner. Based on the number and type of errors noted above, the
Department is not fulfilling it's responsibilities.

21. UNTIMELY ELIGIBILITY REDETERMINATIONS - VARIOUS COUNTIES

Finding Number 1999-HUM21-040

CFDA Number and Title 93.658 - Foster Care

Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services
NONCOMPLIANCE

45 CFR 1356.21(g) states, in part:

...the State must review at reasonable, specific, time-limited periods to be established by
the State: (1) The amocunt of payment made for foster care maintenance and adoption
assistance... (2) The licensing or approval standards for child care institutions and foster
family homes.

Chio Administrative Code 5101:2-47-15 (A}, 1994, states, in part.

Redetermination of financially reimbursable criteria for Title IV-E foster care maintenance
must be completed whenever there is a substantial change in the child’s circumstances, but
no less than every six months....

Of the 10 counties selected for testing, three were not in compliance with the eligibility redetermination
requirements, as detailed below:

. HAMILTON COUNTY - Four of 18 Title IV-E Foster Care individuals selected for testing from
approximately 1,350 cases processed by Hamilton County contained eligibility redeterminations
which were not performed within the required time limits.

. LUCAS COUNTY - One of 20 individuals tested from the 856 foster care cases in Lucas County did
not have an eligibility redetermination performed between July 1, 1298 through June 30, 1999.
Because this individual was redetermined to be eligible at August 25, 1999, we have no reason to
believe the individual was not eligible for benefits between July 1, 1998 through June 30, 1999,
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21. UNTIMELY ELIGIBILITY REDETERMINATIONS - VARIOUS COUNTIES {Continued)

. HANCOCK COUNTY - One of 13 individuals tested from the 25 foster care cases in Hancock
County did not have an eligibility redetermination performed between 4/9/98 and 7/27/99. Because
this individual was redetermined to be eligible at 7/27/99, we have noc reason to believe the
individual was not eligible for benefits between 4/9/98 and 7/27/29.

Without timely redetermination of IV-E Foster Care recipients, the county agencies cannot be fully assured
oniy eligible recipients are receiving benefits. If the agencies are reimbursed expenses for ineligible
recipients, they risk potential questioned costs which could jeopardized future funding.

The Hamilton County Benefits Issuance Supervisor stated the untimeliness of Title IV-E eligibility
redeterminations is due to insufficient manpower available to maintain cases. Lucas County Management
indicated there is a redetermination printout provided to the Title IV-E Specialists as to when
redeterminations are to be completed. However, a backlog of redeterminations has cccurred and this one
may have been overlooked, or may have been misfiled. The Hancock Children’s Protective Services
Supervisor indicated this particular case was in and out of court quite frequently during the time period in
question. (Court documents in the file support this). She felt that perhaps the redetermination had been
overlooked, due to uncertainty about the custedy status of the child.

We recommend:

. Hamilton County managementevaluate their current staffing levels and assignmentsandimplement
procedures to provide reasonable assurance the eligibility redeterminations are performed
accurately and timely, as required. Such procedures may include the use of a tickler file or system
generated notificationand/or exception listing to identify those children nearing their redetermination
date or for whom a timely eligibility redetermination was not made. We aiso recommend monitoring
procedures be implementedwhich couldinctude supervisory reviews of the FACSIS redetermination
print-out and periodic reviews of case files to ensure eligibility workers are performing timely
redeterminations.

. Lucas County management develop and implement procedures to provide reasonable assurance
the eiigibility redeterminations are performed accurately and timely. In addition, procedures such
as supervisory reviews, although not required in the ODHS Titie IV-E procedure manual, would
provide added assurance that eligibility redeterminations are being made timely and in accordance
with program requirements.

. Hancock County management strengthen their procedures to provide reasonable assurance the
eligibility redeterminations are performed accurately and timely. Such procedures may include the
use of a tickler file or system generated notification andfor exception listing to identify those children
nearing their redetermination date or for whom a timely eligibility redetermination was not made.
In addition, procedures such as supervisory reviews, although not required in the ODHS Tifle IV-E
precedure manual, would provide added assurance that eligibility redeterminations are being made
timely and in accordance with program reguirements.

We also recommend ODHS implement some monitoring controls to provide added assurance the counties
are complying with the eligibility redetermination deadlines. Such controls may be implemented by reviewing
information available in the FACSIS computer system, and/or including testing of this requirement as part
of regular visits to review county operations.
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22, INCOME AND ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION SYSTEM - MONITORING BY COUNTIES

Finding Number 1999-HUM22-041

CFDA Number and Title 10.551 - Food Stamps
93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.778 - Medical Assistance Program

Federai Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Sound internal control procedures require management at the County Human Services Departments {o
monitor and oversee operations of the Income and Eligibility Verification System (IEVS) at the county level
to provide assurance that IEVS is functioning as intended to promptly identify improper eligibility
determinations made and/or improper benefits paid as the result of erronesus recipient income data.

As part of our testing, we examined the internal control system surrounding I[EVS at five County Departments
of Human Services and identified the following internal control weaknesses:

. There is no adequate, standardized, or documented, review of IEVS alerts by supervisors to provide
assurance that IEVS alerts are processed accurately, completely, and timely. Each of the five
counties tested review IEVS alerts as part of overall case file reviews, however, the scope of reviews
on IEVS alerts was limited and there was no evidence that the counties took appropriate actions to
correct IEVS errors once identified.

. Only one of the five counties tested has adequately implemented a tracking system for IEVS alerts
which could identify which alerts have been assigned to each caseworker, the date the alerts were
assigned, the date completed, and how the alerts were resolved (e.g., overpayment}.

. Only one of the five counties tested had developed performance standards for use or enforced at
the county level to identify the average time to complete alerts or permissible error rates.

. Few policies and procedures were implemented to assist case workers and supervisors in the IEVS
process.

Overall, the lack of monitoring and management oversight has resulted in IEVS not being utilized as
intended. Specifically, we determined that many |EVS alerts are not being followed up on and resolved
accurately, completely, or timely. High eligibility error rates have resuited in the past and continue to result
in federal fines and penalties against the Ohio Department of Human Services.

Through discussions with county management, IEVS coordinators, and case workers, we identified several
causes for these IEVS-related internal control weaknasses, as follows:

. County-level Management does not sufficiently monitor IEVS operations.

. QDHS has not provided guidance and training to county personnef an how ta administer IEVS at
the county level.

. Supervisors consider the number of alerts to be too voluminous to effectively monitor each alert.
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22, INCOME AND ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION SYSTEM-MONITORINGBY COUNTIES (Continued)

. ODHS discontinued providing the GDED8SRA Delinquency Detail Report to the counties. This
report enabled IEVS Coordinators and supervisors to pinpoint overdue IEVS alerts and notify the
appropriate caseworker, Without this report the review process was made more tedious.

We recommend;

. a mandatory supervisory review for IEVS alerts be implemented at the county level. The
performance of the review should be documented by the supervisor to provide county management
assurance that reviews are completed. Counties could develop a review "checklist" on which the
required review steps would be documented. Appropriate corrective actions should be taken when
IEVS errors are noted.

. counties implementa tracking system (or expand their current tracking system) to effectively identify
the status of all alerts assigned to each case worker.

. counties consistently develop and utilize performance standards, which incerporate the standards
established by ODHS, to evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of the IEVS process at the county
level.

. county management consistently develop and utilize written policies and procedures, which
incorporate the procedures established by ODHS, to assist case workers and supervisors in the
IEVS process.

. ODHS reinstate the GDEOBIRA Delinquency Detail Report and provide the report to all counties.

23. INCOME AND ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION SYSTEM - TRAINING

Finding Number 1999-HUM23-042

CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster
93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Program Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

When administering federal programs, it is management’s responsibility to ensure centrol procedures are
established and that appropriate training is provided for the personnel involved. Training is essential,
particularly for the more complex or technical controls such as IEVS, to communicate the appropriate
methods for implementing the controt procedures and promating consistency.

As part of our review of five County Departments of Human Services, we examined the internal control
system surrounding IEVS. We found that IEVS-specific training is not being consistently provided to county
case warkers by either the counties or the Ohio Department of Human Services. New employees receive
training on the Client Registry Information System-Enhanced (CRIS-E) which helps determine client
eligibility. This training includes a very limited review of IEVS; however, many existing county case workers
have not received this training because IEVS only became integrated with CRIS-E system in 1992. At the
time of testing, four of the five counties had no specific IEVS-related training scheduled for the future.
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23. INCOME AND ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION SYSTEM - TRAINING {Continued)

Under these conditions, the risk of IEVS alerts not being resolved accurately, completely, or timely, resuiting
in incorrect benefits being paid is greatly increased. In addition, high eligibility error rates have resulted, and
continue to result, in federal fiscal sanctions (fines and penalties) against the Ohio Department of Human
Services.

ODHS personnel stated the responsibility for addressing IEVS alerts rests with the counties under the State
supervised, county administered approach; and ODHS did not have sufficient resources to effectively
monitor county activities.

We recommend that initia! training be provided to all existing case workers and supervisors and training for
new employees be expanded to include IEVS-specific policies and procedures. In addition, ongoing IEVS
training should be given to all case workers and supervisors to provide reasonable assurance that all
changes or updates to IEVS are properly communicated and that caseworkers are made aware of recurring
problems and solutions pertaining to IEVS. Training may be provided by the counties, by the Ohio
Department of Human Services, or a combination of both.

24, DATA PROCESSING - ACCURACY OF CRIS-E INPUT

Finding Number 1898-HUM24-043

CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster
93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Sufficient input controls and edit and validation checks must be in place within an application system to
provide assurance to management that client data is being entered onto the system accurately and
completely.

The Client Registry Information System-Enhanced {CRIS-E) has numerous screens a caseworker must
complete to determine if an applicant is eligible for public assistance benefits (totaling approximately $543
million for Food Stamp, $542 million for TANF, and $6 billion for Medicaid in fiscal year 1999). Several
screens could be enhanced with edit controls to prevent caseworker keystroke errors from unintentionally

impacting the extent of benefit or eligibility determinations by the system. The following are a few examples
of edit controls not in place:

. The Detait Shelter Cost screen (AEFSC) does not reflect a field to show which client is paying rent.
If the client attached to the rent ieaves the home or is deleted from the case, then the related rent

expense is deleted as well. Thus, there is the possibility all shelter expenses are not being properly
accounted for by the caseworker.
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24, DATA PROCESSING - ACCURACY OF CRIS-E INPUT {Continued)

. The Detail Utility Cost screen (AEFUC) does not have an edit check to verify that the “Standard
Utility Allowance” field does not exceed 100 percent. If there is more than one assistance group
sharing heating/cooling expenses, the system allows 100% for each group. Also, if the client pays
less than 100% of the heating/cooling expense, the system does not require the remaining
percentage be accounted for by the caseworker. Thus, there is the possibility of error.

. The Detail Employment Information screen (AEIEL) does not display the “Monthly Earnings Actuat
Gross” field. The caseworker must reenter the screen name AEIEI in order to view the *Monthly
Earnings Actual Gross” field. If the fields “Pay Freq” and *“Gross Amount in the Cumulative
Earnings” are not entered correctly, the calculation would be in error and go unnoticed if the extra
step of reentering the AEIEI screen is not completed by the caseworker.

Due to the lack of sufficient edit and validation checks, the risk of errors by the caseworker while completing
the application process is increased. This could result in inappropriate benefit or eligibility determinations
being made, as well as federal sanctions levied against the Department. The Department indicated one
reason for the lack of sufficient edit and validation checks is that legislative mandates, staffing, and
management priorities have resulted in a two year backlog in addressing expansion and modification of the
CRIS-E system. The Bureau of Systems Development indicated they have initiated efforts to upgrade the
edit controls for the CRIS-E input process.

We recommend the Bureau of Systems Development first survey County caseworkers to determine which
CRIS-E screens need additional edits, then modify the necessary application programs to implement those
additional edit and validation checks in a timely manner,

25, DATA PROCESSING - MANUAL OVERRIDES OF CRIS-E (FIATS)

Finding Number 1998-HUM25-044

CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster
93,558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.775/03.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

When utilizing and relying upon a complex data processing system with many users, it is vital to address
ihe users’ needs and minimize the manual and human input necessary to complete a transaction.

The Department of Human Services uses the Client Registry information System-Enhanced {CRIS-E) to
determine eligibility and benefit amounts for public assistance programs (totaling approximately $543 million
for Food Stamp, $542 million for TANF, and $6 billion for Medicaid in fiscal year 1999). To facilitate changes
to the programmed criteria in CRIS-E, the Department has implemented a process where the users
(caseworkers) notify the appropriate Department personnel of the need for a modification through Customer
Service Requests (CSRs). Until these changes are made, the caseworkers must, in most cases, manually
override the CRIS-E flags through fiats. As of July 1, 1999, ODHS personnel indicated there were 87 open
CSRs requesting program modification to alleviate fiat situations encountered by county staff; 7% of these
CSRs were initiated prior to 1995, however, there was no effective way to document this information was
correct.
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25, DATA PROCESSING - MANUAL OVERRIDES OF CRIS-E (FIATS) (Continued}

By notcompleting CRIS-E program modifications in a timely manner, the need for frequentmanual overrides
is increased. This involves a great deal of judgement on the part of caseworkers and their supervisors.
Under these circumstances, the risk of efrors occurring in benefit eligibility determinations is greatly
increased, and caseworker efficiency is decreased because of the cumbersome process involved. Eligibility
errors have, in the past, resulted in federal fiscat sanctions against the Department. According to the Bureau
of Systems Development, the delays in completing the CSRs to correct manual override situations (fiats)
is due to inadequate staffing and higher priority given to other federal/state legislative pregram changes.

We recommend the Department analyze their current process of addressing fiats and devote the necessary
resources to minimize manual override situations in CRIS-E.

28, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES - MONITORING

Finding Number 1999-HUMZ26-045
CFDA Number and Title 93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Specific requirements for eligibllity are unique to each program and are contained within the laws,
regulations, and agreements pertaining to the program. To provide assurance that eligibility requirements
are being adhered to, itis the responsibility of management to implement control procedures which provide
for a standardized review process and promote adherence to the specific program compliance requirements.

The determination of an applicant's eligibility to receive Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
funding is initiated at each county agency. Applicantinformation is compiled by case workers and input into
CRIS-E, an ODHS computer system designed to evaluate information, determine if an applicant is eligible
to receive cash assistance, and calculate the benefit amount {benefits totaled approximately $ 542 million
in fiscal year 1899} . Each county also has a limited amount of program menies which can be used, at the
county’s discretion, to assist individuals with cne-time or limited assistance for special circumstances. In
addition, the Department has enterad or will enter into a partnership agreement with each county to provide
incentives to the counties to reduce the number of assistance groups cn the welfare rolls. However, as of
the date of our audit, the Department had not instituted monitoring procedures to determine whether
information input into CRIS-E corresponded to source documentation, or if CRIS-E was accurately
evaluating the informaticn provided by county agency case workers.

Without an adequate monitoring process, the Department has only limited assurance that program funding
was disbursed to eligible recipients for the appropriate amounts. If uncorrected, this condition could lead
to questioned costs, thereby increasing the Department's liability andfor impacting the amount of federal
funding to be received in future years.

The QA Supervisor and Human Services Program Administrator indicated a control process was not
implemented because the federal requirerments da not specifically provide for the Department to monitor the
county agencies. However, the Audit Manager indicated the Department’s Office of External Audits plans
fo include procedures such as Cost Allocation, OMB Circular A-87, Prevention, Retenticn, & Contingency,
Partnership Agreements, Cash Activity, Contracts, and Performance auditing in the future.
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26. TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES - MONITORING (Continued)

We recommend the Department of Human Servicesimplement sufficient monitoring policies and procedures
to provide reasonable assurance that TANF program requirements and objectives are being fulfilled at both
the state and county levels. This monitoring review should cover all compliance requirements of the
pregram, with particular attention paid to the activities allowed, eligibility, and special test and provisions
requirements; and include a review and evaluation of the counties’ compliance with their partnership
agreement. All monitoring procedures should be documented in some manner to indicate who performed
the review, the resuits, and any recommendations or planned corrective action.

27, FOOD STAMP SAS 70 REPORT

Finding Number 1898-HUM27-046
CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Agriculture

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

The Ohio Department of Human Services currently administers the Electronic Benefits Transfer (EBT)
system for the distribution of Food Stamp benefits for selected counties. To provide assurance the system
meets the program objectives and requirements, it is management's responsibility to establish and
implement internal control procedures which reascnably ensure EBT transactions are accurately and
completely processed, including any transactions processed by outside parties. Typically, outside parties
who process significant financial data are required to have audits conducted in accordance with Statement
on Augiting Standards No. 70 - Reports on the Processing of Transactions by Service Organizations
(referred to as SAS 70 reports).

The OChio Department of Human Services entered into a contractual agreement with Citibank Corporation
to develop, implement, and maintain an off-line EBT system for the allocation of Food Stamp benefits
(totaling approximately $543 million in fiscal year 1989). Citibank subcontracted with Stored Valued
Systems to process the financial activities related to the program. The contractual agreement holds Citibank
and its subcontractors liable for erroneous benefit issuances. in addition, Stored Valued System submits
EBT reconciliations and Food Stamp activity reports to ODHS to document compliance with Foed Stamp
requirements. However, the contract does not require a SAS 70 review of Stored Value Systems, even
though primary reliance is placed on them to distribute available benefits and account for benefits used in
selected counties. Although Stored Value Systems did have a SAS 70 review completed during fiscal year
1998 of their on-line systems (which makes up the majority of their business), the off-line processing was
not specifically tested; and the Department did not obtain or review this report to determine if there were any
deficiencies which may impact Food Stamp benefit processing. No SAS 70 review was completed for fiscal
year 1999.

Without obtaining a thorough SAS 70 review of Stored Value Systems and evaluating the results, the
Department cannot be reasonably assured that EBT Food Stamp benefits are being properly issued to
authorized recipients in the proper amounts, or that amounts reimbursed to retailers are accurate, complete,
and properly supported on an on-going basis. If information from Stored Vaiue Systems is faulty, the
amounts reported to the federal government and in the State of Ghio Financial Statements for EBT benefits
may not be accurate ar complete. ODHS personnelindicated that, since the U.S. Department of Agriculture
had not implemented requirements for an annual SAS 70 review, they did not believe it necessary to obtain
one. They alsc expressed concern that the costs of such an audit would cause them to exceed their cost
neutrality limits.
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27. FOOD STAMP SAS 70 REPORT (Continued)

We recommend the Ohio Departrment of Human Services amend the contract with Citibank to require an
annual SAS 70 review be performed in accordance with the guidelines to be issued by the Office of
Management and Budget, including tests of controls, on the off-line processes of Food Stamp EBT benefits
by Stored Value Systems and/or any other subcontractor, We also recommend the Department include SAS
70 requirements in any other existing or future contracts which invoive significant processing of financial
information by outside parties. Department personnel should review these SAS 70 reports to determine if
any deficiencies noted would have a negative impact cn the programs involved and ensure appropriate and
timely corrective action is taken.

The Corrective Action Plan on page 247 indicates the Department has no plans of obtaining a SAS 70 of
the EBT system used to process Food Stamp Benefits. However, with the increasing significance ofthe EBT
benefits, the Department risks a future gualified cpinion on the Food Stamp Cluster andfor the General
Purpose Financial Statements without such an audit of the service organization’s activities.

28. REVIEW OF FOOD STAMP EBT REPORTS FROM VENDOR

Finding Number 1969-HUM28-047
CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 Food Stamp Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Agriculture

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

When administering federal grant awards, itis ODHS’ responsibility to provide reasonable assurance that
federal programs are reported in comgliance with rules and requirements established by the federal
government. This includes monitering the activities performed and information provided by any outside
vendors to provide assurance they are in compliance with program and contract requirements. A strong
system of internal controls includes documenting the review and approval of any ingependently prepared
reports to reasonably ensure they are accurate and complete.

Stored Value Systems currently processes the financial activities related to EBT benefits for the Food Stamp
program (approximately $220 million in fiscal year 1999). Stored Valued System submits EBT
reconciliations and Food Stamp activity reports o ODHS to document compiliance with Food Stamp
requirements. However, one of four monthly summary Food Stamp activity reports selected for testing
showed no evidence it had been reviewed by the Food Stamp Project Manager, as indicated. In addition,
three of four reports were not on file at the Department, therefore, we were not able to determine if the
reports had been received and reviewed.

Without adequate docurnentation that reviews are being performed, management cannot be reasonably
assured the intended control procedures are in place and operating effectively. If the vendor infermation
is not reviewed, errors and/or instances of noncompliance by the vendor may not be detected in a timely
manner. This may reduce the level of reliability which can be placed con transactions processed by the
vendor and could result in inaccurate or incomplete information being reported to the federal government.
The Food Stamps Project Manager indicated he did not see the need ta document his reviews beyond
maintaining a copy of the reports since he was the only one who locked at them. He also stated the reports
not on file were sent to storage.
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28, REVIEW OF FOOD STAMP EBT REPORTS FROM VENDOR {Continued)

We recommend the Depariment of Human Services establish and implement policies and procedures to
provide reasonable assurance that reviews of the various vendor-prepared reports related to Food Stamp
EBT transactions are properly performed and documented by the reviewer in a timely manner; and that
appropriate foliow-up is made for any discrepancies or unusual items. This documentation could be in the
form of the reviewer's signature or initials and date on the report, with notations or attachments describing
the resolution of any follow-up actions.

29, FOSTER CARE CONTRACTS

Finding Number 1998-HUM29-048
CFDA Number and Tille 93.658 - Foster Care
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Sound business practices require coniracts be prepared to document the reguirements and responsibilities
of each party in carrying out the terms of the agreement. To be effective, the contracts must be very clear
and specific with regard to what is allowable/unallowable and how results are to be measured and verified.

This is particularly important when the agreements involve the use of federal funds or require fulfillment of
specific federal program compliance requirements.

Under the current system, the Chio Department of Human Services operates a State-supervised, county-
administered system for many of their federal programs, inciuding Foster Care. The county agencies, in
turn, solicit private vendors to fulfill some of their Foster Care reguirements. However, there are no detailed
contracts in place between ODHS and the county agencies, or between the county agencies and the private
vendors, to specifically identify:

. the roles and responsibilities of each party;

. the laws and regulations which must be followed,

. costs or activities which are allowable and unallowable under the program; and
* how the contractor will monitor the activities and compliance of the contractee.

Underthese conditions, the risk of noncompliance with program requirements and/or the use of federal funds
for unallowable costs or activities is greatly increased. In addition, without signed contracts, the Department
and/or the county agencies may not have a solid legal position for enforcing the requirements of these
agreements. Management indicated they had not considered the need to obtain written contracts regarding
the Foster Care program because of the requirements in Ohio Administrative Cede.

We recommend ODHS implement policies and procedures which require the use of detailed contracts
between the Department and the county agencies, and between the county agencies and private
vendors/providers with regard to the Title IV-E Foster Care Program. These contracts should be very
specific regarding what costs are allowable for federal reimbursement and the compliance requirements
each party is responsible to fulfill. Similar contracts should be considered for use for other federal programs,
as well.
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30. NO HISTORICAL PAYMENT DATA IN FACSIS

Finding Number 1999-HUM30-049

CFDA Number and Title ©3.658 - Foster Care
93.659 - Adoption Assistance

Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Sound accounting practices require management devise and implement an adeguate internal control
structure capable of providing them with reasonable assurance their objectives are being achieved. Forthe
Department's federal programs, this must include internal controls that reasonably ensure amounts claimed
for federal reimbursement are processed accurately, completely, and in compliance with federal laws and
regulations; and are adequately documented to provide management with some assurance they are being
performed timely and consistently.

Throughout each month, the Ohio Department of Human Services (ODHS) receives requests for Title IV-E
reimbursement from County Public Children Services Agencies (PCSAs) related to costs for foster care {via
the ODHS 1925 and 1659) and adoption assistance {via the ODHS 1858). These costs, which represent
charges for foster care maintenance, partial-month benefit payments, and other allowable expenses (such
as clothing, graduation, legal expenses etc.) for both foster care and adoption assistance, are processed
through the Family and Children Services Information System (FACSIS) which verifies expenditure
allowability and calculates the reimbursement amount. However, FACSIS retains no historical cost
information which could be used to prevent claims from being submitted for reimbursement more than once,
or exceeding the allowable limits (related to clothing, legal expenses, etc.) set forth in the Ohio
Administrative Code. In addition, no procedures are in place to track or monitor the receipt of monthly ODHS
1925 from each county to avoid duplicate submissions, although no duplications were specifically identified
in our testing.

In the absence of internai controls to monitor reimbursement requests, the risk that amounts claimed for
federal reimbursement are overstated is greatly increased. Overstating federal claims could subject the
Department to possible federal sanctions, limiting the amount of funding available for program activities.
Departmental personnel stated the number of county reimbursement request line items is too voluminous
to monitor given their current staffing limitations. Reliance is placed on the PCSAs to request reimbursement
for only allowable Title IV-E expenditures.

We recommend the Department devise and implementinternal control procedureswhich provide reasonable
assurance that federat Title IV-E reimbursements are made only for allowable program costs, paid only once,
and within the limits established for each type of cost. This could be achieved by maintaining historical
payment information within FACSIS, by beneficiary, which should be compared to current reimbursement
requests. We aiso recommend ODHS implement the use of a tracking log or other tool to provide
reasonable assurance that each county ODHS 1925 has been received only once.
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3. CHILD SUPPORT BANK RECONCILIATIONS

Finding Number 1999-HUM31-050
CFDA Number and Title 83.563 - Child Support Enforcement
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

In order to ensure the accuracy of acceunting records, an adequate system of internal controls reguires an
entity to perform periodic reconciliations of their accounts and records which are reviewed and approved by
a supervisory level empioyee. To be effective, these reconciliation procedures must be performed regularly
ang include a thorough investigation and follow-up of all significant reconciling items.

During fiscal year 1998, ODHS relied on the County Child Support Enforcement Agencies (CSEA) to collect
and disburse the material portion of all child support payments. This activity generally represented
significant transaction cycles for the counties, therefore, we reviewed the audit reports for the 88 counties
in Ohio. Thirty of these reports included comments related to the child support transactions, including
CSEA’s not performing monthly bank reconciliations, CSEA’s being unable to balance accounts, CSEA’s
not having a review and approval of the reconciliations, untimely recenciliations, and no documentation of
review of reconciliations. In addition, we performed testing at 10 sefected counties and identified the
following:

HAMILTON COUNTY

Monthly, the accountant recenciles the Child Support bank statements noting any differences. Due to the
complexity of the reconciliation process, additional fiscal personnel were hired to investigate and settle the
unreconciled balances. However, of the three monthiy reconciliations tested for the three child support
accounts used, all had unreconciled balances, as indicated below:

SETS August, 1998 $42,359 $86
SETS November, 1998 $145,568 {$15,376)
SETS February, 1889 $224,960 $109
Regular August, 1998 $4,393,107 ($13,945)
Regular November, 1998 $4,160,155 ($12,331)
Regular February, 1999 $4,526,718 (320,2986)
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3. CHILD SUPPORT BANK RECONCILIATIONS (Continued)

LORAIN COUNTY

During fiscal year 1999, the Lorain County Child Support Enforcement Agency converted their 25,601
cases to the Support Enforcement Tracking System (SETS). This system was designed by the Ohio
Department of Human Services (ODHS), in response to federal mandates, to assist in tracking the status
of all child support cases and account for the related collections and disbursements (approximately
$46,000,000 annually for Lorain County). However, SETS cannot provide the book balance needed to
reconcile the county’s records to those of the bank. The Child Support Enforcement Agency Bookkeeping
Supervisor currently maintains separate manual records and has reconciled them to the bank through
December 31, 1998, but cannot agree them o SETS. This process is very cumbersome and time
consuming and provides little assurance the information recorded in SETS is accurate and complete.

UNION COUNTY

As of May 31, 1999, Union County had not performed monthly bank statement reconciliations for both the
County Department's regular child support account and the SETS account. Union County receives, on
average, approximately $200,000 per month in child support payments.

Without performing regular bank reconciliation, investigating and resolving differences noted during the
reconciliation process, or consistently reviewing the reconciliations performed, the risk is greatly increased
that balances reported for these accounts could be misstatement and thus e unreliable. Furthermore,
improper or iflegal transactions may not be detected in a timely manner.

QDHS and county management indicated the reasons for the problems with the bank reconciliations are,
in part, due to Support Enforcement Tracking Systern's (SETS) inability to provide useful reports and
reliable information to assist in the reconciliations. This has caused the reconciliation process to be very
time consuming and labor-intensive and created a negative impression of SETS by many county CSEA
workers,

We recommend ODHS take the appropriate steps necessary to provide the appropriate tools to assist the
counties in reconciling their accounts. This would include identifying and evaluating the reconciliations
deficiencies within SETS and making all program modifications necessary to reasonably ensure that SETS
has the ability to provide reliable, useful information to the county CSEA's to assist them in reconciling their
accounts. This would require extensive communication with County CSEA personnel invelved in the
process, and continuous monitoring of the process to help ensure the system is operating properly. We also
recommend county management implement/enforce control policies and procedures which provide
assurance all Child Support bank accounts to a zero difference each month. This which would include
continuing their efforts 1o investigate all unreconciled differences, and requiring all reconciliations be
reviewed and approved by a supervisory level employee to ensure they are being performed timely and
accurately. If the unreconciled amounts relate to long-standing items that have been on the books for a
number of years and/or the county can maintain a consistent difference for several months, ODHS shouid
work with the counties to determine an appropriate method to write those frozen amounis off.
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32. SETS - LACK OF TRAINING & SUPPORT TO COUNTIES

Finding Number 1999-HUM32-051
CFDA Number and Title 93.563 - Child Support Enforcement
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Sound business practices suggest users receive appropriate computer applicationtrainingand supportwhen
their job responsibilities are impacted by the development and implementation of new application software.

The Support Enforcement Tracking System (SETS) is an automated system to effectively manage the child
support enforcement program to meet the requirements as mandated by the Family Support Act of 1288,
and other program requirements that have been mandated or revised since 1987. The main objective of
SETS is to support a variety of child support activities at the state and county levels. During our review, we
identified the following issues that suggest county personnel were inadequately trained on the use of the
new SETS systern:

. The HELP Desk had not been following threugh with the user community on problems called in or
e-maited to them, or keeping the user community posted on the corrective actions taken, if any. In
addition, when a potential issue affected all counties, an online ODHS Bulletin was not issued in a
timely manner, so that the HELP Desk would not receive a call from each county concerning the
same problem.

. Five SETS software upgrade versicns have been released since October 1998 and communication
of system changes has been untimely or nonexistent.

. The Financial Management component in SETS, particularly the reconciliation process, is not
perceived by county staff as user friendly. Additional training and possible procedural changes may
be necessary for counties to reconcile their SETS depository account to their bank statement.

. Computer Based Training (CBT) has been developed and utilized as a training tool. However, due
to insufficient county staffing, available time is very limited to take full advantage of this tool.

Without the proper training and support, the counties have had difficulty utilizing the SETS software
effectively. As a result, the counties have developed and utilized “work arounds” which allow them to
process data however necessary to properly receive and remit child support payments. While it is difficult
at this time to estimate any damage resulting from the use of "work arounds”, it is possible that erroneous
decisions could be made by county staff who do not properly understand the new SETS software and the
*work arounds” to the detriment of the client or county. Per the SETS Project Manager, training has focused
on the conversion process, but additional efforts could be completed at the counties for operating SETS.
ODHS implemented, of plans to enhance, county training and support by: continuing to update SETS'
InnerWeb {which keeps the counties current on pertinent events), expanding and updating the CBT, and
restructuring the HELP Desk.

We recommend SETS management continue to invest resources ta communicate SETS software updates
through hands-on training and electronic media, and provide timely resolution of Help Desk issues related
to the support of the SETS application. Additicnally, ODHS SETS Management should assist counties in
restructuring thefr procedures to effectively and efficiently utilize the SETS software.
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33. SETS - SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT LIFE CYCLE

Finding Number 1999-HUM33-052
CFDA Number and Title 93.563 - Child Support Enforcement
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Sound internal control procedures require a systems development and methodology plan for new
applications be formalized and documented. The methodology adopted by the agency should establish and
document the roles and responsibilities of the IT department, user departments and counties, and others
for planning, developing, reviewing, implementing, and auditing the end product of the system development
process.

The Support Enforcement Tracking System (SETS) is an automated system intended to effectively manage
the child support enforcement program to meet the requirements mandated by the Family Support Act of
1988, and other program requirements that have been mandated or revised since 1887. The main objective
is to support a variety of child support activities at the state and county levels.

Extensive documentation was available for many of the design and development activities for SETS.
However, no formatized and documented systems development life cycle methadology specific to the
development of SETS was in place to provide timely and effective project management. The following
issues were identified, which would have not occurred or been timely and effectively addressed if a proper
methodology were developed, documented and followed:

. The user community did not sign-off on the design of SETS, which contributed to the overal lack
of approval by the counties and the following county issues:

> Issues with the Case Establishment/Case Management component forinterstate, and paternity
establishment requiring manual intervention by county employees.

»  lssues with distribution, financial corrections, reconciliation, and financial history of the Financial
Management component could cause a lack of financial transaction integrity.

» SETS lacked a clear audit trail, preventing the effective and timely resolution of client queries.

» The federal Quarterly Child Support Report, 4223, did not properly foot, In addition, the
counties were unable to substantiate all the data on the Report.

» The QFROD4RA Report (Check Register) inconsistently footed.

» The case type on the IV-D interface often changed at month-end.

. Not all of the changes neted by the pilot counties, as a result of user acceptance testing, produced
changes in the system before being rolled out to the counties.

. Conversion and implementation of the new state-wide SETS application for all 88 counties was
running behind schedule. The large metropolitan counties had not fully converted all their cases.

. Systems performance issues for both the online and batch processes caused operation problems
for the counties. If month-end processing occurred during the week, a shutdown in the system
resulted, preventing further case payment processing.
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33. SETS - SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT LIFE CYCLE (Continued)

Improper management of the SETS systems development has ied to:

. The user community’s lack of confidence in the system.

. Significant program changes occurring after the roli-out.

. Limited testing prior to live production due to time pressures and resource constraints.
. Federal sanctions as a result of the project delays.

Per the SETS Project Manager, federal deadlines and possible sanctions have been a serious concern, as
well as legislative changes to the program. These concerns have been the priority of the project.

We recommend ODHS formalize and document their system development life eycle procedures as a means
for structuring and contrelling the precess of developing all future computerized information systems.
Because system development projects are among the most demanding, effective and timely project
management, as part of the entire life cycle, is essential for the successful implementation of the
deliverables.

34, VOUCHER SUMMARY SUPPORT DETAIL

Finding Number 1999-HUM34-053

CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster

93.558 - Temporary Assistance For Needy Families
93.658 - Foster Care

93.659 - Adoption Assistance
93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

Federal guidelines require recipients to ensure program costs are necessary, autherized, and adequately
documented. It is management's responsibility to establish and implement internal control procedures to
reasonably ensure compliance with these federal guidelines and maintain appropriate supporting
documentation for all disbursements of federal funds.

The Ohio Department of Human Services places primary reliance on information systems to comply with
various federal requirements, particularly those related to activities allowed or unallowed, allowable costs,
and eligibility. For Foster Care and Adoption Assistance Programs, the FACSIS computer systems process
and maintain recipient data for eligibility determination and benefit issuance. Each client maintained on
FACSIS is assigned a recipient number for identification and tracking purposes. In addition, the MMIS
system maintains information regarding approved Medicaid providers and services and must interface with
FACSIS to verify the eligibility of clients prior 1o approving payments for Medicaid claims. The FACSIS
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4. VOUCHER SUMMARY SUPPORT DETAIL (Continued)

system then interfaces with the Client Registry Information System {CRIS) which generates the electronic
files used to prepare the voucher summary and individual warrants for Foster Care and Adoption Assistance
benefit payments. The Department maintains this electronic data {in Control-D) to identify the detaited
warrant information associated with each voucher summary.

As part of our testing, we selected a sample of 40 benefit payments from approximately $192 miilion in
Adoption Assistance expenditures made by the Department and attempied to trace individual
recipients/clients to FACSIS to verify they had been determined eligible. However, in all 40 instances, the
identification numbers shown on the Control-D screens or the remittance advices from the Medicaid
providers (if the client was receiving Medicaid benefits) did not correlate to recipient numbers required to
locate the recipients/clients in the FACSIS system, nor was there a readily identifiable link between these
two types of numbers. A ten-digit identification number was documented on the Control-D support, but
FACSIS requires a 12-digit recipient number. Further investigation determined the Control-I number was
actually missing a suffix {usually an 80 cr an 03), however, the suffixes were not stated anywhere in the
Control-D support. In addition, the Control-I information which provides the initial link between the voucher
summary payments and the underlying supporting documentation for ali programs paid via voucher
summaries {Food Stamps, TANF, Medicaid, Foster Care, and Adoption Assistance) was not available from
Novembker, 1898 to February, 1999.

Adirect link between the disbursement support and the computer systems used to determine recipienticlient
eligibility and benefit amounts would help management be reasonably assured that program expenditures
are accurate, complete, and paid only toffor eligible recipients in accordance with the laws and regulations
of the related federal programs. :

Humean Services MIS persennel could not explain how/why the unique MMIS billing numbers are created
or why the suffix is dropped from the FACSIS recipient numbers. However, it appears this problem occurs
during the interface between the eligikility computer systems (CRIS-E and FACSIS), MMIS, and the CRIS
payment system, and stems from the varying lengths of the identification numbers used. According to
ODHS MIS personnel, the information for November to February was lost during a programming update and
could not be recovered because the back-up information had been lost or damaged.

We recommend the Chio Department of Human Services closely review the programs and processes used
in the preparation of voucher summary benefits payment for Adoption Assistance to identify the rationale
for using the various numbers and how they are created. We recommend the Department implement the
use of universal identification numbers to support and track all voucher summary benefit payments,
preferably the existing recipient numbers from FACSIS. This would require ail identification numbers be of
equal length; additional zeros or other standard coding should be added to the shorter CRIS-E numbers to
avoid dropping required FACSIS information. Ifthe use of universal or standardized identification numbers
is not possible, we recommend the Department create a cross-walk between all possible identification
numbers for each client/recipient within FACSIS sothe apprepriate individual can be directly identified within
the systems based on the supporting documentation for the disbursement. We further recommend the
Department evaluate its back-up and disaster recovery procadures to determine why the critical information
maintained electronically in Control-D was lost, and make appropriate adjustments to reasonably ensure
future loss of data does not occur.

The Department disagrees with portions of this finding, as indicated in the Corrective Action Flan on page
251. However, the fact remains that there was not vehicle in place to provide a link between the payment
and the underlying support which documented the allowability/eligibility of the expenditure and recipient, as
required by federal regulation.
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35. CONTROL WEAKNESSES/CODING ERRORS - EXPENDITURES

Finding Number 1999-HUM35-054
CFDA Number and Title All programs administered by the Department
Federal Agency Various

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

Federal regulations require recipients to maintain internal controls over federal programs that provide
reasonable assurance they are in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant
agreements; and the activity is accurately and completely recorded in the financial statements and the
federal schedule. it is management’s responsibility fo monitor these control procedures to verify they are
operating effectively.

Currently, the Chio Department of Human Services (ODHS}) utilizes voucher summaries to process benefit
payments for the Food Stamps, TANF, Medicaid, Foster Care, and Adoption Assistance programs. In
addition, intra-state transfers {ISTVs) are made to other state agencies who administer portions of the
Medicaid program. Regular vouchers are used to process advances to counties for expenses incurred in
the administration of various programs cn behalf of ODHS. During the audit period, internal controls over
the disbursement of federal program monies were not being consistently applied, as indicated below:

Voucher Summaries

. The current grocedures in place at HUM require the Accounts Payable Unit Supervisor to sign the
certification stamp on the voucher summary report to approve the payment, however, gight of 60
iterns tested did not include the Unit Supervisors signature or other evidence of approval.

. The Accounts Payable Account Examiner 3 is reqguired to place tick marks on the voucher summary
spreadsheet to indicate agreement with the voucher summary document, however, six of 60
spreadsheets tested did notinclude any tick marks or other evidence to show this comparison was
made.

. The Accounts Payable Account Examiner 3 is required to complete and attach to the voucher
summary document a detailed checklist documenting the completion of the various control
procedures identified, however, four of 60 voucher summaries tested did not have a checklist
attached.

In addition, we noted the following coding errors in our testing of ten voucher summaries totaling $1.7 billion
from the $5.9 billion in Medicaid voucher summary benefit payments during fiscal year 1999, which may
indicate the established control procedures are not operating consistently:

. one contained expenditures totaling $4,569 which were improperly charged to Fund GRF instead
of Fund 3F0, resulting in an understatement of federal claim for reimbursement in that amount.

. four contained expenditures totaling $6,534 that were recorded to an incorrect Medicaid reporting
category within Fund GRF.
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35. CONTROL WEAKNESSES/CODING ERRORS - EXPENDITURES {Continued)

County Advances

. The Statement of Financial Mapping is & quarterly County Reporting (CORe) system report which
is required to be sent to the County Department of Human Services (CDHS) to be reconciled to the
Quarterly Consolidated report prepared by the county, however, these CORe reports were not sent
consistently during fiscal year 1988. Therefore, quarterly reconciliations were not performed during
fiscal year 1999 on a timely or consistent basis.

. At the end of each state fiscal year, the Account Examiner Supervisor or the Fiscal Specialist are
required to prepare a Cash Analysis Report which tracks the expenditures, the non-reimbursable
expenditures, the county share and the allocation of excess. However, per conversation with
County Finance Section Chief, the Cash Analysis for fiscal year 1999 was not performed timely.

. Current procedures in place at HUM require a final reconciliation be performed at the end of each
state fiscal year for each county. The reconciliation compares the total of actual aliowabie
expenditures with the total monthly advances for the year. Each county should receive a copy of
the reconciliation and certification sheet specifying the amount overfunder paid for the year.
However, these reconciliations are not being completed on a timely basis.

. One of 12 monthly Payment Distribution Sheets prepared by the CORe computer system (used to
determine quarterly county payments) included amounts which were manually changed, however
there was no evidence indicating the reason for the recalcu'ated sheets. Further investigation
revealed a CORe system error ocourred during the processing of June 1999 payments requiring
Department personnel to manually calculate the amounts. This June information was recorded on
the “May” Payment Distribution Sheet to support the payments.

ISTVs

As Medicaid claims from subrecipient state agencies are received, they are interfaced with the Medicaid
Management Information System (MMIS) to verify recipient and provider eligibility. However, for six of 45
provider claims tested from the $602 million paid via ISTV, the claim information had been deleted from
MMIS and could not be found on microfiche maintained by the Claims Processing Unit. Therefore, we could
not determine whether the service was performed by an eligible Medicaid provider. We were, however, able
to verify that the payment amount was accurate and that the recipient was eligible.

If controt procedures are not performed and documented thoroughly and consistently, ODHS management
may not be reasonably assured payments are accurate and complete. [n addition, management may not
be able to readily identify their thought processes and/or actions taken should questions arise regarding
particular aspects of the reviews, reconciliations, or manual changes, particularly if there is turnover in
supervisory positions performing the controls. If appropriate supporting documentation is not maintained,
management may not be able to substantiate the allowability of expenditure transactions.

Personnelinvolved with disbursementprocessing of the voucher summaries indicated the deficiencies noted
were oversights on their behalf. County Finance personnel indicated the errors were related to CORe
system deficiencies and the change from a calender year to a state fiscal year had an impact on the
timeliness of some reports. They also indicated they had not considered the importance of documenting
the reason for changes to the CORe information or evidencing reviews performed. MMIS personnel
indicated the system can only retain information for 12- 18 months, but could not explain the missing
microfiche.
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OHIO DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

CONTROL WEAKNESSES/CODING ERRORS - EXPENDITURES (Continued)

We recommend:

additional training be provided to staff members processing program expenditures to help ensure
they are aware of the required procedures and the impertance of performing those procedures
accurately and consistently.

the Ceunty Finance Section ensure that reconciliations be performed on a timely and consistent
basis in order to ensure that the HUM's expenditures will be accurately and completely reported;
and implement policies and procedures which require documentation to explain the reason for
manual changes made to computer generated reports. Thisexplanation should be documented with
supervisor's signature or initials on the report.

periodic monitoring procedures be performed by upper management to help ensure the established
controls are in place and operating as intended.

management evaluate their current records retention policy and/or implement controls to provide
reasonable assurancethat all expenditure supporting documentation, including ISTV provider detail,
is maintained.

36. CONTRACTS/RELATIONSHIPS WITH COUNTY AGENCIES
Finding Number 1989-HUM36-055
CFDA Number and Title All Programs Administered by the Counties
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTRCL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

OMB Circular A-133 §__ .210 states, in part,:

(b) Federal award. Characteristics indicative of a Federal award received by a subrecipient are
when the organization:

(1) Determines who is eligible to receive what Federal financial assistance;

{2) Has its performance measured against whether the objectives of the Federal program are
met;

(3) Has responsibility for programmatic decision making;

(4) Has responsibility for adherence to applicable Federal program compliance reguirements;
and

(5) uses the Federal funds to carry out a program of the organization as compared to providing
goods or services far a program of the pass-through entity.

It is the Department's responsibility to evaluate all federal transactions to determine if a subrecipient
relationship exists; and to notify the parties involved, in a written contract or agreement, of the nature of
these relationships as well as the other parties’ responsibilities for meeting the compliance and audit
requirements of the single audit act and OMB Circular A-133.
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36. CONTRACTS/RELATIONSHIPS WITH COUNTY AGENCIES (Continued)

The Ohio Department of Human Services currently uses a state supervised, county administered approach
for the operation of its eight major programs. Under this structure, the 88 counties in Ohio do not report
these funds on their federal schedule even though they may meet all five criteria of a subrecipient, in varying
degrees for each program, as defined in OMB Circular A-133. In addition, the counties must contribute local
doilars as a condition of receiving this federal funding for most, if not all, of these programs. However, there
are no written contracts with the counties which identify the nature of their relaticnships with ODHS, nor has
there been a formal evaluation of these relationships.

If subrecipient relationships exist between ODHS and the county agencies and are not properly identified,
the county agencies would not be subject to a separate single audit, as required by the single audit act and
OMB Circular A-133. This greatly increases the risk that federal funds could be used improperly or that other
program compliance requirements would not be met. In addition, under the current structure, the roles and
responsibilities of the State and county agencies are not always clear, which increases the risk of
noncompliance and reduces overall program effectiveness.

We recommend the Department evaluate their relationships with the county agencies 1o determine whether,
based on the criteria in OMB Circular A-133, they should be treated as subrecipients for any or all of the
federal programs involved, The Department should promptly implement or revise contracts with the counties
to clearly define the nature of the relationships and each party's responsibilities. If subrecipient reiationships
are identified, these contracts must identify the program name and CFDA number, the award name and
number, the award year, if the award is for research and development, and the name of the federal awarding
agency. Inaddition, the contracts should incorporate basic information about the award and key provisions
which would enable the counties to carry out their responsibilities and allow QDHS to monitor their activities.
We also recommend ODHS reviewtheir responsibilities with regard to monitoring subrecipients, and institute
the necessary control procedures to satisfy these requirements. Furthermore, al! future relationships which
involve federal funds should be carefully evaluated and explicit agreements defining the nature of the
relationship and each party's responsibilities should be completed before funds are disbursed.

37. MEDICAID - MEQC ELIGIBILITY REVIEWS

Finding Number 1999-HUM37-056
CFDA Number and Title 93.775/93.777193.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

42 CFR Section 431.812 states, “the agency must review all active cases selected from the State agency’s
lists of cases authorized eligible for the review month, to determine if the cases were eligible for services
during all or part of the month under review, and, if appropriate, whether the proper amount of recipient
liability was computed”. it further states “the agency must review those negative cases selected from the
State agency's lists of cases that are denied, suspended, or terminated in the review month to determine
if the reason for the denial, suspension, or termination was correct and if requirements for timely notice of
negative action were met”.  As such, it is managements respansibility to implement internal control
monitoring procedures to provide assurance that reviews are performed both accurately and completely and
that adequate evidential matter exists for such reviews.
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37. MEDICAID - MEQC ELIGIBILITY REVIEWS (Continued)

On a sample basis, the Medicaid Eligibility Quality Contro! (MEQC) section performs both active and
negative case reviews to verify those clients who were found efigible to receive benefits were properly
determined to be eligible, and those clients that were found ineligible to receive benefits were properly
denied medical assistance or properly terminated. Established procedures require these reviews to be
approved by appropriate supervisory personnel. However, five of 60 active, auxiliary, or negative case
review files selected for testing from the 2,413 performed during fiscal year 1999 showed no evidence of
supervisory review and approval {2s documented on the corresponding review schedule).

With supervisory review and approval of active and negative case reviews, management can be more
reasonably assured that such reviews are performed accurately and consistently decreasing the risk that
ineligible clients could be falsely determined te be eligible, or eligible clients could be either improperly
denied medical assistance or terminated.

The MEQC Supervisor stated there had been a supervisory transition, therefore, the MEQC supervisory
reviews of negative case review files had not been performed since the departure of the previous Supetvisor
in March of 1998. Furthermore, she stated the lack of District supervisory review of the active case review
internal control failures noted were merely oversights on the District Supervisors' behalf.

We recommend the Department implement ongging training to provide reasonable assurance that all
personne! are aware of changes in updates/changes in federal requirements and ODHS procedures related
to MEQC reviews. We also recommend management reinforce the importance of performing and
documenting the required supervisory reviews and periodicaily monitor the activities of the supervisory
personnel to help ensure they are performing these reviews accurately and consistentty.

in the Corrective Action Plan on page 252, the Department indicates this weakness was corrected before

the fiscal year end. However, we were not presented with any physical evidence during our audit which
would substantiate that fact.

38. MEDICAID - VERIFICATION OF THIRD-PARTY LIABILITIES

Finding Number 1999-HUM38-057
CFDA Number and Title 93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

42 CFR 433.138 requires the state to take reasonable measures to determine the legal liabitity of third
parties for payment of services furnished under the pian. Ata minimum, the Department must obtain health
insurance information from Medicaid providers, follow up on such information, and maintain sufficient
documentation to reasonably ensure legal third-party liabilities are identified and claim recoveries are made
in a timely manner, as required.
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38. MEDICAID - VERIFICATION OF THIRD-PARTY LIABILITIES (Continued)

To facilitate the identification of potential third-party liabilities, the Department has established a Third-Party

Liability Unit who primarily uses three methods for obtaining insurance carrier information from providers.

First, the Unit receives “Health Insurance Fact Forms” (QDHS 6614's) containing third-party (insurance
carrier} liability information. Providers are instructed in their provider agreements to submit this form if they

become aware there may be a potential third-party liability. Second, the Medicaid Management information
System (MMIS) generates a weekly Cost Avoidance Exception Report which identifies all claims paid by

Medicaid for which the provider indicated partial payment was received from a third party. Foreach line item

over $500, a Cost Avoidance Worksheet requesting third-party information is prepared and mailed to the

provider by the Third-Party Liability Unit. Third, the county agency completes Health Insurance Information
Farms (ODHS 6612). These files are sorted separately from the rest of the public assistance groups
because the verification of insurance information has already been attached by the county agency. Alithird-

party liability information obtained by the Third-Party Liability Unit is verified with the appropriate insurance

carrier and a third-party liability file is created within MMIS to prevent Medicaid from paying claims that would

otherwise be the responsibility of a third party. However, we noted the following with regard to the 4,150

third-party liability cases created during the audit period:

. there were no control procedures in place to provide assurance the third-party liability files created
were accurate and complete.

. no tracking procedures were in place to ensure ali Cost Avoidance Worksheets mailed had been
returned.
. the required letter was not attached {ODHS 6612} or phone cail documented {ODHS 6614 or CAW)

indicating the examiner verified the information with the respective insurance carrier o ensure itwas
accurate and complete for 20 of 80 cases selected.

. nine of 60 cases selected did not have a third party liabiiity file created, or the file did not agree with
the corresponding 6612, 6614 or Cost Avoidance Worksheet.

- for 20 of 60 cases selected, the Insurance Coverage Dates did not agree with those on the
verificaticn form or, if not listed, the clients eligibility date.

Under these conditions, management cannot gauge the effectiveness of internal control procedures applied
to fulfili their duty to identify legally liable third parties or be reasonably assured that items requiring follow-up
are being properly and timely resolved. in addition, management has only limited assurance that al!
incerning ODHS 6612's, ODHS 6614's, and Cost Avoidance Worksheets are verified for accuracy and
compieteness before being entered into MMIS.

If the Department is not able to accurately identify liable third parties and recoup over-payments related to
third-party obligations, the amount of program funds available for eligible Medicaid recipients would be
reduced, limiting managements ability to achieve program objectives.  Furthermore, inaccurate or
incomplete information could lead to claims being unjustly rejected or erroneously paid.

The Cost Avoidance Supervisor stated that new procedures had been put in place to evidence the phone
verification of the information on the ODHS 6614's and the Cost Avoidance Workshests, however, the
failures noted were merely human oversight on the behalf of personnel.
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38. MEDICAID - VERIFICATION OF THIRD-PARTY LIABILITIES (Continued)

We recommend initial training be given to all existing personnel regarding the established procedures and
their responsibilities regarding the verification of QDHS 6614's and Cost Avcidance Worksheets; and
ongeing training be conducted to provide reasonable assurance that all changes or updates to procedures
are properly communicated. We also recommend the Depariment devise internal control proceduresto track
Cost Avoidance Worksheets, resulting in a means to gauge their effectiveness in attaining third-party liabitity
information, which could be evidenced in the form of a log maintained by the Third-Party Liability Unit. In
addition, the Department should devise and implement control procedures requiring a review of all third
party liability files created within MMIS. This review should verify the file agrees to the information on the
corresponding ODHS 6612, ODHS 6614, or Cost Avoidance Worksheet. Such review could be evidenced
by the reviewer's signature and the date on the appropriate health insurance information form.

In the Corrective Action Plan on page 253, the Department disagrees with portions of this finding and
clarifies the process used to verify the accuracy of the insurance information, as submitted on the various
forms. However, the comment is addressing the lack of controls to ensure this information is accurately and
completely input/maintained in the files within the MMIS system which utilizes the data.

39, MEDICAID - DOCUMENTATION OF REVIEWS

Finding Number 1999-HUM39-058
CFDA Number and Title 93.775/83.777/03.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INFERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

It is managements responsibility to design and implement internal control policies and procedures to
reascnably ensure compliance with federal laws and regulations. In a strong internal control environment,
these control procedures would include initial reviews performed by staff members, as well as supervisory
reviews to evaluate the accuracy and completeness of work performed by staff. It is imperative the
performance of these control procedures be documented to provide management with some assurance they
are being performed timely and consistently.

The Ohio Department of Human Services currently maintains various units responsible for monitoring
provider eligibility and compliance with Medicaid rules and regulations. These units include Surveillance
and Utilization Review (SUR) which performs provider reviews in an effort to identify over utilization of
Medicaid services; Provider Enrollmentwhich determines provider eligibility; Hospital Audits which performs
desk reviews of hospital cost reports; and Long-Term Care which performs desk reviews of long-term care
facility cost reports. We noted the following with regard to the control procedures tested for these units:

SUR Unit - This unit has established certain internal controls which require each provider review be
evaluated by the Area Coordinator to ensure accuracy and completeness. However, for five of 60 provider
reviews tested, out of approximately 400 performed annually, the SUR Unit maintained no evidence this
control was in place and operating as intended.
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39. MEDICAID - DOCUMENTATION OF REVIEWS {Continued)

Provider Eligibility - Of the 60 reviews tested from the more than 5,000 provider application packages
reviewed during fiscal year 1999:

. 58 required a staff review; there was ne evidence three of these reviews were performed.
. 55 required a supervisory review; there was no evidence two of these reviews were performed.
. 50 required a Section Chief approval on the provider agreement; one application did not contain

evidence of this approval,

Hospital Audits - Of the 25 interim reviews tested from the more than 230 performed during fiscal year 1999,
we could not locate four route slips, therefore, we could not determine if the reviews performed by the staff
auditors and the lead auditors were performed. Of the 20 final settiement reviews tested from the 217
performed during fiscal year 1999, we could not locate 16 route slips, therefore, we could not determine if
the reviews were performed by the staff auditors and the lead auditors.

Long-term Care - For three of 20 audit files tested from the 265 long-term care audits performed during fiscal
year 1999, there was no evidence of a supervisory review and approval of the audit pack; for one out of 20
audit files tested, the audit program was not initialed and dated by the staff auditor; and for one out of 10
audit files tested, the audit was not completed within three years after the submission date of the cost report,
as required by federal regulations.

Without documenting the existence of controls, there is a risk that procedures may not be working in a
manner intended by management, increasing the risk that management's objectives will be not achieved.
Departmental personnel indicated that several of the SUR exceptions noted were from self audits performed
by the provider themselves, for which a supervisory review was not histerically performed. The remaining
exceptions were oversights on the Department’s behalf.

We recommend the Department implement control policies and procedures which provide reasonable
assurance that all staff and supervisory reviews , including self-reviews by providers, are performed and/or
evaluated for accuracy and completeness by the appropriate supervisor. The performance of these
procedures should be documented by the staff and supervisory personnel in the review file or on other
appropriate forms. We also recommend periodic monitaring by upper management be performed to provide
additional assurance the established procedures are in place and consistently operating as intended.

40, MEDICAID - PROVIDER OVERPAYMENT CONTROLS

Finding Number 1999-HUM40-059
CFDA MNumber and Title 93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

According to 42 CFR 433.300 through 433.320 and 433.400, the State is required to credit the Medicaid
program for (1) State warrants that are canceled and uncashed checks beyond 180 days of issuance
(escheated warrants) and (2) overpayments made to providers of medical services within specified time
frames. In most cases, the State must refund provider overpayments to the Federal Government within 60
days of identification of the overpayment, regardless of whether the overpayment was collected from the
provider. Itis managements responsibility to design and implement control procedures to reasonably ensure
provider cverpayments are accurate and complete, and refunded within 60 days of identification.
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40. MEDICAID - PROVIDER OVERPAYMENT CONTROLS {Continued)

The Ohio Depariment of Human Services (ODHS) identifies provider cverpayments in audit procedures
(desk & field) performed by the Surveillance and Utilization Review (SUR) Unit and outside contractors.
There are two types of over-payments identified by SUR, audit settlements and desk review findings. SUR
Audit settlements/overpayments identified are forwarded to the ODHS Federal Reporting Section on a
quarterly basis for inclusion on the HCFA-64 report. However, there are no procedures in place to provide
assurance that overpayments identified through one outside contractor and SUR desk reviews are refunded
within 60 days of identification; instead these amounts are refunded as they are collected from the provider.
In addition, the Department receives a monthly listing of voided and canceled warrants from AOS. CAS
adjustment letters are prepared on a periodic basis to account for these voided and canceled warrants ana
are sent to State Accounting for input.  However, internal control procedures do not exist to reconcile
adjustment letters to the amount recorded in CAS; and five of eight letters tested showed no evidence they
were raviewad and approved by the Section Chief, as required by internal procedures.

With the absence of appropriate internal controls, management cannot reasonably ensure pravider
overpayments and voided/canceled warrants were refunded timely, and in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations. The Accounting Information Segtion Chief stated the reconciliationshad not been performed
due to a change in staffing.

We recommend the Department devise and implementcontrol policies and procedures to reasonably ensure
the provider cverpayments and voided/canceled warrants are accurate, complete, and refunded to the
federal government upon identification, as required. Such controls should be adequately documented to
provide management assurance they are performed timely and consistently.

41, MEDICAID - HCAP & NURSING FRANCHISE FEES

Finding Number 1969-HUM41-060
CFDA Number and Titie 93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

The Chio Department of Human Services currently administers the Hospitai Care Assurance Program
{(HCAP), in conjunction with the Medicaid Program, o offset expenses incurred by participating hospitals in
their service to Chio’s indigent pepulation. 1n addition, the Department assesses all nursing facilities and
intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded a franchise fee for the purpose of providing home and
community-based services to elderly and disabled persons. To promote the accomplishment of these
program objectives, itis management's responsibility to establish and implementinternal control procedures
which reasonably assure transactions are accurately and completely processed. These controls must be
monitored by appropriate supervisory personnel to ensure they are in place and operating effectively.
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41. MEDICAID - HCAP & NURSING FRANCHISE FEES (Continued)

Departmental personnel indicated various controls were performed to monitor the assessmentand collection
of fees for participating HCAP hospitals (totaling approximately $236 million) and all nursing facilities and
intermediate care facilities fees (totaling approximately $56 million}. However, there was no evidence to
document the Accounts Receivable Section Chief's reviews of the Daily Deposit and Weekly Document
Processing Activity reports to monitor for timely deposit and the number of items processed; nor was there
any evidence that internal control procedures ensuring the accuracy and completeness of amounts used
to calculate HCAP assessments, were in place and operating effectively. Inaddition, HCAP personnel utilize
the Ohio Administrative Code fo ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations. However, a
policies and procedures manual does not exist to promote the consistent application of program procedures
from year fo year. The need for written policies and procedures was further corroborated by the fact that
prior year's ending fund balance was not considered when calculating the current year's assessment
amounts.

If appropriate monitoring controls are not in place andfor not decumented, management may not be
reasonably assured collections and distributions associated with HCAP and Nursing Franchise Fees are
accurate, complete, and in accordance with laws, regulations, and management intentions; or that revenues
are deposited in a timely manner. Without documented policies and procedures, the risk that transactions
will be processed inconsistently or inaccurately is increased; and could result in activities not being
performed in accordance with management’s intentions, particularly in the event of turnover among key
personnel.

The supervisory personnel invelved in processing the revenue indicated they had not considered the need
to retain evidence of their reviews, but agreed it would be prudent to do so. HCAP personnel noted the Ohio
Administrative Code sufficiently serves as their policy and procedure manual and they believed the failure
to account for the prior year's fund balance was attributed to turnover in program personnel.

We recommend management implement appropriate policies and procedures to require ali supervisory
reviews and other monitoring procedures related to HCAP and Nursing Franchise Fee assessments and
collections be evidenced in some way. This would include maintaining copies of all daily deposit and weekly
document processing activity reports, with evidence of the Section Chief's review. In addition, all efforts
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of HCAP assessment amounts should be documented. This
documentation could be in the form of the reviewers signaturefinitials and date on the document, with notes
and other markings on the documents, or in some other acceptable manner to provide evidence the control
was performed and any action which resulted. We also recommend the Department develop a policies and
procedures manual for the HCAP program which would help promote the accomplishment of applicable
statutory requirements, as identified within the Ohio Administrative Code, and consistency in the application
of program procedures. These policies and procedures should specifically identify employees’
responsibilities within each program area and be formally communicated o all current and future employees.
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42, MEDICAID - LONG-TERM CARE PATIENT LIABLILITIES

Finding Number 1999-HUM42-061
CFDA Number and Titfe 93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

Federal regulations require States to identify medical costs that are the legal obligations of third parties and
to exhaust those resources prior to paying claims with Medicaid program funds. Such obligations woutld
include long-term care patient liabilities derived from beneficiary resources and/or private health insurers.
it is managements responsibility to ensure internal controfs are implemented to reasonably ensure these
third-party liabilities are identified and applied to claims for reimbursement to long-term care facilities.

The Department's Medicaid Management Information System (MMiS) calculates payment amounts (totaling
approximately $2.4 billion) to Nursing Facilities and Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded
for Medicaid services provided. MMIS reduces the claims for reimbursement by the patient liability amounts
cbtained from an interface with the Client Registry Information System - Enhanced (CRIS-E). This CRIS-E
data is entered by the county case worker, and can change on a daily basis. However, the interface
between the two systems takes place only once each month and ODHS personnel could not specifically
identify when it occurs. In addition, the patient liability amount used to calculate the monthly long-term care
facility payment did not agree to amounts posted within CRIS-E for eight of the 52 remittances tested,
resulting in a net underpayment of $2,349.

Incorrect patient liability amounts within the MMIS increases the risk that payments fo long-term care
providers will be inaccurate. Anunderpayment would cause a recipient to lose benefits to which they would
otherwise be entitled, whereas, an cverpayment would result in an overstatement of federal claims,
subjecting the State to questioned costs and potential sanctions. Departmental personnel could not explain
the discrepancies in the patient liability information between MMIS and CRIS-E.

We recommend the Department evaluate the manner in which MMIS interfaces with CRIS-E to determine
whether amounts used to calculate long-term care facility payments are accurate and/or complete. In
additicn, the Department should sample provider remittances on a periodic basis to ensure the interface is
operating as intended.

The Corrective Action Plan on page 256 indicates the audit contains two oversights; the interface occurs
daily and that adjustments may not have been considered. However, possible adjustments were considered
and Department personnel could not locate any documentation of adjustments; and, although updates may
occur daily, the payment information is based on the resource amount identified on a specific date each
month. ODHS personnel could not identify which date that was.
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43. MEDICAID - MANAGED CARE PROVIDER VERIFICATION

Finding Number 1999-HUM43-062
CFDA Number and Title 93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

It is managements responsibility to design and implement internal control procedures to reasonably ensure
compliance with federal laws and reguiations. A sound internal control structure requires procedures
performed be thoroughly documented to provide management with some assurance they are being
performed timely and consistently.

The Ohio Department of Human Services (ODHS) operates a Managed Care Program in accordance with
Section 1115 of the Social Security Act. The Operational Protocol for the Ohio 1115 Medicaid Waiver,
approved by the Federal Health Care Financing Administration, stated “ODHS will monitor MCP [primary
care physician {PCP)] capacity to determine adequacy on an ongoing basis...”. To satisfy this requirement,
ODHS established specific PCP capacity requirements for each county in their MCP (Managed Care Plan)
agreement to ensure an appropriate number of providers are available to recipients. Although there is
evidence of corrective actions taken against the MCPs who were out of compiiance, there is no available
documentation to support that monthly monitoring occurred during the audit period.

Without documenting the monitoring procedures performed, management is unable to provide reasonable
assurance that program compliance is achieved, increasing the risk of sanctions which would limit the
amount of funding available for program activity, or result in the State's waiver being withdrawn.

ODHS personnel stated they created sample versions of a report each month to develop the most useful
report format. Following the selection of the best format, the developed triai reports were unusable and
subsequently thrown away. Starting in June of 1999, a standard report format was selected and wiil be
maintained to document their review of MCP compliance with provider panel and capacity requirements.

Itis our recommendation the Department implement appropriate procedures to reasonably ensure the newly
developed reports thoroughly document MCP reviews, are prepared on a consistent basis, and are retained.
Appropriate documentation could be the reviewer's date and initials, either on the document being reviewed
or on a review checklist.

44, CHILD CARE DEVELOPMENT FUND - MONITORING PROCEDURES

Finding Number 1998-HUMA44-063
CFDA Number and Title 93.596/93.575 - Child Care Cluster
Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL ~ REPORTABLE CONDITION

To help provide assurance the Department of Human Services is in compliance with federat requirements
for the Child Care Cluster requirements, management has designed monitoring control procedures which
include periodic on-site reviews at the various county agencies. Departmental policies require: 1) the county
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44, CHILD CARE DEVELOPMENT FUND - MONITORING PROCEDURES (Continued}

agency to be informed of the visit via an engagement letter, 2) the results of the review to be communicated
to the county in a compliance letter, and 3) the county agencies to submit responses for significant findings,
and take corrective action on all findings.

Of the 40 Child Care Cluster program monitoring files {20 certification and 20 efigibility) selected for testing
from the 88 annual county reviews conducted during fiscal year 1999:

. two did not contain an engagement letter informing the county of the moenitoring visit and the
procedures to be performed;

. three did not contain a response letter from the county, as required;

. two contained no evidence to ensure the ODHS Child Care personnel had performed follow-up
procedures for the counties who did not respond timely to deficiencies identified; and

. four were unavailable for review.

Without performing adequate monitoring procedures and/or maintaining the necessary supporting
documents, management may not be reascnably assured the Department is in compliance with federal
program requirements. This increases the risk that necessary corrective actions may not be properly or
timely implemented resulting in questioned costs, noncompliance, and/or fines or penalties which could
adversely affect program funding. Per discussion with the Section Chief of Family Services, there is no
apparent explanation for the exceptions noted. The missing files and documents must have been misfiled
or misplaced.

We recommend the Department implement policies and procedures to ensure the monitoring reviews are
complete and proper supporting documentation is maintained. This could be attained through a supervisory
review of the monitoring files; a check list may be helpful to ensure all required procedures were followed
and the appropriate documents are on file. The supervisory reviews should be documented in the form of
the reviewer's signature or initials and date in the file. We also recommend the Depariment evaluate its
current filing process to determine where improvements can be made to help ensure these monitoring files
are accessible and remain intact.

45, INTERNAL AUDITS - TESTING AUTOMATED CONTROLS

Finding Number 1999-HUMA45-064
CFDA Number and Title All Programs Administered by the Department
Federal Agency Department of Agriculture

Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL. - REPORTABLE CONDITION

Federal regulations allow, and in some cases require, States to utilize computer systems for processing
individual eligibility determinations and defivery of benefits. Often these computer systems are complex and
separate from the agency’s regular financial system. Typical functions of complex computer systems may
include evaluating applicant information and determining eligibility andfor benefit amounts; maintaining
eligibility records; determining the allowability of services, tracking the pericd of time an individual is eligible;
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45. INTERNAL AUDITS - TESTING AUTOMATED CONTROLS (Continued)

and maintaining financial, statistical, and other dafa which must be reported to grantor federal agencies.
It is management's responsibility to establish and implement internal controf procedures which reasonably
ensure program objectives and reguirements are met and information (both financial ang nonfinancial} is
accurately and completely processed and maintained. Appropriate menitoring mustbe performed to provide
assurance the established manual and automated controls are operating effectively. In addition, federal
regulations require States to perform a periodic risk analysis to ensure appropriate, cost effective safeguards
are incorporated on all new and existing systems.

The Ohio Department of Human Services places significant reliance on a number of complex information
systems (CRIS-E, FACSIS, MMIS, and SETS) to record and precess eligibility and financial information for
all their major federal programs. However, the number and scope of any internal audits of these systems
is severely limited because the Bureau of Research Assessment and Accountability's Audit Quality and
Technical Support section utilized only ene Information Systems Auditor for a portion of this fiscal year; this
individual was then transferred to another section. Instead, management relies heavily on the Department's
Management Information Systems (MIS) personnel and outside contractors to review, menitor, and trouble
shoot problems as they arise, even though these individuals may lack the necessary objectivity and
independence because they are responsible for programming and operating these critical systems. In
addition, the Departments MIS Section completed the risk analysis of the data processing systems in
conjunction with the Department's overall Internal Accounting Controls IACP) Review in 1998, however,
it was not clear if this analysis met all the requirements specified in the federal regulations, and the reliability
of the information may be questionable since it was not prepared by an independent party. This analysis
was not updated in 1999.

Without sufficient, experienced internal auditors with the technical skills necessary to independentlyanalyze,
evaluate, and test their complex information systems, management may not be reasonably assured these
systems are processing transactions accurately, completely, and in accordance with federal compliance
requirements. This increases the risk of noncompliance with federal reguiations and of material errors or
misstatements within the data processed, resulting in inappropriate determinations regarding eligibility,
allowability, andfor benefit amounts. ODHS audit personnel indicated the Department has not put a high
priofity on maintaining Information Systems Auditors for the Bureau of Internal Audits, but concurred with
the need to maintains sufficient technical staff and to review the Department's critical computer systems:

We recommend ODHS management evaluate the current priority placed on the review of significant
computer systems (CRIS-E, FACSIS, MMIS, and SETS) used to process and maintain critical information
regarding the Department's compliance with federal laws and regulations. Additional auditing and review
procedures should be implemented to provide management with reasonable assurance these systems,
which are so heavily relied upen in administering major federal programs, are operating effectively and in
accordance with program guidelines. We also recommend management review the risk analysis
requirements related to data processing systems and implementamend procedures as necessary to
reasonably ensure their compliance. The analysis and audits could be conducted by internal information
systems auditors or other independent personnetl with the necessary technical skills. All test procedures,
working papers, etc. related to the analysis and the audits should be maintained and the results and
recommendations should be communicated, in writing te Director and/or other appropriate upper
management who should evaluate the results and ensure timely corrective action is taken to address risk
areas and/or weaknesses identified.

The Corrective Action Plan on page 258 requests clarification on specific steps to be taken by the
Department. Atthough discussions were held with Department personnel during fieldwork, we would be
happy tc meet, at the Department's request, to provide additional information and direction.
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48. LATE COUNTY REPORTS - VARIOUS COUNTIES

Finding Number 1999-HUM46-065
CFDA Number and Titte All Programs Administered by the Counties
Federal Agency Department of Agriculture

Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

County agencies are advanced or reimbursed federal monies to administer various programs on behaif of
the Ohio Department of Human Services (ODHS). These county agencies are required to submit monthly
financial and other reports o identify program outiays/activities and provide information to ODHS which is
then used to prepare cumulative federal reperts and various schedules used by the Office of Budget and
Management to compile the State's financial statements. To facilitate the completion and submission of
these reports, ODHS has established policy and procedural manuals to identify applicable reporting
requirements, as indicated below:

The ODHS 2827 Monthly Financial Statement {public assistance programs} must be submitted to
ODHS no later than the tast day of the month following the expenditure month. [ODHS
Administrative Procedural Manuat Section 7902]

The ODHS 2820 Monthly Financial Statement (children services programs) must be submitted no
later than the 20th day of the month following the expenditure month. [ODHS Administrative
Procedural Manual Section 7501]

The ODHS 2750 Monthly Financial Statement (child support program) must be submitted no later
than the 20th day of the month following the expenditure month. [ODHS Child Support Enforcement
Manual Section 5041]

FNS-46 Food Stamp Program Issuance Reconciliation Report must be submitted to the ODHS Food
Stamp/TEFAP (Temporary Assistance Focd Assistance Program) section no later than 90 days
following the report month, prior to December 1, 1998; and no fater than 60 days following the report
month, after December 1, 1998, [Food Stamp Supervisor Handbock Section 5101:4-38-35 {B}]

FNS-250 Food Coupon Accountability Report must be submitted to the ODHS Food Stamp/TEFAP
(Temporary Emergency Food Assistance Program) Section by the 45" day of the month following
the end of the report month, prior to December 1, 1998; and by the 20" day of the month following
the end of the report month, after December 1, 1998. [Food Stamp Supervisor Handbook, Section
5101:4-37-19 (B)].

ODHS 4282 Title XX Social Services Block Grant Report must be submitted to ODHS no later than
45 days after the end of the month, even if SSBG direct services were not provided and/or
purchased services expenditures were not made during the month. [ODHS Administrative
Procedural Manual 5501}

The CDHS 4281 Children Services Quarterly Statistical Report must be submitted to ODHS no later
than the 15" of the month following the end of the quarter. [ODHS Administrative Procedural
Manual 5405]
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LATE COUNTY REPORTS - VARIOUS COUNTIES (Continued)

The ODHS 4223 Quarterly Child Support Report must be received by the ODHS office of fiscal
services, reports and statistics section no later than the fifteenth calendar day of the month following
the reported quarter, or the next business day after the fifteenth if the fifteenth is not a business day.
[Ohio Admin. Code Section 5101:1-31-60(C)}

The ODHS 4228 Claims of Good Cause for Refusing to Cooperate in Establishing Paternity and

Securing Child_Support must be received by the ODHS Office of Fiscal Services, Bureau of
Financial Analysis and Reporting no later than the fifteenth calendar day of the month following the
reported quarter, even if no control group cases are reported during the quarter. [ODHS
Administrative Procedural Manual 5340] '

The ODHS 4234 Annual Child Support Statistical/Financial Report must be received by the ODHS
office offiscal services, reports and statistics section no later than October fifteenth following the end
of the federal fiscal year (FFY), or the next business day after the fifteenth if the fifteenth is not a
business day. [Ohio Admin. Code Secticn 5101:1-31-62(C)]

The ODHS 4289 Manthly Child Support Cellections Report must be received by the ODHS Office
of Fiscal Services, Reports and Statistics Section no later than the fifteenth calendar day of the
month following the reported month, or the next business day after the fifteenth if the fifteenth is not
a business day. [Ohio Admin. Code Section 5101:1-31-63(C)]

Of the ten counties tested during the audit period, nine submitted one or more reports beyond the required
due dates, as detalled below (NOTE: @ = no documentation was maintained by the county to indicate when
these reports were submitted, therefore, we could not determine if they were timely; and NP = reporis were
not prepared/available for review).

e, & Medicaid
County # Late / # Tested Days Late
Hamiitcn 1/4 38
Montgomery 2/4 8-20

Gounty # Late / # Tested Days Late
Hamilton 4/4 4.37
Montgomery 2/4 2-6
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46, LATE GOUNTY REPORTS - VARIOUS COUNTIES (Continued)

# Late / # Tested

County Days Late
Hamilton 414 4-37
Montgomery 2/4 5-31

County

# Late / # Tested Days Late
Cuyahoga 5f7 13-272
Lorain 14 NP

County

# Late / # Tested

Days Late

Cuyahoga

47

5-43

County # Late / # Tested Days Late
Cuyahoga 217 134 - 225
Montgomery 3/3 44 - 177
Franklin 4/5 30-150
Lucas 44 96 - 220
Delaware 10/12 30- 360
Union 2/3 11-63

County

# Late / # Tested

Days Late

Montgomery

213

3-9
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46, LATE COUNTY REPORTS - VARIOUS COUNTIES (Continued)

# Late / # Tested Days Late
Montgomery 113 3
Lorain 4/4 2-45
Summit 4/4 3-8
Hancock 212 @
Union 313 (@]

# Late / # Tested Days Late

Montgomery

213

3-9

County # Late / # Tested Days Late
Montgomery 313 @
Hancock 212 @
Union 1/2 26

# Late { # Tested Days Late
Montgomery 171 @
Hancock 11 4
Union 11 153

ffecte

County # Late / # Tested Days Late
Hamilton 22 NP
Montgomery 2/2 NP
Lorain 112 30
Franklin 2{2 30 - 120
Hancock 212 @
Union 2/2 @
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46. LATE COCUNTY REPORTS - VARIOUS COUNTIES {Continued)

Without accurate and timely reporting by the various county agencies, the risk that amounts reporied to the
federal grantor agencies andfor on the State’s financial statements are not indicative of actual program
activities is greatly increased. In FY 1999, delays in receiving county financial information significantly
delayed the preparation of certain GAAP Package Schedules used to provide information for the preparation
of the State's financial statements.

County personnel identified a variety of reasons for not preparing the reports and/or not submitting them
timely, including delays from the county auditer, being given verbal extensions by ODHS, and not knowing
about the report requirements. This suggests thatimproper or insufficient fraining and communications have
been provided to the counties. in addition, the CORe system, used to submit financial information for the
public assistance and child support areas, will not process transactions for a current month until afl prior
months have been entered. This sometimes compounds reporting delays when thera is an issue with just
one month.

We recommend ODHS improve communications with county agencies and verify that each county
thoroughly understands the reporting requirements documentedin the various policy manuals. Any changes
to the requirements, including deadlines, should be promptly communicated to the counties, in writing, and
the corresponding procedures manuals changed. In addition, any extensions granted to counties should
be clearly documented, in writing, so thateach party is sure of the expectations. ODHS should also enhance
their monitoring procedures related to county reporting to identify those counties who are habitually late and
enforce punitive measures for those counties, as provided for in the procedures manuals and Ohio
Administrative Code.

47. MISSING DOCUMENTATION - VARIOUS COUNTIES

Finding Number 1998-HUM47-066

CFDA Number and Title 10.551/10.561 - Food Stamp Cluster

93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.596/93.575 - Child Care Cluster

93.658 - Foster Care

93.559 - Adoption Assistance

93.667 - Social Services Block Grant
§93.775/93.777/93.778 - Medical Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency Department of Agriculture
Department of Health and Human Services

INTERNAL CONTROL - REPORTABLE CONDITION

When administering federal grant awards for the Ohio Department of Human Services (ODHS), it is the
counties’ responsibility to provide reasonable assurance that only eligible individuals receive assistance and
the information reported to ODHS is accurate and complete. In order for county management to ensure and
verify this, itis imperative that appropriate supporting documentation be maintained for allamounts reported,
and case files contain all pertinent information relating to the case and be readily accessible for review
andforreference. The Ohio Department of Human Services Administrative Procedure Manual Chapter 8212
states, in part:
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47. MISSING DOCUMENTATION - VARIOUS COUNTIES (Continued)

Financial, programmatic, statistical, and recipient records and supporting documents must be
retained for a minimum of three years. The minimum retention period for public assistance records

depends upon whether the assistance group is active or inactive.

ODHS requires inactive

assistance group records to be held for a minimum of three years after the group has become
inactive. For active assistance groups, or assistance groups that have been inactive for less than
three years, ODHS requires a minimum retention pericd of seven years for documentation, including
old applicationfre-application forms and monthly reporting forms which were obtained for the
assistance group record.

The Ohio Department of Human Services is responsible for establishing guidelines and regulations for
implementation at the county level and for monitoring county activities te reasonably ensure the
Department's compliance with federal program requirements.

Seven of the ten counties tested during the audit pericd did not have appropriate supporting documentation
for amounts reported and/or were missing required case file documentation, as detailed below:

COUNTY CFDA# MISSING DOCUMENTATION
Hamilton 93.596/ | The Hamilton County Department of Human Services (HCDHS)

93.575 developed and implemented various internal controls for the
redetermination of Child Care benefits. One internal control implemented
provides the HCDHS feedback on the service rendered by the Day Care
providers. A “ Parent Feedback on Provider Service Form” is to be
completed and signed by the client and/or the Consumer Specialist and
placed in the clients file at redetermination. The Parent Feedback on
Provider Service Form was developed to allow parents to express their
opinion of the Day Care provider and for the HCDHS to note any
significant problems or deficiencies. If the parents do not have
comments, the feedback form must still be placed in the file indicating “no
comment.” However, of the 20 files tested from the 6,000 Child care
cases of Hamilton County, five did not contain Parent Feedback on
Provider & one form was not signed by the client or consumer specialist.

Cuyahoga 93.596/ | We tested 20 of the 19,000 Child Care case files for Cuyahoga County and

93.575 noted 11 of them did not include a Notice of Approval form. This represents
a breakdown in the procedures that ensure compliance over maintaining
supporting documentation as evidence the clients receiving services by the
Children Day Care and Development Program were approved.

10.551¢ | Of the reports tested for fiscal year 1999:

10.561,

93.558, |+ Two of seven original monthly FNS-46 reports (February and May 1998)

93.506/ reports were not retained after they were revised;

§3.577, |+ Eight of 88 FNS-250 original reports from the 18 issuance centers used

83.667& to prepare the compiled FNS 250 amount for the county. The months of

93.775/ July, August, September and November 1998 were not retained afterthey

93.777} were revised;

93.778 + Two of four monthly ODHS 2827 reports {September 1998 and April

1989} were revised but the file did not contain a copy of these revised
reports.
State of Ohio 199




SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

CHIO DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

47. MISSING DOCUMENTATION - VARIOUS COUNTIES {Continued)

COUNTY

CFDA #

MISSING DOCUMENTATICN

Lucas

93.558

93.596/
93.575

93.658
and
93.659

Of the 20 files selected for testing from the 1,089 TANF/Prevention
Retention and Contingency {PRC) cases processed by Lucas County:

» 13 case files did not contain a PRC application;

= 3 PRC applications were not signed by the caseworker indicating the
caseworker had determined the eligibility status of the client and had
obtained the necessary documentation;

+ 5 PRC applications were nct signed by the caseworker's supervisor
indicating the application had been reviewed and approval given for
payment of benefits;

+ 3 transactions were not recorded in the state-wide CRIS-E computer
system’s Running Comments section {CLRC}; and

» 12 transactions were not recorded in the CRIS-E Individual Eligibility
History ({QEL).

Of the 19,619 TANF/Chio Works First {OWF) cases and 7,705 TANF/OWF
Self Sufficiency Contracts (8SCs  which set forth the rights and
responsibilities of the assistance group, including work requirements and
time limits) processed by Lucas County:

+ 11 of 20 OWF case files did not contain the original application {Form
7200}

« 6 of 10 case files did not contain the Notice of Approval or Denial which
is required to be mailed to all applicants;

» 3 0of 10 S8Cs were not signed by the caseworker, as required; &

+ 2 of 10 SSCs were not signed by the clientfrecipient, as required.

Of the 20 child files selected for testing from the 2,479 Child Care Cluster
cases of Lucas County, we noted:

» five Child Care Authorization/Placement forms which did not have the
Child Care Benefits Disposition portion completed;

+ one did not include supporting docurmentation for the income verification;
and

+ one case file could not be located, therefore, we were unable to review
the application and supporting decumentation.

The current process in place in Lucas County requires the Supervisor of
Entitlements to complete and sign a supervisory checklist as indication that

all Foster Care and Adoption eligibility requirements have been met.

However, of the 20 Foster Care files selected for testing from the 856 cases
of the county, three did not contain a superviscry checklist; and two of 20

cases selected for testing from the 1,360 Adoption Assistance did not
contain a supervisor checklist on redeterminations, and, one adoption

assistance file tested did not include a copy of the agreement with the

parent,
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47. MISSING DOCUMENTATION - VARIOUS COUNTIES {Continued)

COUNTY

CFDA#

MISSING DOCUMENTATION

Summit

93.563

93.659

The Assistant Director is responsible for preparing the ODHS 4223, 4228,
and 4234 reports. During our review, he could not locate the signed copy
ofthese reports nor any documentation which would support the information
submitted to ODHS. Givan this situation, these reports could not be tested.

One of ten Title IV-E Adoption Assistance case files tested from
approximately 857 active Summit County Chiidren Services Board (SCCSB)
cases did not include a Title IV-E Adoption Assistance Application (ODHS
1451), although other documentation was in the file to substantiate the
eligibility determination made.

Hancock

93.667

The Hancock County Department of Human Services currently uses the
Adult Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation Repert to document referrais for
Adult Protective Services, which are part of the agency’s Social Services
Block Grant program. However, three of 10 cases reviewed from the 91
Adult Protective Services cases in Hancock County did not contain any
documentation of the source of the referral, and the Report had not been
completed for five of the 10 cases tested.

Union

93.658

We noted the following missing records during our review of 10 of the 23
active Foster care cases in Union County:

+ QDHS form 1451, application for foster care, was not on file for one of
ten cases;

« Child care agreement to be signed by the foster parents, case worker
and foster care coordinator was not on file for three of ten cases;

» Foster Care Determination/Redetermination forms, to be completed
every six months, were not on file for nine of nine cases that required a
redetermination.

+ The initial court order, which includes the reasens for removal of the
child, was not on file for two of twelve cases;

+ Information was not present in the file documenting whether the child
was removed by judicial determination or voluntary placement for two
of twelve cases;

» Documentation was not present to determine that court action was
taken in a timely manner for two of twelve cases.

Delaware

93.566/
93.575

93.659

Five of 20 applications tested from the 275 Child Care cases of the county
did not contain ODHS form 4074, Notice of Approval. This notice is also
mailed to the client and documents the approvai of services but does not by
itself document eligibility.

We noted the following missing records in the 20 case files tested from the
53 Adoption Assistance cases open during the audit period:

» The Adoption Assistance Agreement was not on file for five cases.

» The Final Order of Adoption/Certification of Adoption Proceedings was
not on file for eight cases.

+ The Adoption Placement Agreement was not on file for six cases.
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47, MISSING DOCUMENTATION - VARICUS COUNTIES (Continued)

COUNTY CFDA# MISSING DOCUMENTATION
Delaware 93.658 We also noted the following missing records in the 22 case files tested from
(continued) the 38 foster care cases open during the audit period:

» The original eligibility determination form, which documents the eligibility
determination, was not on file for one case,

« The initial eligibility determination section of the Title iV-E Foster Care
Maintenance Form was not located for one case;

» The judicial determination form, which includes the reasons for removal
of the child, was not located for one case;

» Thejudicial determination forms, which show the time period between the
removal of the child from the home by temporary (emergency) action and
the final removal of the child by court order, was not located for one case;

+ The original eligibility form was not completed to determine whether the
child was deprived of parental support of a least one parent for one case;

+ The original eligibility form was not completed to determine if the child
was TANF or SSi eligible for one case;

» The temporary custody order, which documents the removat of the chitd
was not located for one of 20 applicable cases tested; and

» The current eligibility redetermination form which is to be prepared avery
six months to determine continued eligibility, was not on file for four of 19
applicable cases tested that required a redetermination.

Without appropriate supperting documentation on file, the county personnel may not be able to evaluate the
appropriateness of eligibility determinations/denials, reasonably ensure the amount of benefits paid is
accurate, or reasonably ensure the designed procedures are in place and operating as management
intended. In addition, county and ODHS management may not be reasonably assured the amounts reported
are accurate and complete, that adjustments made to original reports were appropriate, or compliance
requirements are being met. Without completing and retaining a copy of the applicationfagreement, the
county does not have a solid legal position to ensure the beneficiary’s compliance with federal regulations.

Hamilton CDHS personnel indicated the * Parent Feedback on Provider Service Form” does not directly
affect client's eligibility. Therefore, the case workers may neglect to complete the form or place it into the
file.

The Cuyahoga County Assistant Day Care Manager did not know why these forms were not in the specific
case file, but she indicated this form is also needed because it allows for the computation of adjusted gross
monthly income {AGMI) as well as written notice of approval. Itgives the client an cpportunity to review how
the AGMI and the co-payment were determined by CCDHS. The Account Clerk Supervisor indicated that
if the report was incorrect and revised, there was no reason to keep the initial report. However, the Budget
Officer stated that all reports should be and will be retained by CCDHS as of September 1999,

tucas CDHS management indicated they have a policy requiring applications to be signed by the
caseworker and supervisor and the items identified in our testing were considered oversights. They also
indicated they sometimes create second files when the originals become too bulky and believed the missing
OWF applications (Form 7200) may have been in the original fife which is in storage. In addition, LCDHS
Management had not considere